Issued to Mr. / M/S_____

Vide DR. No:_____Dated ___/ /2015

EXECUTIVE ENGINEER MACHINERY MAINTENANCE DIVISION KHAIRPUR @ SHIKARPUR

BID DOCUMENTS

FOR

IMPROVEMENT OF KANDHKOT SAIFAL ROAD MILE 0/0-10/2 (16.50 KMS.)

BII) DOCUMENTS ARE PLACED IN THE FOLLOWING FOLDERS

VOLUME IA: TECHNICAL BID

÷

- 1) INVITATION FOR BID
- 2) INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS
- 3) **BIDDING DATA**
- 4) FORM OF BID AND APPENDICES TO BID
- 5) CONTRACT FORMS
- 6) GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT
- 7) SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

VOLUME II: DRAWINGS

VOLUME III: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

- P WD Specifications
- National Highway Authority (NHA) General Specifications (Dec 1998)
- Bidders are instructed to purchase the Specifications from the source of origin

TABLE OF CONTENTS

â,

R,

| C'ONTENTS | Page |
|--|-------------|
| INVITATION FOR BIDS | No. 4 |
| INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS | 6 |
| A. General | |
| IB.1 Scope of Bid | 7 |
| IB.2 Source of Funds | |
| IB.3 Eligible Bidders | 7 7 8 |
| IB.4 One Bid Per Bidder IB.5 Cost of Bidding | |
| IB.6 Site Visit | 8 |
| | a |
| B Bidding Documents | |
| IB.7 Contents of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| IB.8 Clarification of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| IB.9 Amendment of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| C. Preparation of Bids | |
| IB.10. Language of Bid | 10 |
| IB.11 Documents Accompanying the Bid | 10 |
| IB.12 Bid Prices | 11 |
| IB.13 Currencies of Bid and Payment | 12 |
| IB.14 Bid Validity IB.15 Bid Security | 12 |
| IB.16 Alternate Proposals by Bidder | 13 13 |
| IB.17 Pre-Bid Meeting | 13 |
| IB.18 Format and Signing of Bid | 14 |
| D Submission of Bids | |
| ID 10 Section and Marking (SD) (| |
| IB.19 Sealing and Marking of Bids IB.20 Deadline for Submission of Bids | 15 |
| IB.20 Deadline for Submission of Blas | 15 |
| IB.22 Modification, Substitution and Withdrawal of Bids | 16 16 |
| model moundation, prostruction and withdrawar of bids | 10 |

(2)

E Bid Opening and Evaluation

ā.

ţ

| B.23 Bid Opening | 16 |
|--|----|
| B.24 Process to be Confidential | 17 |
| B.25 Clarification of Bids | 17 |
| B.26 Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness | 17 |
| B.27 Correction of Errors | 18 |
| B.28 Evaluation and Comparison of Bids | 19 |

F Award of Contract

| B.29 Award | 20 |
|---|----|
| B.30 Procuring Agency's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids | 20 |
| B.31 Notification of Award | 21 |
| B.32 Performance Security | 21 |
| B.33 Signing of Contract Agreement | 22 |
| B.34 General Performance of the Bidders | 22 |
| B.35 Integrity Pact | 22 |
| B.36 Instructions Not Part of Contract | 23 |
| B.37 Arbitration | 23 |
| BIDDING DATA | 24 |

29

BIDDING DATA FORM OF BID AND APPENDICES TO BID

FORM OF BID

| Appendix-A to Bid | : | Special Stipulations | 32 |
|-------------------|---|--|------|
| Appendix-B to Bid | : | Foreign Currency Requirements | 35 |
| Appendix-C to Bid | : | Price Adjustment (Under Clause 70) | - 36 |
| Appendix-D to Bid | : | Bill of Quantities | - 38 |
| Appendix-E to Bid | : | Proposed Construction Schedule | 53 |
| Appendix-F to Bid | : | Method of Performing the Work | - 54 |
| Appendix-G to Bid | : | List of Major Equipment – Related Items | 55 |
| Appendix-H to Bid | : | Construction Camp and Housing Facilities | 57 |
| Appendix-I to Bid | : | List of Subcontractors | - 58 |
| Appendix-J to Bid | : | Estimated Progress Payments | 59 |
| Appendix-K to Bid | | Organization Chart of the Supervisory Staff and Labour | 60 |
| Appendix-L to Bid | : | Integrity Pact | 62 |
| | | | |

| PART-I | GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT | . 76 |
|--------|------------------------------------|------|
| | INDENTURE BOND FOR SECURED ADVANCE | 72 |
| | MOBOLIZATION ADVANCE GURANTEE | 70 |
| | CONTRACT AGREEMENT | 68 |
| | PERFORMANCE SECURITY | 66 |
| FOF.MS | BID SECURITY | 63 |

INVITATION FOR BIDS

2

NOTICE INVITING TENDERS

Date: 13/03/2015

Provincial Government Funds: ADP No. 2417 (2014-15)

Bid Reference No:TC/G-55/272

Refer Invitation for Tenders issued by Executive Engineer,

Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

â

÷

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

A. GENERAL

IB.1 Scope of Bid

â

2

- 1.1 Procuring agency as defined in the bidding data hereinafter called "the procuring agency" wishes to receive bids for the construction and completion of works as described in these bidding documents, and summarized in the bidding data hereinafter referred to as the "Works".
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the works within the time specified in Appendix-A to Bid.

IB.2 Source of Funds

2.1 Procuring agency has received/allocated/] applied for loan/grant/ Federal/ Provincial/Local Government funds from the source(s) indicated in the bidding data in various currencies towards the cost of the project /scheme specified in the bidding data, and it is intended that part of the proceeds of this loan/grant/funds will be applied to eligible payments under the contract for which these bidding documents are issued.

IB.3 Eligible Bidders

3.1 This Invitation for Bids is open to all interested bidders who are eligible under provisions of Sindh Public Procurement Rules as mentioned below and the criteria given in the Notice Inviting Tender (NIT)/ Bidding Document.

Firms and individuals, national are allowed to bid, for the project. Any conditions for participation shall be limited to those that are essential to ensure the bidder's capability to fulfill the contract in question.

- (a) Bidders may be excluded if;
 - (i) a firm is blacklisted/ debarred by the procuring agency and the matter has been reported to the Authority, subject to Rule 30 of Sindh Public Procurement Rules 2010.
- (b) Government-owned enterprises or institutions may participate only if they can establish that they are;
 - (i) legally and financially autonomous, and
 - (ii) operate under commercial law.

Provided that where government-owned universities or research centers in the country are of a unique and exceptional nature, and their participation is critical to project implementation, they may be allowed to participate; and

Bidders shall include all those contractors who are registered or incorporated in Pakistan, irrespective of the nationality of their owners and professional staff, or

(c) Bidders are:-

ā.

÷

- (i) registered with Pakistan Engineering Council in particular category and discipline,
- (ii) registered with relevant tax authorities (income/sales tax, wherever applicable)

IB.4 One Bid per Bidder

4.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid either by himself, or as a partner in a joint venture. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid (other than alternatives pursuant to Clause IB.16) will be disqualified.

IB.5 Cost of Bidding

5.1 The bidders shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of their respective bids, and the procuring agency will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

IB.6 Site Visit

- 6.1 The bidders are advised to visit and examine the site of works and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for construction of the works. All cost in this respect shall be at the bidder's own expense.
- 6.2 The bidders and any of their personnel or agents will be granted permission by the procuring agency to enter upon his premises and lands for the purpose of such inspection, but only upon the express condition that the bidders, their personnel and agents, will release and indemnify the procuring agency, his personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property and any other loss, damage, costs and expenses incurred as a result of such inspection.

C. PREPARATION OF BIDS

IB.10 Language of Bid

Ξ.

101 The bid and all correspondence and documents related to the bid exchanged by a bidder and the procuring agency shall be in the language stipulated in the bidding data and Special Conditions of the Contract. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the bidders may be in any other language provided the same are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant parts in the bid language, in which case, for purposes of evaluation of the bid, the translation in bid language shall prevail.

IB.11 Documents Accompanying the Bid

- 11.1 Each bidder shall:
 - (a) submit a written authorization on the letterhead of the bidding firm, authorizing the signatory of the bid to act for and on behalf of the bidder;
 - (b) update the information indicated and listed in the bidding data and previously submitted with the application for prequalification, and continue to meet the minimum criteria set out in the prequalification documents, which as a minimum, would include the following:
 - (i) Evidence of access to financial resources along with average annual construction turnover;
 - (ii) Financial predictions for the current year and the following two years, including the effect of known commitments;
 - (iii) Work commitments since prequalification;
 - (iv) Current litigation information; and
 - (v) Availability of critical equipment.

And

(c) furnish a technical proposal taking into account the various Appendices to Bid specially the following:

Appendix-E to Bid Proposed Construction Schedule Appendix-F to Bid Method of Performing the Work Appendix-G to Bid List of Major Equipment Appendix-K to Bid Organization Chart for Supervisory Staff and other pertinent information such as mobilization programme etc;

11.2 Bids submitted by a joint venture of two (2) or more firms shall comply with the following requirements:

B. BIDDING DOCUMENTS

IB.7 Contents of Bidding Documents (SSP RULE 21)

7.1 The bidding documents, in addition to invitation for bids, are those stated below and should be read in conjunction with any addenda issued in accordance with Clause IB.9.

- a. Instructions to Bidders.
- b. Bidding Data.

÷.

- c. General Conditions of Contract, Part-I (GCC).
- d. Special Conditions of Contract, Part-II (SCC)
- e. Specifications.
- f. Form of Bid and Appendices to Bid.
- g. Bill of Quantities (Appendix-D to Bid).
- h. Form of Bid Security.
- i. Form of Contract Agreement.
- j. Forms of Performance Security, Mobilization Advance Guarantee, Integrity Pact and Indenture bond for secured advance.
- k. Drawings,

7.2 The bidders are expected to examine carefully the contents of all the above documents. Failure to comply with the requirements of bid submission will be at the bidder's own risk. Pursuant to Clause IB.26, bids which are not substantially responsive to the requirements of the BD will be rejected.

IB.8 Clarification of Bidding Documents (SSP RULE 23(1)):

Any interested bidder requiring any clarification(s) in respect of the bidding documents may notify the procuring agency in writing at the procuring agency's address indicated in the Invitation for Bids/NIT. Procuring agency will respond to any request for clarification provided they are received at least five calendar days prior to the date of opening of bid.

Provided that any clarification in response to query by any bidder; shall be communicated to all parties who have obtained bidding documents.

IB.9 Addendum/Modification of Bidding Documents:

- 9.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the procuring agency may, for any reason, whether at his own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a interested bidder, modify the bidding documents by issuing addendum.
- 9.2 Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the bidding documents pursuant to subclause IB 7.1 hereof and shall be communicated in writing to all bidders. Interested bidders shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in writing to the procuring agency.
- 9.3 To afford bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the procuring agency may extend the deadline for submission of bids in accordance with IB.20

- (a) one of the joint venture partners shall be nominated as being in charge; and this authorization shall be evidenced by submitting a power of attorney signed by legally authorized signatories of all the joint venture partners;
- (b) the bid, and in case of a successful bid, the Form of Contract Agreement shall be signed by the authorized partner so as to be legally binding on all partners;
- (c) the partner-in-charge shall always be duly authorized to deal with the procuring agency regarding all matters related with and/or incidental to the execution of works as per the terms and Conditions of Contract and in this regard to incur any and all liabilities, receive instructions, give binding undertakings and receive payments on behalf of the joint venture;
- (d) all partners of the joint venture shall at all times and under all circumstances be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the contract in accordance with the contract terms and a statement to this effect shall be included in the authorization mentioned under Sub-Para (a) above as well as in the Form of Bid and in the Form of Contract Agreement (in case of a successful bid);
- (e) a copy of the agreement entered into by the joint venture partners shall be submitted with the bid stating the conditions under which it will function, its period of duration, the persons authorized to represent and obligate it and which persons will be directly responsible for due performance of the contract and can give valid receipts on behalf of the joint venture, the proportionate participation of the several firms forming the joint venture, and any other information necessary to permit a full appraisal of its functioning. No amendments / modifications whatsoever in the joint venture agreement shall be agreed to between the joint venture partners without prior written consent of the procuring agency;
- (f) submission of an alternative Letter of Intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement shall be mandatory.
- 11.3 Bidders shall also submit proposals of work methods and schedule, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the bidders" proposals to meet the technical specifications and the completion time referred to sub- clause IB 1.2 hereof.

IB.12 Bid Prices

÷

- 12. Unless stated otherwise in the bidding documents, the contract shall be for the whole of the works as described in IB 1.1 hereof, based on the unit rates or prices submitted by the bidder or percentage quoted above or below on the rates of Composite Schedule of Rates (CSR), as the case may be.
- 12.2 The bidders shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the works described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by a bidder will not be paid for by the procuring agency when executed and shall be deemed to be covered by rates and prices for other items in the Bill of Quantities. In case of Composite Schedule of Rates, if the bidder fails to mention the percentage above or below, it shall be deemed to be at par with the rates of Composite Schedule of Rates.

12.3 The bid price submitted by the contractor shall include all rates and prices including the taxes. All duties, taxes and other levies payable by the contractor under the contract, or for any other cause during the currency of the execution of the work or otherwise specified in the contract as on the date seven days prior to the deadline for submission of bids.

Additional / reduced duties, taxes and levies due to subsequent additions or changes in legislation shall be reimbursed / deducted as per Sub-Clause 13.7 of the General Conditions of Contract Part-I.

12.4 The rates and prices quoted by the bidders are subject to adjustment during the performance of the contract in accordance with the provisions of Clause 13.7of GCC. The bidders shall furnish the prescribed information for the price adjustment formulae in Appendix-C to Bid, and shall submit with their bids such other supporting information as required under the said Clause. Adjustment in prices quoted by bidders shall be allowed as per Sub-Para 4(ii) of Section C of Instructions to bidders and bidding data.

IB 13 Currencies of Bid and Payment

- 13.1 The unit rates and the prices shall be quoted by the bidder entirely in Pak rupees. A bidder expecting to incur expenditures in other currencies for inputs to the works supplied from outside the procuring agency's country (referred to as the "Foreign Currency Requirements") shall indicate the same in Appendix-B to Bid. The proportion of the bid price (excluding Provisional Sums) needed by him for the payment of such Foreign Currency Requirements either (i) entirely in the currency of the bidder's home country or, (ii) at the bidder's option, entirely in Pak rupees provided always that a bidder expecting to incur expenditures in a currency or currencies other than those stated in (i) and (ii) above for a portion of the foreign currency requirements, and wishing to be paid accordingly, shall indicate the respective portions in the bid.
- 13.2 The rates of exchange to be used by the bidder for currency conversion shall be the selling rates published and authorized by the State Bank of Pakistan prevailing on the date, 07 (seven) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. For the purpose of payments, the exchange rates used in bid preparation shall apply for the duration of the contract.

IB 14 Bid Validity

- 14.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period stipulated in the bidding data from the date of opening of bid specified in clause IB.23.
- 14.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to expiry of the original, the procuring agency may request the bidders to extend the period of validity for a specified additional period, which shall not be for more than one third of the original period of bid validity. The request and the responses thereto, shall be made in writing. A bidder may refuse the request without the forfeiture of the bid security. In case, a bidder agreed to the request, shall not be required or permitted to modify the bid, but will be required to extend the validity of the bid security for the period of the extension, and in compliance with Clause IB.15 in all respects.

IB.15 Bid Security

- 15.1 Each bidder shall furnish, as part of the bid, a bid security in the amount stipulated in the bidding data in Pak Rupees or an equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.
- 15.2 The bid security shall be at the option of the bidder, in the form of deposit at call, Pay order or a bank guarantee issued by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or from a foreign bank duly counter guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan in favour of the procuring agency, which should commensurate with the bid validity period. The bank guarantee for bid security shall be acceptable in the manner as provided at Annexure BS-1
- 15.3 Any bid not accompanied by an acceptable bid security shall be rejected by the procuring agency as non-responsive.
- 15.4 Bid security shall be released to the unsuccessful bidders once the contract has been signed with the successful bidder or the validity period has expired.
- 15.5 The bid security of the successful bidder shall be returned when the bidder has furnished the required Performance Security and signed the Contract Agreement.
- 15.6 The bid security may be forfeited:
 - (a) if the bidder withdraws his bid except as provided in sub- clause IB 22.1;
 - (b) if the bidder does not accept the correction of his bid price pursuant to subclause IB 27.2 hereof; or
 - (c) In the case of successful bidder, if he fails within the specified time limit to:
 - (i) furnish the required Performance Security; or
 - (ii) sign the Contract Agreement.

IB.16 Alternate Proposals/Bids

- 16.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid either by himself, or as a member of a joint venture, until and unless they have been requested or permitted for alternative bid, then he has to purchase separate bidding documents and alternate bid shall be treated as separate bid.
- 16.2 Alternate proposals are allowed only for procurement of works where technical complexity is involved and more than one designs or technical solutions are being offered. Two stage two envelope bidding procedure will be appropriate when alternate proposal is required.
- 16.3 Alternate bid(s) shall contain (a) relevant design calculations; (b) technical specifications; (c) proposed construction methodology; and (d) any other relevant details / conditions, provided that the total sum entered on the Form of Bid shall be that which represents complete compliance with the bidding documents.

IB.17 Pre-Bid Meeting

17.1 Procuring agency may, on his own motion or at the request of any bidder, hold a prebid meeting to clarify issues and to answer any questions on matters related to the bidding documents. The date, time and venue of pre-bid meeting, if convened, shall be communicated to all bidders. All bidders or their authorized representatives shall be invited to attend such a pre-bid meeting at their own expense.

- 17.2 The bidders are requested to submit questions, if any, in writing so as to reach the Procuring agency not later than seven (7) days before the proposed pre-bid meeting.
- 17.3 Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions raised and the replies given, will be transmitted without delay to all bidders. Any modification of the bidding documents listed in sub- clause IB 7.1 hereof, which may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by the procuring agency exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to Clause IB.9 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting.
- 17.4 Absence at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a bidder.

IB 18 Format and Signing of Bid

- 18.1 Bidders are particularly directed that the amount entered on the Form of Bid shall be for performing the contract strictly in accordance with the bidding documents.
- 18.2 All appendices to bid are to be properly completed and signed.
- 18.3 Alteration is not to be made neither in the form of bid nor in the Appendices thereto except in filling up the blanks as directed. If any such alterations be made or if these instructions be not fully complied with, the bid may be rejected.
- 18.4 Each bidder shall prepare by filling out the forms without alterations and shall provide an original copy along with photocopies as per the requirement of the procuring agency specified in the bidding data. The original as well as copies of the document shall be clearly marked as "ORIGINAL" and "COPY", as the case may be. If there is any discrepancy between original and copy(ies) then the original shall prevail.
- 18.5 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink (in the case of copies, Photostats are also acceptable) and shall be signed by a person(s) duly authorized to sign on behalf of the bidder pursuant to sub- clause IB 11.1(a) hereof. All pages of the bid shall be initialled and stamped by the person(s) signing the bid.
- 18.6 The bid shall contain no alterations, omissions or additions, except to comply with instructions issued by the procuring agency, or as are necessary to correct errors made by the bidder. Such corrections shall be initialled by the person(s) signing the bid.
- 18.7 Bidders shall indicate in the space provided in the Form of Bid their full and proper postal addresses at which notices may be legally served on them and to which all correspondence in connection with their bids and the contract is to be sent.
- 18.8 Bidders should retain a copy of the bidding documents as their file copy.

D. SUBMISSION OF BIDS

IB.19 Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 19.1 Each bidder shall submit his bid as under:
 - (a) ORIGINAL and _____COPIES of the bid shall be separately sealed and put in separate envelopes and marked as such.
 - (b) The envelopes containing the ORIGINAL and COPIES shall be put in one sealed envelope and addressed as given in sub clause IB 19.2 hereof.
- 19.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) be addressed to the procuring agency at the address provided in the bidding data;
 - (b) bear the name and identification number of the contract as defined in the bidding data; and
 - (c) provide a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening, as specified in the bidding data.
- 19.3 In addition to the identification required in sub- clause IB 19.2 hereof, the inner envelope shall indicate the name and postal address of the bidder to enable the bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared "late" pursuant to Clause IB.21
- 19.4 If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, the procuring agency will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.

IB.20 Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 20.1 (a) Bids must be received by the procuring agency at the address specified not later than the time and date stipulated in the bidding data,
 - (b) Bids with charges payable will not be accepted, nor will arrangements be undertaken to collect the bids from any delivery point other than that specified above. Bidders shall bear all expenses incurred in the preparation and delivery of bids. No claims shall be entertained for refund of such expenses.
 - (c) Where delivery of a bid is by mail and the bidder wishes to receive an acknowledgment of receipt of such bid, he shall make a request for such acknowledgment in a separate letter attached to but not included in the sealed bid package,
 - (d) Upon request, acknowledgment of receipt of bids will be provided to those making delivery in person or by messenger.
- 20.2 The Procuring Agency may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for submission of bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with IB 09. In such case, all rights and obligations of the procuring agency and the bidders shall remain the same as mentioned in the original deadline.

IB.21 Late Bids

÷

- (a) any bid received by the procuring agency after the deadline for submission of bids prescribed in to clause IB 20 shall be returned unopened to such bidder.
- (b) delays in the mail, person in transit, or delivery of a bid to the wrong office shall not be accepted as an excuse for failure to deliver a bid at the proper place and time. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to submit the bid in time.

IB.22 Modification, Substitution and Withdrawal of Bids

- 22.1 Any bidder may modify, substitute or withdraw his bid after bid submission provided that the modification, substitution or written notice of withdrawal is received by the procuring agency prior to the deadline for submission of bids.
- 22.2 The modification, substitution, or notice for withdrawal of any bid shall be prepared, sealed, marked and delivered in accordance with the provisions of Clause IB.19 with the outer and inner envelopes additionally marked "MODIFICATION", "SUBSTITUTION" or "WITHDRAWAL" as appropriate.
- 22.3 No bid may be modified by a bidder after the deadline for submission of bids except in accordance with to sub clauses IB 22.1 and IB 27.2.
- 22.4 Withdrawal of a bid during the interval between the deadlines for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid may result in forfeiture of the bid security in pursuance to clause IB 15.

E. BID OPENING AND EVALUATION.

IB.23 Bid Opening

- 23.1 Procuring agency will open the bids, including withdrawals, substitution and modifications made pursuant to Clause IB.22, in the presence of bidders" representatives who choose to attend, at the time, date and location stipulated in the bidding data. The bidders or their representatives who are in attendance shall sign an attendance sheet.
- 23.2 Envelopes marked "MODIFICATION", "SUBSTITUTION" or "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out first. Bids for which an acceptable notice of withdrawal has been submitted pursuant to clause IB.22 shall not be opened.
- 23.3 Procuring agency shall read aloud the name of the bidder, total bid price and price of any Alternate Proposal(s), if any, discounts, bid modifications, substitution and withdrawals, the presence or absence of bid security, and such other details as the procuring agency may consider appropriate, and total amount of each bid, and of any alternative bids if they have been requested or permitted, shall be read aloud and recorded when opened.
- 23.4 Procuring Agency shall prepare minutes of the bid opening, including the information disclosed to those present in accordance with the sub-clause IB.23.3.

IB.24 Process to be Confidential. (SPP Rule 53)

Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation and comparison of 24.1 bid and recommendations for the award of a contract shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other person not officially concerned with such process before the announcement of bid evaluation report in accordance with the requirements of Rule 45, which states that Procuring agencies shall announce the results of bid evaluation in the form of a report giving reasons for acceptance or rejection of bids. The report shall be hoisted on website of authority and that of procuring agency if it website exists and intimated to all bidders at least seven (7) days prior to the award of contract The announcement to all bidders will include table(s) comprising read out prices, discounted prices, price adjustments made, final evaluated prices and recommendations against all the bids evaluated. Any effort by a bidder to influence the procuring agency's processing of bids or award decisions may result in the rejection of such bidder's bid. Whereas, any bidder feeling aggrieved, may lodge a written complaint as per Rule 31; however mere fact of lodging a complaint shall not warrant suspension of the procurement process.

IB.25 Clarification of Bid (SPP Rule 43)

25.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation and comparison of bids, the procuring agency may, at its discretion, ask any bidder for clarification of the bid, including breakdowns of unit rates. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing but no change in the price or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the procuring agency in the evaluation of the bids in accordance with clause IB 28.

IB 26 Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness

- 26.1 Prior to the detailed evaluation of bids, the procuring agency will determine whether the bidder fulfils all codal requirements of eligibility criteria given in the tender notice such as registration with tax authorities, registration with PEC (where applicable), turnover statement, experience statement, and any other condition mentioned in the NIT and bidding document. If the bidder does not fulfill any of these conditions, it shall not be evaluated further.
- 26.2 Once found to be fulfilling the eligibility criteria, as mentioned in sub- clause 26.1, the bids of eligible bidders will be evaluated for technical responsiveness as per specification and criteria given in the bidding documents. Technical and financial evaluations may be carried out in accordance with single stage-single one envelope, single stage-two envelopes, two stage or two stage-two envelopes bidding procedures, depending on the selection procedure adopted by the procuring agency.
- 26.3 A bid will be considered technically responsive if it (i) has been properly signed; (ii) is accompanied by the required bid security; and (iii) conforms to all the terms, conditions and specifications of the bidding documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (i) which affect in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the works; (ii) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding documents, the procuring agency's rights or the bidder's obligations under the contract; or (iii) adoption/rectification whereof would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.

26.4 If a bid has major deviations to the commercial requirements and technical specifications will be considered technically non responsive. As a general rule, major deviations are those that if accepted, would not fulfil the purposes for which the bid is requested, or would prevent a fair comparison or affect the ranking of the bids that are compliant with the bidding documents.

(A). Major (material) Deviations include:-

- (i) has been not properly signed;
- (ii) is not accompanied by the bid security of required amount and manner;
- (iii) stipulating price adjustment when fixed price bids were called for;
- (iv) failing to respond to specifications;
- (v) failing to comply with Mile-stones/Critical dates provided in Bidding Documents;
- (vi) sub-contracting contrary to the Conditions of Contract specified in Bidding Documents;
- (vii) refusing to bear important responsibilities and liabilities allocated in the Bidding Documents, such as performance guarantees and insurance coverage;
- (viii) taking exception to critical provisions such as applicable law, taxes and duties and dispute resolution procedures;
- (ix) a material deviation or reservation is one :
 - (a) which affect in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the works;
 - (b) adoption/rectification whereof would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.

(B) Minor Deviations

Bids that offer deviations acceptable to the Procuring Agency and which can be assigned a monetary value may be considered substantially responsive at least as to the issue of fairness. This value would however be added as an adjustment for evaluation purposes only during the detailed evaluation process.

26.5 If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the procuring agency, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the non-conforming deviation or reservation.

IB.2" Correction of Errors before Financial Evaluation

- 27.1 Bids determined to be substantially responsive will be checked by the procuring agency for any arithmetic errors. Errors will be corrected by the procuring agency as follows:
 - (a) where there is a discrepancy between the amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will govern; and
 - (b) where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will govern, unless in the opinion of the procuring agency there is an obviously gross misplacement of the decimal point in the unit rate, in which case the line item total as quoted will govern and the unit rate will be corrected.

27.2 The amount stated in the Form of Bid will be adjusted by the procuring agency in accordance with the above procedure for the correction of errors and with the concurrence of the bidders. The amount thus corrected shall be considered as binding upon the bidder. If the bidder does not accept the corrected bid price, his bid will be rejected, and the bid security shall be forfeited in accordance with sub-clause IB 15.6(b) hereof.

IB.28 Financial Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- 28.1 The procuring agency will evaluate and compare only the Bids determined to be substantially responsive in accordance with clause IB 26.
- 28.2 In evaluating the Bids, the procuring agency will determine for each bid the evaluated bid price by adjusting the bid price as follows:
 - (a) making any correction for errors pursuant to clause IB 27;
 - (b) excluding provisional sums (if any), for contingencies in the Summary Bill of Quantities, but including competitively priced Day work; and
 - (c) making an appropriate adjustment for any other acceptable variation or deviation.
- 28.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the conditions of contract, applied over the period of execution of the contract, shall not be taken into account in bid evaluation.
- 28.4 If the bid of the successful bidder is seriously unbalanced in relation to the procuring agency's estimate of the cost of work to be performed under the contract, the procuring agency may require the bidder to produce detailed price analyses for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the construction methods and schedule proposed. After evaluation of the price analyses, the procuring agency may require that the amount of the Performance Security set forth in clause IB.32 be increased at the expense of the successful bidder to a level sufficient to protect the procuring agency against financial loss in the event of default of the successful bidder under the contract.
- 28.5 Bidders may be excluded if involved in "Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices" means either one or any combination of the practices given below SPP Rule2(q);
 - (i) "Coercive Practice" means any impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence the actions of a party to achieve a wrongful gain or to cause a wrongful loss to another party;
 - (ii) "Collusive Practice" means any arrangement between two or more parties to the procurement process or contract execution, designed to achieve with or without the knowledge of the procuring agency to establish prices at artificial, non competitive levels for any wrongful gain;
 - (iii) "Corrupt Practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence the acts of another party for wrongful gain;

- (iv) "Fraudulent Practice" means any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (v) "Obstructive Practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in a procurement process, or affect the execution of a contract or deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements before investigators in order to materially impede an investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or acts intended to materially impede the exercise of inspection and audit rights provided for under the Rules.

28.6 Evaluation Report (SPP Rule 45)

After the completion of evaluation process, as described in clauses IB 27 and IB 28, the procuring agency shall announce the results of bid evaluation in the form of report (available on the website of the authority) giving reasons for acceptance and rejection of bid. The report shall be hoisted on website of the authority and that of procuring agencies if its website exists and intimated to all bidders at least seven (7) days prior to the award of contract.

F. AWARD OF CONTRACT

IB.29 Award (SPP Rule 49)

- 29.1 Subject to clauses IB 30 and IB 34 and provision of the rule: The procuring agency shall award the contract to the bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding documents, and who has offered the lowest evaluated bid, but not necessarily the lowest submitted price, within the original or extended period of bid validity. Provided that such bidder has been determined to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of clause IB 03 and qualify pursuant to subclause IB 29.2.
- 29.2 Procuring agency, at any stage of the bid evaluation, having credible reasons for or having prima facie evidence of any deficiency(ies) in contractor's capacities, may require the contractor to provide information concerning their professional, technical, financial, legal or managerial competence whether already pre-qualified or not for the said project.

Provided, that such qualification shall only be laid down after recording reasons thereof, in writing. They shall form part of the records of that bid evaluation report.

IB.30 Procuring Agency's Right to reject all Bids or Annul/Cancellation the Bidding Process (SPP Rule 25)

Notwithstanding clause IB 29 and provision of the rule: (1) A procuring agency reserves may cancel the bidding process at any time prior to the acceptance of a bid or proposal; (2) The procuring agency shall incur no liability towards bidders solely by

virtue of its invoking sub-rule (1); (3) Intimation of the cancellation of bidding process shall be given promptly to all bidders and bid security shall be returned along with such intimation; (4) The procuring agency shall, upon request by any of the bidders, communicate to such bidder, grounds for cancellation of the bidding process, but is not required to justify such grounds.

IB.31 Notification/Publication of the Award of Contract (SPP Rule 25).

- 31.1 Prior to expiry of the period of bid validity, including extension, prescribed by the procuring agency, the procuring agency shall notify the successful bidder in writing ("Letter of Acceptance") that his bid has been accepted. This letter shall mention the sum which the procuring agency will pay to the contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the works by the contractor as prescribed by the contract (hereinafter and in the conditions of contract called the "Contract Price").
- 31.2 No negotiation with the bidder having evaluated as lowest responsive or any other bidder shall be permitted, however, procuring agency may hold meetings to clarify any item in the bid evaluation report.
- 31.3 The notification of award and its acceptance by the bidder will constitute the formation of the contract, binding the procuring agency and the bidder till signing of the formal Contract Agreement.
- 31.4 Upon furnishing by the successful bidder of a Performance Security and signing of the contract, the procuring agency will promptly notify the name of the successful bidder to all bidders and return their bid securities accordingly.
- 31.5 Within seven days of the award of contract, procuring agency shall publish on the website of the Authority and on its own website, if such a website exists, the results of the bidding process, identify the bid through procurement identifying numbers, and the following information:
 - (1) Evaluation Report;
 - (2) Form of Contract and letter of Award;
 - (3) Bill of Quantities or Schedule of Requirement.

31.6 Debriefing (SPP Rule 51).

- (a) A bidder may ask the procuring agency for reasons for non acceptance of his bid and may request for a debriefing meeting and procuring agency shall give him the reasons for such non acceptance, either in writing or by holding a debriefing meeting with such a bidder.
- (b) The requesting bidder shall bear all the costs of attending such a debriefing.

IB.32 Performance Security (SPP Rule 39)

32.1 The successful bidder shall furnish to the procuring agency a Performance Security in the form of pay order or demand draft or bank guarantee, and the amount stipulated in

the bidding data and the Conditions of Contract within a period of 28 days after the receipt of Letter of Acceptance.

- 32.2 Failure of the successful bidder to comply with the requirements of Sub-clause 1B.32.1 or clauses IB 33 or IB 35 shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security.
- 32.3 Validity of performance security shall extend at least ninety days beyond the date of completion of contract, or as mentioned in the bidding data to cover defects liability period or maintenance period subject to final acceptance by the procuring agency.

IB.33 Signing of Contract Agreement (SPP Rule 39)

- 33.1 Within 14 days from the date of furnishing of acceptable Performance Security under the Conditions of Contract, the procuring agency will send the successful bidder the Contract Agreement in the form provided in the bidding documents, incorporating all agreements between the parties.
- 33.2 The formal Agreement between the procuring agency and the successful bidder shall be executed within 14 days of the receipt of the Contract Agreement by the successful bidder from the procuring agency.
- 33.3 A procurement contract shall come into force when the procuring agency requires signs contract, the date on which the signatures of both the procuring agency and the successful bidder are affixed to the written contract. Such affixing of signatures shall take place within the time prescribed in the bidding documents.

Provided that the procuring agency may reduce the maximum time limit for signing of contract, as and when required, and shall be mentioned in the bidding documents.

33.4 Stamp Duty.

The formal Agreement between the Procuring Agency and the successful bidder shall be duly stamped at rate of ----% of bid price (updated from time to time) stated in Letter of Acceptance

2IB.34 General Performance of the Bidders

Procuring agency may in case of consistent poor performance of the contractor and his failure to remedy the underperforming contract may take such action as may be deemed appropriate under the circumstances of the case including the rescinding the contract and/or black listing of such contractor and debarring him from participation in future bidding process.

IB.35 Integrity Pact (SPP Rule 89)

The bidder shall sign and stamp the Integrity Pact provided at Appendix-L to the bidding documents for all Provincial/Local Government procurement contracts exceeding Rupees ten million. Failure to provide such Integrity Pact shall make the bidder non-responsive.

IB.36 Instructions not Part of Contract

Bids shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with these Instructions which are provided to assist bidders in preparing their bids, and do not constitute part of the bid or the Contract Documents.

IB.37 Arbitration (SPP Rule 34)

Any dispute that is not amicably resolved shall be finally settled, unless otherwise specified in the Contract, under the Arbitration Act 1940 updated from time to time and would be held anywhere in the Province of Sindh at the discretion of procuring agency.

BIDDING DATA

Contact/Bidding Data

Instructions to Bidders

Clause Reference

 $\langle \cdot \rangle$

1.1

- Name and address of the procuring agency: Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726 -920181, Fax No. : 0726 -920181.
- 1.2 Name of the Project and Summary of the works:

<u>Name of Project:</u> Block provision for Improvement of roads in Sindh

Name of Work:

Improvement of Kandhkot Saifal road mile 0/0-10/2 (16.50 Kms.)

The Works will involve following major activities:

- Formation of Embankment from roadway and borrow excavation
- Base Course, Asphaltic Wearing Course.
- Brick Masonry R.C.C. Slab Culverts, Retaining Wall
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the works within the time specified in Special Stipulations (Appendix-A).
- 2.1 Name of the Funding Source;Funds provided by the Government of Sindh

Allocation for 2014-15 Pak Rs. 440.00 million (Block Allocation).

- 3. Eligibility conditions for intending participants are as under :
 - i. Registration with Pakistan Engineering Council in the relevant field of specialization of work and to the extent of tender amount of work.
 - ii. Bio data of Engineers, technical staff and other management personals working with the firm.
 - iii. Documentary evidence of works executed/works in progress and certificate of satisfactory completion of works by the employees for the last three years in progress indicating cost of each work and copy of letter.
 - iv. List of machinery and equipment available with firm with documentary evidence.
 - v. Undertaking regarding litigations pending / finalized.
 - vi. Certificates of Bank showing credit worthiness along with Bank statement for last three years.
 - vii. Registration with Income Tax Department (NTN Certificate) and copy of CNIC.
 - viii. Affidavit to the effect that the firm / contractor have not been black listed previously by any executing agency.

- ix. Affidavit with effect that all documents / particulars / information furnished all true and correct.
- x. In case of firm, list of partners / partnership deed, giving full particulars of directors / proprietors or others connected alongwith power of attorney. In case of being sole proprietors such undertaking on affidavit be furnished.

8.1 Time limit for clarification: The written clarification should reach the addressee of the NIT on any working day but not later than 7 working days prior to last date of bid submission.

10.1 Bid language: Bid language is English

- 11.1(a) The bidder along with letter of authorization shall submit the (i) Registration Certificate with Sindh Revenue Board, Government of Sindh (ii) PEC Registration Certificate for 2014 in category C1 CE01 & CE-02 (iii) NTN Certificate (iv) Professional Tax payment. The failure to submit above mentioned documents shall lead to rejection of bid.
- 11.1(b) Deleted
- 11.1(c) Add following The bidder shall submit the detailed CVs of proposed staff as per the requiremnet laid down in Appendix K. It is manadotry for the successful bidder to mobilize the same staff proposed in Appendix K after approval from the Engineer
- 13.3 Bidders to quote entirely in Pak. Rupee The currency of Bid is Pakistan Rupee (PKR). All payment will be made in PKR only
- 13.2 **IB Clause 13.2 is Not applicable**
- 14.1 Period of Bid Validity: Period of Bid Validity shall be 90 days
- 15.1 Amount of Bid Security: The amount of the Bid Security shall be PKR 5.40 million
- 16.1 Alternate Proposals/Bid

Alternative bids is not permitted, Alternative times for completion is not permitted, Alternative technical solutions is not permitted for any part of the Works

17.1 Venue, time, and date of the pre-Bid meeting:

At the office of the Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Date: As per Invitation for Bid

- 18.4 Number of copies of the bid to be completed and returned: Original + One Copy
- 19.2 (a) Procuring Agency's address for the purpose of bid submission: Executive Engineer, Machiner Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur Behind D.C.Office, Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726-920181 Fax No. : 0726-920181
 - (b) Name and Identification Number of the Contract:

Improvement of Kandhkot Saifal road mile 0/0-10/2 (16.50 Kms.)

20.1 (a) Deadline for submission of bids:

Date: As per Invitation for Bid (13-04-2015). Time: As per Invitation for Bid (01:00 PM)

(b) Venue, time, and date of bid opening:

Venue: Office of the Executive Engineer, Machinery Miaintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Date: As per Opening of Bid (14-04-2015). Time As per Opening of Bid (02:00 P.M).

- 28.4 If the successful bidder failed to submit Performance Security of increased amount within fourteen (14) days of demand by the PA, his bid shall be cancelled and his bid security shall be forfeited.
- 32.) Standard form and amount of Performance Security acceptable to the procuring agency:

The performance security will be in the form of a "unconditional, irrevocable and acceptable bank guarantee" in the amount of 5% (Five percent) of the Accepted Contract Amount acceptable to the Procuring Agency in the attached format

32.3 Validity of performance security

The Performance Security shall be valid for a period 90 days after the date of issue of defects liability certificate

33.4 Stamp duty

+

The Contract will be executed on a non-judicial stamp paper of the value @ 0.30% of the contract value. The cost of the stamp duty shall be borne by the successful bidder. [0.30% may vary depending upon the rules applicable at the time of signing the Contract]

FORM OF BID AND APPENDICES TO BID

.

.

FORM OF BID

•

•

•

| Bid Re | ference No |
|--------|---|
| To: | (Name of Contract/ work) |
| 101 | |
| | |
| | |
| 1. | Having examined the bidding documents including Instructions to Bidders, Bidding Data, and Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings and Bill of Quantities and Addenda Nos for the execution of the above-named work, we/I, the undersigned, offer to execute and complete the work and remedy any defects therein in conformity with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings, Bill of Quantities and Addenda for the sum of Rs) or such other sum as may be ascertained in accordance with the said conditions. |
| 2. | We/I understand that all the Appendices attached hereto form part of this bid. |
| 3. | As security for due performance of the undertakings and obligations of this bid, we/l submit herewith a bid security in the amount of Rupees (Rs) drawn in your favour or made payable to procuring agency and valid for a period of days beginning from the datc, bid is opened. |
| 4. | We/I undertake, if our bid is accepted, to commence the works and to complete the whole of the works comprised in the contract within the time stated in Appendix-A to Bid. |
| 5. | We/I agree to abide by this bid for the period of days from the date fixed for opening the same and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period. |
| 6. | Unless and until a formal Agreement is prepared and executed, this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof, shall constitute a binding contract between us. |
| 7. | We do hereby declare that the bid is made without any collusion, comparison of figures or arrangement with any other bidder for the works. |
| 8. | We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any bid you may receive. |
| 9. | We undertake, if our/my bid is accepted, to execute the Performance Security referred to in Clause 10 of Conditions of Contract for the due performance of the Contract. |
| 10. | We confirm, if our bid is accepted, that all partners of the joint venture shall be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the Contract and the composition or the |

constitution of the joint venture shall not be altered without the prior consent of the procuring agency. (Please delete this in case of Bid form a single bidder)

| in the capacity of | duly authorized to s Dated this | ign Bids for and on _day.of | behalf of 20 |
|--------------------|---------------------------------------|--------------------------------|--------------|
| | Signature: | | |
| | (Name of Bidder in Block ((Seal) | Capitals) | |
| Address: | | | |
| | | | |
| Witness: | | | |
| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| | | | |
| | | | - |

.

.

Appendix-A to Bid

| | Particular Conditi | ons of Contrac | t- ran A |
|----|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|
| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
| 1 | Employer's name and address | 1.1.2.2 & 1.3 | Works & Service Department Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarp, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726-920181 Fax No: 0726-920181 Employer's Representative, Executive Engineer, |
| 2 | Sections | 1.1.5.6 | Not Applicable |
| 3 | Electronic transmission systems | 1.3 | Scanned copy via e-mail and facsimile are acceptable, if the original is received within three days. |
| 4 | Governing Law | 1.4 | The Laws of Islamic Republic of Pakistan. |
| 5 | Ruling language | 1.4 | English |
| 6 | Language for communications | 1.4 | English |
| 7 | Time for access to the Site | 2.1 | Within seven (07) days after Commencement Date |
| 8 | Time for access to the Site | 2.1 | Within seven (07) days after Commencement Date |
| 8 | Amount of Performance Security | 4.2 | The performance security will be in the form of a "unconditional irrevocable and acceptable bank guarantee" in the amount of 5% (Five percent) of the contrac price stated in the Letter of Acceptance. |
| 9 | Subcontract | 4.4 | The aggregate amount of the Works subcontracted shall not exceed 30% of the Contract Price |
| 10 | Normal working hours | 6.5 | 8 hrs a day and 6 days a week. |
| | Time for Commencement | 8.1 | Within 07 days from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence, this shall be issue within fourteen (14) days after signing of Contract Agreement. |

.

SPECIAL STIPULATIONS Particular Conditions of Contract- Part A

÷

| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
|----|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|---|
| 12 | Time for Completion) | 8.2 | 545 days from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence. |
| 13 | Time for Furnishing Programme | 8.3 | Within 28 days from the date of receipt of Letter of Acceptance. |
| 14 | Revised Programme | 8.3 | Revised Programme to be submitted within 14 days of the Engineer's notice. |
| 15 | Delay damages for the Works | 8.7 & 14.15(b) | 0.1% of the Contract Price per day, and For Interim Delay damages 0.05% of the Contract price per day Also, other charges mentioned in Special/Particular Conditions of Contract |
| 16 | Maximum amount of delay damages | 8.7& 14.15(b) | 10% of the final Contract Price & For Interim Delay damages 5% of the Contract price per day Also, other charges mentioned in Part B, Particular Conditions of Contract |
| 17 | Defects Liability Period | 11.1 | 365 days from the effective date of Taking Over Certificate. |
| 18 | Adjustments for Changes in Cost | 13.8 | As per Appendix C (B) to bid "Price Adjustment". |
| 19 | Advance payment | 14.2 | 10% Percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount payable in PKR: as Mobilization Advance against Bank guarantee. |

| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
|----|--|----------------------------------|---|
| 20 | Repayment amortization rate of advance payment | 14.2(b) | First Instalment: 50% of total Advance Payment shall be made after fulfilling all the requirements provided in Conditions of the Contract. Second Instalment: Remaining 50%, on mobilization of Plant, equipment and other resources at site by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Engineer. From five consequtive Running payment starting from third R.A/Bill in equal instalments |
| 21 | Percentage of Retention | 14.3 | including 10% per annum interest 5% of the amount of Interim/Running Payment Certificate. |
| 22 | Limit of Retention Money | 14.3 | 5% of Contract Price stated in the Letter of Acceptance. |
| 23 | Plant and Materials | 14.5 | Not Applicable |
| 24 | Minimum Amount of Interim Payment Certificates | 14.6 | 3% of the Accepted Contrac Amount. |
| 25 | Maximum total liability of the Contractor to the Employer | 17.6 | The product of two (02) times the Accepted Contract Amount |
| 26 | Date by which the Dispute Board (DB) shall be appointed | 20.2 | 28 days after the Commencemen date |
| 27 | The DB shall be comprised of | 20.2 | Three Members |
| 28 | List of potential DB sole members | 20.2 | None |
| 29 | Appointment (if not agreed) to be made by | 20.3 | Pakistan Engineering Council |

ł

FOREIGN CURRENCY REQUIREMENTS

.

- 1. The bidder may indicate herein below his requirements of foreign currency (if any), with reference to various inputs to the works.
- Foreign Currency Requirement as percentage of the bid price excluding Provisional Sums _____%.
- APPIIC Equivalent in Pak. Rupees Table of Exchange Rates 3. Unit of Currency Australian D ____ Euro Japanese Yen _____ U.K. Pound U.S. Dollars ----------_____

PRICE ADJUSTMENT UNDER CLAUSE 13.8 OF CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

A. Weight ages or coefficients are used for price adjustment.

The source of indices and the weightages or coefficients for use in the adjustment formula under Clause 13.8 shall be as follows:

| Cost | Description | Weight ages | Applicable index |
|------------------|--------------------------|-------------|--|
| Element | | | |
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| $\overline{(i)}$ | Fixed Portion | 0.350 | hle |
| (ii) | Local Labour | polic | Control Contro |
| (iii) | High Speed Dies (HSD) | APT . | -do |
| (iv) | C.In a coags | | -do- |
| (v) | Reinforcing Steel | | -do- |
| (vi) | Pre-Stressing Strands | | -do- |
| (vii) | Bitumen | | -do- |
| (viii) | | | |
| | Total | 1.000 | |

Notes:

- 1) Indices for "(ii)" to "(vii)" are taken from the Government of Pakistan Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Statistical Bulletin. The base cost indices or prices shall be those applying 15 days prior to the latest day for submission of bids. Current indices or prices shall be those applying 28 days prior to the last day of the billing period.
- 2) Any fluctuation in the indices or prices of materials other than those given above shall not be subject to adjustment of the Contract Price.
- 3) Fixed portion shown here is for typical road project, procuring agency to determine the weightage of Fixed Portion considering only those cost elements having cost impact of seven (7) percent or more on his specific project.
B When Escalation is allowed on the materials only.

Price adjustment on following items shall be allowed:

| Cost Element | Description | Base price | Applicable index |
|--------------|---|------------|---|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| (i) | Cement – in bags. (50kg bag) | | GoP, Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Bulletin |
| (ii) | Bitumen 60/70 in Bulk 80/100 in drums | | National Refinery |
| (iii) | Bricks | | GoP, Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Bulletin |
| | Total Three items. | | |

Notes:

- 1. The base prices shall be those applying 7 days prior to the latest day for submission of bids. Current indices or prices shall be those applying last 28 days prior to the last day of the billing period.
- 2. Any fluctuation in the prices of materials other than those given above shall not be subject to adjustment of the Contract Price.

Unit

Abbreviations

- LM or lm or M or m • Linear Meter
- Sq.m. or SM or sm Square Meter •
 - Cu.m. or CM or cm or Cum or cum Cubic Meter
- Ton • Kilogram

•

.

Kg or kg

Ton

Job

- No or Each Per Number •
- Job •

BILL OF QUANTITIES

A Preamble

1

- 1. The Bill of Quantities shall be read in conjunction with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications and Drawings.
- 2. The quantities given in the Bill of Quantities are estimated and provisional, and are given to provide a common basis for bidding. The basis of payment will be the actual quantities of work executed and measured by the Contractor and verified by the Engineer and valued at the rates and prices entered in the priced Bill of Quantities, where applicable, and otherwise at such rates and prices as the Engineer may fix as per the Contract (in case of item not mentioned in Bill of Quantities).
- 3. The rates and prices entered in the priced Bill of Quantities shall, except insofar as it is otherwise provided under the contract include all costs of contractor's plant, labour, supervision, materials, execution, insurance, profit, taxes and duties, together with all general risks, liabilities and obligations set out or implied in the contract. Furthermore all duties, taxes and other levies payable by the contractor under the contract, or for any other cause, as on the date 14 days prior to deadline for submission of Bids shall be included in the rates and prices and the total bid price submitted by the bidder.
- 4. A rate or price shall be entered against each item in the priced Bill of Quantities, whether quantities are stated or not. The cost of items against which the contractor will have failed to enter a rate or price shall be deemed to be covered by other rates and prices entered in the Bill of Quantities and shall not be paid separately.
- 5. The whole cost of complying with the provisions of the Contract shall be included in the items provided in the priced Bill of Quantities, and where no items are provided, the cost shall be deemed to be distributed among the rates and prices entered for the related items of the works.
- 6. General directions and description of work and materials are not necessarily repeated nor summarised in the Bill of Quantities. References to the relevant sections of the bidding documents shall be made before entering prices against each item in the priced Bill of Quantities.
- 7. Provisional sums included and so designated in the Bill of Quantities shall be expended in whole or in part at the direction and discretion of the Engineer in accordance with sub-clause 13.5 of Part I, General Conditions of Contract.
- 8. The following abbreviations for the units or units of measurement have been used in the bidding documents including BOQ.

Unit

- Abbreviations
- Linear Meter
- LM or lm or M or m
- Square Meter Sq.m. or SM or sm . Cubic Meter •
 - Cu.m. or CM or cm or Cum or cum Ton
- Ton •

Ę

- Kg or kg
- Kilogram Per Number •
- Job •

•

No or Each

Job

Name of Work:-

A,

£

Improvement of Kandhkot Saifal road mile 0/0-10/2 (16.50 Kms.)

| Sr.No: | Description | Schedul "B" Amount | Contractor Qouted Rates | Total Schedule "B" Amount |
|--------|---|-----------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| | Part -A Road Work (Construction / Improvement) | 263,127,290.00 | | |
| | | | Total Part "A" | |
| | Part-B Masonry Structure | 8,852,015.000 | | |
| | | | Total Part "B" | |
| | | G.T A+ | | |
| | Total (to be carried to summary of Bio Add/Deduct the percentag quoted abo of rates. | | ices of items base | d on composite sched |

Improvement of Kandhkot Saifal road mile 0/0-10/2 (16.50 Kms.) BIDDING DOCUMENT FOR WORKS

BILLS OF QUANTITY

(A)

ì

1

Description and rate of Item bases on composite schedule of Rate

PART-A (ROAD WORK)

| ltem No: | Qty's | Description of Item to be executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|-------------|---------|--|---------|-------|---------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 1 | 477,220 | Making diagonal grooves of 1 ½ " x 1 ½" at 2 Ft: centre to centre in road surface. | 146.21 | % Sft | 697,743.00 |
| 2 | 48,946 | Preparing Sub-Base course by supplying and spreading stone metal 1½ -2" guage of approved quality from approved quarry in required thickness to proper camber and grade i/c hand packing filling voids with 20 Cft: Pit/Canal sand and having 98-100% density as per modified AASHO specification. (Rate i/cs all cost of material T&P & Carriage upto site of work). | 8517.8 | % Cft | 4,169,122.00 |
| 3 | 111,487 | Laying bricks on end edging i/c supplying 9x41/2x3" size 1st class bricks excavation for laying edging with small side parallel to the road. (Rate i/c all cost of materials T&P and carriage upto to site of work). | 2782.06 | % Sft | 3,101,635.00 |
| 4 | 561,345 | Preparing Base course i/c supplying and spreading stone metal of approved quality from approved quarry properly graded to maximum size of 1½" in required thickness to proper camber and grade i/c supplying and spreading 15 Cft of screening and non-plastic quarry fines filling depressions with stone metal after initial rolling i/c watering and compacting the same so as to achieve 100% density as per modified AASHO specification (This i/cs providing and using templates, camber plates, screen forms as directed) Rate i/cs all cost of material T&P and carriage upto site of work. | | % Cft | 54,596,199.00 |

| ltern | Qty's | Description of Item to be | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|-------|---------------------|--|----------|---------------|----------------|
| No: | - | executed at site | | | |
| | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 5 | 1,003,385 | Providing Two coat of surface dressing on new or existing surface with 30+25=55 lbs: bitumen of 80/100 penetration and 4.0+2.75=6.75 Cft Crush Bajri of 3/8" to 3/4" guage including cleaning the road surface rolling etc complete. Rate includes all costs of materials T&P labour and carriage | 3008.19 | % Cft | 30,183,757.00 |
| 6 | | Laying mechanically to proper line and grade plant mixed asphalt concrete prepared to specification formula according to job mix formula approved by engineer incharge i/c rolling and finsihing to proper line grade level and camber etc complete. Rate i/cs. all costs of material T&P & carriage upto site of work etc complete (2" thick consolidated i/c Prime coat). | 9170.87 | % Rft | 92,019,150.00 |
| 7 | 235,211 | Preparing Sub -Base course by supplying and spreading well graded pit or bed run gravel having a limit not greater than 25 and plasticity index not freater than 6 in proper camber and grade i/c watering rolling and compacting in layers, thickness of each compacted layer not exceeding 6" compacted upto 98-100% density as per modified AASHO specification. Rate includes all costs of materials T&P and | | % Cft | 17,031,521.00 |
| 8 | 7,940,000 | Earthwork for road embankment by buildozers i/c ploughing mixing clod breaking dressing and compacting with optimum moisture content lead upto 100' and lift upto 5.0' (in ordinary soil) (compacting upto 95- 100% modified AASHO density). | | % oSft | 61,328,163.00 |
| | | | Total : | | 263,127,290.00 |
| | | | <u> </u> | Rs. | |
| | Above / Below in S | scneaule B | | Rs. | |
| | Total (A) | | 1 | | 11,752,381.00 |
| | Diff: cost of Bitum | en (B) | (| -) Rs. | 1,102,001.00 |

.....

G.Total (A+B)

2

Total Amount in words (A+B) _____

Checked D.M.

Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur

Rs.

| Item No: | Qty's | Description of Item to be executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|-------------|--------|--|---------|---------|--------------|
| | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 9 | 17,511 | Cement plaster 1:3 up to 20' height ½" thick. | 2344.59 | P.% Sft | 410,561.00 |
| | | | Total : | | 8,852,015.00 |

Add: Cartage of Material

Above / Below in Schedule "B"

1,276,846.00

Rs.

Rs,

Total Amount in words (A+B) ____

Charked (D.N.

 $\not\Rightarrow$ 5

Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur

BILL OF QUANTITIES

С. Day work Schedule

General

Reference is made to Sub-Clause 13.6 of the General Conditions of Contract. Work 1. shall not be executed on a day work basis except by written order of the Engineer. Bidders shall enter basic rates for day work items in the Schedules, which rates shall apply to any quantity of day work ordered by the Engineer. Nominal quantities have been indicated against each item of day work, and the extended total for day work shall be carried forward to the bid price.

Day work Labour

- shall be carried forward to the bid price. rk Labour In calculating payments due a Pcontractor for the execution of day work, the 2. actual time of classe of about directly doing the day work ordered by the Engineer and for which hey are competent to perform will be measured excluding meal breaks and rest periods. The time of gangers (charge hands) actually doing work with the gang will also be measured but not the time of foreman or other supervisory personnel.
- 3. The contractor shall be entitled to payment in respect of the total time that labour is employed on day work, calculated at the basic rates entered by him in the Schedule of day work Rates for labour together with an additional percentage, payment on basic rates representing the contractor's profit, overheads, etc., as described below:
 - a) the basic rates for labour shall cover all direct costs to the contractor, including (but not limited to) the amount of wages paid to such labour, transportation time, overtime, subsistence allowances and any sums paid to or on behalf of such labour for social benefits in accordance with Pakistan law. The basic rates will be payable in local currency only; and
 - b) the additional percentage payment to be quoted by the bidder and applied to costs incurred under (a) above shall be deemed to cover the contractor's profit, overheads, superintendence, liabilities and insurances and allowances to labour timekeeping and clerical and office work; the use of consumable stores, water, lighting and power; the use and repair of staging, scaffolding, workshops and stores, portable power tools, manual plant and tools; supervision by the contractor's staff, foremen and other supervisory personnel; and charges incidental to the foregoing.

| Itera No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs) in Figure | Rate (Rs) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|--------------|--|-------|---------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| 1 | 2 Labour Foremen | 3 | 4 | bie | 6 | 7 |
| D101 | Labour | API | 10 | | | |
| D102 | Foremen | Hr | 10 | | | |
| D103 | LTV Driver | Hr | 10 | - | | <u>.</u> |
| D104 | HTV Operator | Hr | 10 | | <u> </u> | |
| | Allow accordance with Paragra Total for Day work: Lab (Carried forward to Day | our : | work Sched | | verhead, p | profit, etc, in |

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

I. Labour

Note: Input of other staff shall be included in overhead of Contractor.

.

Day work Material

- 4. The contractor shall be entitled to payment in respect of materials used for day work (except for materials for which the cost is included in the percentage addition to labour costs as detailed heretofore), at the basic rates entered by him in the Schedule of Day work Rates for materials together with an additional percentage payment on the basic rates to cover overhead charges and profit, as follows:
 - a) the basic rates for materials shall be calculated on the basis of the invoiced price, freight, insurance, handling expenses, dure to osses, etc., and shall provide for delivery to store for stockailing the site. The basic rates shall be stated in local currency but near the will be made in the currency or currencies expended up to be evaluation of supporting documentation;
 - b) the additional percentage payment shall be quoted by the bidder and applied to the equivalent local currency payments made under Sub-Para(a) above; and
 - c) the cost of hauling materials used on work ordered to be carried out as Day work from the store or stockpile on the site to the place where it is to be use d will be paid in accordance with the terms for Labour and Constructional Plant in this Schedule.

Appendix-D to Bid

| Item. No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs) in Figure | Rate (Rs) in Words) | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|--------------|---|------------|---------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 |
| D201 | Fill (earth) of suitable quality | Cum | 5 | | |) |
| D202 | Sand for filling | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D20.3 | Sub-Base | Cum | 5 | | 1 | |
| D204 | Aggregate Base Course | Cum | 5 | -n10 | <u> </u> | |
| D205 | Asphalt Base Course | Cum | 5 | N. | · | |
| D206 | Asphalt Wearing Course | Cum | 5 5 5 6 1 6 6 | | | |
| D207 | Bitumen grade 60/70 | 122 | | L | ļ <u> </u> | |
| D203 | Bitumen grade 80/100 | Ton | 5 | | | |
| D209 | Cement (SR) in bag | M:Ton | 2 | | | ļ |
| D210 | Cement, ordinary Portland or equivalent in bags | M:Ton | 2 | | | |
| D211 | Fine aggregate for concrete | Cum | 10 | | | |
| D212 | Coarse aggregates for concrete | Cum | 10 | | | |
| D213 | Lean Concrete | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D214 | Concrete Class B | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D213 | Grade 60 reinforcing bar | M:Ton | 5 | - | 1 | |
| D214 | Traffic Signs, Barricade etc | Each | 5 | | | |
| | | | | ⊥ | al | |
| | Allow percer accordance with Paragraph 4(b Total for Day work: Materials (Carried forward to Day work) |) of Day w | otal for Con ork Schedule | tractor's c | overhead, pr | ofit, etc., i |

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

.

ж

.

Day Work Constructional Plant

- 5. The contractor shall be entitled to payments in respect of constructional plant already on site and employed on Day work at the basic rental rates entered by him in the Schedule of Day work Rates for constructional plant. The said rates shall be deemed to include complete allowance for depreciation, interest, indemnity and insurance, repairs, maintenance, supplies, fuel, lubricants, and other consumables, and all overhead, profit and administrative costs related to the use of such equipment. The cost of drivers, operators and assistants will be paid for separately as described under the section on Day work Labour.
- 6. In calculating the payment due to the Contractor for constructional plant employed on Day work, only the actual number of working hours will be a gible for payment, except that where applicable and agreed with the argument, the travelling time from the part of the site where the constructional plant was located when ordered by the Engineer to be employed on Dax work of the time for return journey thereto shall be included for payment
- 7. The basic rental rates for constructional plant employed on Day work shall be stated in Pakistani Rupees.

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

III. Constructional Plant

٠

.

.

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs.) in Figure | Rate Rs.) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|--------------|--|-----------|---------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | | 5 | 6 |
| D301 | Bulldozer, 200 HP | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D302 | Motor Grader, 140HP | Hr. | 1 | ble | | |
| D303 | Vibratory Roller, 10-12 Ton | Hr. | -li ^{Ci} | | | |
| D304 | Pneumatic Roller, 18-21 Ton | NP | 1 |] | | |
| D305 | Bulldozer, 200 HP Motor Grader, 140HP Vibratory Roller, 10-12 Ton Pneumatic Roller, 18-21 Ton Tandem Roller, H199 | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D30 6 | Wheel Loader, 2.5 Cum | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D307 | Plate Compactor, 11 HP (230 KG) | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D308 | Dump Truck, 18 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | <u> </u> | |
| D30') | Dump Truck, 10 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D31) | Excavator, 105 HP | Hr. | 1 | | <u>-</u> | |
| D311 | Water Tanker, 10,000 Ltr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D312 | Aggregate Crushing & Screening Plant, 45 Ton/hr | Hr. | 1 | · · · · · · | | |
| D313 | Asphalt Plant, 120 Ton/hr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D314 | Asphalt Distributor, 3,000 Ltr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D315 | Asphalt Paver, 145 HP(3-6 m wide) | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D316 | Concrete Batching Plant (30 cum/hr0 | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D317 | Wheel Tractor, 80 HP | Hr. | 1 | - | | |
| D318 | Concrete Transit Mixer, 6 Cum | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D319 | Concrete Vibrator, 5 HP | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D32:0 | Road Marking Machine, Heavy Duty | . Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D321 | Concrete Mixer | Hr. | | | | |

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs.) in Figure | Rate Rs.) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|--------------|---|------|---------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|
| D322 | Air Compressor, 300 CFM | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D323 | Pneumatic Jack Hammer | Hr. | 1 | | ···- | |
| D324 | Crane 25 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D325 | Water Pump, 4" delivery | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D326 | Concrete Pump | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D327 | Concrete Pump Tractor Trolly 1000 – 1300 cc Car Single Cabin Double Cabin | Hr. | 1 | able | P [*] | |
| D328 | 1000 – 1300 cc Car | Hr. | plic | | | |
| D32 9 | Single Cabin | Hir. | 1 | | | |
| D330 | Double Cabin | Hr. | 1 | | | · |
| | Total for day work: Construction (Carried forward to day work su | | 1 | L | L | l <u></u> |

.

•

.

.

-

DAYWORK

Summary (Day work)

 (I)
 Total for day work: Labour

 (II)
 Total for day work: Materials

 (III)
 Total for day work: Constructional Plant

 Total for day work
 Total for day work

 (Carried forward to summary page of Bill of the press)

 Total for day work

 (Carried forward to summary page of Bill of the press)

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

Pursuant to Sub-Clause 8.2 of the General Conditions of Contract, the works shall be completed on or before the date stated in Appendix-A to Bid. The bidder shall provide as Appendix-E to Bid, the Construction Schedule in the bar chart (CPM, PERT or any other to be specified herein) showing the sequence of work items and the period of time during which he proposes to complete each work item in such a manner that his proposed programme for conpletion of the whole of the works may meet procuring agency's completion targets in days noted below and counted from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence (Attach sheets as required for the specified form of Construction Schedule):

METHOD OF PERFORMING THE WORK

[The bidder is required to submit a narrative outlining the method of performing the work. The parrative should indicate in detail and include but not be limited to:

- 1. Organization Chart indicating head office and field office personnel involved in management and supervision, engineering, equipment maintenance and purchasing.
- 2. Mobilization at site, the type of facilities including personnel accommodation, office accommodation, provision for maintenance and for storage, communications, security and other services to be used.
- 3. The method of executing the works, the procedures for installation of equipment and machinery and transportation of equipment and materials to the site.

Safety Plan

The Bidder is required to submit an outline Construction Safety and Health Plan for this particular Project. The outline Safety and Health Plan shall be in accordance with the requirements of relevant decrees and/or bye laws governing Occupational Safety and Health Programme in the construction industry being implemented in the Islamic Republic of Pakistan, and shall cover the following topics:

- 1. Organizational structure for handling all Safety and Health Matters
- 2. Composition of the Contractor's Construction Safety and Health Committee
- 3. Specific Safety Policies which the Contractor will undertake to observe and maintain
- 4. Provision of Protective Equipment
- 5. Safety Personnel
- 6. Emergency Occupational Health Personnel and Facilities
- 7. Worker's Welfare Facilities
- 8. Emergency Procedures

Award of the Contract to the Bidder shall not be deemed to mean that the outline Construction Safety and Health Plan is considered acceptable, and the Engineer shall be at liberty to instruct the Contractor to implement such safety and health procedures as he may deem necessary.

LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT – RELATED ITEMS

[The bidder will provide on Sheet 2 of this Appendix a list of all major equipment and related items, under separate heading for items owned, to be purchased or to be arranged on lease by him to mobilize at site to carry out the works. The information shall include make, type, capacity, and anticipated period of utilization for all equipment which shall be in sufficient detail to demonstrate fully that the equipment will meet all requirements of the Specifications.]

| Eq | uipment Type and Characteristics | Minimum Number required | Proposed by the Bidder |
|----|--|----------------------------|---------------------------|
| 1 | Bulldozer (D6 and D8) | 2 | |
| 2 | Motor Grader (140 hp) | 4 | |
| 3 | Vibratory Roller (10 – 12 Ton) | 4 | |
| 4 | Pneumatic Tyre Roller (18-21 Ton) | 3 | |
| 5 | Tandem Roller (8 -12 Ton) | 2 | |
| 6 | Wheel Loader (2.5 Cum) | 4 | |
| 7 | Plate Compactor | 2 | |
| 8 | Dump Truck (10 to 18 Ton) | 18 | |
| 9 | Excavator | 4 | |
| 10 | Water Bowzer (10,000 ltr) | 4 | |
| 11 | Asphalt Plant (120 ton/hr) | 1 | |
| 12 | Asphalt Distributor (3000 ltr) | 1 | |
| 14 | Asphalt Paver (145 hp, 3-6m wide) | 2 | |
| 16 | Concrete Batching Plant (30 cum/hr) | l | |
| 17 | Concrete Transit Mixer (6 cum) | 2 | |
| 18 | Concrete Mixer (3 cum) | 2 | |
| 19 | Road Marking Machine | 1 | |
| 20 | Concrete Pump | 2 | |
| 21 | Crane (25 Ton) | 2 | |

Appendix-G to Bid

LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT (SAMPLE)

| Owned Purchased or Leased | Description of Unit (Make, Model, Year) | Capacity HP Rating | Condition | Present Location or Source | Date of Delivery at Site | Period of Work on Project |
|-----------------------------------|--|--------------------------|-----------|----------------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 |
| a. Owned | | | | | | |
| b. To be Purchased | | | | | | |
| c. To be arrar ged on Lease | | | - | | | |
| | | | | | | |

.

•

CONSTRUCTION CAMP AND HOUSING FACILITIES

The Contractor in accordance with Clause 6 of the Conditions of Contract shall provide description of his construction camp's facilities and staff housing requirements.

The contractor shall be responsible for pumps, electrical power, water and electrical distribution systems, and sewerage system including all fittings, pipes and other items necessary for servicing the contractor's construction camp.

The bidder shall list or explain his plans for providing these facilities for the service of the contract as follows:

- 1. Site Preparation (clearing, land preparation, etc.).
- 2. Provision of Services.
 - a) Power (expected power load, etc.).
 - b) Water (required amount and system proposed).
 - c) Sanitation (sewage disposal system, etc.).
- 3. Construction of Facilities
 - a) Contractor's Office. Workshop and Work Areas (areas required and proposed layout, type of construction of buildings, etc.).
 - b) Warehouses and Storage Areas (area required, type of construction and layout).
 - c) Housing and Staff Facilities (Plans for housing for proposed staff, layout, type of construction, etc.).
- 4. Construction Equipment Assembly and Preparation (detailed plans for carrying out this activity).
- 5. Other Items Proposed (Security services, etc.).

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

I/We intend to subcontract the following parts of the work to subcontractors. In my/our opinion, the subcontractors named hereunder are reliable and competent to perform that part of the work for which each is listed.

Enclosed are documentation outlining experience of subcontractors, the curriculum vitae and experience of their key personnel who will be assigned to the contract, equipment to be supplied by them, size, location and type of contracts carried out in the past.

| Part of Works (Give Details) | Subcontractor (With Complete Address) |
|---------------------------------------|--|
| 1 | 2 |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

ESTIMATED PROGRESS PAYMENTS (SAMPLE)

Bidcer's estimate of the value of work which would be executed by him during each of the periods stated below, based on his Programme of the works and the Rates in the Bill of Quantities, expressed in Pakistani Rupees:

| Quarter/ Year/ Period | Amounts (in million) |
|-----------------------|-------------------------|
| 1 | 2 |
| Ist Quarter | |
| 2nd Quarter | |
| 3rd Quarter | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| Bid Price | |

Appendix-K to Bid

ORGANIZATION CHART FOR THE SUPERVISORY STAFF AND LABOUR

(To be filled in by the bidder)

.

(60)

.

.

PROPOSED STAFF

à.

(Detailed CVs of following Key staff shall be provided, it is mandatory. PEC registration Cert fiacte and qualification certificates/degrees etc shall also be provided. It will be mandtory for succesful bidder to mobilize same staff as proposed below after the approval of the Engineer. The proposed staff must be employee of the bidder)

| | Qualification & | Proposed Staff | | | | | |
|--------------------|---|----------------|---------------|---------------|------------------|--|--|
| Position | Expereince | Name | Qualification | Total Exp. | Relevant. Rxp | | |
| Project Manager | Qualification Msc (Civil) with 7 years experience (3 | | | | | | |
| | years relevant experience) or BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | |
| | experience (8 years | | | | | | |
| | relevant experience) | | | | | | |
| Planning | BE (Civil) with 10 years | | | | | | |
| Engineer | experience | | | | | | |
| Cor tracts | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | |
| Engineer | experience | | | | | | |
| Structures | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience with 10 years relevant experience of | | | | | | |
| | bridges | | | | | | |
| Highway | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | - | | · · · · | | |
| Engineer | experience with 10 years | | | | | | |
| - | relevant experience of | | | | | | |
| | roads | | | | | | |
| Material | Msc (Geology) with 15 | | | | | | |
| Engineer | years experience | | | | | | |
| Site | BE (Civil), with 8 years | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience, Experience 3 | | | | | | |
| <u> </u> | bridges assignments, | | _ | | · · · ·· | | |
| Site | BE (Civil), with 8 years | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience, Experience 3 | | | | | | |
| Sr. | highway assignments, Diploma in Civil, Number | | | | · · · · · · | | |
| SI. Surveyors | (01), 10 years experience, | | | | | | |
| Surveyors | Experience 5 years | | | | | | |
| | highway project | | | | | | |
| Quantity | Diploma in Civil, Number | | | | | | |
| Surveyor | (01), 10 years experience, | | | | | | |
| - | Experience 5 years | | | | | | |
| | highway projects | | | | | | |

Appendix-L to Bid

(INTEGRITY PACT) DECLARATION OF FEES, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE ETC; PAYABLE BY CONTRACTORS.

(FOR CONTRACTS WORTH RS. 10.00 MILLION OR MORE)

| Contract No | Dated | |
|-----------------|-------|--|
| Contract Value: | | |
| Contract Title: | | |

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, [name of Contractor] represents and warrants that it has fully declared the brokerage, commission, fees etc. paid or payable to anyone and not given or agreed to give and shall not give or agree to give to anyone within or outside Pakistan either directly or indirectly through any natural or juridical person, including its a filiate, agent, associate, broker, consultant, director, promoter, shareholder, sponsor or subsidiary, any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback, whether described as consultation fee or otherwise, with the object of obtaining or inducing the procurement of a contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from, from Procuring Agency (PA) except that which has been expressly declared pursuant hereto.

[name of Contractor] accepts full responsibility and strict liability that it has made and will make full disclosure of all agreements and arrangements with all persons in respect of or related to the transaction with PA and has not taken any action or will not take any action to circumvent the above declaration, representation or warranty.

[name of Contractor] accepts full responsibility and strict liability for making any false declaration, not making full disclosure, misrepresenting facts or taking any action likely to defeat the purpose of this declaration, representation and warranty. It agrees that any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit obtained or procured as aforesaid shall, without prejudice to any other rights and remedies available to PA under any law, contract or other instrument, be voidable at the option of PA.

Notvithstanding any rights and remedies exercised by PA in this regard, [name of Supplier/Contractor/Consultant] agrees to indemnify PA for any loss or damage incurred by it on account of its corrupt business practices and further pay compensation to PA in an amount equivalent to ten time the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by [name of Contractor] as aforesaid for the purpose of obtaining or inducing the procurement of any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from PA.

[Procuring Agency]

[Contractor]

FORMS

ī.

BID SECURITY PERFORMANCE SECURITY CONTRACT AGREEMENT MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE INDENTURE BOND FOR SECURED ADVANCE

BID SECURITY (Bank Guarantee)

| Security Executed on | | |
|--|------------------------------|---|
| | (Date) | |
| Name of Surety (Bank) with Address: _ | | |
| | (Scheduled Bank in Pakistan) | |
| Name of Principal (Bidder) with Addres | | |
| Penal Sum of Security Rupees. | (Rs |) |
| Bid Reference No. | | _ |

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that in pursuance of the terms of the bid and at the request of the said Principal (Bidder) we, the Surety above named, are held and firmly bound unto ______

(here inafter called the 'Procuring Agency') in the sum stated above for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that whereas the Bidder has submitted the accompanying bid dated ______ for Bid No. ______ for _____ (Particulars of Bid) to the said Procuring Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has required as a condition for considering said bid that the bidder furnishes a bid security in the above said sum from a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or from a foreign bank duly counter-guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan, to the procuring agency, conditioned as under:

- (1) that the bid security shall remain in force up to and including the date 28 days after the deadline for validity of bids as stated in the Instructions to bidders or as it may be extended by the procuring agency, notice of which extension(s) to the Surety is hereby waived;
- (2) that the bid security of unsuccessful bidders will be returned by the procuring agency after expiry of its validity or upon signing of the Contract Agreement; and
- (3) that in the event of failure of the successful bidder to execute the proposed Contract Agreement for such work and furnish the required Performance Security, the entire said sum be paid immediately to the said procuring agency pursuant to Clause 15.6 of the Instruction to bidders for the successful bidder's failure to perform.

NOW THEREFORE, if the successful bidder shall, within the period specified therefore, on the prescribed form presented to him for signature enter into a formal Contract with the said procuring agency in accordance with his bid as accepted and furnish within twenty eight (28) days of his being requested to do so, a Performance Security with good and sufficient surety, as may be required, upon the form prescribed by the said procuring agency for the faithful performance and proper fulfilment of the said Contract or in the event of non-withdrawal of the said bid within the time specified for its validity then this obligation shall be void and of no effect, but otherwise to remain in full force and effect. PROVIDED THAT the Surety shall forthwith pay the procuring agency, the said sum upon first written demand of the procuring agency (without cavil or argument) and without requiring the procuring agency to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand, notice of which shall be sent by the procuring agency by registered post duly addressed to the Sure y at its address given above.

PROVIDED ALSO THAT the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal (Bidder) has duly performed his obligations to sign the Contract Agreement and to furnish the requisite Performance Security within the time stated above, or has defaulted in fulfilling said requirements and the Surety shall pay without objection the said sum upon demand from the procuring agency forthwith and without any reference to the Principal (Bidder) or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounden Surety has executed the instrument under its seal on the date indicated above, the name and seal of the Surety being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative pursuant to authority of its governing body.

SURETY (Bank)

WITNESS:

1. _____

Corporate Secretary (Seal)

Signature _____

Name _____

Title _____

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

2. ___

Name, Title & Address

FORM OF PERFORMANCE SECURITY (Bank Guarantee)

<u>____</u>

| | Guarantee No. |
|---|---------------------------------------|
| | Executed on |
| | Expiry date |
| [Letter by the Guarantor to the Procuring Agency] | |
| | |
| Name of Guarantor (Bank) with address: | |
| | (Scheduled Bank in Pakistan) |
| Name of Principal (Contractor) with address: | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Penal Sum of Security (express in words and figur | es) |
| i internet i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i | |
| Letter of Acceptance No. | Dated |
| | |
| | |

NOW THEREFORE, if the Principal (Contractor) shall well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms and conditions of the said Documents during the original terms of the said Documents and any extensions thereof that may be granted by the procuring agency, with or without notice to the Guarantor, which notice is, hereby, waived and shall also well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants terms and conditions of the Contract and of any and all modifications of said Documents that may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the Guarantor being hereby waived, then, this obligation to be void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue till all requirements of Clause 11, Defects Liability, of Conditions of Contract are fulfilled.

Our total liability under this Guarantee is limited to the sum stated above and it is a condition of any liability attaching to us under this Guarantee that the claim for payment in writing shall be received by us within the validity period of this Guarantee, failing which we shall be discharged of our liability, if any, under this Guarantee.

We, ______ (the Guarantor), waiving all objections and defer ces under the Contract, do hereby irrevocably and independently guarantee to pay to the procuring agency without delay upon the procuring agency's first written demand without cavil or arguments and without requiring the procuring agency to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand any sum or sums up to the amount stated above, against the procuring agency's written declaration that the Principal has refused or failed to perform the

obligations under the Contract which payment will be effected by the Guarantor to Procuring Agency's designated Bank & Account Number.

PRCVIDED ALSO THAT the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal (Contractor) has duly performed his obligations under the Contract or has defaulted in fulfilling said obligations and the Guarantor shall pay without objection any sum or sums up to the amount stated above upon first written demand from the procuring agency forthwith and without any reference to the Principal or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-bounden Guarantor has executed this Instrument under its soal on the date indicated above, the name and corporate seal of the Guarantor being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body.

Witness:

1._____

Corporate Secretary (Seal)

Guarantor (Bank)

Signature _____

Name _____

Title ______

2. _____

Name, Title & Address

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

FORM OF CONTRACT AGREEMENT

| THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT | (hereinafter | called | the "Agreement") made on the |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|--------|----------------------------------|
| day of | | | (month), 20 between |
| | | | (hereafter called the "Procuring |
| Agency") of the one part and | | | (hereafter called |
| the "Contractor") of the other part. | | | |

NOW this Agreement witnesseth-- as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.
- 2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, viz:
 - (a) The Contract Agreement;
 - (b) The Letter of Acceptance;
 - (c) The completed Form of Bid;
 - (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix-A to Bid);
 - (e) The Special Conditions of Contract Part II;
 - (f) The General Conditions Part I;
 - (g) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);
 - (h) The Drawings;
 - (i) Special provisions
 - (j) Addenda to NHA General Specifications 1998
 - (i) The NHA General Specifications
 - (j) The Ppriced Bill of Quantities (Appendix-D to Bid);
 - (k) (any other)
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the procuring agency to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the procuring agency to execute and complete the works and remedy defects therein in conformity and in all respects with the provisions of the contract.
- 4. Procuring agency hereby covenants to pay the contractor, in consideration of the execution and completion of the works as per provisions of the contract, the contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the cay, month and year first before written in accordance with their respective laws.

Signature of the Contactor

Signature of Procuring Agency

(Sea!)

2

(Seal)

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the presence of:

Witness:

Witness:

(Name, Title and Address)

(Name, Title and Address)

MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE

Bank Guarantee No._____ Date _____

WHEREAS ______ (hereinafter called the 'Procuring Agency') has entered into a Contract for _______ (Particulars of Contract)

with _____ (hereinafter called the "Contractor").

AND WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has agreed to advance to the Contractor, at the Contractor's request, an amount of Rupees ______ (Rs _____) which amount shall be advanced to the Contractor as per provisions of the Contract.

AND WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has asked the Contractor to furnish Guarantee to secure the mobilization advance for the performance of his obligations under the said Contract.

AND WHEREAS, _____

(Scheduled Bank in Pakistan)

(hereinafter called the "Guarantor") at the request of the Contractor and in consideration of the procuring agency agreeing to make the above advance to the Contractor, has agreed to furnish the said Guarantee.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Guarantor hereby guarantees that the Contractor shall use the advance for the purpose of above mentioned Contract and if he fails and commits default in fulfilment of any of his obligations for which the advance payment is made, the Guarantor shall be liable to the procuring agency for payment not exceeding the aforementioned amount.

Notice in writing of any default, of which the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge, on the part of the Contractor, shall be given by the procuring agency to the Guarantor, and on such first written demand, payment shall be made by the Guarantor of all sums then due under this Guarantee without any reference to the Contractor and without any objection.

This Guarantee shall remain in force until the advance is fully adjusted against payments from the Interim Payment Certificates of the Contractor or until whichever is earlier.

(Date)

(70)

This Guarantee shall remain valid up to the aforesaid date and shall be null and void after the aforesaid date or earlier if the advance made to the Contractor is fully adjusted against payments from Interim Payment Certificates of the Contractor provided that the Guarantor agrees that the aforesaid period of validity shall be deemed to be extended if on the above mentioned date the advance payment is not fully adjusted.

GUARANTOR

Signature _____ 1. 2. Name _____

3. Title

WITNESS

1. _____

Corporate Secretary (Seal)

2

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

INDENTURE FOR SECURED ADVANCES

(For use in cases in which is contract is for finished work and the contractor has entered into an agreement for the execution of a certain specified quantity of work in a given time).

This INDENTURE made the day of

WHEREAS by an agreement, dated (hereinafter called the said agreement, the contractor has agreed to perform the under-mentioned works (hereinafter referred to as the said work):-

(Here enter (the description of the works).

Fin R.Form.l7.A

On and on such covenants and conditions as are hereinafter contained and the Government has reserved to itself the option of marking any further advance or advances on the security of other materials brought by the Contractor to the site of the said works.

And Joth hereby covenant and agree with the Government and declare ay follow :-
- (2) That the materials detailed in the said Running Account Bill (B) which have been offered to and accepted by (he Government as security for the said amount are absolutely by the Contractors own property free from encumbrances of any kind and the Contractor will not make any application for or receive a further advance on the security of materials which are not absolutely his own property and free from encumbrances of any kind and the contractor hereby agrees, at all times, to indemnify and save harmless the Government against all claims whatsoever to any materials in respect of which an advance has been made to him as aforesaid.
- (3) That the said materials detailed in the said Running Account Bill (B) and all other materials on the security of which any further advance or advances may hereafter be made as aforesaid (hereinafter called the said materials) shall be used by the Contractor solely in the execution of the said works in accordance with the directions of the Divisional Officer (hereinafter called the Divisional Officer) and in the terms of the said agreement.
- (4) That the Contractor shall make at his own cost all necessary and adequate arrangement for the proper watch, safe custody and protection against all risks of the said material and that until used in construction as aforesaid the said materials shall remain at the site of the said works in the Contractor's custody and at his own risk and on his own responsibility and shall at all times be open to inspection by (he Divisional Officer or any officer authorized by him. In the event of the said materials of any part (hereof being stolen, destroyed or damaged or becoming deteriorated in a greater degree than is due to reasonable use and wear thereof Contractor will forthwith replace the same with other materials of like qualify or repair and make good the same as required by the Divisional Officer and the materials so brought to replace the said materials so repaired and made good shall also be considered as security for the said amount.
- (5) 'Hurt the said materials shall not on any account be removed from the site of the said works except with the written permission of the Divisional Officer or an officer authorized by him in that behalf
- (6) That the said amount shall be payable in full when or before the Contractor receives payment, from the Government of the price payable to him for the said works under the terms and provisions of the said agreement PROVIDED THAT if any intermediate payments are made to the contractor on account of work done then on the occasion of each such payment the Government will be at liberty to make a recovery from the Contractors Bill for such payment by deducting there from in the value of the said materials (hen actually used in the construction and in respect of which recovery has not been made previously the value for this purpose being determined in respect of each description of material at (he rates at which the amount of the advances made under these presents were calculated.

(73)

- (7)Contractor shall at any time make at if the any default in the performance or observation in any respect of any of the terms and provisions of the said agreement or of these presents the total amount of the advance or advances that may still be owing to the Government shall immediately on the happening of such default be repayable by the Contractor to the Government together with interest thereon at twelve percent per annum from the date or respective dates of such advance or advances to the date or repayment and with all costs, charges, damages and expenses incurred by the Government in or for the recovery thereof or the enforcement of this security or otherwise by reason of (he default of the Contractor and any moneys so becoming due and payable shall constitute a debt due from the Contractor to the Government and the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees with the Government to repay and the same respectively to it accordingly.

Once there with the Government may at any time thereafter adopt all or any of following courses as it may deem best ;-

- (a) Seize and utilize the said materials or any part thereof in the completion of the said works on behalf of the Contractor in accordance with the provisions in that behalf contained in the said agreement debiting the Contractor with the actual cost of effecting such completion the amount due in respect of advances under these presents and crediting the Contractor with the value of work done as he had carried it out in accordance with the said agreement and at the rates thereby provided. If the balance is against the Contractor he is to pay the same to the Government on demand.
- (b) Remove and sell by public auction the seized materials or any part thereof and out of the moneys arising from the sale retain all the sums aforesaid repayable to the Government under these presents and pay over the surplus (if any) to the Contractor.
- (c) Deduct all or any part of the moneys owing out of the security deposit or any sum due to the Contractor under the said agreement.
- (9) That except as is expressly provided by the presents interest on the said advance shall not be payable.

(74)

(10) That in the event of any conflict between the provisions of these presents and the said agreement the provisions of these presents shall prevail and in the event of any dispute or difference arising over the construction or effect of these presents the settlement of which has not been hereinbefore expressly provided for the same shall be referred to the Superintending Engineer/Executive District Officer/Officer one grade higher to officer signed the agreement Circle whose...... decision shall be final and the provisions of the Arbitration Act 1940 for the time being in force so far as they are applicable shall apply to any such reference.

Singed, sealed and delivered by* In the presence of

SEAL 1st witness SEAL 1st witness

2nd witness

2nd witness

Condition of Contract

Federation International des Ingenieurs-Conseils, or FIDIC)

| (a) | Part I - | General Conditions of Contract |
|------------|----------|--------------------------------|
| <i>a</i> > | | ~ |

(b) Part II - Special Conditions of Contract

The Conditions of Contract comprise two parts:

(a) Part I - General Conditions of Contract(b) Part II - Special Conditions of Contract

Over the years, a number of "model" General Conditions of Contract have evolved. The one usec in these Standard Bidding Documents was prepared by the International Federation of Consulting Engineers (Federation International des Ingenieurs-Conseils, or FIDIC), and is commonly known as the FIDIC Conditions of Contract. (The used version is the harmonized Edition March 2006).

The FIDIC Conditions of Contract have been prepared for an ad measurement (unit price or unit rate) type of contract, and cannot be used without major modifications for other types of contract, such as lump sum, turnkey, or target cost contracts.

The standard text of the General Conditions of Contract chosen must be retained intact to facilitate its reading and interpretation by bidders and its review by the procuring agency. Any amendments and additions to the General Conditions, specific to the contract in hand, should be introduced in the Particular Conditions of Contract.

The use of standard conditions of contract for all civil works will ensure comprehensiveness of coverage, better balance of rights or obligations between procuring agency and Contractor, general acceptability of its provisions, and savings in time and cost for bid preparation and review, leading to more economic prices.

The FIDIC Conditions of Contract are copyrighted and may not be copied, faxed, or reproduced. Without taking any responsibility of its being accurate, Pakistan Engineering Council with prior consent of FIDIC Secretariat, has reproduced herein the FIDIC General Conditions of Contract for reference purpose only which cannot be used by the users for preparing their bidding documents. The bidding document may include a purchased copy, the cost of which can be retrieved as part of the selling price of the bidding document. Alternatively, the FIDIC Conditions of Contract can be referred to in the bidding documents, and the bidders are advised to obtain copies directly from FIDIC

Copies of the FIDIC Conditions of Contract can be obtained from:

FIDIC CASE POSTALE, CH-1215 Switzerland;

Tel. +41 22 799 49 00; Fax; +41 22 799 49 01 E-mail: fidic@fidic.org.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT - PART B

Clause Title

| 1.1 | Definitions |
|--------------|--|
| 3.1 | Engineer's Duties and Authority |
| 4.3 | Contractor's Representative |
| 6.10 | Records of Contractor's Personnel and equipment |
| 7.9 | Use of Pakistani Materials and Services |
| 8.1 | Commencement of Works |
| 8.1 1 | Prolonged Suspension |
| 8.3 | Programme |
| 13.1 | Right to vary |
| 13.3 | Variation procedure |
| 13.8 | Adjustment for changes in cost |
| 14.1 | Contract Price |
| 14.2 | Advance Payment |
| 14.5 | Plants and Materials intended for Works |
| 14.8 | Delayed Payments |
| 15.2 | Termination by Employer/Procuring Agency |
| 15.6 | Corrupt and fraudulent Practices (Integrity Pact). |
| 16.4 | Payment on Termination |
| 17.3 | Employer's/Procuring Agency's Risks |
| 18.1 | General Requirements for Insurance |
| 19.6 | Optional Termination, Payment and release by the Employer |
| 20.1 | Contractor's Claims |
| 20.2 | Appointment of the Dispute Board / Notification of the Committee |
| 20.3 | Failure to agree on the composition of the Dispute Board. |
| 20.4 | Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision |
| 20.5 | Amicable Settlement. |
| 20.6 | Arbitration |
| 20.7 | Failure to comply with Dispute Board's Decision |
| 20.8 | Expiry of Dispute Board's Appointment |
| APPENDIX. | General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement |
| Annex | PROCEDURAL RULES |
| | |

| 1.1 | Definitions |
|---|--|
| 1.1.1.4 | "Form of Bid" is synonymous with "Letter of Tender". |
| 1.1.1.5 | "Bid" is synonymous with "Tender". |
| 1.1.1.8 | "The word 'Tender' is synonymous with 'Bid', and the words 'Bidding' with 'Tendering' and the words 'Appendix to Tender' with 'Appendix to Bid' and words 'Tender Documents' with 'Bid Documents'". |
| 1.1.11 | Insert this Sub Clause |
| | "Programme" means the programme to be submitted by the contractor in accordance with Sub-Clause 8.3 and any approved revisions thereto. |
| 1.1.2.2 | "Employer" is synonymous with "Procuring Agency" |
| | Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. |
| 1.1.2.9 | "DB" is synonymous with "Committee" |
| 1.1.3.1 | "Replace 28 days with 7 days" |
| 1.1.3.7 | "Defects Notification Period is synonymous with Defects Liability Period" |
| Sub-Clause 1.5 | Replace sequence of priority of documents with the following: |
| Priority of Documents | (a) the Contract Agreement (if completed), (b) the Letter of Acceptance, (c) the Tender including Letter of Bid, Appendix to Bid, Annexure, and tables excluding Appendix D Bill of Quantities"., (d) the Particular Conditions - Part A, (Special Stipulations Appendix A) (e) the Particular Conditions - Part B (f) the General Conditions (g) the Drawings, (h) the Addenda to Specification (i) Special Provisions (j) Specification, (k) the Appendix D, Bill of Quantities and (l) the Schedules and any other documents forming part of the Contract. |
| Sub-Clause 1.6 Contract Agreement | Replace the word "Employer" with "Contractor" in last line |
| Sub-Clause 1.15 Inspections and Audit by the Bank | This Sub-Clause is deleted entirely. |

PART B - SPECIAL /PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

| Sut-Clause 2.4 Employer's Financial | This Sub-Clause is deleted entirely. |
|--|---|
| Arrangements | |
| Sub-Clause 3.1 | The following paragraph is added after duties: |
| Engineer's Duties and Authority | Procuring agency shall ensure that the Engineer's Representative/Staff is a professional engineer as defined in the Pakistan Engineering Council Act 1975 (V of 1976) |
| | Replace part of Clause after the sentence "The following provisions shall apply" with following: |
| | The Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer before taking action under the following Sub Clauses of these conditions: |
| | a) Sub-Clauses 1.9, 2.1, 4.7, 4.12, 4.24, 7.4, 8.4, 8.5, 8.9, 10.3, 13.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time and / or additional cost. |
| | b) Approving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. |
| | c) Sub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| | d) Sub-Clause 10.1: Issuing Taking Over Certificate |
| | e) Sub-Clause 10.2: Issuing Taking Over Certificates |
| | f) Sub-Clause 11.9: Issuing Performance Certificate(s) |
| | g) Sub Clause 13.1: Instructing a Variation, except; |
| | i) in an emergency situation as determined by the Engineer, or |
| | ii) if such Variation would increase the Accepted Contract Amount not more than 1% cumulatively of such Amount. |
| | h) Sub-Clause 13.3: Approving a proposal for Variation submitted by the Contractor in accordance with Sub Clause 13.1 or 13.2. |
| | i) Sub Clause 13.4: Specifying the amount payable in each of the applicable currencies |
| | j) Sub-Clause 13.7: Before Adjustment for Changes in Legislation |
| | k) Sub-Clause 13.8: Before Adjustment for Changes in Cost |
| | Sub-Clause 20.1: Approving Claims of the Contractor (Time / Financial) under Clause 20.1 and accepting principles of the Claims |
| | Notwithstanding the obligation, as set out above, to obtain approval, if, in the opinion of the Engineer, an emergency occurs affecting the safety of life or of Works or adjoining property, he may, without relieving the Contractor of any of his duties and responsibility under the Contract, instruct the Contractor to execute all such work or to do all such things as may, in the opinion of the Engineer, be necessary to abate or reduce the risk. The Contractor shall forthwith comply, despite the absence of approval of the Employer, with any such instruction of the Engineer. The Engineer shall determine an addition to the Contract Price, in respect of such instruction, in accordance with Clause 13 and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. |

ŝ

.

| Sub-Clause 3.6 | Insert this Sub Clause at the end of Clause 3 |
|------------------------------------|---|
| Management Meetings | "The Engineer or the Contractor's Representative may require the other to attend a management meeting in order to review the progress with reference to the agreed program and arrangements for future works. The Engineer shall record the business of management meetings and supply copies of the record to those attending the meeting and to the Employer. In the record, responsibilities for any actions to be taken shall be in accordance with the Contract". |
| Sub-Clause 4.1. | Add following at the end of Sub-Clause 4.1: |
| Contractor's General Obligation | The Contractor shall prepare and submit one complete set of "As- Built" Documents on one master CD and two complete sets of print copies of "As-Built" Documents together with the back-up of the quantity calculation to the Engineer within 28 days after the date of taking over by Employer. These "As-Built" Documents shall indicate all approved changes made during construction, superimposed on the original plans / "As-Staked Documents". |
| | The final measured quantities for all pay items shall be included on all "As-Built" Documents. These "As-Built" Documents shall be prepared continuously as execution of the Works progresses and shall be submitted to the Engineer for review as sections or parts of the Project are completed. No Taking-Over Certificate for a Sector or the whole of Works shall be issued to the Contractor by the Engineer without the approved "As-Built" Documents. The preparation of the "As-Built" Documents shall be at the expense of the Contractor, payment for which is subsidiary to the pay items of the Contract. |
| | The review and approval by the Engineer or by the Employer of the "As-Built" Documents does not relieved the Contractor of any responsibility for and/or liabilities arising out of inaccurate, false or otherwise incorrect "As-Built" Documents prepared and submitted by the Contractor. The approved "As-Built Documents" shall be reproduced by the Contractor in four (4) hard copies and one (1) soft copies and return the same to the Employer. |
| | Shop Drawings . The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer all Contractor's, and Subcontractor's Shop Drawings. Shop Drawings shall be deemed to include design drawings, fabrication drawings, catalogue cuts, brochures, illustrations, material lists, design calculations, reference standards and performance data which may be required by the specification necessary for the proper execution of the Work, or as otherwise required by the Engineer for assurance that there is intent to meet the requirements of the specifications. All Shop Drawings shall be in English. |
| | The Contractor shall submit all Shop Drawings to the Engineer in the manner hereinafter described, in sufficient time to prevent delays in the delivery of materials or in the progress or completion of the work. Regardless of the source of Shop Drawings, all submissions shall be deemed to be submissions by the Contractor under the Contract. |

ā

â

| Ŧ | All Subcontractors' Shop Drawings shall first be sent directly to the Contractor. The Contractor shall thoroughly check all such Shop Drawings for measurements, sizes of members, materials and all other details, to assure him that the Shop Drawings conform to the intent of the Drawings and Specifications. |
|---|--|
| | The Contractor shall return to the Subcontractors for correction, such Shop Drawings that are found inaccurate or otherwise in error. After the Contractor has checked and approved such Shop Drawings he shall place thereon the date of such approval and the legible signature of the checker, and shall then submit them to the Engineer for review. The Engineer may refuse to check or review any Shop Drawings that are not submitted in compliance with the foregoing requirements. |
| | The Contractor shall submit five (5) copies of Shop Drawings plus the number that the Contractor wishes to return for his own and his Subcontractor's use. |
| | For all Equipment, Shop Drawings shall be completed in all respects and shall show clear compliance with the Specifications. Where applicable, performance figures of equipment, finishes and reference to other relevant drawings must be noted on the Shop Drawings. Details of ancillary items being supplied with the particular equipment must be submitted. Piecemeal submissions will not be considered. |
| | Descriptive brochures that are applicable shall be included for information. Any notation on the Shop Drawings which is on the prints and not on the original from which the prints were made shall be in GREEN INK. |
| | The Engineer will review submitted Shop Drawings within a reasonable time and will return them stamped with "NO COMMENT", "SEE COMMENTS" or "RESUBMIT". |
| | The Engineer may, at his discretion, require an immediate re- submission of Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings are not orders for Extra Work. |
| | Shop Drawings re-submitted for further review will be reviewed for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor (in writing) directs the Engineer specific attention to the same. |
| | Should the Contractor question, or dissent, from such notations or comments, he shall direct the Engineer's attention to the same for further clarification before re-submitting. |
| | By reviewing Shop Drawings, the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made |

.

•

good by the Contractor, irrespective, of the receipt, checking, or review of the Shop Drawings by the Engineer and even though the Work is done in accordance with such Shop Drawings.

As-Staked Drawings. "As-Staked" Drawings shall be prepared for the entire project. These drawing shall be submitted to the Employer for review and approval regardless of the nature of the changes in the original design, if there is increase/decrease of more than five percent (5%) in quantities of major items of work and more than ten percent (10%) for minor items of work. Variation Order shall be prepared in accordance with Sub-Clause 13.1.

The preparation of the "As-Staked" drawings and the corresponding back-up calculations must be completed within a reasonable period from the commencement of the project. The plans shall indicate major modifications (i.e. change in road alignment, change in type or main components of structures, introduction of new work items), superimposed on the original plans.

The approved "As-Staked" drawings shall be reproduced (white print) by the Contractor in five (5) copies. The preparation of the "As-Staked" drawings and reproduction cost shall be at the expense of the Contractor, payment for which is subsidiary to the pay items of the contract.

All data pertaining to As-Staked survey shall be jointly signed by the Contractor's and Engineer's representatives.

Quality of Plans ("As-Built", "As Staked" and other Drawings for Variation). All sheets of the "As-Built", "As-Staked" and other drawings for Variations should be of uniform size and one (1) standard size (A1) using Mylar or other quality tracing paper. The sheets must be neat and clean and without any crossed-out or voided portion. The title block should be made an integral part of the sheet plans and not merely patched-up.

Supplementary Drawings and Instructions. The Engineer shall have the authority to issue to the Contractor from time to time such supplementary drawings and instructions to the proper and adequate execution of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein. The Contractor shall carry out and be bound by the same.

The Contractor shall designate an additional set of drawings as "Record Drawings" and keep them to the site.

The Contractor shall clearly and neatly mark the Record Drawing in ink to indicate all authorized changes in the work, and also as actually constructed. These additional plans will not change the work of the Contract but will elucidate or explain it.

| Sub-Clause 4.3 | Insert additional paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 4.3 |
|-----------------------------|--|
| Contractor's Representative | The Contractor's authorized representative and his other professional engineers working at site shall register themselves with |
| | the Pakistan Engineering Council. |

| Sub-Clause 4.4 | Replace first line with the following |
|----------------------------------|--|
| Subcontractors | The Contractor may subcontract the Works for the maximum value equal to 30% of the Accepted Contract Amount. |
| Sub-Clause 4.8 | Insert additional paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 4.8 |
| Safety Procedures | In the event of work being carried out at night, the Contractor shall at his own cost, provide and maintain such good and sufficient light as will enable the work to proceed satisfactorily and without danger. The approaches to the Site and the Works where the night- work is being carried out shall be sufficiently lighted. All arrangement adopted for such lighting shall be to the satisfaction of the Engineer. |
| Sub-Clause 4.18 | Final paragraph to be added to after second paragraph |
| Protection of the Environment | The Contractor shall exercise care to protect the natural landscape and shall conduct his construction operation so as to prevent any unnecessary destruction, scarring or defacing of the natural surroundings in the vicinity of the Works, except where clearing is required for permanent works, approved temporary works and for excavation operations. All trees and native vegetation shall be preserved and shall be protected from damage, which may be caused, by the Contractor's construction operations and equipment. On completion of the Works, all work areas shall be smoothed and graded in a manner to scarring damage or defacing may occur as a result of the Contractor's operations, it shall be repaired, replanted or otherwise corrected as directed by the Engineer at Contractor's expense. |
| | Borrow areas shall be located and operated so as not to detract from the future usefulness or value of the sites. Upon completion of operations, borrow areas shall be left in a safe and sightly conditions. No borrow areas shall be located within 500 meter from the right of way. |
| | During the performance of the work required under the Contract, the Contractor shall carryout proper and efficient measures as often as necessary to reduce the dust nuisance, and to prevent dust originating from his operations. For waste water disposal, the provision of septic tank alone for worker's camp etc. will not be sufficient and may have to be supplemented with secondary treatment in form of gravel drains / constructed wetland depending on the laboratory results of effluent from the septic tank. |
| | The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to prevent water from the Site causing a nuisance on or, in any neighbouring land or property either by causing flooding or by depositing sediment on the surface of the ground or in drains or watercourses. Wherever necessary to prevent this, the Contractor shall construct temporary drainage channels, layer sumps and traps (in addition to those shown on the Contract) discharging into existing drain, ditches or watercourses. The Contractor snail removes over all sediment, which may accumulate on any land or in any drains, ditches or watercourses or in any other property as a result of his operations. |

έ

| | All works including those below sub-soil standing water level shall be carried out in the dry unless specified otherwise. The Contractor's arrangements for controlling the inflow of water into the parts of the excavation being worked and during the placing of concrete and other works therein and for the collection and disposal of water shall be to the Engineer's Approval. Such arrangements may include interalia temporary cofferdams, well-point systems, pumps; drains trenches, flumes and other recognized means. All Costs and charges in dealing with water in any way whatsoever and the effects thereof will be deemed to be included in the Contract Price and in the unit rates or prices of the Contractor for excavations. |
|------------------|---|
| | Water flowing into excavations shall be carried by trenches, drainage layers or open jointed drains to sumps from which it shall be pumped. Such trenches drains or sands shall generally be clear of the Permanent Works unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. If, with the said Approval of the Engineer trenches drains or sumps are excavated under or immediately adjacent the Permanent Works, these shall comprise open-jointed pipes with gravel mounds. When no longer required and when approved by the Engineer they shall be filled with a cement /sand grout injected under pressure so as to fill the pipe and all voids completely. |
| | The Contractor shall keep all surfaces upon or against which concrete is to be deposited free from running water and no concrete shall be placed until such surfaces are properly drained. Suitable precautions shall be taken to prevent running water from washing out cement or concrete while it is setting or from injuring the Works in any other way. |
| | Notwithstanding the Approval by the Engineer of the Contractor's methods of dealing with water, the Contractor shall be responsible for and accept all the risks and liabilities of dealing with water from whatever source and of all effects thereof. |
| | The Contractor shall throughout the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein, comply with all applicable Environment Protection Laws and Regulations of the Country. |
| Sub-Clause 4.21 | Add following paragraphs after paragraph (h) |
| Progress Reports | (i) An updated construction schedule indicating the progress in percentage; and (j) Description of all works carried out since the last report; and (k) An updated Progress Curve/Projected Cash flow indicating the planned and actual progress; and |
| | (1) An updated Critical Resource Usage Chart showing |
| | comparison of planned and actual values; and |
| | (m) An updated material procurement plan showing comparison of planned and actual values; and |
| | (n) An updated schedule of shop drawings comparison of planned and actual values; and |

| | (o) Description of the Works planned for the next 28 days sufficiently detailed to enable the Engineer to determine his programme of inspection and testing; and |
|--|---|
| | (p) Summary of all submission; and |
| | (q) Information about problems and areas of concern and proposal to overcome the same. |
| Sub-Clause 6.5 | Add the following paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 6.5: |
| Working Hours | The Contractor shall pay overtime payment to the Engineer's Support Staff/Personnel who were required by the Contractor to perform their respective work assignment beyond the normal working hours stated in Part A – Particular Conditions (Appendix A). |
| Sub-Clause 6.10 | The following paragraphs added: |
| Records of Contractor's Personnel and Equipment | The Contractor shall, upon request by the Engineer at any time in relation to any time of hired Contractor's Equipment, forthwith notify the Engineer in writing the name and address of the Owner of the equipment and shall certify that the agreement for the hire thereof contains a provision in accordance with the requirements set forth above. |
| Sut-Clause 6.23 Epidemics | Insert sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.22: In the event of any outbreak of illness of an epidemic nature, the Contractor shall comply with and carry out such regulations, orders and requirements as may be made by the Government or the local medical or sanitary authorities, for the purpose of dealing with and overcoming the same. |
| Sub-Clause 6.24 Workers' Organizations | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.23 In countries where national law recognizes workers' rights to form and to join workers' organizations of their choosing without interference and to bargain collectively, the Contractor shall comply with national law. The Contractor shall not discriminate or retaliate against Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in such organizations. Where national law restricts workers' organizations, the Contractor shall ensure that Contractor's Personnel have alternative means to express their grievances and defend their rights regarding working conditions and terms of employment, such as worker committees or forums to facilitate dialogue between workers' representatives and the employer. Where national is silent on this issue, the Contractor shall not discriminate or retaliate against Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in organizations and forums designed to promote good working conditions and favourable terms of employment, consistent with the Contract. |
| Sub-Clause 6.25 | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.24 |
| Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity | The Contractor shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. The Contractor shall base the employment relationship on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and will not |

.

| | discriminate with respect to aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and discipline. In countries where national law provides for non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall comply with national law. When national laws are silent on non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall meet this Sub-Clause's requirements. Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on inherent requirements of the job will not be deemed discrimination. |
|--|---|
| Sul-Clause 7.9 Use of Pakistani Materials and Services | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 7.8 The contractor shall, so far as may be consistent with the contract, make the maximum use of materials, supplies, plant and equipment indigenous to or produced or fabricated in Pakistan and services, available in Pakistan provided such materials, supplies, plant, equipment and services shall be of required standard. |
| Sub-Clause 8.1 Commencement of Works | Delete paragraph (b) entirely and substituted with the following. The contractor shall commence the works on site within the period named in Appendix-A to Bid from the date of receipt by him from the Engineer of a written Notice to Commence. Thereafter, the contractor shall proceed with the works with due expedition and without delay |
| Sub-Clause 8.3 Programme | Insert following additional paragraphs at the end of Sub Clause 8.3; The program shall be submitted in the form of CPM charts. The Contractor will also have a licensed copy of the software from a reputed firm which shall be accessible to the Engineer as well as his assistants. Contractor shall organize a training program for his and Engineer's staff so that the program can be updated regularly as required. |
| | The revised programme, in accordance with the Contract, shall be submitted within fourteen (14) days of the request received from the Engineer. The Contractor shall pay a penalty of Rs.100,000/- (Rupees Hundred Thousands only) for each day of delay in the submission of said revised programme. The Employer shall recover such amount from any payment due to the Contractor under the Contract, on the Engineer's recommendations. |
| | Notwithstanding General Conditions of the Contract Sub Clause 8.3, the program to be submitted for the execution of the works shall, in addition to the program of pure construction activities, include an alleviation program for site staff and labour and their families (if allowed to stay at camp) in respect of Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI), Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) including HIV/AIDS. The STID and HIV/AIDS alleviation program shall indicate when, how and at what cost the Contractor plans to satisfy the requirements of Sub Clause 6.7 herein and the related Specifications. The Contractor shall submit the Programme of Works on Primavera |

| Project Planner P-5 or the latest (both hard and soft copy) for the consent of the Engineer. All items of works and activities including mobilization should be included in the Programme of Works. The programme shall identify and highlight those activities, which are on the Critical Path. The programme shall be revised monthly and should include a chart of principal activities of the work forecast for monthly execution and an updated schedule of the payment to be made by the Employer to the Contractor. This programme of works as scheduled shall form basis of Delay Damages pursuant to Sub-Clauses 8.7. |
|--|
| In addition, cash flow estimates shall be supported with inputs of over drafts organized with financial institutions at various stages of the projects to meet the funding requirements of the project. The Contractor shall supply and maintain at his site office for his and Engineer's use a licensed copy of the project management computer software package namely Primavera for programming and to monitor the progress. It shall be supplied complete with manuals and technical training and support for the duration of the Contract as per requirements assessed by the Engineer. |
| In order to assist the Engineer's Project Management Team, the Contractor shall be required to submit at 2 weeks intervals data to the Engineer on the cost and quantities and other data relevant to the monitoring of progress according to a particular format suitable for computer processing. |
| The programme should be computerized and drawn up on the CPM with all details as illustrated in this Clause, identifying all items of work including temporary work. Progress reporting by the Contractor should be supported on a monthly basis with an up-to- date analysis of the progress including a statement on items, which are or are about to become critical to the progress of the work along with the proposals on how the Contractor intends to alleviate the situation. |
| General Requirements: |
| a. Programme should be submitted (both hard and soft copy) strictly following the guidelines and format specified in this Clause. |
| b. The Engineer at any time during the execution of the Works; direct the Contractor to change/modify the Programme / Schedule based on the Priority of Works. |
| c. No payment shall be released to the Contractor prior to approval of the Base Line Programme by the Engineer. |
| d. Submittal of Programme consists of: 1. Construction Schedule (CPM); 2. Progress Curve/Project Cash Flow; 3. Critical Resources Usage Chart; 4. Detailed Method Statement; 5. Material Procurement Plan; 6. Schedule of Submittals and Shop-Drawings; |

è

| 7. Any other details as required by the Engineer; |
|---|
| Construction Schedule:F a. Construction Schedule shall be developed on the basis of Work Breakdown Structure provided or approved by the Engineer. b. Construction Schedule shall be detailed up to level 4 or as required by the Engineer. c. Durations of construction activity should be calculated practically in relation to quantity of work done and allocated resources. Any activity that demands duration greater than seven (07) calendar days should be split into number of activities to monitor the same accordingly. d. Construction activities of the schedule should be logically linked with preceding and succeeding activities and showed in |
| submitted construction schedule. e. Critical Activities and Critical Path of the project should be highlighted with red colour in bar chart and precedence diagram. Total Float for non-critical activities should also be shown in the schedule. |
| f. Appropriate quantity of direct resources (material, labour, equipment and non-consumable material) should be allocated to all activities and showed in submitted construction schedule. Labour resource should be divided according to related trades (e.g. Mason, Operator, helper etc.) Contractor should make sure that no resource is being over allocated. Indirect resources should be allocated to supervision / summary activity. g. BOQ amount should be loaded to reach construction activity. |
| Accrual basis should be indicated to construction activity. h. Construction Schedule should show Activity ID, Activity Description, BOQ Quantity, Duration, Start Date, Finish Date, Total Float, Predecessors, Resource names with quantity, BOQ Amount and timescale where the bars show start and finish dates. |
| Progress Curve / Projected Cash Flow: |
| a. Progress Curve / Projected Cash Flow should be developed and presented on Project Management Software – Primavera Project Planner. |
| b. S-Curve should be plotted between time (in weeks) and progress of work done (in % of work). The progress should be shown in cumulative percent of work done. Percent of work done should be calculated with the BOQ amount and payment terms. |
| Critical Resources Usage Chart: a. Critical Usage Chart should be developed. b. List of Critical Resources included Labourers, equipments, consumable/non-consumable materials and/or identified by the Engineer. |
| c. Resource usage chart should show Resource Name and weekly |

ĩ

| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | |
|---|---------------------------------------|---|
| | | utilization (numbers) of resources on each activity. |
| | | Detailed Method Statement: |
| | | a. Detailed method statement should be presented in descriptive format explaining the method of carrying out works, logistics, site layout, flow of work, quality and safety measures for each activity and any other details as required by the Engineer. |
| | | Material Procurement Plan: a. Material Procurement Plan for major items of purchase should be presented in a Tabular Format to be submitted to the Engineer for pre-approval. The Plan must as a minimum show the list of local & imported materials to be used, their specification reference, and planned dates for submittal to Consultant, approval process, placing of order, vendor contact, required delivery on site, status of Line of Credit (LOC) if applicable, and usage of material. |
| | | Schedule of Shop Drawings and Submittals: Schedule of Shop Drawings and other Submittals should be presented in a Tabular Format to be submitted to the Engineer for pre-approval. Plan must as a minimum show the list of shop drawings required and their specification reference, planned dates for submittal to consultant, approval process, and usage of shop drawing. |
| | | Cash Flow Estimates: The Contractor shall, within 28 days from the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, provide to the Engineer for his information a detailed cash flow estimate in quarterly periods, of all payments to which the Contractor will be entitled under the Contract and the Contractor shall subsequently supply revised cash flow estimates at quarterly intervals, if required to do so by the Engineer. |
| | | Revised Programme: If at any time it should appear to the Engineer that the actual progress of the Works does not conform to the programme to which consent has been given under Sub-Clause 8.3, the Contractor shall produce, at the request of the Engineer, a revised programme showing the modifications to such programme necessary to ensure completion of the Works within the Time for Completion. |
| - | Sub-Clause 8.7 Delay Damages | Insert following additional paragraphs at the end of Sub-Clause 8.7 Notwithstanding the provision of above stated conditions following shall prevail: The rate of Delay Damages shall be 0.1% per day of the Contract Price for every day of delay in which whole or part of the work(s) remained unfurnished subject to a maximum of 10% of the Final Contract Price. |
| | | In addition to the Delay Damages, the Contractor shall borne all the cost/expenses related to the supervision of the works by the Engineer and his staff covering salaries of the Engineer and all of his Site Supervision staff including all the benefits, providing, running and maintenance of all the Engineer's Facilities up to the |

| issuance of the Taking Over Certificate by the Employer. All the above cost/expanses will not be reimbursed / paid to the Contractor beyond the approved completion period of the works. |
|--|
| If, before the Time for Completion of the whole of the Works or, if applicable, any Section, a Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for any part of the Works or of a Section, the delay damages for delay in completion of the remainder of the Works or of that Section shall, for any period of delay after the date stated in such Taking-Over Certificate, and in the absence of alternative provisions in the Contract, be reduced in the proportion which the value of the part so certified bears to the value of the whole of the Works or Section, as applicable. The provisions of this Sub-Clause shall only apply to the rate of delay damages and shall not affect the limit thereof. |
| Interim Delay Damages |
| Contractor's works programme submitted under Sub-Clause 8.3 of the Conditions of Contract shall be considered part of the Contract Agreement. If the Contractor's progress is not as per approved programme of works, the Contractor shall be liable for Interim Delay Damages at the rate of 0.05% of the Contract Price for each day of delay, which shall be refunded if the progress again matches the approved programme of works during the currency of works. |
| The amount of interim delay damages deducted by the Employer from the payment of the Contractor and refunded shall be taken into consideration while determining the delay damages for the whole of the Works. |
| If the progress of works is observed to be behind approved programme of works against three consecutive months then the Employer may invoke Sub-Clause 15.2 of the Conditions of Contract. |
| Replace 84 days by 120 days. |
| Insert following as 3rd paragraph after 2nd paragraph |
| Within 14 days of the date of receipt of Contractor's notice for issuance of Taking Over Certificate the Employer shall on the written request of the Engineer constitute a committee comprising of Engineer/Engineer's Representative, Employer's and Contractor's Representatives. The Committee shall conduct a detailed inspection of the works completed by the Contractor to ascertain the completion or the extent of completion to decide about the issuance of Taking Over Certificate. |
| The Engineer shall take further action on the Contractor's application in pursuance to the recommendations of the committee. |
| Insert following as 2rd paragraph after 1st paragraph |
| At the completion of the Defects Notification Period the Employer shall constitute a committee comprising of Engineer / Engineer's Representative, Employer's and Contractor's Representatives. The Committee shall conduct a detailed inspection of the works to ascertain the issuance of Performance Certificate or otherwise. |
| _ |

| Sub-Clause 13.1 Right to Vary | In the last line of Para, after the word "Variation", the word "in writing" is added. | |
|--|---|--|
| Sub-Clause 13.3 Variation Procedure | In the tenth line, after the words "as soon as practicable" following is added: "and within a period not exceeding one-eighth of the completion time" | |
| Sub-Clause 13.8 | The following provision is added: | |
| Adjustment for Changes in cost | The amounts payable to the Contractor, pursuant to Sub-Clause 14.6, shall be adjusted in respect of the rise or fall in the cost of materials only, and will be paid to the contractor on those items mentioned in the Appendix $-C$ (B). Similarly reduction in the cost of these materials will also be recovered from the contractor accordingly. | |
| Sut-Clause 14.1 The Contract Price | Renumber subparagraphs (c) and (d) as (f) and (g) and delete subparagraph (e). | |
| | Insert following paragraphs (c), (d) and (e): | |
| | (c) The Contract Price shall include all taxes, duties and other charges imposed outside the Country on the production, manufacture, sale and transport of the Contractor's Equipment. Plant, Materials and supplies to be used on or furnished under the Contract, and on the services to be performed under the Contract. | |
| | (d) The Contractor's staff and labour will be liable to pay personal income taxes in the Country in respect of such of their salaries and wages as are chargeable under the Laws for the time being in force, and the Contractor shall perform such duties in regard to such deductions thereof as may be imposed on him by such laws. | |
| | (e) Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (b), Contractor's Equipment, including essential spare parts therefore, imported by the Contractor for the sole purpose of executing the Contract shall be temporarily exempt from the payment of import duties and taxes upon initial importation, provided the Contractor shall post with the customs authorities at the port of entry an approved export bond or bank guarantee, valid until the Time for Completion plus six months, in an amount equal to the full import duties and taxes which would be payable on the assessed imported value of such Contractor's Equipment and spare parts, and callable in the event the Contractor's Equipment is not exported from the Country on completion of the Contract. A copy of the bond or bank guarantee endorsed by the customs authorities shall be provided by the Contractor to the Employer upon the importation of individual items of Contractor's Equipment and spare parts. Upon export of individual items of Contractor's Equipment or spare parts, or upon the completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall prepare, for approval by the customs authorities, an assessment of the residual value of the Contractor's Equipment and spare part to be exported, based on the depreciation scale(s and other criteria used by the customs authorities for such purposes under the provisions of the applicable Laws. Import duties and taxes shall be due and payable to the customs authorities by the Contractor on (a) the | |

| | difference between the initial imported value and the residual value of the Contractor's Equipment and spare parts to exported; and (b) on the initial imported value that Contractor's Equipment and spare parts remaining in the Country after completion of the Contract. Upon payment of such dues within 28 days of being invoiced, the bond or bank guarantee shall be reduced or released accordingly; otherwise the security shall be called in the full amount remaining. | |
|-----------------|---|--|
| Sub-Clause 14.2 | Delete the Clause in entirety and replace with following | |
| Advance Payment | The Employer if requested by the Contractor shall make an advance payment for mobilisation and cash flow support, when the Contractor submits a guarantee in accordance with this Sub-Clause. The total advance payment, the number and timing of instalments (if more than one) shall be as stated in the Appendix A. | |
| | The Advance Payment (if required) shall be paid in two equal instalments after the following conditions have been fulfilled. | |
| | Installment-1: 50% of the total amount of the Advance Payment | |
| | • That the Contract Agreement has been signed by the Parties. | |
| | • The Contractor has submitted bank guarantee for the full amount of the advance payment in the form of irrevocable without recourse bank guarantee. | |
| | • The Contractor has submitted the Performance Security in the form as prescribed in Sub-Clause 4.2. | |
| | • The Contractor has submitted the Programme of Works in the form detailed in Sub-Clause 8.3 and the Engineer has given his concurrence. | |
| | Installmentt-2: Remaining 50% of the total amount of the Advance Payment shall be paid on mobilization of Plant, Equipment and other resources at site by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Engineer | |
| | Unless and until the Employer receives this guarantee, or if the total advance payment is not stated in the Appendix A, this Sub-Clause shall not apply. | |
| | The Contractor shall pay interest on the mobilization advance at the rate of 10% per annum on the advance. | |
| | The Engineer shall deliver to the Employer and to the Contractor an Interim Payment Certificate for the advance payment or its first instalment after receiving a Statement (under Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates]) and after the Employer receives (i) the Performance Security in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.2 [Performance Security] and (ii) a guarantee in amount equal to the advance payment. This guarantee shall be issued by an entity and from within a country (or other jurisdiction) approved by the Employer, and shall be in the form annexed to the Particular Conditions or in another form approved by the Employer. | |
| | The Contractor shall ensure that the guarantee is valid and enforceable until the advance payment has been repaid, but its amount shall be progressively reduced by the amount repaid by the Contractor as indicated in the Payment Certificates. If the terms of the guarantee specify its expiry date, and the advance payment has | |

| | ····· | not been renaid by the date 28 days minute of |
|---|--|--|
| | | not been repaid by the date 28 days prior to the expiry date, the Contractor shall extend the validity of the guarantee until the advance payment has been repaid. |
| - | | At any time, the bank guarantee shall be valid for an amount not less than the amount of the original Advance Payment less any partial repayment of that Advance Payment which may have been affected. The Contractor shall inform the guaranteeing bank, by letter, counter signed by the Employer, of the required amount of the guarantee from time to time. Reduction of the amount shall not be made without such authorizing letter. |
| | | Unless stated otherwise in the Appendix A, the advance payment including interest shall be recovered in 5 equal instalments starting from third running bills (IPCs) and in case the number of bills is less than 5 then 1/5 of the advance inclusive of the interest thereon shall be recovered from each bill and the balance together with interest be recovered from the final bill. It may be insured that there is sufficient amount in the final bill to enable recovery of the Mobilization Advance. |
| | | If the advance payment has not been repaid prior to the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works or prior to termination under Clause 15 [Termination by Employer], Clause 16 [Suspension and Termination by Contractor] or Clause 19 [Force Majeure] (as the case may be), the whole of the balance then outstanding shall immediately become due and in case of termination under Clause 15 [Termination by Employer] and Sub- Clause 19.6 [Optional Termination, Payment and Release], payable by the Contractor to the Employer. |
| | | In the event that the amount of money certified and due to the Contractor under the contract at any time is less than the total of due repayments of Advance Payment, the balance of the due repayments shall be paid to the Employer by the Contractor within seven days of demand by the Employer. If the balance is not so paid, the Employer shall be empowered to call in sufficient of the Advance payment bank guarantee to cover the said balance. |
| | | The Employer shall be empowered to call in the guarantee in whole or in part(s) if the Contractor defaults in the repayment(s) for any reason(s). |
| | Sub-Clause 14.5 Plant and Materials intended for the Works | Add the following paragraph as sub-clause 14.5 (d) for Secured Advance on non – perishable materials and sub-clauses (a), (b) and (c) will be applicable for plants only :- |
| | | I. The Contractor shall be entitled to receive from the procuring agency Secured Advance against an INDENTURE BOND in Public Works Account Form No.31 (Fin. R. Form No. 2) acceptable to the procuring agency of such sum as the Engineer may consider proper in respect of non-perishable materials brought at the site but not yet incorporated in the Permanent Works provided that: |
| | | i. The materials are in accordance with the specifications for the permanent works; |
| | | ii. Such materials have been delivered to the site and are properly stored and protected against loss or damage or deterioration to the satisfaction and verification of the Engineer/Assistant Engineer but at the risk and cost of the |
| | | (04) |

| | Contractor; | |
|---|--|--|
| | | |
| | iii. The Contractor's records of the requirements, orders, receipts and use of materials are kept in a form approved by the Engineer, and such records shall be available for inspection by the Engineer; | |
| | iv. The Contractor shall submit with his monthly statement the estimated value of the materials on site together with such documents as may be required by the Engineer for the purpose of valuation of materials and providing evidence of ownership and payment therefore; | |
| | V. Ownership of such materials shall be deemed to vest in the procuring agency and these materials shall not be removed from the site or otherwise disposed of without written permission of the procuring agency; | |
| | vi. The sum payable for such materials on site shall not exceed 75 % of the (i) landed cost of imported materials, or (ii) ex- factory /ex-warehouse price of locally manufactured or produced materials, or (iii) market price of stands other materials; | |
| | vii. Secured Advance shall not be allowed unless and until the previous advance, if any, is fully recovered; | |
| | viii. Detailed account of advances must be kept in part II of running account bill or a separate statement; and | |
| | ix. Secured Advance may be permitted only against materials/quantities anticipated to be consumed / utilized on the work within a period of 3 months from the date of issue of secured advance and in no case for full quantities of materials for the entire work/contract. | |
| | II. Recovery of Secured Advance: | |
| | Secured Advance paid on non-perishable materials to the Contractor under the above provisions shall be effected from the monthly payments on actual consumption basis, but not later than period specified in the rules not more than three months (even if unutilized); | |
| Sub-Clause 14.6 Issue of Interim Payment | Add following in second line after the words "Performance Security." | |
| Certificates | No amount shall be certified or paid until the Engineer has recived and approved the Programme of Works. | |
| Sub-Clause 14.8 | Second Para is replaced with following text: | |
| Delayed Payment | In the event of the failure of the Procuring Agency to make the payment within the time stated, the procuring agency shall pay to the contractor in case of ICB contracts only , the compensation at rate of KIBOR+2% per annum in local currency and Libor+1% for foreign currency, upon all sums to be paid from the date of which the same would have been paid (i.e. for NCB, no compensation is admissible). | |
| | | |

a

| Sub-Cause 14.15 | Currency of Payment is Pakistan Rupee (PKR). | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| Currencies of Payment | Currency of Fayment is Fakistan Rupee (PKR). | | | |
| Sub-Clause 15.2 | Insert following as paragraph (g) after paragraph (f) | | | |
| Termination by Employer | (g) If the progress of works with respect to the Programme of Works is observed to be behind the approved program of works pursuant to Sub Clause 8.7 for three consecutive months. | | | |
| | The following Para is added at the end of the sub-clause: | | | |
| | Provided further, that in addition to the action taken by the procuring agency against the Contractor under this Clause, the procuring agency may also refer the case of default of the Contractor to Pakistan Engineering Council for punitive action under the Construction and Operation of Engineering Works Bye-Laws 1987, as amended from time to time. | | | |
| Sub-Clause 15.6 | The following text is to be added as 3rd paragraph: | | | |
| Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices | Successful Contractor has to provide Integrity Pact (for contracts worth Rs.10.0 million and above). If the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants is found to have violated or involved in violation of the Integrity Pact signed by the Contractor as Appendix-L to his Bid, then the procuring agency shall be entitled to: | | | |
| | a. recover from the Contractor an amount equivalent to ten times the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants; | | | |
| | b. terminate the Contract; and | | | |
| | c. recover from the Contractor any loss or damage to the procuring agency as a result of such termination or of any other corrupt business practices of the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants. | | | |
| | The termination under sub-para (b) of this Sub-Clause shall proceed in the manner prescribed under sub-clauses 15.2 & 15.5 and the payment under Sub-Clause 15.4 shall be made after having deducted the amounts due to the procuring agency under Sub-Para (a) and (c) of this Sub-Clause. | | | |
| Sub-Clause 16.1 Contractor's Entitlement to | Delete words " Sub-Clause 2.4 [Employer's Financial Arrangements] or " from first paragraph | | | |
| Suspend Work | Delete paragraph 2 <i>in entirety</i> (i.e. from words "Notwithstanding" to "notification from the bank". | | | |
| Sub-Clause 16.2 | Delete paragraph (a) in entirety. | | | |
| Terraination by Contractor Sub-Clause 17.3 Employer's Risks | Delete paragraph (a) in entirety. | | | |
| Sub-Clause 18.1 | Add following text | | | |
| General Requirements for Insurance | The contractor shall be obliged to place all insurances relating to the contract (including, but not limited to, the insurances referred to | | | |

| | in Clauses 18.1,18.2,18.3,18.4) with Insurance Company having at least AA rating from PACRA/JCR in favour of the Employer valid for a period 28 days after the expiry of Defects Liability Period. Costs of such insurances shall be borne by the contractor. | |
|--|---|--|
| Sub-Clause 19.6Delete paragraph (c), (d) and (e) in entirety.Optional Termination, Payment and release by the EmployerDelete paragraph (c), (d) and (e) in entirety. | | |
| Sub-Clause 20.1 Contractor's Claims | Insert following at the end of Sub-Clause 20.1 The Contractor shall not be entitled for any extension of Time for Completion and/or additional payment in respect of the claim(s) if the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements or any of the requirement of Sub-Clause 20.1 within the time period stipulated there in the Clause above mentioned and or fails in keeping and producing necessary records whenever demanded by the Engineer. | |
| Sub-Clause 20.6 Arbitration | Delete the Clause in entirety and replace with following | |
| | Any dispute in respect of which: | |
| | a. the decision, of the Dispute Board has not become final and binding pursuant to sub-clause 20.2, and | |
| | b. amicable settlement has not been reached within the period stated in sub-clause 20.5, shall be finally settled, under the provisions of the Arbitration Act, 1940 as amended or any statutory modification/Rules of Conciliation And Arbitration PEC Islamabad or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force. | |
| | The place of arbitration shall be Karachi, in Sindh Province. | |
| | The arbitrators shall have full power to open up, review and revise any certificate, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, and any decision of the DB, relevant to the dispute. Nothing shall disqualify representatives of the Parties and the Engineer from being called as a witness and giving evidence before the arbitrators on any matter whatsoever relevant to the dispute. | |
| | Neither Party shall be limited in the proceedings before the arbitrators to the evidence or arguments previously put before the DB to obtain its decision, or to the reasons for dissatisfaction given in its notice of dissatisfaction. Any decision of the DB shall be admissible in evidence in the arbitration. | |
| | Arbitration shall be commenced after completion of the Works. The obligations of the Parties, the Engineer and the DB shall not be altered by reason of any arbitration. | |

APPENDIX: DISPUTE BOARD

General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement

e

ê

| 1. Definitions | Each "Dispute Board Agreement" is a tripartite agreement by and between: | | |
|--------------------------|---|--|--|
| | (a) the "Employer"; | | |
| | (b) the "Contractor"; and | | |
| | (c) the "Member" who is defined in the Dispute Board Agreement as being: | | |
| | (i) the sole member of the "DB" and, where this is the case, all references to the "Other Members" do not apply, or | | |
| | (ii) one of the three persons who are jointly called the "DB" (or "Dispute Board") and, where this is the case, the other two persons are called the "Other Members." | | |
| | The Employer and the Contractor have entered (or intend to enter) into a contract, which is called the "Contract" and is defined in the Dispute Board Agreement, which incorporates this Appendix. In the Dispute Board Agreement, words and expressions which are not otherwise defined shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Contract. | | |
| 2. General Provisions | Unless otherwise stated in the Dispute Board Agreement, it shall take effect on the latest of the following dates: | | |
| | (a) the Commencement Date defined in the Contract, | | |
| | (b) when the Employer, the Contractor and the Member have each signed the Dispute Board Agreement, or | | |
| | (c) when the Employer, the Contractor and each of the Other Members (if any) have respectively each signed a dispute board agreement. | | |
| | This employment of the Member is a personal appointment. At any time, the Member may give not less than 70 days' notice of resignation to the Employer and to the Contractor, and the Dispute Agreement shall terminate upon the expiry of this period. | | |
| 3. Warranties | The Member warrants and agrees that he/she is and shall be impartial and independent of the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer. The Member shall promptly disclose, to each of them and to the Other Members (if any), any fact or circumstance which might appear inconsistent with his/her warranty and agreement of impartiality and independence. | | |

When appointing the Member, the Employer and the Contractor relied upon the Member's representations that he/she is:

- (a) experienced in the work which the Contractor is to carry out under the Contract,
- (b) experienced in the interpretation of contract documentation, and
- (c) fluent in the language for communications defined in the Contract.

The Member shall:

- (a) have no interest financial or otherwise in the Employer, the Contractor or Engineer, nor any financial interest in the Contract except for payment under the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (b) not previously have been employed as a consultant or otherwise by the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, except in such circumstances as were disclosed in writing to the Employer and the Contractor before they signed the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (c) have disclosed in writing to the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any), before entering into the Dispute Board Agreement and to his/her best knowledge and recollection, any professional or personal relationships with any director, officer or employee of the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, and any previous involvement in the overall project of which the Contract forms part;
- (d) not, for the duration of the Dispute Board Agreement, be employed as a consultant or otherwise by the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, except as may be agreed in writing by the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any);
- (e) comply with the annexed procedural rules and with Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract;
- (f) not give advice to the Employer, the Contractor, the Employer's Personnel or the Contractor's Personnel concerning the conduct of the Contract, other than in accordance with the annexed procedural rules;
- (g) not while a Member enter into discussions or make any agreement with the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer regarding employment by any of them, whether as a consultant or otherwise, after ceasing to act under the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (h) ensure his/her availability for all site visits and hearings as are necessary;

4. General Obligations of the Member

- become conversant with the Contract and with the progress of the Works (and of any other parts of the project of which the Contract forms part) by studying all documents received which shall be maintained in a current working file;
- (j) treat the details of the Contract and all the DB's activities and hearings as private and confidential, and not publish or disclose them without the prior written consent of the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any); and
- (k) be available to give advice and opinions, on any matter relevant to the Contract when requested by both the Employer and the Contractor, subject to the agreement of the Other Members (if any).
- 5. General Obligations of the Employer and the Contractor

The Employer, the Contractor, the Employer's Personnel and the Contractor's Personnel shall not request advice from or consultation with the Member regarding the Contract, otherwise than in the normal course of the DB's activities under the Contract and the Dispute Board Agreement. The Employer and the Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with this provision, by the Employer's Personnel and the Contractor's Personnel respectively.

The Employer and the Contractor undertake to each other and to the Member that the Member shall not, except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Employer, the Contractor, the Member and the Other Members (if any):

- (a) be appointed as an arbitrator in any arbitration under the Contract;
- (b) be called as a witness to give evidence concerning any dispute before arbitrator(s) appointed for any arbitration under the Contract; or
- (c) be liable for any claims for anything done or omitted in the discharge or purported discharge of the Member's functions, unless the act or omission is shown to have been in bad faith.

The Employer and the Contractor hereby jointly and severally indemnify and hold the Member harmless against and from claims from which he is relieved from liability under the preceding paragraph.

Whenever the Employer or the Contractor refers a dispute to the DB under Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract, which will require the Member to make a site visit and attend a hearing, the Employer or the Contractor shall provide appropriate security for a sum equivalent to the reasonable expenses to be incurred by the Member. No account shall be taken of any other payments due or paid to the Member.

The Member shall be paid as follows, in the currency named in the Dispute Board Agreement:

- (a) a retainer fee per calendar month, which shall be considered as payment in full for:
 - (i) being available on 28 days' notice for all site visits and hearings;
 - (ii) becoming and remaining conversant with all project developments and maintaining relevant files;
 - (iii) all office and overhead expenses including secretarial services, photocopying and office supplies incurred in connection with his duties; and
 - (iv) all services performed hereunder except those referred to in sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Clause.

The retainer fee shall be paid with effect from the last day of the calendar month in which the Dispute Board Agreement becomes effective; until the last day of the calendar month in which the Taking-Over Certificate is issued for the whole of the Works.

With effect from the first day of the calendar month following the month in which the Taking-Over Certificate is issued for the whole of the Works, the retainer fee shall be reduced by one third. This reduced fee shall be paid until the first day of the calendar month in which the Member resigns or the Dispute Board Agreement is otherwise terminated.

- (b) a daily fee which shall be considered as payment in full for:
 - (i) each day or part of a day up to a maximum of two days' travel time in each direction for the journey between the Member's home and the site, or another location of a meeting with the Other Members (if any);
 - (ii) each working day on Site visits, hearings or preparing decisions; and
 - (iii) each day spent reading submissions in preparation for a hearing.
- (c) all reasonable expenses including necessary travel expenses (air fare in less than first class, hotel and subsistence and other direct travel expenses) incurred in connection with the Member's duties, as well as the cost of telephone calls, courier charges, faxes and telexes: a receipt shall be required for each item in excess of five percent of the daily fee referred to in sub-paragraph (b) of this Clause;
- (d) any taxes properly levied in the Country on payments made to the Member (unless a national or permanent resident of the Country) under this Clause 6.

The retainer and daily fees shall be as specified in the Dispute Board Agreement. Unless it specifies otherwise, these fees shall remain fixed for the first 24 calendar months, and shall thereafter be adjusted by agreement between the Employer, the Contractor and the Member, at each anniversary of the date on which the Dispute Board Agreement became effective.

If the parties fail to agree on the retainer fee or the daily fee, the appointing entity or official named in the Contract Data shall determine the amount of the fees to be used.

The Member shall submit invoices for payment of the monthly retainer and air fares quarterly in advance. Invoices for other expenses and for daily fees shall be submitted following the conclusion of a site visit or hearing. All invoices shall be accompanied by a brief description of activities performed during the relevant period and shall be addressed to the Contractor.

The Contractor shall pay each of the Member's invoices in full within 56 calendar days after receiving each invoice and shall apply to the Employer (in the Statements under the Contract) for reimbursement of one-half of the amounts of these invoices. The Employer shall then pay the Contractor in accordance with the Contract.

If the Contractor fails to pay to the Member the amount to which he/she is entitled under the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer shall pay the amount due to the Member and any other amount which may be required to maintain the operation of the DB; and without prejudice to the Employer's rights or remedies. In addition to all other rights arising from this default, the Employer shall be entitled to reimbursement of all sums paid in excess of onehalf of these payments, plus all costs of recovering these sums and financing charges calculated at the rate specified in Sub-Clause 14.8 of the Conditions of Contract.

If the Member does not receive payment of the amount due within 70 days after submitting a valid invoice, the Member may (i) suspend his/her services (without notice) until the payment is received, and/or (ii) resign his/her appointment by giving notice under Clause 7.

7. Termination At any time: (i) the Employer and the Contractor may jointly terminate the Dispute Board Agreement by giving 42 days' notice to the Member; or (ii) the Member may resign as provided for in Clause 2.

If the Member fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer and the Contractor may, without prejudice to their other rights, terminate it by notice to the Member. The notice shall take effect when received by the Member.

If the Employer or the Contractor fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Member may, without prejudice to his other rights, terminate it by notice to the Employer and the Contractor. The notice shall take effect when received by them both.

Any such notice, resignation and termination shall be final and binding on the Employer, the Contractor and the Member. However, a notice by the Employer or the Contractor, but not by both, shall be of no effect.

8. Default of the Member and the Member fails to comply with any of his obligations under Clause 4 (a) - (d) above, he shall not be entitled to any fees or expenses hereunder and shall, without prejudice to their other rights, reimburse each of the Employer and the Contractor for any fees and expenses received by the Member and the Other Members (if any), for proceedings or decisions (if any) of the DB which are rendered void or ineffective by the said failure to comply.

Ę

If the Member fails to comply with any of his obligations under Clause 4 (e) - (k) above, he shall not be entitled to any fees or expenses hereunder from the date and to the extent of the noncompliance and shall, without prejudice to their other rights, reimburse each of the Employer and the Contractor for any fees and expenses already received by the Member, for proceedings or decisions (if any) of the DB which are rendered void or ineffective by the said failure to comply.

9. Disputes Any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with this Dispute Board Agreement, or the breach, termination or invalidity thereof, shall be finally settled by institutional arbitration. If no other arbitration institute is agreed, the arbitration shall be conducted under the Rules of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce by one arbitrator appointed in accordance with these Rules of Arbitration.

Annex: Procedural Rules

Unless otherwise agreed by the Employer and the Contractor, the DB shall visit the site at intervals of not more than 140 days, including times of critical construction events, at the request of either the Employer or the Contractor. Unless otherwise agreed by the Employer, the Contractor and the DB, the period between consecutive visits shall not be less than 70 days, except as required to convene a hearing as described below.

ą,

The timing of and agenda for each site visit shall be as agreed jointly by the DB, the Employer and the Contractor, or in the absence of agreement, shall be decided by the DB. The purpose of site visits is to enable the DB to become and remain acquainted with the progress of the Works and of any actual or potential problems or claims, and, as far as reasonable, to endeavour to prevent potential problems or claims from becoming disputes.

Site visits shall be attended by the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer and shall be co-ordinated by the Employer in co-operation with the Contractor. The Employer shall ensure the provision of appropriate conference facilities and secretarial and copying services. At the conclusion of each site visit and before leaving the site, the DB shall prepare a report on its activities during the visit and shall send copies to the Employer and the Contractor.

The Employer and the Contractor shall furnish to the DB one copy of all documents which the DB may request, including Contract documents, progress reports, variation instructions, certificates and other documents pertinent to the performance of the Contract. All communications between the DB and the Employer or the Contractor shall be copied to the other Party. If the DB comprises three persons, the Employer and the Contractor shall send copies of these requested documents and these communications to each of these persons.

If any dispute is referred to the DB in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract, the DB shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 and these Rules. Subject to the time allowed to give notice of a decision and other relevant factors, the DB shall:

- (a) act fairly and impartially as between the Employer and the Contractor, giving each of them a reasonable opportunity of putting his case and responding to the other's case, and
- (b) adopt procedures suitable to the dispute, avoiding unnecessary delay or expense.

The DB may conduct a hearing on the dispute, in which event it will decide on the date and place for the hearing and may request that written documentation and arguments from the Employer and the Contractor be presented to it prior to or at the hearing.

Except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Employer and the Contractor, the DB shall have power to adopt an inquisitorial procedure, to refuse admission to hearings or audience at hearings to any persons other than representatives of the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer, and to proceed in the absence of any party who the DB is satisfied received notice of the hearing; but shall have discretion to decide whether and to what extent this power may be exercised.

The Employer and the Contractor empower the DB, among other things, to:

(a) establish the procedure to be applied in deciding a dispute,

(b) decide upon the DB's own jurisdiction, and as to the scope of any dispute referred to it,

- (c) conduct any hearing as it thinks fit, not being bound by any rules or procedures other than those contained in the Contract and these Rules,
- (d) take the initiative in ascertaining the facts and matters required for a decision,
- (e) make use of its own specialist knowledge, if any,

- (f) decide upon the payment of financing charges in accordance with the Contract,
- (g) decide upon any provisional relief such as interim or conservatory measures, and
- (h) open up, review and revise any certificate, decision, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, relevant to the dispute.

The DB shall not express any opinions during any hearing concerning the merits of any arguments advanced by the Parties. Thereafter, the DB shall make and give its decision in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4, or as otherwise agreed by the Employer and the Contractor in writing. If the DB comprises three persons:

- (a) it shall convene in private after a hearing, in order to have discussions and prepare its decision;
- (b) it shall endeavour to reach a unanimous decision: if this proves impossible the applicable decision shall be made by a majority of the Members, who may require the minority Member to prepare a written report for submission to the Employer and the Contractor; and
- (c) if a Member fails to attend a meeting or hearing, or to fulfil any required function, the other two Members may nevertheless proceed to make a decision, unless:
 - (i) either the Employer or the Contractor does not agree that they do so, or
 - (ii) the absent Member is the chairman and he/she instructs the other Members not to make a decision.

, , .

.

.

(42)

Issued to Mr. / M/S_____

Vide DR. No:_____Dated ___/ /2015

EXECUTIVE ENGINEER MACHINERY MAINTENANCE DIVISION KHAIRPUR @ SHIKARPUR

BID DOCUMENTS

FOR

W/R OF ROAD FROM INDUS HIGHWAY TO MAGSI VIA KARAMPUR MILE 0/0-12/0 (19.30 KMS)

BID DOCUMENTS ARE PLACED IN THE FOLLOWING FOLDERS

VOLUME IA: TECHNICAL BID

4 . . .

- 1) INVITATION FOR BID
- 2) INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS
- 3) BIDDING DATA
- 4) FORM OF BID AND APPENDICES TO BID
- 5) CONTRACT FORMS
- 6) GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT
- 7) SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

VOLUME II: DRAWINGS

VOLUME III: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

- P WD Specifications
- National Highway Authority (NHA) General Specifications (Dec 1998)
- Bidders are instructed to purchase the Specifications from the source of origin

TABLE OF CONTENTS

2

.

| CONTENTS INVITATION FOR BIDS | | Page No. |
|---------------------------------|---|-------------|
| | | 4 |
| IN | STRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS | 6 |
| A. | General | |
| А, | General | |
| | IB.1 Scope of Bid | 7 |
| | IB.2 Source of Funds | 7 |
| | IB.3 Eligible Bidders | 7 |
| | IB.4 One Bid Per Bidder IB.5 Cost of Bidding | 8 |
| | IB.6 Site Visit | 8 |
| | | 0 |
| B | Bidding Documents | |
| | IB.7 Contents of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| | IB.8 Clarification of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| | IB.9 Amendment of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| C. | Preparation of Bids | |
| | IB.10. Language of Bid | 10 |
| | IB.11 Documents Accompanying the Bid | 10 |
| | IB.12 Bid Prices | 11 |
| | IB.13 Currencies of Bid and Payment | 12 |
| | IB.14 Bid Validity | 12 |
| | IB.15 Bid Security IB.16 Alternate Proposals by Bidder | 13 13 |
| | IB.17 Pre-Bid Meeting | 13 |
| | IB.18 Format and Signing of Bid | 14 |
| D | Submission of Bids | |
| | IB.19 Sealing and Marking of Bids | 15 |
| | IB.20 Deadline for Submission of Bids | 15 |
| | IB.21 Late Bids | 16 |

| IB.22 Modification, | Substitution and With | drawal of Bids | |
|---------------------|-----------------------|----------------|--|
INVITATION FOR BIDS

NOTICE INVITING TENDERS

Date: 13/03/2015

Provincial Government Funds: ADP No. 2455 (2014-15)

Bid Reference No:TC/G-55/272

Refer Invitation for Tenders issued by Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

•

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

A. GENERAL

IB.1 Scope of Bid

- 1.1 Procuring agency as defined in the bidding data hereinafter called "the procuring agency" wishes to receive bids for the construction and completion of works as described in these bidding documents, and summarized in the bidding data hereinafter referred to as the "Works".
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the works within the time specified in Appendix-A to Bid.

IB.2 Source of Funds

2.1 Procuring agency has received/allocated/] applied for loan/grant/ Federal/ Provincial/Local Government funds from the source(s) indicated in the bidding data in various currencies towards the cost of the project /scheme specified in the bidding data, and it is intended that part of the proceeds of this loan/grant/funds will be applied to eligible payments under the contract for which these bidding documents are issued.

1B.3 Eligible Bidders

3.1 This Invitation for Bids is open to all interested bidders who are eligible under provisions of Sindh Public Procurement Rules as mentioned below and the criteria given in the Notice Inviting Tender (NIT)/ Bidding Document.

Firms and individuals, national are allowed to bid, for the project. Any conditions for participation shall be limited to those that are essential to ensure the bidder's capability to fulfill the contract in question.

- (a) Bidders may be excluded if;
 - a firm is blacklisted/ debarred by the procuring agency and the matter has been reported to the Authority, subject to Rule 30 of Sindh Public Procurement Rules 2010.
- (b) Government-owned enterprises or institutions may participate only if they can establish that they are;
 - (i) legally and financially autonomous, and
 - (ii) operate under commercial law.

Provided that where government-owned universities or research centers in the country are of a unique and exceptional nature, and their participation is critical to project implementation, they may be allowed to participate; and

Bidders shall include all those contractors who are registered or incorporated in Pakistan, irrespective of the nationality of their owners and professional staff, or

- (c) Bidders are:-
 - (i) registered with Pakistan Engineering Council in particular category and discipline,
 - (ii) registered with relevant tax authorities (income/sales tax, wherever applicable)

IB.4 One Bid per Bidder

4.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid either by himself, or as a partner in a joint venture. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid (other than alternatives pursuant to Clause IB.16) will be disqualified.

IB.5 Cost of Bidding

5.1 The bidders shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of their respective bids, and the procuring agency will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

IB.6 Site Visit

- 6.1 The bidders are advised to visit and examine the site of works and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for construction of the works. All cost in this respect shall be at the bidder's own expense.
- 6.2 The bidders and any of their personnel or agents will be granted permission by the procuring agency to enter upon his premises and lands for the purpose of such inspection, but only upon the express condition that the bidders, their personnel and agents, will release and indemnify the procuring agency, his personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property and any other loss, damage, costs and expenses incurred as a result of such inspection.

B. BIDDING DOCUMENTS

IB.7 Contents of Bidding Documents (SSP RULE 21)

- 7.1 The bidding documents, in addition to invitation for bids, are those stated below and should be read in conjunction with any addenda issued in accordance with Clause IB.9.
 - a. Instructions to Bidders.
 - b. Bidding Data.
 - c. General Conditions of Contract, Part-I (GCC).
 - d. Special Conditions of Contract, Part-II (SCC)
 - e. Specifications.
 - f. Form of Bid and Appendices to Bid.
 - g. Bill of Quantities (Appendix-D to Bid).
 - h. Form of Bid Security.
 - i. Form of Contract Agreement.
 - j. Forms of Performance Security, Mobilization Advance Guarantee, Integrity Pact and Indenture bond for secured advance.
 - k. Drawings.
- 7.2 The bidders are expected to examine carefully the contents of all the above documents. Failure to comply with the requirements of bid submission will be at the bidder's own risk. Pursuant to Clause IB.26, bids which are not substantially responsive to the requirements of the BD will be rejected.

IB.8 Clarification of Bidding Documents (SSP RULE 23(1)):

Any interested bidder requiring any clarification(s) in respect of the bidding documents may notify the procuring agency in writing at the procuring agency's address indicated in the Invitation for Bids/NIT. Procuring agency will respond to any request for clarification provided they are received at least five calendar days prior to the date of opening of bid.

Provided that any clarification in response to query by any bidder; shall be communicated to all parties who have obtained bidding documents.

IB.9 Addendum/Modification of Bidding Documents:

- 9.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the procuring agency may, for any reason, whether at his own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a interested bidder, modify the bidding documents by issuing addendum.
- 9.2 Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the bidding documents pursuant to subclause IB 7.1 hereof and shall be communicated in writing to all bidders. Interested bidders shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in writing to the procuring agency.
- 9.3 To afford bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the procuring agency may extend the deadline for submission of bids in accordance with IB.20

C. PREPARATION OF BIDS

IB.10 Language of Bid

10.1 The bid and all correspondence and documents related to the bid exchanged by a bidder and the procuring agency shall be in the language stipulated in the bidding data and Special Conditions of the Contract. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the bidders may be in any other language provided the same are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant parts in the bid language, in which case, for purposes of evaluation of the bid, the translation in bid language shall prevail.

IB.11 Documents Accompanying the Bid

- 11.1 Each bidder shall:
 - (a) submit a written authorization on the letterhead of the bidding firm, authorizing the signatory of the bid to act for and on behalf of the bidder;
 - (b) update the information indicated and listed in the bidding data and previously submitted with the application for prequalification, and continue to meet the minimum criteria set out in the prequalification documents, which as a minimum, would include the following:
 - (i) Evidence of access to financial resources along with average annual construction turnover;
 - (ii) Financial predictions for the current year and the following two years, including the effect of known commitments;
 - (iii) Work commitments since prequalification;
 - (iv) Current litigation information; and
 - (v) Availability of critical equipment.

And

(c) furnish a technical proposal taking into account the various Appendices to Bid specially the following:

Appendix-E to Bid Proposed Construction Schedule

Appendix-F to Bid Method of Performing the Work

Appendix-G to Bid List of Major Equipment

Appendix-K to Bid Organization Chart for Supervisory Staff

and other pertinent information such as mobilization programme etc;

11.2 Bids submitted by a joint venture of two (2) or more firms shall comply with the following requirements:

- (a) one of the joint venture partners shall be nominated as being in charge; and this authorization shall be evidenced by submitting a power of attorney signed by legally authorized signatories of all the joint venture partners;
- (b) the bid, and in case of a successful bid, the Form of Contract Agreement shall be signed by the authorized partner so as to be legally binding on all partners;
- (c) the partner-in-charge shall always be duly authorized to deal with the procuring agency regarding all matters related with and/or incidental to the execution of works as per the terms and Conditions of Contract and in this regard to incur any and all liabilities, receive instructions, give binding undertakings and receive payments on behalf of the joint venture;
- (d) all partners of the joint venture shall at all times and under all circumstances be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the contract in accordance with the contract terms and a statement to this effect shall be included in the authorization mentioned under Sub-Para (a) above as well as in the Form of Bid and in the Form of Contract Agreement (in case of a successful bid);
- (e) a copy of the agreement entered into by the joint venture partners shall be submitted with the bid stating the conditions under which it will function, its period of duration, the persons authorized to represent and obligate it and which persons will be directly responsible for due performance of the contract and can give valid receipts on behalf of the joint venture, the proportionate participation of the several firms forming the joint venture, and any other information necessary to permit a full appraisal of its functioning. No amendments / modifications whatsoever in the joint venture agreement shall be agreed to between the joint venture partners without prior written consent of the procuring agency;
- (f) submission of an alternative Letter of Intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement shall be mandatory.
- 11.5 Bidders shall also submit proposals of work methods and schedule, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the bidders" proposals to meet the technical specifications and the completion time referred to sub- clause IB 1.2 hereof.

IB.12 Bid Prices

- 12.1 Unless stated otherwise in the bidding documents, the contract shall be for the whole of the works as described in IB 1.1 hereof, based on the unit rates or prices submitted by the bidder or percentage quoted above or below on the rates of Composite Schedule of Rates (CSR), as the case may be.
- 12.2 The bidders shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the works described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by a bidder will not be paid for by the procuring agency when executed and shall be deemed to be covered by rates and prices for other items in the Bill of Quantities. In case of Composite Schedule of Rates, if the bidder fails to mention the percentage above or below, it shall be deemed to be at par with the rates of Composite Schedule of Rates.

12.3 The bid price submitted by the contractor shall include all rates and prices including the taxes. All duties, taxes and other levies payable by the contractor under the contract, or for any other cause during the currency of the execution of the work or otherwise specified in the contract as on the date seven days prior to the deadline for submission of bids.

Additional / reduced duties, taxes and levies due to subsequent additions or changes in legislation shall be reimbursed / deducted as per Sub-Clause 13.7 of the General Conditions of Contract Part-I.

12.4 The rates and prices quoted by the bidders are subject to adjustment during the performance of the contract in accordance with the provisions of Clause 13.7of GCC. The bidders shall furnish the prescribed information for the price adjustment formulae in Appendix-C to Bid, and shall submit with their bids such other supporting information as required under the said Clause. Adjustment in prices quoted by bidders shall be allowed as per Sub-Para 4(ii) of Section C of Instructions to bidders and bidding data.

IB.13 Currencies of Bid and Payment

- 13.1 The unit rates and the prices shall be quoted by the bidder entirely in Pak rupees. A bidder expecting to incur expenditures in other currencies for inputs to the works supplied from outside the procuring agency's country (referred to as the "Foreign Currency Requirements") shall indicate the same in Appendix-B to Bid. The proportion of the bid price (excluding Provisional Sums) needed by him for the payment of such Foreign Currency Requirements either (i) entirely in the currency of the bidder's home country or, (ii) at the bidder's option, entirely in Pak rupees provided always that a bidder expecting to incur expenditures in a currency or currencies other than those stated in (i) and (ii) above for a portion of the foreign currency requirements, and wishing to be paid accordingly, shall indicate the respective portions in the bid.
- 13.2 The rates of exchange to be used by the bidder for currency conversion shall be the selling rates published and authorized by the State Bank of Pakistan prevailing on the date, 07 (seven) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. For the purpose of payments, the exchange rates used in bid preparation shall apply for the duration of the contract.

IB.14 Bid Validity

- 14.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period stipulated in the bidding data from the date of opening of bid specified in clause IB.23.
- 14.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to expiry of the original, the procuring agency may request the bidders to extend the period of validity for a specified additional period, which shall not be for more than one third of the original period of bid validity. The request and the responses thereto, shall be made in writing. A bidder may refuse the request without the forfeiture of the bid security. In case, a bidder agreed to the request, shall not be required or permitted to modify the bid, but will be required to extend the validity of the bid security for the period of the extension, and in compliance with Clause IB.15 in all respects.

IB.15 Bid Security

- 15. Each bidder shall furnish, as part of the bid, a bid security in the amount stipulated in the bidding data in Pak Rupees or an equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.
- 15.2 The bid security shall be at the option of the bidder, in the form of deposit at call, Pay order or a bank guarantee issued by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or from a foreign bank duly counter guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan in favour of the procuring agency, which should commensurate with the bid validity period. The bank guarantee for bid security shall be acceptable in the manner as provided at Annexure BS-1
- 15.3 Any bid not accompanied by an acceptable bid security shall be rejected by the procuring agency as non-responsive.
- 15.4 Bid security shall be released to the unsuccessful bidders once the contract has been signed with the successful bidder or the validity period has expired.
- 15.5 The bid security of the successful bidder shall be returned when the bidder has furnished the required Performance Security and signed the Contract Agreement.
- 15.6 The bid security may be forfeited:
 - (a) if the bidder withdraws his bid except as provided in sub- clause IB 22.1;
 - (b) if the bidder does not accept the correction of his bid price pursuant to subclause IB 27.2 hereof; or
 - (c) In the case of successful bidder, if he fails within the specified time limit to:
 - (i) furnish the required Performance Security; or
 - (ii) sign the Contract Agreement.

IB.16 Alternate Proposals/Bids

- 16.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid either by himself, or as a member of a joint venture, until and unless they have been requested or permitted for alternative bid, then he has to purchase separate bidding documents and alternate bid shall be treated as separate bid.
- 16.2 Alternate proposals are allowed only for procurement of works where technical complexity is involved and more than one designs or technical solutions are being offered. Two stage two envelope bidding procedure will be appropriate when alternate proposal is required.
- 16.3 Alternate bid(s) shall contain (a) relevant design calculations; (b) technical specifications; (c) proposed construction methodology; and (d) any other relevant details / conditions, provided that the total sum entered on the Form of Bid shall be that which represents complete compliance with the bidding documents.

IB.17 Pre-Bid Meeting

17.1 Procuring agency may, on his own motion or at the request of any bidder, hold a prebid meeting to clarify issues and to answer any questions on matters related to the bidding documents. The date, time and venue of pre-bid meeting, if convened, shall be communicated to all bidders. All bidders or their authorized representatives shall be invited to attend such a pre-bid meeting at their own expense.

- 17.2 The bidders are requested to submit questions, if any, in writing so as to reach the Procuring agency not later than seven (7) days before the proposed pre-bid meeting.
- 17.3 Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions raised and the replies given, will be transmitted without delay to all bidders. Any modification of the bidding documents listed in sub- clause IB 7.1 hereof, which may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by the procuring agency exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to Clause IB.9 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting.
- 17.4 Absence at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a bidder.

IB.18 Format and Signing of Bid

- 18.1 Bidders are particularly directed that the amount entered on the Form of Bid shall be for performing the contract strictly in accordance with the bidding documents.
- 18.2 All appendices to bid are to be properly completed and signed.
- 18.3 Alteration is not to be made neither in the form of bid nor in the Appendices thereto except in filling up the blanks as directed. If any such alterations be made or if these instructions be not fully complied with, the bid may be rejected.
- 18.4 Each bidder shall prepare by filling out the forms without alterations and shall provide an original copy along with photocopies as per the requirement of the procuring agency specified in the bidding data. The original as well as copies of the document shall be clearly marked as "ORIGINAL" and "COPY", as the case may be. If there is any discrepancy between original and copy(ies) then the original shall prevail.
- 18.5 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink (in the case of copies, Photostats are also acceptable) and shall be signed by a person(s) duly authorized to sign on behalf of the bidder pursuant to sub- clause IB 11.1(a) hereof. All pages of the bid shall be initialled and stamped by the person(s) signing the bid.
- 18.6 The bid shall contain no alterations, omissions or additions, except to comply with instructions issued by the procuring agency, or as are necessary to correct errors made by the bidder. Such corrections shall be initialled by the person(s) signing the bid.
- 18.7 Bidders shall indicate in the space provided in the Form of Bid their full and proper postal addresses at which notices may be legally served on them and to which all correspondence in connection with their bids and the contract is to be sent.
- 18.8 Bidders should retain a copy of the bidding documents as their file copy.

D. SUBMISSION OF BIDS

IB.19 Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 19.1 Each bidder shall submit his bid as under:
 - (a) ORIGINAL and _____COPIES of the bid shall be separately sealed and put in separate envelopes and marked as such.
 - (b) The envelopes containing the ORIGINAL and COPIES shall be put in one sealed envelope and addressed as given in sub clause IB 19.2 hereof.
- 19.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) be addressed to the procuring agency at the address provided in the bidding data;
 - (b) bear the name and identification number of the contract as defined in the bidding data; and
 - (c) provide a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening, as specified in the bidding data.
- 19.3 In addition to the identification required in sub- clause IB 19.2 hereof, the inner envelope shall indicate the name and postal address of the bidder to enable the bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared "late" pursuant to Clause IB.21
- 19.4 If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, the procuring agency will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.

IB.20 Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 20.1 (a) Bids must be received by the procuring agency at the address specified not later than the time and date stipulated in the bidding data,
 - (b) Bids with charges payable will not be accepted, nor will arrangements be undertaken to collect the bids from any delivery point other than that specified above. Bidders shall bear all expenses incurred in the preparation and delivery of bids. No claims shall be entertained for refund of such expenses,
 - (c) Where delivery of a bid is by mail and the bidder wishes to receive an acknowledgment of receipt of such bid, he shall make a request for such acknowledgment in a separate letter attached to but not included in the sealed bid package,
 - (d) Upon request, acknowledgment of receipt of bids will be provided to those making delivery in person or by messenger.
- 20.2 The Procuring Agency may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for submission of bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with IB 09. In such case, all rights and obligations of the procuring agency and the bidders shall remain the same as mentioned in the original deadline.

IB.21 Late Bids

- (a) any bid received by the procuring agency after the deadline for submission of bids prescribed in to clause IB 20 shall be returned unopened to such bidder.
- (b) delays in the mail, person in transit, or delivery of a bid to the wrong office shall not be accepted as an excuse for failure to deliver a bid at the proper place and time. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to submit the bid in time.

IB.22 Modification, Substitution and Withdrawal of Bids

- 22.1 Any bidder may modify, substitute or withdraw his bid after bid submission provided that the modification, substitution or written notice of withdrawal is received by the procuring agency prior to the deadline for submission of bids.
- 22.2 The modification, substitution, or notice for withdrawal of any bid shall be prepared, sealed, marked and delivered in accordance with the provisions of Clause IB.19 with the outer and inner envelopes additionally marked "MODIFICATION", "SUBSTITUTION" or "WITHDRAWAL" as appropriate.
- 22.3 No bid may be modified by a bidder after the deadline for submission of bids except in accordance with to sub clauses IB 22.1 and IB 27.2.
- 22.4 Withdrawal of a bid during the interval between the deadlines for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid may result in forfeiture of the bid security in pursuance to clause IB 15.

E. BID OPENING AND EVALUATION.

IB.2.3 Bid Opening

- 23.1 Procuring agency will open the bids, including withdrawals, substitution and modifications made pursuant to Clause IB.22, in the presence of bidders" representatives who choose to attend, at the time, date and location stipulated in the bidding data. The bidders or their representatives who are in attendance shall sign an attendance sheet.
- 23.2 Envelopes marked "MODIFICATION", "SUBSTITUTION" or "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out first. Bids for which an acceptable notice of withdrawal has been submitted pursuant to clause IB.22 shall not be opened.
- 23.3 Procuring agency shall read aloud the name of the bidder, total bid price and price of any Alternate Proposal(s), if any, discounts, bid modifications, substitution and withdrawals, the presence or absence of bid security, and such other details as the procuring agency may consider appropriate, and total amount of each bid, and of any alternative bids if they have been requested or permitted, shall be read aloud and recorded when opened.
- 23.4 Procuring Agency shall prepare minutes of the bid opening, including the information disclosed to those present in accordance with the sub-clause IB.23.3.

IB.24 Process to be Confidential. (SPP Rule 53)

Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation and comparison of 24.1bid and recommendations for the award of a contract shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other person not officially concerned with such process before the announcement of bid evaluation report in accordance with the requirements of Rule 45, which states that Procuring agencies shall announce the results of bid evaluation in the form of a report giving reasons for acceptance or rejection of bids. The report shall be hoisted on website of authority and that of procuring agency if it website exists and intimated to all bidders at least seven (7) days prior to the award of contract The announcement to all bidders will include table(s) comprising read out prices, prices, price adjustments made, final evaluated discounted prices and recommendations against all the bids evaluated. Any effort by a bidder to influence the procuring agency's processing of bids or award decisions may result in the rejection of such bidder's bid. Whereas, any bidder feeling aggrieved, may lodge a written complaint as per Rule 31; however mere fact of lodging a complaint shall not warrant suspension of the procurement process.

IB.25 Clarification of Bid (SPP Rule 43)

25.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation and comparison of bids, the procuring agency may, at its discretion, ask any bidder for clarification of the bid, including breakdowns of unit rates. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing but no change in the price or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the procuring agency in the evaluation of the bids in accordance with clause IB 28.

IB.26 Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness

- 26.1 Prior to the detailed evaluation of bids, the procuring agency will determine whether the bidder fulfils all codal requirements of eligibility criteria given in the tender notice such as registration with tax authorities, registration with PEC (where applicable), turnover statement, experience statement, and any other condition mentioned in the NIT and bidding document. If the bidder does not fulfill any of these conditions, it shall not be evaluated further.
- 26.2 Once found to be fulfilling the eligibility criteria, as mentioned in sub- clause 26.1, the bids of eligible bidders will be evaluated for technical responsiveness as per specification and criteria given in the bidding documents. Technical and financial evaluations may be carried out in accordance with single stage-single one envelope, single stage-two envelopes, two stage or two stage-two envelopes bidding procedures, depending on the selection procedure adopted by the procuring agency.
- 26.3 A bid will be considered technically responsive if it (i) has been properly signed; (ii) is accompanied by the required bid security; and (iii) conforms to all the terms, conditions and specifications of the bidding documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (i) which affect in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the works; (ii) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding documents, the procuring agency's rights or the bidder's obligations under the contract; or (iii) adoption/rectification whereof would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.

26.4 If a bid has major deviations to the commercial requirements and technical specifications will be considered technically non responsive. As a general rule, major deviations are those that if accepted, would not fulfil the purposes for which the bid is requested, or would prevent a fair comparison or affect the ranking of the bids that are compliant with the bidding documents.

(A). Major (material) Deviations include:-

- (i) has been not properly signed;
- (ii) is not accompanied by the bid security of required amount and manner;
- (iii) stipulating price adjustment when fixed price bids were called for;
- (iv) failing to respond to specifications;
- (v) failing to comply with Mile-stones/Critical dates provided in Bidding Documents;
- (vi) sub-contracting contrary to the Conditions of Contract specified in Bidding Documents;
- (vii) refusing to bear important responsibilities and liabilities allocated in the Bidding Documents, such as performance guarantees and insurance coverage;
- (viii) taking exception to critical provisions such as applicable law, taxes and duties and dispute resolution procedures;
- (ix) a material deviation or reservation is one :
 - (a) which affect in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the works;
 - (b) adoption/rectification whereof would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.

(B) Minor Deviations

Bids that offer deviations acceptable to the Procuring Agency and which can be assigned a monetary value may be considered substantially responsive at least as to the issue of fairness. This value would however be added as an adjustment for evaluation purposes only during the detailed evaluation process.

26.5 If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the procuring agency, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the non-conforming deviation or reservation.

IB.27 Correction of Errors before Financial Evaluation

- 27.1 Bids determined to be substantially responsive will be checked by the procuring agency for any arithmetic errors. Errors will be corrected by the procuring agency as follows:
 - (a) where there is a discrepancy between the amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will govern; and
 - (b) where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will govern, unless in the opinion of the procuring agency there is an obviously gross misplacement of the decimal point in the unit rate, in which case the line item total as quoted will govern and the unit rate will be corrected.

27.2 The amount stated in the Form of Bid will be adjusted by the procuring agency in accordance with the above procedure for the correction of errors and with the concurrence of the bidders. The amount thus corrected shall be considered as binding upon the bidder. If the bidder does not accept the corrected bid price, his bid will be rejected, and the bid security shall be forfeited in accordance with sub-clause IB 15.6(b) hereof.

IB.28 Financial Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- 28.1 The procuring agency will evaluate and compare only the Bids determined to be substantially responsive in accordance with clause IB 26.
- 28.2 In evaluating the Bids, the procuring agency will determine for each bid the evaluated bid price by adjusting the bid price as follows:
 - (a) making any correction for errors pursuant to clause IB 27;
 - (b) excluding provisional sums (if any), for contingencies in the Summary Bill of Quantities, but including competitively priced Day work; and
 - (c) making an appropriate adjustment for any other acceptable variation or deviation.
- 28.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the conditions of contract, applied over the period of execution of the contract, shall not be taken into account in bid evaluation.
- 28.4 If the bid of the successful bidder is seriously unbalanced in relation to the procuring agency's estimate of the cost of work to be performed under the contract, the procuring agency may require the bidder to produce detailed price analyses for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the construction methods and schedule proposed. After evaluation of the price analyses, the procuring agency may require that the amount of the Performance Security set forth in clause IB.32 be increased at the expense of the successful bidder to a level sufficient to protect the procuring agency against financial loss in the event of default of the successful bidder under the contract.
- 28.5 Bidders may be excluded if involved in "Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices" means either one or any combination of the practices given below SPP Rule2(q);
 - (i) "Coercive Practice" means any impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence the actions of a party to achieve a wrongful gain or to cause a wrongful loss to another party;
 - (ii) "Collusive Practice" means any arrangement between two or more parties to the procurement process or contract execution, designed to achieve with or without the knowledge of the procuring agency to establish prices at artificial, non competitive levels for any wrongful gain;
 - (iii) "Corrupt Practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence the acts of another party for wrongful gain;

- (iv) "Fraudulent Practice" means any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (v) "Obstructive Practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in a procurement process, or affect the execution of a contract or deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements before investigators in order to materially impede an investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or acts intended to materially impede the exercise of inspection and audit rights provided for under the Rules.

28.6 Evaluation Report (SPP Rule 45)

After the completion of evaluation process, as described in clauses IB 27 and IB 28, the procuring agency shall announce the results of bid evaluation in the form of report (available on the website of the authority) giving reasons for acceptance and rejection of bid. The report shall be hoisted on website of the authority and that of procuring agencies if its website exists and intimated to all bidders at least seven (7) days prior to the award of contract.

F. AWARD OF CONTRACT

IB.29 Award (SPP Rule 49)

- 29.1 Subject to clauses IB 30 and IB 34 and provision of the rule: The procuring agency shall award the contract to the bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding documents, and who has offered the lowest evaluated bid, but not necessarily the lowest submitted price, within the original or extended period of bid validity. Provided that such bidder has been determined to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of clause IB 03 and qualify pursuant to subclause IB 29.2.
- 29.2 Procuring agency, at any stage of the bid evaluation, having credible reasons for or having prima facie evidence of any deficiency(ies) in contractor's capacities, may require the contractor to provide information concerning their professional, technical, financial, legal or managerial competence whether already pre-qualified or not for the said project.

Provided, that such qualification shall only be laid down after recording reasons thereof, in writing. They shall form part of the records of that bid evaluation report.

IB.30 Procuring Agency's Right to reject all Bids or Annul/Cancellation the Bidding Process (SPP Rule 25)

Notwithstanding clause IB 29 and provision of the rule: (1) A procuring agency reserves may cancel the bidding process at any time prior to the acceptance of a bid or proposal; (2) The procuring agency shall incur no liability towards bidders solely by

virtue of its invoking sub-rule (1); (3) Intimation of the cancellation of bidding process shall be given promptly to all bidders and bid security shall be returned along with such intimation; (4) The procuring agency shall, upon request by any of the bidders, communicate to such bidder, grounds for cancellation of the bidding process, but is not required to justify such grounds.

IB.31 Notification/Publication of the Award of Contract (SPP Rule 25).

- 31.1 Prior to expiry of the period of bid validity, including extension, prescribed by the procuring agency, the procuring agency shall notify the successful bidder in writing ("Letter of Acceptance") that his bid has been accepted. This letter shall mention the sum which the procuring agency will pay to the contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the works by the contractor as prescribed by the contract (hereinafter and in the conditions of contract called the "Contract Price").
- 31.2 No negotiation with the bidder having evaluated as lowest responsive or any other bidder shall be permitted, however, procuring agency may hold meetings to clarify any item in the bid evaluation report.
- 31.3 The notification of award and its acceptance by the bidder will constitute the formation of the contract, binding the procuring agency and the bidder till signing of the formal Contract Agreement.
- 31.4 Upon furnishing by the successful bidder of a Performance Security and signing of the contract, the procuring agency will promptly notify the name of the successful bidder to all bidders and return their bid securities accordingly.
- 31.5 Within seven days of the award of contract, procuring agency shall publish on the website of the Authority and on its own website, if such a website exists, the results of the bidding process, identify the bid through procurement identifying numbers, and the following information:
 - (1) Evaluation Report;
 - (2) Form of Contract and letter of Award;
 - (3) Bill of Quantities or Schedule of Requirement.

31.6 Debriefing (SPP Rule 51).

- (a) A bidder may ask the procuring agency for reasons for non acceptance of his bid and may request for a debriefing meeting and procuring agency shall give him the reasons for such non acceptance, either in writing or by holding a debriefing meeting with such a bidder.
- (b) The requesting bidder shall bear all the costs of attending such a debriefing.

IB.3? **Performance Security (SPP Rule 39)**

32.1 The successful bidder shall furnish to the procuring agency a Performance Security in the form of pay order or demand draft or bank guarantee, and the amount stipulated in

the bidding data and the Conditions of Contract within a period of 28 days after the receipt of Letter of Acceptance.

- 32.2 Failure of the successful bidder to comply with the requirements of Sub-clause IB.32.1 or clauses IB 33 or IB 35 shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security.
- 32.3 Validity of performance security shall extend at least ninety days beyond the date of completion of contract, or as mentioned in the bidding data to cover defects liability period or maintenance period subject to final acceptance by the procuring agency.

IB.33 Signing of Contract Agreement (SPP Rule 39)

- 33.1 Within 14 days from the date of furnishing of acceptable Performance Security under the Conditions of Contract, the procuring agency will send the successful bidder the Contract Agreement in the form provided in the bidding documents, incorporating all agreements between the parties.
- 33.2 The formal Agreement between the procuring agency and the successful bidder shall be executed within 14 days of the receipt of the Contract Agreement by the successful bidder from the procuring agency.
- 33.3 A procurement contract shall come into force when the procuring agency requires signs contract, the date on which the signatures of both the procuring agency and the successful bidder are affixed to the written contract. Such affixing of signatures shall take place within the time prescribed in the bidding documents.

Provided that the procuring agency may reduce the maximum time limit for signing of contract, as and when required, and shall be mentioned in the bidding documents.

33.4 Stamp Duty.

The formal Agreement between the Procuring Agency and the successful bidder shall be duly stamped at rate of ----% of bid price (updated from time to time) stated in Letter of Acceptance

2IB.34 General Performance of the Bidders

Procuring agency may in case of consistent poor performance of the contractor and his failure to remedy the underperforming contract may take such action as may be deemed appropriate under the circumstances of the case including the rescinding the contract and/or black listing of such contractor and debarring him from participation in future bidding process.

IB.35 Integrity Pact (SPP Rule 89)

The bidder shall sign and stamp the Integrity Pact provided at Appendix-L to the bidding documents for all Provincial/Local Government procurement contracts exceeding Rupees ten million. Failure to provide such Integrity Pact shall make the bidder non-responsive.

IB.36 Instructions not Part of Contract

Bids shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with these Instructions which are provided to assist bidders in preparing their bids, and do not constitute part of the bid or the Contract Documents.

IB.37 Arbitration (SPP Rule 34)

Any dispute that is not amicably resolved shall be finally settled, unless otherwise specified in the Contract, under the Arbitration Act 1940 updated from time to time and would be held anywhere in the Province of Sindh at the discretion of procuring agency.

BIDDING DATA

.

.

Contact/Bidding Data

Instructions to Bidders

Clause Reference

1.1

- Name and address of the procuring agency: Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726 -920181, Fax No. : 0726 -920181.
- 1.2 Name of the Project and Summary of the works:

Name of Project:

W/R of Road from Indus Highway to Magsi via Karampur Mile 0/0-12/0 (19.30 Kms)

Name of Work:

W/R of Road from Indus Highway to Magsi via Karampur Mile 0/0-12/0 (19.30 Kms)

The Works will involve following major activities:

- Excavation in Common Soil,
- Formation of Embankment from roadway and borrow excavation
- Sub-base / Base, Aggregate Base Course, Asphaltic Wearing Course.
- Brick Masonry R.C.C. Slab Culverts, Retaining Wall
- Construction of drainage/erosion control structures
- Construction of slope protection works
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the works within the time specified in Special Stipulations (Appendix-A).
- 2.1 Name of the Funding Source; Funds provided by the Government of Sindh

Allocation for 2014-15 Pak Rs. 100.00 million

- 3. Eligibility conditions for intending participants are as under :
 - i. Registration with Pakistan Engineering Council in the relevant field of specialization of work and to the extent of tender amount of work.
 - ii. Bio data of Engineers, technical staff and other management personals working with the firm.
 - iii. Documentary evidence of works executed/works in progress and certificate of satisfactory completion of works by the employees for the last three years in progress indicating cost of each work and copy of letter.
 - iv. List of machinery and equipment available with firm with documentary evidence.
 - v. Undertaking regarding litigations pending / finalized.
 - vi. Certificates of Bank showing credit worthiness along with Bank statement for last three years.

- vii. Registration with Income Tax Department (NTN Certificate) and copy of CNIC.
- viii. Affidavit to the effect that the firm / contractor have not been black listed previously by any executing agency.
- ix. Affidavit with effect that all documents / particulars / information furnished all true and correct.
- x. In case of firm, list of partners / partnership deed, giving full particulars of directors / proprietors or others connected alongwith power of attorney. In case of being sole proprietors such undertaking on affidavit be furnished.

8.1 Time limit for clarification: The written clarification should reach the addressee of the NIT on any working day but not later than 7 working days prior to last date of bid submission.

10.1 Bid language: Bid language is English

- 11.1(a) The bidder along with letter of authorization shall submit the (i) Registration Certificate with Sindh Revenue Board, Government of Sindh (ii) PEC Registration Certificate for 2014 in category C1 CE01 & CE-02 (iii) NTN Certifiacte (iv) Professional Tax payment. The failure to submit above mentioned documents shall lead to rejection of bid.
- 11.1(b) Deleted
- 11.1(c) Add following The bidder shall submit the detailed CVs of proposed staff as per the requiremnet laid down in Appendix K. It is manadotry for the successful bidder to mobilize the same staff proposed in Appendix K after approval from the Engineer
- 13.1 Bidders to quote entirely in Pak. Rupee The currency of Bid is Pakistan Rupee (PKR). All payment will be made in PKR only
- 13.2 **IB Clause 13.2 is Not applicable**
- 14.1 Period of Bid Validity: Period of Bid Validity shall be 90 days
- 15.1 Amount of Bid Security: The amount of the Bid Security shall be PKR 12.00 million
- 16.1 Alternate Proposals/Bid

Alternative bids is not permitted, Alternative times for completion is not permitted, Alternative technical solutions is not permitted for any part of the Works

17.1 Venue, time, and date of the pre-Bid meeting:

At the office of the Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Date: As per Invitation for Bid

- 18.4 Number of copies of the bid to be completed and returned: Original + One Copy
- 19.2 (a) Procuring Agency's address for the purpose of bid submission: Executive Engineer, Machiner Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur Behind D.C.Office, Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726-920181 Fax No. : 0726-920181
 - (b) Name and Identification Number of the Contract:

W/R of Road from Indus Highway to Magsi via Karampur Mile 0/0-12/0 (19.30 Kms).

20.1 (a) Deadline for submission of bids:

Date: As per Invitation for Bid (13-04-2015). Time: As per Invitation for Bid (01:00 PM)

(b) Venue, time, and date of bid opening:

Venue: Office of the Executive Engineer, Machinery Miaintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Date: As per Opening of Bid (14-04-2015). Time As per Opening of Bid (02:00 P.M).

- 28.4 If the successful bidder failed to submit Performance Security of increased amount within fourteen (14) days of demand by the PA, his bid shall be cancelled and his bid security shall be forfeited.
- 32.1 Standard form and amount of Performance Security acceptable to the procuring agency:

The performance security will be in the form of a "unconditional, irrevocable and acceptable bank guarantee" in the amount of 5% (Five percent) of the Accepted Contract Amount acceptable to the Procuring Agency in the attached format

32.3 Validity of performance security

The Performance Security shall be valid for a period 90 days after the date of issue of defects liability certificate

33.4 Stamp duty

The Contract will be executed on a non-judicial stamp paper of the value @ 0.30% of the contract value. The cost of the stamp duty shall be borne by the successful bidder. [0.30% may vary depending upon the rules applicable at the time of signing the Contract]

1

FORM OF BID AND APPENDICES TO BID

FORM OF BID

| Data, and Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings and Bill of Quantities and Addenda Nos for the execution of the above-named work, we/l, the undersigned, offer to execute and complete the work and remedy any defects therein in conformity with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings, Bill of Quantities and Addenda for the sum of Rs | eference No(Name of Contract/Work) |
|--|---|
| Data, and Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings and Bill of Quantities and Addenda Nos for the execution of the above-named work, we/l, the undersigned, offer to execute and complete the work and remedy any defects therein in conformity with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings, Bill of Quantities and Addenda for the sum of Rs | |
| We/I understand that all the Appendices attached hereto form part of this bid. As security for due performance of the undertakings and obligations of this bid, we/I submit herewith a bid security in the amount of Rupees | above-named work, we/l, the undersigned, offer to execute and complete the work and remedy any defects therein in conformity with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings, Bill of Quantities and Addenda for the sum of Rs |
| As security for due performance of the undertakings and obligations of this bid, we/l submit herewith a bid security in the amount of Rupees | other sum as may be ascertained in accordance with the said conditions. |
| submit herewith a bid security in the amount of Rupees | We/I understand that all the Appendices attached hereto form part of this bid. |
| whole of the works comprised in the contract within the time stated in Appendix-A to Bid. We/I agree to abide by this bid for the period of days from the date fixed for opening the same and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period. Unless and until a formal Agreement is prepared and executed, this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof, shall constitute a binding contract between us. We do hereby declare that the bid is made without any collusion, comparison of figures or arrangement with any other bidder for the works. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any bid you may | (Rs) drawn in your favour or made payable to procuring agency and valid for a period of days beginning from the date, bid is |
| opening the same and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period. Unless and until a formal Agreement is prepared and executed, this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof, shall constitute a binding contract between us. We do hereby declare that the bid is made without any collusion, comparison of figures or arrangement with any other bidder for the works. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any bid you may | We/l undertake, if our bid is accepted, to commence the works and to complete the whole of the works comprised in the contract within the time stated in Appendix-A to. Bid. |
| your written acceptance thereof, shall constitute a binding contract between us. We do hereby declare that the bid is made without any collusion, comparison of figures or arrangement with any other bidder for the works. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any bid you may | We/I agree to abide by this bid for the period of days from the date fixed for opening the same and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period. |
| figures or arrangement with any other bidder for the works. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any bid you may | Unless and until a formal Agreement is prepared and executed, this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof, shall constitute a binding contract between us. |
| We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any bid you may | |
| receive. | We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any bid you may receive. |
| We undertake, if our/my bid is accepted, to execute the Performance Security referred to in Clause 10 of Conditions of Contract for the due performance of the Contract. | We undertake, if our/my bid is accepted, to execute the Performance Security referred to in Clause 10 of Conditions of Contract for the due performance of the Contract. |
| We confirm, if our bid is accepted, that all partners of the joint venture shall be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the Contract and the composition or the (30) | jointly and severally for the execution of the Contract and the composition or the |

constitution of the joint venture shall not be altered without the prior consent of the procuring agency. (Please delete this in case of Bid form a single bidder)

| in the capacity | | duly Dated | authorized this | to | sign day | Bids of | for | and | on | behalf _20 | of |
|---------------------|-----|---------------|-----------------------|------|-------------|------------|-----|-----|----|---------------|--------|
| | Sig | nature: | | | | . | | | | | |
| | | (Name of | Bidder in B (Seal) | lock | . Capit | als) | | | | | |
| Address: | | | | | | • | | | | - | |
| Witr ess: | | | | | | | | | | | |
| Signature: Name: | | _ | | | | | | | | | |
| Address: | | | | | | · | | | | | |
| Occupation: | | | | | | | | | | - | |

Appendix-A to Bid

| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
|----|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|
| 1 | Employer's name and address | 1.1.2.2 & 1.3 | Works & Service Department Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarp, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726-920181 Fax No: 0726-920181 Employer's Representative , Executive Engineer, |
| 2 | Sections | 1.1.5.6 | Not Applicable |
| 3 | Electronic transmission systems | 1.3 | Scanned copy via e-mail and facsimile are acceptable, if the original is received within three days. |
| 4 | Governing Law | 1.4 | The Laws of Islamic Republic of Pakistan. |
| 5 | Ruling language | 1.4 | English |
| 6 | Language for communications | 1.4 | English |
| 7 | Time for access to the Site | 2.1 | Within seven (07) days after Commencement Date |
| 8 | Time for access to the Site | 2.1 | Within seven (07) days after Commencement Date |
| 8 | Amount of Performance Security | 4.2 | The performance security will be in the form of a "unconditional, irrevocable and acceptable bank guarantee" in the amount of 5% (Five percent) of the contract price stated in the Letter of Acceptance. |
| 9 | Subcontract | 4.4 | The aggregate amount of the Works subcontracted shall not exceed 30% of the Contract Price. |
| 10 | Normal working hours | 6.5 | 8 hrs a day and 6 days a week. |
| 11 | Time for Commencement | 8.1 | Within 07 days from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence, this shall be issued within fourteen (14) days after signing of Contract Agreement. |

SPECIAL STIPULATIONS Particular Conditions of Contract- Part A

г

| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
|----|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|---|
| 12 | Time for Completion) | 8.2 | 545 days from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence. |
| 13 | Time for Furnishing Programme | 8.3 | Within 28 days from the date of receipt of Letter of Acceptance. |
| 14 | Revised Programme | 8.3 | Revised Programme to be submitted within 14 days of the Engineer's notice. |
| 15 | Delay damages for the Works | 8.7 & 14.15(b) | 0.1% of the Contract Price per day, and |
| | | | For Interim Delay damages 0.05% of the Contract price per day |
| | | | Also, other charges mentioned in Special/Particular Conditions of Contract |
| 16 | Maximum amount of delay damages | 8.7& | 10% of the final Contract Price & |
| | | 14.15(b) | For Interim Delay damages 5% of the Contract price per day |
| | | | Also, other charges mentioned in Part B, Particular Conditions of Contract |
| 17 | Defects Liability Period | 11.1 | 365 days from the effective date of Taking Over Certificate. |
| 18 | Adjustments for Changes in Cost | 13.8 | As per Appendix C (B) to bid "Price Adjustment". |
| 19 | Advance payment | 14.2 | 10% Percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount payable in PKR: as Mobilization Advance against Bank guarantee. |

| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
|----|--|----------------------------------|--|
| | | | First Instalment: 50% of total Advance Payment shall be made after fulfilling all the requirements provided in Conditions of the Contract. Second Instalment: Remaining 50%, on mobilization of Plant, equipment and other resources at site by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Engineer. |
| 20 | Repayment amortization rate of advance payment | 14.2(b) | From five consequtive Running payment starting from third R.A/Bill in equal instalments including 10% per annum interest |
| 21 | Percentage of Retention | 14.3 | 5% of the amount of Interim/Running Payment Certificate. |
| 22 | Limit of Retention Money | 14.3 | 5% of Contract Price stated in the Letter of Acceptance. |
| 23 | Plant and Materials | 14.5 | Not Applicable |
| 24 | Minimum Amount of Interim Payment Certificates | 14.6 | 3% of the Accepted Contract Amount. |
| 25 | Maximum total liability of the Contractor to the Employer | 17.6 | The product of two (02) times the Accepted Contract Amount |
| 26 | Date by which the Dispute Board (DB) shall be appointed | 20.2 | 28 days after the Commencement date |
| 27 | The DB shall be comprised of | 20.2 | Three Members |
| 28 | List of potential DB sole members | 20.2 | None |
| 29 | Appointment (if not agreed) to be made by | 20.3 | Pakistan Engineering Council |

-

FOREIGN CURRENCY REQUIREMENTS

- 1. The bidder may indicate herein below his requirements of foreign currency (if any), with reference to various inputs to the works.
- Foreign Currency Requirement as percentage of the bid price excluding Provisional Sums _____%.

| | licable |
|-------------------|---------------------------|
| Unit of Currency | Equivalent in Pak. Rupees |
| Australian Dellot | |
| Australian Dollar | •••••••••••••••• |
| Euro | |
| Japanese Yen | |
| U.K. Pound | |
| U.S. Dollars | |
| | ************************ |
| | |

PRICE ADJUSTMENT UNDER CLAUSE 13.8 OF CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

A. Weight ages or coefficients are used for price adjustment.

The source of indices and the weightages or coefficients for use in the adjustment formula under Clause 13.8 shall be as follows:

| Cost Element | Description | Weight ages | Applicable index |
|-----------------|--------------------------|-------------|------------------------------------|
| | <u> </u> | | |
| <u> </u> | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| <u>(i)</u> | Fixed Portion | 0.350 | LIC |
| (ii) | Local Labour | alic | Cederal Bureau of Statistics (FBS) |
| | | | Monthly Statistical Bulletin. |
| (iii) | High Speed Dies (HSD) | AVT | -do- |
| (iv) | Chin Coags | | -do- |
| (v) | Reinforcing Steel | | -do- |
| (vi) | Pre-Stressing Strands | | -do- |
| (vii) | Bitumen | | -do- |
| (viii) | | | |
| ` <u>-</u> | Total | 1.000 | |

Notes:

- 1) Indices for "(ii)" to "(vii)" are taken from the Government of Pakistan Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Statistical Bulletin. The base cost indices or prices shall be those applying 15 days prior to the latest day for submission of bids. Current indices or prices shall be those applying 28 days prior to the last day of the billing period.
- 2) Any fluctuation in the indices or prices of materials other than those given above shall not be subject to adjustment of the Contract Price.
- 3) Fixed portion shown here is for typical road project, procuring agency to determine the weightage of Fixed Portion considering only those cost elements having cost impact of seven (7) percent or more on his specific project.

When Escalation is allowed on the materials only.

Price adjustment on following items shall be allowed:

| Cost Element | Description | Base price | Applicable index |
|--------------|---|------------|--|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| (i) | Cement – in bags (50kg bag) | | GoP, Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Bulletin |
| (ii) | Bitumen 60/70 in Bulk 80/100 in drums | | National Refinery |
| (iii) | Bricks | · · · · | GoP, Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Bulletin |
| | Total Three items. | | |

Notes:

- 1. The base prices shall be those applying 7 days prior to the latest day for submission of bids. Current indices or prices shall be those applying last 28 days prior to the last day of the billing period.
- 2. Any fluctuation in the prices of materials other than those given above shall not be subject to adjustment of the Contract Price.

B

BILL OF QUANTITIES

A Preamble

- 1. The Bill of Quantities shall be read in conjunction with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications and Drawings.
- 2. The quantities given in the Bill of Quantities are estimated and provisional, and are given to provide a common basis for bidding. The basis of payment will be the actual quantities of work executed and measured by the Contractor and verified by the Engineer and valued at the rates and prices entered in the priced Bill of Quantities, where applicable, and otherwise at such rates and prices as the Engineer may fix as per the Contract (in case of item not mentioned in Bill of Quantities).
- 3. The rates and prices entered in the priced Bill of Quantities shall, except insofar as it is otherwise provided under the contract include all costs of contractor's plant, labour, supervision, materials, execution, insurance, profit, taxes and duties, together with all general risks, liabilities and obligations set out or implied in the contract. Furthermore all duties, taxes and other levies payable by the contractor under the contract, or for any other cause, as on the date 14 days prior to deadline for submission of Bids shall be included in the rates and prices and the total bid price submitted by the bidder.
- 4. A rate or price shall be entered against each item in the priced Bill of Quantities, whether quantities are stated or not. The cost of items against which the contractor will have failed to enter a rate or price shall be deemed to be covered by other rates and prices entered in the Bill of Quantities and shall not be paid separately.
- 5. The whole cost of complying with the provisions of the Contract shall be included in the items provided in the priced Bill of Quantities, and where no items are provided, the cost shall be deemed to be distributed among the rates and prices entered for the related items of the works.
- 6. General directions and description of work and materials are not necessarily repeated nor summarised in the Bill of Quantities. References to the relevant sections of the bidding documents shall be made before entering prices against each item in the priced Bill of Quantities.
- 7. Provisional sums included and so designated in the Bill of Quantities shall be expended in whole or in part at the direction and discretion of the Engineer in accordance with sub-clause 13.5 of Part I, General Conditions of Contract.
- 8. The following abbreviations for the units or units of measurement have been used in the bidding documents including BOQ.

Unit

ī

Abbreviations

- Linear Meter LM or Im or M or m
- Square Meter • Sq.m. or SM or sm
- Cubic Meter Cu.m. or CM or cm or Cum or cum Ton
- Ton
- Kilogram Kg or kg
- Per Number •
- Job
- No or Each Job
Name of Work:-

j - -

ÿ.

.

W/R of Road from Indus Highway to Magsi via Karampur Mile 0/0-12/0

| Sr.No: | Description | Schedul "B" Amount | Contractor Qouted Rates | Total Schedule "B" Amount |
|--------|--|-------------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| | Part -A Road Work (Construction / Improvement) | 370,764,927.00 | | |
| | | | Total Part "A" | <u> </u> |
| | Part-B Structure Work | 19,466,336.000 | | |
| | | | Total Part "B" | |
| | Part-C Stone Pitching | 4,033,946.000 | | |
| | | | Total Part "C" | |
| | | G.To A+B | | |
| | Total (to be carried to summary of E Add/Deduct the percentag quoted al of rates. | Bid Price) bove/below on the pri | ices of items based | l on composite sched |

W/R of Road from Indus Highway to Magsi via Karampur Mile 0/0-12/0 BIDDING DOCUMENT FOR WORKS

BILLS OF QUANTITY

(A)

Description and rate of Item bases on composite schedule of Rate PART-A (ROAD WORK)

| Item | Qty's | Description of Item to be | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
|------|-----------|--|----------|--------|---------------------------------------|
| No: | | executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 1 | 146,837 | Excavation in existing berms for widening the road surface i/c cutting with power roller dressing the excavated stuff etc complete. | | %Sft | 772,759.00 |
| 2 | 550,638 | Dismantling of Asphalt, Cutting Road, Base, Sub Base & Dispose of unsuitable Material. | 773.86 | %Sft | 4,261,167.00 |
| 3 | 267,300 | | 1663.75 | %oCft | 444,720.00 |
| 4 | 73,418 | Providing Sand Cushion inclduing supplying and spreading pit or canal sand of approved quality from approved surface of supply to site of work i/c watering and rolling etc complete. Rate includes all costs of material T&P & carriage upto site of works. | | %Cft | 1,086,153.00 |
| 5 | 2,021,647 | Earthwork for road embankment by buildozers i/c ploughing mixing clod breaking dressing and compacting with optimum moisture content lead upto 100' and lift upto 5.0' (in ordinary soil) (compacting upto 95- 100% modified AASHO density). | 10253.72 | %o Cft | 20,729,402.00 |
| 6 | 367,092 | Preparing Sub-Base course by supplying and spreading stone metal 1½ -2" guage of approved quality from approved quarry in required thickness to proper camber and grade i/c hand packing filling voids with 20 Cft: Pit/Canal sand and having 98-100% density as per modified AASHO specification. (Rate i/cs all cost of material T&P & Carriage upto site of work). | 7824.92 | %Cft | 28,724,655.00 |

| lter No | l Otvie | Description of Item to be executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|------------|-----------|---|---------|-------|---------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 7 | 220,255 | Preparing Sub -Base course by supplying and spreading well graded pit or bed run gravel having a limit not greater than 25 and plasticity index not freater than 6 in proper camber and grade i/c watering rolling and compacting in layers, thickness of each compacted layer not exceeding 6" compacted upto 98-100% density as per modified AASHO specification. Rate includes all costs of materials T&P and | 6568 | %Cft | 14,468,353.00 |
| | | carriage upto site of work. | | | |
| 8 | 130,522 | Laying bricks on end edging i/c supplying 9x4½x3" size lst class bricks excavation for laying edging with small side parallel to the road. (Rate i/c all cost of materials T&P and carriage upto to site of work). | 2792.48 | %Rft | 3,644,801.00 |
| 9 | 895 705 | Preparing Base course i/c | 8954.94 | %Cft | 80,209,810.00 |
| | | supplying and spreading stone metal of approved quality from approved quarry properly graded to maximum size of 1½" in required thickness to proper camber and grade i/c supplying and spreading 15 Cft of screening and non-plastic quarry fines filling depressions with stone metal after initial rolling i/c watering and compacting the same so as to achieve 100% density as per modified AASHO specification (This i/cs providing and using templates, camber plates, screen forms as directed) Rate i/cs all cost of material T&P and carriage upto site of work. | | | |
| 10 | 1,321,531 | Providing Two coat of surface dressing on new or existing surface with 30+25=55 lbs: bitumen of 80/100 penetration and 4.0+2.75=6.75 Cft Crush Bajri of 3/8" to 3/4" guage including cleaning the road surface rolling etc complete. Rate includes all costs of materials T&P labour and carriage upto site of work. | 2963.46 | % Cft | 39,163,020.00 |

| Item No: | Qty's | Description of Item to be executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|-------------|-----------|--|---------|------------|----------------|
| | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 11 | 1,321,531 | Laying mechanically to proper line and grade plant mixed asphalt concrete prepared to specification formula according to job mix formula approved by engineer incharge i/c rolling and finsihing to proper line grade level and camber etc complete. Rate i/cs. all costs of material T&P & carriage upto site of work etc complete (2" thick consolidated i/c Prime coat). (N.H.A Specification) | | % Sft | 120,565,916.00 |
| 12 | | Earthwork for road embankment by buldozer i/c ploughing mixing clod breaking dressing & compacting with optimum moisture content lead upto 100' & lift upto 5' in all types of soil except rock. (85% Compacted). | 7723.95 | %oCft | 56,694,171.00 |
| | | | Total : | | 370,764,927.00 |
| | Above / | Below in Schedule "B" | | Rs. Rs. | |

(-)

Diff: cost of Bitumen (B)

G.Total (A+B)

Total Amount in words (A+B)

checked.

*

15,478,566.00

Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur

Rs.

Rs.

W/R of Road from Indus Highway to Magsi via Karampur Mile 0/0-12/0 BIDDING DOCUMENT FOR WORKS

BILLS OF QUANTITY

(A)

Description and rate of Item bases on composite schedule of Rate PART-B (STRUCTURE WORK)

| Item No: | Qty's | Description of Item to be executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|-------------|--------|---|----------|---------|---------------|
| | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 1 | 80,850 | Excavation in foundation of building bridge & othher structure i/c dag belling dressing, refilling around the structure with excavated earth watering & ramming lead upon one chain & lift up to 5' (in ordinary soil). | | P.%oCft | 256,800.00 |
| 2 | 32,028 | Cement concrete bricks or stone ballast in cement sand mortar ratio 1:4:8. | -,+ | P.% Cft | 3,015,846.00 |
| 3 | | Pacca brick work in foundation of plinth in cement sand mortar ratio 1:4. | | P.% Cft | 10,316,164.00 |
| 4 | 4113 | Cement concrete plain i/c placing compacting curing finishing etc complete i/c screening and washing of stone aggregate without shuttering ratio 1:2:4. | | P.% Cft | 593,475.00 |
| 5 | 47,032 | Cement plaster 1:3 up to 20' height 1/2" thick. | 2,344.59 | P.% Sft | 1,102,708.00 |
| 6 | | Errection and removal of centering for R.C.C. or plain work with partal wood. | | | 68,803.00 |
| 7 | | Dismentalling of Rcc Work | 5,445.00 | P.% Cft | 57,064.00 |
| 8 | | Fabrication of mild steel reinforcement cement concrete i/c cutting binding laying in position making joints and fastening of i/c costs of binding wire also removal of rust from bars. | 4,820.20 | P.Cwt | 875,638.00 |

decked.

| ltem No: | Qty's | Description of Item to be executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|-------------|---------|---|---------|-------|---------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 9 | 3,676.0 | Reinforced cement concrete work i/c all labour and material except the cost of steel RCC work and its labour for bending and binding which will be paid separately. This rate also i/cs all kinds of forms moulds: lifting shuttering curring rendering and finishing the exposed surface (including screening and washing of shingle. (a) R.C.C. work in roof slab, beams columns rafts, lintels and other structural member laid in situ or precast laid in position complete in all respects ratio 1:2:4 90 lbs: cement 2 Cft sand 4 Cft: shingle 1/8 to ½ quage | | P.Cft | 1,238,812.00 |
| 10 | 3,400.0 | Construction of standard open drains cunette block of cement concrete (1:2:4) in situ to the design profile i/c cost of mould as per drawing i/c applying floating cost of cement 1/32" thick to the exposed face finished smooth curing etc complete as per de | | P.Rft | 1,941,026.00 |
| | | | Total : | | 19,466,336.00 |

_____Above / Below in Schedule "B"

Rs.

Rş.

本

Total Amount in words (A+B)

Z 1

•

checked

Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur

W/R of Road from Indus Highway to Magsi via Karampur Mile 0/0-12/0 BIDDING DOCUMENT FOR WORKS

BILLS OF QUANTITY

(A)

Description and rate of Item bases on composite schedule of Rate

PART-C STONE PITCHING

| Item No: | Qty's | Description of Item to be executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|-------------|--------|--|---------|---------|--------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 1 | 52,800 | Earth work in excavation undressed lead up to single tharow of Kassi phawar or shaved (in ordinary soil) | | P.%oCft | 127,776.00 |
| 2 | | Stone filling dry hand packing & filling behind retaining walls or pitching and apron. | 2684.00 | P.% Cft | 1,417,152.00 |
| 3 | 35,640 | Stone pitching i/c sub base with hammer dressing stone on surface lain in course i/c carriage of material with 3 chain. | 5277 63 | P.% Cft | 1,916,587.00 |
| 4 | 32,560 | Pointing Flush on Stone Work. | 1758.08 | P.% Sft | 572,431.00 |
| <u></u> | | | Total : | | 4,033,946.00 |

____Above / Below in Schedule "B"

.

(+) Rs.

Rs.

G.Total (A+B)

Total Amount in words (A+B)

factlyed

Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur

Appendix-D to Bid

BILL OF QUANTITIES

C. **Day work Schedule**

General

1. Reference is made to Sub-Clause 13.6 of the General Conditions of Contract. Work shall not be executed on a day work basis except by written order of the Engineer. Bidders shall enter basic rates for day work items in the Schedules, which rates shall apply to any quantity of day work ordered by the Engineer. Nominal quantities have been indicated against each item of day work, and the extended total for day work shall be carried forward to the bid price.

Day work Labour



- 2. actual time of chase of about directly doing the day work ordered by the Engineer and for which hey are competent to perform will be measured excluding meal breaks and rest periods. The time of gangers (charge hands) actually doing work with the gang will also be measured but not the time of foreman or other supervisory personnel.
- 3. The contractor shall be entitled to payment in respect of the total time that labour is employed on day work, calculated at the basic rates entered by him in the Schedule of day work Rates for labour together with an additional percentage, payment on basic rates representing the contractor's profit, overheads, etc., as described below:
 - a) the basic rates for labour shall cover all direct costs to the contractor, including (but not limited to) the amount of wages paid to such labour, transportation time, overtime, subsistence allowances and any sums paid to or on behalf of such labour for social benefits in accordance with Pakistan law. The basic rates will be payable in local currency only; and
 - b) the additional percentage payment to be quoted by the bidder and applied to costs incurred under (a) above shall be deemed to cover the contractor's profit, overheads, superintendence, liabilities and insurances and allowances to labour timekeeping and clerical and office work; the use of consumable stores, water, lighting and power; the use and repair of staging, scaffolding, workshops and stores, portable power tools, manual plant and tools; supervision by the contractor's staff, foremen and other supervisory personnel; and charges incidental to the foregoing.

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

I. Labour

.

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs) in Figure | Rate (Rs) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|--------------|---|-----------------------|---------------------|---------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | -ie | 6 | 7 |
| | 2 Labour Foremen | | -1iC ² | D | | |
| D1 01 | Labour | AP | 10 | | | |
| D102 | Foremen POC | Hr | 10 | | | |
| D103 | LTV Driver | Hr | 10 | | | |
| D104 | HTV Operator | Hr | 10 | | | |
| | Allow pe accordance with Paragraph Total for Day work: Labou (Carried forward to Day w | 1 3(b) of Day 1r : | work Sched | | verhead, p | profit, etc, in |

Note: Input of other staff shall be included in overhead of Contractor.

Day work Material

4.

- The contractor shall be entitled to payment in respect of materials used for day work (except for materials for which the cost is included in the percentage addition to labour costs as detailed heretofore), at the basic rates entered by him in the Schedule of Day work Rates for materials together with an additional percentage payment on the basic rates to cover overhead charges and profit, as follows:
 - a) the basic rates for materials shall be calculated on the basis of the invoiced price, freight, insurance, handling expenses, dataget cosses, etc., and shall provide for delivery to store for stockpiling. The site. The basic rates shall be stated in local currency but new out will be made in the currency or currencies expended up a reference of supporting documentation;
 - b) the additional percentage payment shall be quoted by the bidder and applied to the equivalent local currency payments made under Sub-Para(a) above; and
 - c) the cost of hauling materials used on work ordered to be carried out as Day work from the store or stockpile on the site to the place where it is to be use d will be paid in accordance with the terms for Labour and Constructional Plant in this Schedule.

Appendix-D to Bid

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs) in Figure | Rate (Rs) in Words) | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|-------------|---|------------|---------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------------|-----------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 |
| D201 | Fill (earth) of suitable quality | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D202 | Sand for filling | Cum | 5 | | | · · · · · |
| D203 | Sub-Base | Cum | 5 | • | | |
| D204 | Aggregate Base Course | Cum | 5 | -16 | | |
| D205 | Asphalt Base Course | Cum | 5 | P | | |
| D206 | Asphalt Wearing Course | Cum | 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 | | | |
| D207 | Bitumen grade 60/70 | AP | 5 | | | |
| D208 | Bitumen grade 80/100 | Ton | 5 | | | |
| D209 | Cement (SR) in bag | M:Ton | 2 | | | |
| D210 | Cement, ordinary Portland or equivalent in bags | M:Ton | 2 | | | |
| D211 | Fine aggregate for concrete | Cum | 10 | | | |
| D212 | Coarse aggregates for concrete | Cum | 10 | | • • • | |
| D213 | Lean Concrete | Cum | 5 | | † . | |
| D214 | Concrete Class B | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D213 | Grade 60 reinforcing bar | M:Ton | 5 | | | |
| D214 | Traffic Signs, Barricade etc | Each | 5 | · · · | | · · · |
| | Allow percer accordance with Paragraph 4(b) Total for Day work: Materials (Carried forward to Day work S |) of Day w | otal for Cont ork Schedule | | verhead, pro | ofit, etc., in |

II. Materials

.

Day Work Constructional Plant

- 5. The contractor shall be entitled to payments in respect of constructional plant already on site and employed on Day work at the basic rental rates entered by him in the Schedule of Day work Rates for constructional plant. The said rates shall be deemed to include complete allowance for depreciation, interest, indemnity and insurance, repairs, maintenance, supplies, fuel, lubricants, and other consumables, and all overhead, profit and administrative costs related to the use of such equipment. The cost of drivers, operators and assistants will be paid for separately as described under the section on Day work Labour.
- 6. In calculating the payment due to the Contractor for constructional plant employed on Day work, only the actual number of working hours will be upole for payment, except that where applicable and agreed with the property, the travelling time from the part of the site where the constructional plant was located when ordered by the Engineer to be employed on Dax work in the time for return journey thereto shall be included for payment
- 7. The basic rental rates for constructional plant employed on Day work shall be stated in Pakistani Rupees.

Appendix-D to Bid

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

III. Constructional Plant

.

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs.) in Figure | Rate Rs.) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|-------------|--|-----------|---------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | | 5 | 6 |
| _D3(1 | Bulldozer, 200 HP | Hr. | 1 | | 4 | |
| D3(2 | Motor Grader, 140HP | Hr. | 1 | hle | | |
| D3(3 | Vibratory Roller, 10-12 Ton | Hr. | lici | | | |
| D304 | Pneumatic Roller, 18-21 Ton | NP | 1 | able | | |
| D305 | Tandem Roller, at the P | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D305 | Wheel Loader, 2.5 Cum | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D307 | Plate Compactor, 11 HP (230 KG) | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D308 | Dump Truck, 18 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D309 | Dump Truck, 10 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D310 | Excavator, 105 HP | Hr. | | | | |
| D311 | Water Tanker, 10,000 Ltr | Hr. | l | | | |
| D312 | Aggregate Crushing & Screening Plant, 45 Ton/hr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D313 | Asphalt Plant, 120 Ton/hr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D314 | Asphalt Distributor, 3,000 Ltr | Hr. | 1 | | | · · · · · |
| D315 | Asphalt Paver, 145 HP(3-6 m wide) | Hr. | 1 | | | . <u> </u> |
| D316 | Concrete Batching Plant (30 cum/hr0 | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D317 | Wheel Tractor, 80 HP | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D313 | Concrete Transit Mixer, 6 Cum | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D319 | Concrete Vibrator, 5 HP | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D320 | Road Marking Machine, Heavy Duty | Hr. | 1 | · | | |
| D321 | Concrete Mixer | Hr. | 1 | | | |

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs.) in Figure | Rate Rs.) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|--------------|---|------|---------------------|---------------------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------------|
| D322 | Air Compressor, 300 CFM | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D323 | Pneumatic Jack Hammer | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D324 | Crane 25 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D325 | Water Pump, 4" delivery | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D 326 | Concrete Pump | Hr. | 1 | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | |
| D327 | Tractor Trolly | Hr. | 1 | able | 2 | |
| D323 | 1000 – 1300 cc Car | Hr. | plic | | | |
| D329 | Single Cabin | Hir. | 1 | | | |
| D330 | Double Cabin | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| | Total for day work: Constructiona (Carried forward to day work sum | | | | · | |

DAYWORK

Summary (Day work)

<u>ث</u>.

| | | Amount (Rs.) |
|-------|--|--------------|
| (I) | Total for day work: Labour | |
| (II) | Total for day work: Materials | |
| (III) | Total for day work: Constructional Plant | p# |
| | Total for day work (Carried forward to summary page of Bill of Functions) | |
| | "Not APP | |

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

Pursuant to Sub-Clause 8.2 of the General Conditions of Contract, the works shall be completed on or before the date stated in Appendix-A to Bid. The bidder shall provide as Appendix-E to Bid, the Construction Schedule in the bar chart (CPM, PERT or any other to be specified herein) showing the sequence of work items and the period of time during which he proposes to complete each work item in such a manner that his proposed programme for completion of the whole of the works may meet procuring agency's completion targets in days noted below and counted from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence (Attach sheets as required for the specified form of Construction Schedule):

METHOD OF PERFORMING THE WORK

[The bidder is required to submit a narrative outlining the method of performing the work. The narrative should indicate in detail and include but not be limited to:

- 1. Organization Chart indicating head office and field office personnel involved in management and supervision, engineering, equipment maintenance and purchasing.
- 2. Mobilization at site, the type of facilities including personnel accommodation, office accommodation, provision for maintenance and for storage, communications, security and other services to be used.
- 3. The method of executing the works, the procedures for installation of equipment and machinery and transportation of equipment and materials to the site.

Safety Plan

The Bidder is required to submit an outline Construction Safety and Health Plan for this particular Project. The outline Safety and Health Plan shall be in accordance with the requirements of relevant decrees and/or bye laws governing Occupational Safety and Health Programme in the construction industry being implemented in the Islamic Republic of Pakistan, and shall cover the following topics:

- 1. Organizational structure for handling all Safety and Health Matters
- 2. Composition of the Contractor's Construction Safety and Health Committee
- 3. Specific Safety Policies which the Contractor will undertake to observe and maintain
- 4. Provision of Protective Equipment
- 5. Safety Personnel
- 6. Emergency Occupational Health Personnel and Facilities
- 7. Worker's Welfare Facilities
- 8. Emergency Procedures

Award of the Contract to the Bidder shall not be deemed to mean that the outline Construction Safety and Health Plan is considered acceptable, and the Engineer shall be at liberty to instruct the Contractor to implement such safety and health procedures as he may deem necessary.

LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT - RELATED ITEMS

[The bidder will provide on Sheet 2 of this Appendix a list of all major equipment and related items, under separate heading for items owned, to be purchased or to be arranged on lease by him to mobilize at site to carry out the works. The information shall include make, type, capacity, and anticipated period of utilization for all equipment which shall be in sufficient detail to demonstrate fully that the equipment will meet all requirements of the Specifications.]

| Eq | uipment Type and Characteristics | Minimum Number required | Proposed by the Bidder |
|----|--|----------------------------|---------------------------|
| 1 | Bulldozer (D6 and D8) | 2 | |
| 2 | Motor Grader (140 hp) | 4 | |
| 3 | Vibratory Roller (10 – 12 Ton) | 4 | |
| 4 | Pneumatic Tyre Roller (18-21 Ton) | 3 | |
| 5 | Tandem Roller (8 -12 Ton) | 2 | |
| 6 | Wheel Loader (2.5 Cum) | 4 | |
| 7 | Plate Compactor | 2 | |
| 8 | Dump Truck (10 to 18 Ton) | 18 | |
| 9 | Excavator | 4 | |
| 10 | Water Bowzer (10,000 ltr) | 4 | |
| 11 | Asphalt Plant (120 ton/hr) | l | |
| 12 | Asphalt Distributor (3000 ltr) | 1 | |
| 14 | Asphalt Paver (145 hp, 3-6m wide) | 2 | |
| 16 | Concrete Batching Plant (30 cum/hr) | l | |
| 17 | Concrete Transit Mixer (6 cum) | 2 | |
| 18 | Concrete Mixer (3 cum) | 2 | |
| 19 | Road Marking Machine | 1 | |
| 20 | Concrete Pump | 2 | |
| 21 | Crane (25 Ton) | 2 | |

Appendix-G to Bid

LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT (SAMPLE)

| Owned Purchased or Leased | Description of Unit (Make, Model, Year) | Capacity HP Rating | Condition | Present Location or Source | Date of Delivery at Site | Period of Work on Project |
|-----------------------------------|--|--------------------------|-----------|----------------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 |
| a. Owned | - | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| b. To be Purchased | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| c. To be arranged on Leas:2 | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | - | | |

CONSTRUCTION CAMP AND HOUSING FACILITIES

The Contractor in accordance with Clause 6 of the Conditions of Contract shall provide description of his construction camp's facilities and staff housing requirements.

The contractor shall be responsible for pumps, electrical power, water and electrical distribution systems, and sewerage system including all fittings, pipes and other items necessary for servicing the contractor's construction camp.

The bidder shall list or explain his plans for providing these facilities for the service of the contract as follows:

- 1. Site Preparation (clearing, land preparation, etc.).
- 2. Provision of Services.
 - a) Power (expected power load, etc.).
 - b) Water (required amount and system proposed).
 - c) Sanitation (sewage disposal system, etc.).
- 3. Construction of Facilities
 - a) Contractor's Office. Workshop and Work Areas (areas required and proposed layout, type of construction of buildings, etc.).
 - b) Warehouses and Storage Areas (area required, type of construction and layout).
 - c) Housing and Staff Facilities (Plans for housing for proposed staff, layout, type of construction, etc.).
- 4. Construction Equipment Assembly and Preparation (detailed plans for carrying out this activity).
- 5. Other Items Proposed (Security services, etc.).

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

I/We intend to subcontract the following parts of the work to subcontractors. In my/our opin on, the subcontractors named hereunder are reliable and competent to perform that part of the work for which each is listed.

Enclosed are documentation outlining experience of subcontractors, the curriculum vitae and experience of their key personnel who will be assigned to the contract, equipment to be supplied by them, size, location and type of contracts carried out in the past.

| Part of Works (Give Details) | Subcontractor (With Complete Address) |
|---------------------------------|--|
| 1 | 2 |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

ESTIMATED PROGRESS PAYMENTS (SAMPLE)

Bidder's estimate of the value of work which would be executed by him during each of the periods stated below, based on his Programme of the works and the Rates in the Bill of Quantities, expressed in Pakistani Rupees:

| Quarter/ Year/ Period | Amounts (in million) |
|-----------------------|---------------------------------------|
| 1 | 2 |
| lst Quarter | |
| 2nd Quarter | |
| 3rd Quarter | |
| | |
| | |
| | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| Bid Price | |

Appendix-K to Bid

ORGANIZATION CHART FOR THE SUPERVISORY STAFF AND LABOUR

.

2

.

(To be filled in by the bidder)

Appendix-K to Bid

PROPOSED STAFF

÷

(Detailed CVs of following Key staff shall be provided, it is mandatory. PEC registration Certifiacte and qualification certificates/degrees etc shall also be provided. It will be mandtory for succesful bidder to mobilize same staff as proposed below after the approval of the Engineer. The proposed staff must be employee of the bidder)

| | Qualification & Expereince | Proposed Staff | | | | | | |
|-------------|-------------------------------|----------------|---------------|---------------|------------------|--|--|--|
| Position | | Name | Qualification | Total Exp. | Relevant. Rxp | | | |
| Project | Qualification Msc (Civil) | | | k | • | | | |
| Manager | with 7 years experience (3 | | | | | | | |
| | years relevant experience) | | | | | | | |
| | or BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | | |
| | experience (8 years | | | | | | | |
| | relevant experience) | | | | | | | |
| Planning | BE (Civil) with 10 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineer | experience | | | | | | | |
| Cor tracts | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineer | experience | | | | | | | |
| Stru ctures | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience with 10 years | | | | | | | |
| | relevant experience of | | | | | | | |
| | bridges | | | | | | | |
| Highway | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineer | experience with 10 years | | | | | | | |
| | relevant experience of | | 1 | | | | | |
| | roads | | | | | | | |
| Material | Msc (Geology) with 15 | | | | | | | |
| Engineer | years experience | | | | | | | |
| Site | BE (Civil), with 8 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience, Experience 3 | | | | | | | |
| <u> </u> | bridges assignments, | | | | | | | |
| Site | BE (Civil), with 8 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience, Experience 3 | | | | | | | |
| | highway assignments, | | | | [[| | | |
| Sr. | Diploma in Civil, Number | | | | | | | |
| Surveyors | (01), 10 years experience, | | | | | | | |
| | Experience 5 years | | | | | | | |
| | highway project | | | | | | | |
| Quantity | Diploma in Civil, Number | | | | | | | |
| Surveyor | (01), 10 years experience, | | | | | | | |
| | Experience 5 years | | | | | | | |
| | highway projects | | | | <u> </u> | | | |

Appendix-L to Bid

(INTEGRITY PACT) DECLARATION OF FEES, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE ETC; PAYABLE BY CONTRACTORS.

(FOR CONTRACTS WORTH RS. 10.00 MILLION OR MORE)

Contract No._____ Dated _____ Contract Value: _____ Contract Title: _____

7

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, [name of Contractor] represents and warrants that it has fully declared the brokerage, commission, fees etc. paid or payable to anyone and not given or agreed to give and shall not give or agree to give to anyone within or outside Pakistan either directly or indirectly through any natural or juridical person, including its affiliate, agent, associate, broker, consultant, director, promoter, shareholder, sponsor or subsidiary, any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback, whether described as consultation fee or otherwise, with the object of obtaining or inducing the procurement of a contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from, from Procuring Agency (PA) except that which has been expressly declared pursuant hereto.

[name of Contractor] accepts full responsibility and strict liability that it has made and will make full disclosure of all agreements and arrangements with all persons in respect of or related to the transaction with PA and has not taken any action or will not take any action to circumvent the above declaration, representation or warranty.

[name of Contractor] accepts full responsibility and strict liability for making any false declaration, not making full disclosure, misrepresenting facts or taking any action likely to defeat the purpose of this declaration, representation and warranty. It agrees that any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit obtained or procured as aforesaid shall, without prejudice to any other rights and remedies available to PA under any law, contract or other instrument, be voidable at the option of PA.

Notwithstanding any rights and remedies exercised by PA in this regard, [name of Supplier/Contractor/Consultant] agrees to indemnify PA for any loss or damage incurred by it on account of its corrupt business practices and further pay compensation to PA in an amount equivalent to ten time the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by [name of Contractor] as aforesaid for the purpose of obtaining or inducing the procurement of any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from PA.

[Procuring Agency]

[Contractor]

FORMS

BID SECURITY PERFORMANCE SECURITY CONTRACT AGREEMENT MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE INDENTURE BOND FOR SECURED ADVANCE

BID SECURITY (Bank Guarantee)

| Security Executed on | | |
|---|--|---|
| Name of Surety (Bank) with Address: | (Date) | |
| Name of Principal (Bidder) with Address | (Scheduled Bank in Pakistan) | |
| Penal Sum of Security Rupees. | (Rs. |) |
| Bid Reference No. | ······································ | / |

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that in pursuance of the terms of the bid and at the request of the said Principal (Bidder) we, the Surety above named, are held and firmly bound unto ______

(hereinafter called the 'Procuring Agency') in the sum stated above for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that whereas the Bidder has submitted the accompanying bid dated _____ for Bid No. _____ for ____ (Particulars of B d) to the said Procuring Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has required as a condition for considering said bid that the bidder furnishes a bid security in the above said sum from a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or from a foreign bank duly counter-guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan, to the procuring agency, conditioned as under:

- (1) that the bid security shall remain in force up to and including the date 28 days after the deadline for validity of bids as stated in the Instructions to bidders or as it may be extended by the procuring agency, notice of which extension(s) to the Surety is hereby waived;
- (2) that the bid security of unsuccessful bidders will be returned by the procuring agency after expiry of its validity or upon signing of the Contract Agreement; and
- (3) that in the event of failure of the successful bidder to execute the proposed Contract Agreement for such work and furnish the required Performance Security, the entire said sum be paid immediately to the said procuring agency pursuant to Clause 15.6 of the Instruction to bidders for the successful bidder's failure to perform.

NOW THEREFORE, if the successful bidder shall, within the period specified therefore, on the prescribed form presented to him for signature enter into a formal Contract with the said procuring agency in accordance with his bid as accepted and furnish within twenty eight (28) days of his being requested to do so, a Performance Security with good and sufficient surety, as may be required, upon the form prescribed by the said procuring agency for the faithful performance and proper fulfilment of the said Contract or in the event of non-withdrawal of the said bid within the time specified for its validity then this obligation shall be void and of no effect, but otherwise to remain in full force and effect. PROVIDED THAT the Surety shall forthwith pay the procuring agency, the said sum upon first written demand of the procuring agency (without cavil or argument) and without requiring the procuring agency to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand, notice of which shall be sent by the procuring agency by registered post duly addressed to the Surety at its address given above.

PROVIDED ALSO THAT the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal (Bidder) has duly performed his obligations to sign the Contract Agreement and to furnish the requisite Performance Security within the time stated above, or has defaulted in fulfilling said requirements and the Surety shall pay without objection the said sum upon demand from the procuring agency forthwith and without any reference to the Principal (Bidder) or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounden Surety has executed the instrument under its seal on the date indicated above, the name and seal of the Surety being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative pursuant to authority of its governing body.

SURETY (Bank)

WITNESS:

Corporate Secretary (Seal)

Signature _____

Name _____

Title _____

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

2. _____

Name, Title & Address

FORM OF PERFORMANCE SECURITY (Bank Guarantee)

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that in pursuance of the terms of the bidding documents and above said Letter of Acceptance (hereinafter called the Documents) and at the request of the said Principal we, the Guarantor above named, are held and firmly bound unto the ______ (hereinafter called the

procuring agency) in the penal sum of the amount stated above for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made to the said procuring agency, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

NOW THEREFORE, if the Principal (Contractor) shall well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms and conditions of the said Documents during the original terms of the said Documents and any extensions thereof that may be granted by the procuring agency, with or without notice to the Guarantor, which notice is, hereby, waived and shall also well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants terms and conditions of the Contract and of any and all modifications of said Documents that may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the Guarantor being hereby waived, then, this obligation to be void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue till all requirements of Clause 11, Defects Liability, of Conditions of Contract are fulfilled.

Our total liability under this Guarantee is limited to the sum stated above and it is a condition of any liability attaching to us under this Guarantee that the claim for payment in writing shall be received by us within the validity period of this Guarantee, failing which we shall be discharged of our liability, if any, under this Guarantee.

We, _______ (the Guarantor), waiving all objections and defences under the Contract, do hereby irrevocably and independently guarantee to pay to the procuring agency without delay upon the procuring agency's first written demand without cavil or arguments and without requiring the procuring agency to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand any sum or sums up to the amount stated above, against the procuring agency's written declaration that the Principal has refused or failed to perform the

obligations under the Contract which payment will be effected by the Guarantor to Procuring Agency's designated Bank & Account Number.

PROVIDED ALSO THAT the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal (Contractor) has duly performed his obligations under the Contract or has defaulted in fulfilling said obligations and the Guarantor shall pay without objection any sum or sums up to the amount stated above upon first written demand from the procuring agency forthwith and without any reference to the Principal or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-bounden Guarantor has executed this Instrument under its seal on the date indicated above, the name and corporate seal of the Guarantor being here o affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body.

 Guarantor (Bank)

 Uitness:
 Signature ______

 Signature ______
 Name ______

 Corporate Secretary (Seal)
 Title ______

 2. ______
 Title _______

Name, Title & Address

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

FORM OF CONTRACT AGREEMENT

| THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT | (hereinafter | called | the | "Agreement") | made | on | the |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|--------|-----|---------------------------------------|----------|------|----------|
| day of | <u> </u> | | | (month), 20_ | | | |
| | | | () | nereafter called | the "Pro | ocur | ing |
| Agency") of the one part and | | | _ ` | | ereafter | | <u> </u> |
| the "Contractor") of the other part. | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | |

NOW this Agreement witnesseth-- as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.
- 2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, viz:
 - (a) The Contract Agreement;
 - (b) The Letter of Acceptance;
 - (c) The completed Form of Bid;
 - (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix-A to Bid);
 - (e) The Special Conditions of Contract Part II;
 - (f) The General Conditions Part I;
 - (g) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);
 - (h) The Drawings;
 - (i) Special provisions
 - (j) Addenda to NHA General Specifications 1998
 - (i) The NHA General Specifications
 - (j) The Ppriced Bill of Quantities (Appendix-D to Bid);
 - (k) (any other)
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the procuring agency to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the procuring agency to execute and complete the works and remedy defects therein in conformity and in all respects with the provisions of the contract.
- 4. Procuring agency hereby covenants to pay the contractor, in consideration of the execution and completion of the works as per provisions of the contract, the contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the day, month and year first before written in accordance with their respective laws.

Signature of the Contactor

Signature of Procuring Agency

(Seal)

(Seal)

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the presence of:

Witness:

Witness:

(Name, Title and Address)

(Name, Title and Address)

MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE

Banl. Guarantee No._____ Date _____

WHEREAS ______(hereinafter called the 'Procuring Agency') has entered into a Contract for ______(Particulars of Contract)

with ______ (hereinafter called the "Contractor').

AND WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has agreed to advance to the Contractor, at the Contractor's request, an amount of Rupees ______ (Rs _____) which amount shall be advanced to the Contractor as per provisions of the Contract.

AND WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has asked the Contractor to furnish Guarantee to secure the mobilization advance for the performance of his obligations under the said Contract.

AND WHEREAS,

(Scheduled Bank in Pakistan)

(hereinafter called the "Guarantor") at the request of the Contractor and in consideration of the **procuring agency** agreeing to make the above advance to the Contractor, has agreed to furnish the said Guarantee.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Guarantor hereby guarantees that the Contractor shall use the advance for the purpose of above mentioned Contract and if he fails and commits default in fulfilment of any of his obligations for which the advance payment is made, the Guarantor shall be liable to the procuring agency for payment not exceeding the aforementioned amount.

Notice in writing of any default, of which the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge, on the part of the Contractor, shall be given by the procuring agency to the Guarantor, and on such first written demand, payment shall be made by the Guarantor of all sums then due under this Guarantee without any reference to the Contractor and without any objection.

This Guarantee shall remain in force until the advance is fully adjusted against payments from the Interim Payment Certificates of the Contractor or until whichever is earlier.

(Date)

This Guarantee shall remain valid up to the aforesaid date and shall be null and void after the aforesaid date or earlier if the advance made to the Contractor is fully adjusted against payments from Interim Payment Certificates of the Contractor provided that the Guarantor agrees that the aforesaid period of validity shall be deemed to be extended if on the above mentioned date the advance payment is not fully adjusted.

GUARANTOR

1. Signature _____

2. Name _____

3. Title

WIT NESS

1. _____

Corporate Secretary (Seal)

2

2. ______(Name Title & Address)

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

INDENTURE FOR SECURED ADVANCES

(For use in cases in which is contract is for finished work and the contractor has entered into an agreement for the execution of a certain specified quantity of work in a given time).

This INDENTURE made the day of

WHEREAS by an agreement, dated (hereinafter called the said agreement, the contractor has agreed to perform the under-mentioned works (hereinafter referred to as the said work):-

(Here enter (the description of the works).

Fin R.Form.17.A

On and on such covenants and conditions as are hereinafter contained and the Government has reserved to itself the option of marking any further advance or advances on the security of other materials brought by the Contractor to the site of the said works.

And doth hereby covenant and agree with the Government and declare ay follow :-

- (2) That the materials detailed in the said Running Account Bill (B) which have been offered to and accepted by (he Government as security for the said amount are absolutely by the Contractors own property free from encumbrances of any kind and the Contractor will not make any application for or receive a further advance on the security of materials which are not absolutely his own property and free from encumbrances of any kind and the contractor hereby agrees, at all times, to indemnify and save harmless the Government against all claims whatsoever to any materials in respect of which an advance has been made to him as aforesaid.
- (3) That the said materials detailed in the said Running Account Bill (B) and all other materials on the security of which any further advance or advances may hereafter be made as aforesaid (hereinafter called the said materials) shall be used by the Contractor solely in the execution of the said works in accordance with the directions of the Divisional Officer (hereinafter called the Divisional Officer) and in the terms of the said agreement.
- (4) That the Contractor shall make at his own cost all necessary and adequate arrangement for the proper watch, safe custody and protection against all risks of the said material and that until used in construction as aforesaid the said materials shall remain at the site of the said works in the Contractor's custody and at his own risk and on his own responsibility and shall at all times be open to inspection by (he Divisional Officer or any officer authorized by him. In the event of the said materials of any part (hereof being stolen, destroyed or damaged or becoming deteriorated in a greater degree than is due to reasonable use and wear thereof Contractor will forthwith replace the same with other materials of like qualify or repair and make good the same as required by the Divisional Officer and the materials so brought to replace the said materials so repaired and made good shall also be considered as security for the said amount.
- (5) 'Hurt the said materials shall not on any account be removed from the site of the said works except with the written permission of the Divisional Officer or an officer authorized by him in that behalf
- (6) That the said amount shall be payable in full when or before the Contractor receives payment, from the Government of the price payable to him for the said works under the terms and provisions of the said agreement PROVIDED THAT if any intermediate payments are made to the contractor on account of work done then on the occasion of each such payment the Government will be at liberty to make a recovery from the Contractors Bill for such payment by deducting there from in the value of the said materials (hen actually used in the construction and in respect of which recovery has not been made previously the value for this purpose being determined in respect of each description of material at (he rates at which the amount of the advances made under these presents were calculated.
- (7)if the at Contractor shall at any time make any default in the performance or observation in any respect of any of the terms and provisions of the said agreement or of these presents the total amount of the advance or advances that may still be owing to the Government shall immediately on the happening of such default be repayable by the Contractor to the Government together with interest thereon at twelve percent per annum from the date or respective dates of such advance or advances to the date or repayment and with all costs, charges, damages and expenses incurred by the Government in or for the recovery thereof or the enforcement of this security or otherwise by reason of (he default of the Contractor and any moneys so becoming due and payable shall constitute a debt due from the Contractor to the Government and the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees with the Government to repay and the same respectively to it accordingly.

Once there with the Government may at any time thereafter adopt all or any of following courses as it may deem best ;-

- (a) Seize and utilize the said materials or any part thereof in the completion of the said works on behalf of the Contractor in accordance with the provisions in that behalf contained in the said agreement debiting the Contractor with the actual cost of effecting such completion the amount due in respect of advances under these presents and crediting the Contractor with the value of work done as he had carried it out in accordance with the said agreement and at the rates thereby provided. If the balance is against the Contractor he is to pay the same to the Government on demand.
- (b) Remove and sell by public auction the seized materials or any part thereof and out of the moneys arising from the sale retain all the sums aforesaid repayable to the Government under these presents and pay over the surplus (if any) to the Contractor.
- (c) Deduct all or any part of the moneys owing out of the security deposit or any sum due to the Contractor under the said agreement.
- (9) That except as is expressly provided by the presents interest on the said advance shall not be payable.

(10) That in the event of any conflict between the provisions of these presents and the said agreement the provisions of these presents shall prevail and in the event of any dispute or difference arising over the construction or effect of these presents the settlement of which has not been hereinbefore expressly provided for the same shall be referred to the Superintending Engineer/Executive District Officer/Officer one grade higher to officer signed the agreement Circle whose...... decision shall be final and the provisions of the Arbitration Act 1940 for the time being in force so far as they are applicable shall apply to any such reference.

Singed, sealed and delivered by* In the presence of

SEAL 1st v/itness

a

SEAL 1st witness

2nd witness

2nd witness

Condition of Contract

Federation International des Ingenieurs-Conseils, or FIDIC)

| (a) | Part I - | General Conditions of Contract |
|-------------|----------|--------------------------------|
| A -> | Da at II | General Contract of Contract |

(b) Part II - Special Conditions of Contract

The Conditions of Contract comprise two parts:

(a) l'art I - General Conditions of Contract(b) Part II - Special Conditions of Contract

Over the years, a number of "model" General Conditions of Contract have evolved. The one used in these Standard Bidding Documents was prepared by the International Federation of Consulting Engineers (Federation International des Ingenieurs-Conseils, or FIDIC), and is com nonly known as the FIDIC Conditions of Contract. (The used version is the harmonized Edition March 2006).

The FIDIC Conditions of Contract have been prepared for an ad measurement (unit price or unit rate) type of contract, and cannot be used without major modifications for other types of contract, such as lump sum, turnkey, or target cost contracts.

The standard text of the General Conditions of Contract chosen must be retained intact to facilitate its reading and interpretation by bidders and its review by the procuring agency. Any amendments and additions to the General Conditions, specific to the contract in hand, should be introduced in the Particular Conditions of Contract.

The use of standard conditions of contract for all civil works will ensure comprehensiveness of coverage, better balance of rights or obligations between procuring agency and Contractor, general acceptability of its provisions, and savings in time and cost for bid preparation and review, leading to more economic prices.

The FIDIC Conditions of Contract are copyrighted and may not be copied, faxed, or reproduced. Without taking any responsibility of its being accurate, Pakistan Engineering Council with prior consent of FIDIC Secretariat, has reproduced herein the FIDIC General Conditions of Contract for reference purpose only which cannot be used by the users for preparing their bidding documents. The bidding document may include a purchased copy, the cost of which can be retrieved as part of the selling price of the bidding document. Alternatively, the FIDIC Conditions of Contract can be referred to in the bidding documents, and the bidders are advised to obtain copies directly from FIDIC

Copies of the FIDIC Conditions of Contract can be obtained from:

FIDIC CASE POSTALE, CH-1215 Switzerland;

Tel. +41 22 799 49 00; Fax; +41 22 799 49 01 E-mail: fidic@fidic.org.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT - PART B

| Clause | Title |
|--------|-------|
| | |

| 1.1 | Definitions |
|--------------|---|
| 3.1 | Engineer's Duties and Authority |
| 4.3 | Contractor's Representative |
| 6.10 | Records of Contractor's Personnel and equipment |
| 7.9 | Use of Pakistani Materials and Services |
| 8.1 | Commencement of Works |
| 8.11 | Prolonged Suspension |
| 8.3 | Programme |
| 13.1 | Right to vary |
| 13.3 | Variation procedure |
| 13.8 | Adjustment for changes in cost |
| 14.1 | Contract Price |
| 14.2 | Advance Payment |
| 14.5 | Plants and Materials intended for Works |
| 14.8 | Delayed Payments |
| 15.2 | Termination by Employer/Procuring Agency |
| 15.6 | Corrupt and fraudulent Practices (Integrity Pact). |
| 16.4 | Payment on Termination |
| 17.3 | Employer's/Procuring Agency's Risks |
| 18.1 | General Requirements for Insurance |
| 19.6 | Optional Termination, Payment and release by the Employer |
| 20.1 | Contractor's Claims |
| 20.2 | Appointment of the Dispute Board / Notification of the Committee |
| 20.3 | Failure to agree on the composition of the Dispute Board. |
| 20.4 20.5 | Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision |
| 20.5 | Amicable Settlement. Arbitration |
| 20.8 | |
| 20.7 | Failure to comply with Dispute Board's Decision |
| | Expiry of Dispute Board's Appointment |
| APPENDIX. | General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement PROCEDURAL RULES |
| Annex | PROCEDURAL KULES |
| | |

PART B - SPECIAL /PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

| 1.1 | Definitions |
|---|--|
| 1.1.1.4 | "Form of Bid" is synonymous with "Letter of Tender". |
| 1.1.1.5 | "Bid" is synonymous with "Tender". |
| 1.1.1.8 | "The word 'Tender' is synonymous with 'Bid', and the words 'Bidding' with 'Tendering' and the words 'Appendix to Tender' with 'Appendix to Bid' and words 'Tender Documents' with 'Bid Documents'". |
| 1.1.1.11 | Insert this Sub Clause |
| | "Programme" means the programme to be submitted by the contractor in accordance with Sub-Clause 8.3 and any approved revisions thereto. |
| 1.1.2.2 | "Employer" is synonymous with "Procuring Agency" |
| | Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. |
| 1.1.2.9 | "DB" is synonymous with "Committee" |
| 1.1.3.1 | "Replace 28 days with 7 days" |
| 1.1.3.7 | "Defects Notification Period is synonymous with Defects Liability Period" |
| Sub-Clause 1.5 | Replace sequence of priority of documents with the following: |
| Priority of Documents | (a) the Contract Agreement (if completed), (b) the Letter of Acceptance, (c) the Tender including Letter of Bid, Appendix to Bid, Annexure, and tables excluding Appendix D Bill of Quantities"., (d) the Particular Conditions – Part A, (Special Stipulations Appendix A) (e) the Particular Conditions – Part B (f) the General Conditions (g) the Drawings, (h) the Addenda to Specification (i) Specification, (k) the Appendix D, Bill of Quantities and (l) the Schedules and any other documents forming part of the Contract. |
| Sub-Clause 1.6 Contract Agreement | Replace the word "Employer" with "Contractor" in last line |
| Sub-Clause 1.15 Inspections and Audit by the Bank | This Sub-Clause is deleted entirely. |

| Engineer's Duties and AuthorityProce Repr PakisAuthorityProce Repr PakisThe befor conda) St 11 aub) A c) St d) St e) St f) St g) St i) | <i>Collowing paragraph is added after duties:</i> uring agency shall ensure that the Engineer's esentative/Staff is a professional engineer as defined in the stan Engineering Council Act 1975 (V of 1976) ace part of Clause after the sentence "The following sions shall apply" with following: Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer e taking action under the following Sub Clauses of these titions: ub-Clauses 1.9, 2.1, 4.7, 4.12, 4.24, 7.4, 8.4, 8.5, 8.9, 10.3, 8.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time ad / or additional cost. pproving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. ub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; ub-Clause 10.1: Issuing Taking Over Certificate |
|---|---|
| Sub-Clause 3.1The jEngineer's Duties and AuthorityProce Repr PakisReplay proveThe befor conda) Su11atb) Ac) Sud) Sue) Suf) Sug) Sui)ii) | uring agency shall ensure that the Engineer's esentative/Staff is a professional engineer as defined in the than Engineering Council Act 1975 (V of 1976) ace part of Clause after the sentence "The following sions shall apply" with following: Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer e taking action under the following Sub Clauses of these itions: ub-Clauses 1.9, 2.1, 4.7, 4.12, 4.24, 7.4, 8.4, 8.5, 8.9, 10.3, 8.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time and / or additional cost. pproving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. ub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| Engineer's Duties and AuthorityProce Repr Pakis Repla provi The befor cond a) St 12 au b) A c) St d) St e) St f) St g) St i) | uring agency shall ensure that the Engineer's esentative/Staff is a professional engineer as defined in the than Engineering Council Act 1975 (V of 1976) ace part of Clause after the sentence "The following sions shall apply" with following: Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer e taking action under the following Sub Clauses of these itions: ub-Clauses 1.9, 2.1, 4.7, 4.12, 4.24, 7.4, 8.4, 8.5, 8.9, 10.3, 8.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time and / or additional cost. pproving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. ub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| AuthorityProcess Repr PakisAuthorityReplay providThe befor conda) St 11 aub) A c) St d) St e) St f) St g) St i) | esentative/Staff is a professional engineer as defined in the tran Engineering Council Act 1975 (V of 1976) ace part of Clause after the sentence "The following sions shall apply" with following: Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer e taking action under the following Sub Clauses of these titions: ub-Clauses 1.9, 2.1, 4.7, 4.12, 4.24, 7.4, 8.4, 8.5, 8.9, 10.3, 3.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time and / or additional cost. pproving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. ub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| provi The befor cond a) St 12 au b) A c) St d) St e) St f) St g) St i) ii) | sions shall apply" with following: Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer e taking action under the following Sub Clauses of these itions: ub-Clauses 1.9, 2.1, 4.7, 4.12, 4.24, 7.4, 8.4, 8.5, 8.9, 10.3, 3.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time od / or additional cost. pproving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. ub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| befor cond a) Sr 11 ar b) A c) Sr d) Sr e) Sr f) Sr g) Sr i) ii) | e taking action under the following Sub Clauses of these itions: ub-Clauses 1.9, 2.1, 4.7, 4.12, 4.24, 7.4, 8.4, 8.5, 8.9, 10.3, 3.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time od / or additional cost. pproving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. ub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| | 3.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time of / or additional cost. pproving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. ub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| c) Su d) Su e) Su f) Su g) Su i) ii) | ub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| d) Su e) Su f) Su g) Su i) ii) | |
| e) Su f) Su g) Su i) ii) | b-Clause 10.1: Issuing Taking Over Certificate |
| f) Su g) Su i) ii) | 0 0 |
| g) Su i) ii) | b-Clause 10.2: Issuing Taking Over Certificates |
| i) ii) | b-Clause 11.9: Issuing Performance Certificate(s) |
| ii) | b Clause 13.1: Instructing a Variation, except; |
| | in an emergency situation as determined by the Engineer, or |
| | if such Variation would increase the Accepted Contract Amount not more than 1% cumulatively of such Amount. |
| h) Se | ub-Clause 13.3: Approving a proposal for Variation submitted the Contractor in accordance with Sub Clause 13.1 or 13.2. |
| | b Clause 13.4: Specifying the amount payable in each of the pplicable currencies |
| j) Si | ab-Clause 13.7: Before Adjustment for Changes in Legislation |
| k) S | ab-Clause 13.8: Before Adjustment for Changes in Cost |
| Fi | b-Clause 20.1: Approving Claims of the Contractor (Time / nancial) under Clause 20.1 and accepting principles of the laims |
| appro affect may, respo all su Engir | ithstanding the obligation, as set out above, to obtain val, if, in the opinion of the Engineer, an emergency occurs ing the safety of life or of Works or adjoining property, he without relieving the Contractor of any of his duties and nsibility under the Contract, instruct the Contractor to execute ch work or to do all such things as may, in the opinion of the ever, be necessary to abate or reduce the risk. The Contractor forthwith comply, despite the absence of approval of the |

| Sub-Clause 3.6 | Insert this Sub Clause at the end of Clause 3 |
|------------------------------------|---|
| Management Meetings | "The Engineer or the Contractor's Representative may require the other to attend a management meeting in order to review the progress with reference to the agreed program and arrangements for future works. The Engineer shall record the business of management meetings and supply copies of the record to those attending the meeting and to the Employer. In the record, responsibilities for any actions to be taken shall be in accordance with the Contract". |
| Sub-Clause 4.1. | Add following at the end of Sub-Clause 4.1: |
| Contractor's General Obligation | The Contractor shall prepare and submit one complete set of "As- Built" Documents on one master CD and two complete sets of print copies of "As-Built" Documents together with the back-up of the quantity calculation to the Engineer within 28 days after the date of taking over by Employer. These "As-Built" Documents shall indicate all approved changes made during construction, superimposed on the original plans / "As-Staked Documents". |
| | The final measured quantities for all pay items shall be included on all "As-Built" Documents. These "As-Built" Documents shall be prepared continuously as execution of the Works progresses and shall be submitted to the Engineer for review as sections or parts of the Project are completed. No Taking-Over Certificate for a Sector or the whole of Works shall be issued to the Contractor by the Engineer without the approved "As-Built" Documents. The preparation of the "As-Built" Documents shall be at the expense of the Contractor, payment for which is subsidiary to the pay items of the Contract. |
| | The review and approval by the Engineer or by the Employer of the "As-Built" Documents does not relieved the Contractor of any responsibility for and/or liabilities arising out of inaccurate, false or otherwise incorrect "As-Built" Documents prepared and submitted by the Contractor. The approved "As-Built Documents" shall be reproduced by the Contractor in four (4) hard copies and one (1) soft copies and return the same to the Employer. |
| | Shop Drawings . The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer all Contractor's, and Subcontractor's Shop Drawings. Shop Drawings shall be deemed to include design drawings, fabrication drawings, catalogue cuts, brochures, illustrations, material lists, design calculations, reference standards and performance data which may be required by the specification necessary for the proper execution of the Work, or as otherwise required by the Engineer for assurance that there is intent to meet the requirements of the specifications. All Shop Drawings shall be in English. |
| | The Contractor shall submit all Shop Drawings to the Engineer in the manner hereinafter described, in sufficient time to prevent delays in the delivery of materials or in the progress or completion of the work. Regardless of the source of Shop Drawings, all submissions shall be deemed to be submissions by the Contractor under the Contract. |

| All subcontractors' Shop Drawings shall first be sent directly to the Contractor. The Contractor shall thoroughly check all such Shop Drawings for measurements, sizes of members, materials and all other details, to assure him that the Shop Drawings conform to the intent of the Drawings and Specifications. The Contractor shall return to the Subcontractors for correction, such Shop Drawings that are found inaccurate or otherwise in error. After the Contractor has checked and approved such Shop Drawings the shall place thereon the date of such approval and the Egible signature of the checker, and shall then submit them to the Engineer for review. The Engineer for yofus to check or review any Shop Drawings that are not submitted in compliance with the foregoing requirements. The Contractor shall submit five (5) copies of Shop Drawings plus the number that the Contractor wishes to return for his own and his Subcontractor's use. For all Equipment, Shop Drawings shall be completed in all respects and shall show clear compliance with the Specifications. Where applicable, performance figures of equipment, finishes and reference to other relevant drawings must be noted on the Shop Drawings. Details of ancillary items being supplied with the particular equipment must be submitted. Piecemeal submissions will not be considered. Descriptive brochures that are applicable shall be included for information. Any notation on the Shop Drawings which is on the prints and not on the original from which the prints with "NO COMMENT", "SEE COMMENTS" or "RESUBMIT". The Engineer may, at his discretion, require an immediate resubmission shall be ident amended and re-submitted or shall be submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be supersided by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further aview or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be supersided by anot | |
|--|--|
| such Shop Drawings that are found inaccurate or otherwise in error. After the Contractor has checked and approval such Shop Drawings he shall place thereon the date of such approval and the legible signature of the checker, and shall then submit them to the Engineer for review. The Engineer may refuse to check or review any Shop Drawings that are not submitted in compliance with the foregoing requirements. The Contractor shall submit five (5) copies of Shop Drawings plus the number that the Contractor wishes to return for his own and his Subcontractor's use. For all Equipment, Shop Drawings shall be completed in all respects and shall show clear compliance with the Specifications. Where applicable, performance figures of equipment, finishes and reference to other relevant drawings must be noted on the Shop Drawings. Details of ancillary items being supplied with the particular equipment must be submitted. Piecemeal submissions will not be considered. Descriptive brochures that are applicable shall be included for information. Any notation on the Shop Drawings which is on the prints and not on the original from which the prints were made shall be in GREEN INK. The Engineer may, at his discretion, require an immediate resubmission of Shop Drawings noter's for EXE OMMENTS''s o that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings reguiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings contain no other afterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor (in writing) directs the Engineer specific attention to the same. | Contractor. The Contractor shall thoroughly check all such Shop Drawings for measurements, sizes of members, materials and all other details, to assure him that the Shop Drawings conform to the |
| the number that the Contractor wishes to return for his own and his Subcontractor's use. For all Equipment, Shop Drawings shall be completed in all respects and shall show clear compliance with the Specifications. Where applicable, performance figures of equipment, finishes and reference to other relevant drawings must be noted on the Shop Drawings. Details of ancillary items being supplied with the particular equipment must be submitted. Piecemeal submissions will not be considered. Descriptive brochures that are applicable shall be included for information. Any notation on the Shop Drawings which is on the prints and not on the original from which the prints were made shall be in GREEN INK. The Engineer will review submitted Shop Drawings within a reasonable time and will return them stamped with "NO COMMENT", "SEE COMMENTS" or "RESUBMIT". The Engineer may, at his discretion, require an immediate resubmission of Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings are not orders for Extra Work. Shop Drawings re-submitted for further review will be reviewed for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor question, or dissent, from such notations or comments, he shall direct the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and onissions must be made | such Shop Drawings that are found inaccurate or otherwise in error. After the Contractor has checked and approved such Shop Drawings he shall place thereon the date of such approval and the legible signature of the checker, and shall then submit them to the Engineer for review. The Engineer may refuse to check or review any Shop Drawings that are not submitted in compliance with the |
| respects and shall show clear compliance with the Specifications. Where applicable, performance figures of equipment, finishes and reference to other relevant drawings must be noted on the Shop Drawings. Details of ancillary items being supplied with the particular equipment must be submitted. Piecemeal submissions will not be considered. Descriptive brochures that are applicable shall be included for information. Any notation on the Shop Drawings which is on the prints and not on the original from which the prints were made shall be in GREEN INK. The Engineer will review submitted Shop Drawings within a reasonable time and will return them stamped with "NO COMMENT", "SEE COMMENTS" or "RESUBMIT". The Engineer may, at his discretion, require an immediate re- submission of Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings are not orders for Extra Work. Shop Drawings re-submitted for further review will be reviewed for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor question, or dissent, from such notations or comments, he shall direct the Engineer stention to the same for further clarification before re-submitting. By reviewing Shop Drawings, the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made | the number that the Contractor wishes to return for his own and his |
| information. Any notation on the Shop Drawings which is on the prints and not on the original from which the prints were made shall be in GREEN INK. The Engineer will review submitted Shop Drawings within a reasonable time and will return them stamped with "NO COMMENT", "SEE COMMENTS" or "RESUBMIT". The Engineer may, at his discretion, require an immediate resubmission of Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings are not orders for Extra Work. Shop Drawings re-submitted for further review will be reviewed for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor question, or dissent, from such notations or comments, he shall direct the Engineer's attention to the same for further clarification before re-submitting. By reviewing Shop Drawings, the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made | respects and shall show clear compliance with the Specifications. Where applicable, performance figures of equipment, finishes and reference to other relevant drawings must be noted on the Shop Drawings. Details of ancillary items being supplied with the particular equipment must be submitted. Piecemeal submissions |
| reasonable time and will return them stamped with "NO COMMENT", "SEE COMMENTS" or "RESUBMIT". The Engineer may, at his discretion, require an immediate re- submission of Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings are not orders for Extra Work. Shop Drawings re-submitted for further review will be reviewed for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor (in writing) directs the Engineer specific attention to the same. Should the Contractor question, or dissent, from such notations or comments, he shall direct the Engineer's attention to the same for further clarification before re-submitting. By reviewing Shop Drawings, the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made | information. Any notation on the Shop Drawings which is on the prints and not on the original from which the prints were made |
| submission of Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings are not orders for Extra Work. Shop Drawings re-submitted for further review will be reviewed for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor (in writing) directs the Engineer specific attention to the same. Should the Contractor question, or dissent, from such notations or comments, he shall direct the Engineer's attention to the same for further clarification before re-submitting. By reviewing Shop Drawings, the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made | reasonable time and will return them stamped with "NO |
| for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor (in writing) directs the Engineer specific attention to the same. Should the Contractor question, or dissent, from such notations or comments, he shall direct the Engineer's attention to the same for further clarification before re-submitting. By reviewing Shop Drawings, the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made | submission of Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop |
| comments, he shall direct the Engineer's attention to the same for further clarification before re-submitting. By reviewing Shop Drawings, the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made | for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor (in writing) directs the Engineer specific |
| responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made | comments, he shall direct the Engineer's attention to the same for |
| | responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the |

good by the Contractor, irrespective, of the receipt, checking, or review of the Shop Drawings by the Engineer and even though the Work is done in accordance with such Shop Drawings.

As-Staked Drawings. "As-Staked" Drawings shall be prepared for the entire project. These drawing shall be submitted to the Employer for review and approval regardless of the nature of the changes in the original design, if there is increase/decrease of more than five percent (5%) in quantities of major items of work and more than ten percent (10%) for minor items of work. Variation Order shall be prepared in accordance with Sub-Clause 13.1.

The preparation of the "As-Staked" drawings and the corresponding back-up calculations must be completed within a reasonable period from the commencement of the project. The plans shall indicate major modifications (i.e. change in road alignment, change in type or main components of structures, introduction of new work items), superimposed on the original plans.

The approved "As-Staked" drawings shall be reproduced (white print) by the Contractor in five (5) copies. The preparation of the "As-Staked" drawings and reproduction cost shall be at the expense of the Contractor, payment for which is subsidiary to the pay items of the contract.

All data pertaining to As-Staked survey shall be jointly signed by the Contractor's and Engineer's representatives.

Quality of Plans ("As-Built", "As Staked" and other Drawings for Variation). All sheets of the "As-Built", "As-Staked" and other drawings for Variations should be of uniform size and one (1) standard size (A1) using Mylar or other quality tracing paper. The sheets must be neat and clean and without any crossed-out or voided portion. The title block should be made an integral part of the sheet plans and not merely patched-up.

Supplementary Drawings and Instructions. The Engineer shall have the authority to issue to the Contractor from time to time such supplementary drawings and instructions to the proper and adequate execution of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein. The Contractor shall carry out and be bound by the same.

The Contractor shall designate an additional set of drawings as "Record Drawings" and keep them to the site.

The Contractor shall clearly and neatly mark the Record Drawing in ink to indicate all authorized changes in the work, and also as actually constructed. These additional plans will not change the work of the Contract but will elucidate or explain it.

| Sub-Clause 4.3 |
|------------------------------------|
| Contractor's Representative |
| |

Insert additional paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 4.3 The Contractor's authorized representative and his other professional engineers working at site shall register themselves with

the Pakistan Engineering Council.

| Sub-Clause 4.4 | Replace first line with the following |
|----------------------------------|--|
| Subcontractors | The Contractor may subcontract the Works for the maximum value equal to 30% of the Accepted Contract Amount. |
| Sub-Clause 4.8 | Insert additional paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 4.8 |
| Safe ty Procedures | In the event of work being carried out at night, the Contractor shall at his own cost, provide and maintain such good and sufficient light as will enable the work to proceed satisfactorily and without danger. The approaches to the Site and the Works where the night- work is being carried out shall be sufficiently lighted. All arrangement adopted for such lighting shall be to the satisfaction of the Engineer. |
| Sub-Clause 4.18 | Final paragraph to be added to after second paragraph |
| Protection of the Environment | The Contractor shall exercise care to protect the natural landscape and shall conduct his construction operation so as to prevent any unnecessary destruction, scarring or defacing of the natural surroundings in the vicinity of the Works, except where clearing is required for permanent works, approved temporary works and for excavation operations. All trees and native vegetation shall be preserved and shall be protected from damage, which may be caused, by the Contractor's construction operations and equipment. On completion of the Works, all work areas shall be smoothed and graded in a manner to scarring damage or defacing may occur as a result of the Contractor's operations, it shall be repaired, replanted or otherwise corrected as directed by the Engineer at Contractor's expense. |
| | Borrow areas shall be located and operated so as not to detract from the future usefulness or value of the sites. Upon completion of operations, borrow areas shall be left in a safe and sightly conditions. No borrow areas shall be located within 500 meter from the right of way. |
| | During the performance of the work required under the Contract, the Contractor shall carryout proper and efficient measures as often as necessary to reduce the dust nuisance, and to prevent dust originating from his operations. For waste water disposal, the provision of septic tank alone for worker's camp etc. will not be sufficient and may have to be supplemented with secondary treatment in form of gravel drains / constructed wetland depending on the laboratory results of effluent from the septic tank. |
| | The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to prevent water from the Site causing a nuisance on or, in any neighbouring land or property either by causing flooding or by depositing sediment on the surface of the ground or in drains or watercourses. Wherever necessary to prevent this, the Contractor shall construct temporary drainage channels, layer sumps and traps (in addition to those shown on the Contract) discharging into existing drain, ditches or watercourses. The Contractor snail removes over all sediment, which may accumulate on any land or in any drains, ditches or watercourses or in any other property as a result of his operations. |

.

â

.

| 1 | |
|------------------|---|
| · | All works including those below sub-soil standing water level shi be carried out in the dry unless specified otherwise. T Contractor's arrangements for controlling the inflow of water in the parts of the excavation being worked and during the placing concrete and other works therein and for the collection and dispos of water shall be to the Engineer's Approval. Such arrangemer may include interalia temporary cofferdams, well-point system pumps; drains trenches, flumes and other recognized means. A Costs and charges in dealing with water in any way whatsoever an the effects thereof will be deemed to be included in the Contra Price and in the unit rates or prices of the Contractor f excavations. |
| | Water flowing into excavations shall be carried by trenched drainage layers or open jointed drains to sumps from which it shall be pumped. Such trenches drains or sands shall generally be cle of the Permanent Works unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. If, with the said Approval of the Engineer trenches drain or sumps are excavated under or immediately adjacent the Permanent Works, these shall comprise open-jointed pipes with gravel mounds. When no longer required and when approved by the Engineer they shall be filled with a cement /sand grout injected under pressure so as to fill the pipe and all voids completely. |
| | The Contractor shall keep all surfaces upon or against whic concrete is to be deposited free from running water and no concre shall be placed until such surfaces are properly drained. Suitab precautions shall be taken to prevent running water from washin out cement or concrete while it is setting or from injuring th Works in any other way. |
| | Notwithstanding the Approval by the Engineer of the Contractor methods of dealing with water, the Contractor shall be responsib for and accept all the risks and liabilities of dealing with water fro whatever source and of all effects thereof. |
| | The Contractor shall throughout the execution and completion the Works and the remedying of any defects therein, comply wi all applicable Environment Protection Laws and Regulations of the Country. |
| Sub-Clause 4.21 | Add following paragraphs after paragraph (h) |
| Progress Reports | (i) An updated construction schedule indicating the progress percentage; and |
| | (j) Description of all works carried out since the last report; ar |
| | (k) An updated Progress Curve/Projected Cash flow indicating the planned and actual progress; and |
| | (1) An updated Critical Resource Usage Chart showing |
| | |
| | (i) An updated official resource osage chart shown comparison of planned and actual values; and (m) An updated material procurement plan showing compariso of planned and actual values; and |

4

ĩ

| Sub-Clause 6.5 Working Hours | (o) Description of the Works planned for the next 28 days sufficiently detailed to enable the Engineer to determine his programme of inspection and testing; and (p) Summary of all submission; and (q) Information about problems and areas of concern and proposal to overcome the same. Add the following paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 6.5: The Contractor shall pay overtime payment to the Engineer's Support Staff/Personnel who were required by the Contractor to perform their respective work assignment beyond the normal working hours stated in Part A – Particular Conditions (Appendix A). |
|---|---|
| Sub-Clause 6.10 Records of Contractor's Personnel and Equipment | The following paragraphs added: The Contractor shall, upon request by the Engineer at any time in relation to any time of hired Contractor's Equipment, forthwith notify the Engineer in writing the name and address of the Owner of the equipment and shall certify that the agreement for the hire thereof contains a provision in accordance with the requirements set forth above. |
| Sub-Clause 6.23 Epidemics | Insert sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.22: In the event of any outbreak of illness of an epidemic nature, the Contractor shall comply with and carry out such regulations, orders and requirements as may be made by the Government or the local medical or sanitary authorities, for the purpose of dealing with and overcoming the same. |
| Sub-Clause 6.24 Workers' Organizations | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.23 In countries where national law recognizes workers' rights to form and to join workers' organizations of their choosing without interference and to bargain collectively, the Contractor shall comply with national law. The Contractor shall not discriminate or retaliate against Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in such organizations. Where national law restricts workers' organizations, the Contractor shall ensure that Contractor's Personnel have alternative means to express their grievances and defend their rights regarding working conditions and terms of employment, such as worker committees or forums to facilitate dialogue between workers' representatives and the employer. Where national is silent on this issue, the Contractor shall not discriminate or retaliate against Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in organizations and forums designed to promote good working conditions and favourable terms of employment, consistent with the Contract. |
| Sub-Clause 6.25 Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.24 The Contractor shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. The Contractor shall base the employment relationship on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and will not |

2

*

| | discriminate with respect to aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and discipline. In countries where national law provides for non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall comply with national law. When national laws are silent on non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall meet this Sub-Clause's requirements. Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on inherent requirements of the job will not be deemed discrimination. |
|--|---|
| Sub-Clause 7.9 Use of Pakistani Materials and Services | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 7.8 The contractor shall, so far as may be consistent with the contract, make the maximum use of materials, supplies, plant and equipment indigenous to or produced or fabricated in Pakistan and services, available in Pakistan provided such materials, supplies, plant, equipment and services shall be of required standard. |
| Sub-Clause 8.1 Commencement of Works | Delete paragraph (b) entirely and substituted with the following. The contractor shall commence the works on site within the period named in Appendix-A to Bid from the date of receipt by him from the Engineer of a written Notice to Commence. Thereafter, the contractor shall proceed with the works with due expedition and without delay |
| Sub-Clause 8.3 Programme | Insert following additional paragraphs at the end of Sub Clause 8.3; The program shall be submitted in the form of CPM charts. The Contractor will also have a licensed copy of the software from a reputed firm which shall be accessible to the Engineer as well as his assistants. Contractor shall organize a training program for his and Engineer's staff so that the program can be updated regularly as required. |
| | The revised programme, in accordance with the Contract, shall be submitted within fourteen (14) days of the request received from the Engineer. The Contractor shall pay a penalty of Rs.100,000/- (Rupees Hundred Thousands only) for each day of delay in the submission of said revised programme. The Employer shall recover such amount from any payment due to the Contractor under the Contract, on the Engineer's recommendations. |
| | Notwithstanding General Conditions of the Contract Sub Clause 8.3, the program to be submitted for the execution of the works shall, in addition to the program of pure construction activities, include an alleviation program for site staff and labour and their families (if allowed to stay at camp) in respect of Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI), Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) including HIV/AIDS. The STID and HIV/AIDS alleviation program shall indicate when, how and at what cost the Contractor plans to satisfy the requirements of Sub Clause 6.7 herein and the related Specifications. |
| | The Contractor shall submit the Programme of Works on Primavera (89) |

Project Planner P-5 or the latest (both hard and soft copy) for the consent of the Engineer. All items of works and activities including mobilization should be included in the Programme of Works. The programme shall identify and highlight those activities, which are on the Critical Path. The programme shall be revised monthly and should include a chart of principal activities of the work forecast for monthly execution and an updated schedule of the payment to be made by the Employer to the Contractor. This programme of works as scheduled shall form basis of Delay Damages pursuant to Sub-Clauses 8.7.

In addition, cash flow estimates shall be supported with inputs of over drafts organized with financial institutions at various stages of the projects to meet the funding requirements of the project. The Contractor shall supply and maintain at his site office for his and Engineer's use a licensed copy of the project management computer software package namely Primavera for programming and to monitor the progress. It shall be supplied complete with manuals and technical training and support for the duration of the Contract as per requirements assessed by the Engineer.

In order to assist the Engineer's Project Management Team, the Contractor shall be required to submit at 2 weeks intervals data to the Engineer on the cost and quantities and other data relevant to the monitoring of progress according to a particular format suitable for computer processing.

The programme should be computerized and drawn up on the CPM with all details as illustrated in this Clause, identifying all items of work including temporary work. Progress reporting by the Contractor should be supported on a monthly basis with an up-todate analysis of the progress including a statement on items, which are or are about to become critical to the progress of the work along with the proposals on how the Contractor intends to alleviate the situation.

General Requirements:

- a. Programme should be submitted (both hard and soft copy) strictly following the guidelines and format specified in this Clause.
- b. The Engineer at any time during the execution of the Works; direct the Contractor to change/modify the Programme / Schedule based on the Priority of Works.
- c. No payment shall be released to the Contractor prior to approval of the Base Line Programme by the Engineer.
- d. Submittal of Programme consists of:
 - 1. Construction Schedule (CPM);
 - 2. Progress Curve/Project Cash Flow;
 - 3. Critical Resources Usage Chart;
 - 4. Detailed Method Statement;
 - 5. Material Procurement Plan;
 - 6. Schedule of Submittals and Shop-Drawings;

7. Any other details as required by the Engineer; Construction Schedule:F a. Construction Schedule shall be developed on the basis of Work Breakdown Structure provided or approved by the Engineer. b. Construction Schedule shall be detailed up to level 4 or as required by the Engineer. c. Durations of construction activity should be calculated practically in relation to quantity of work done and allocated resources. Any activity that demands duration greater than seven (07) calendar days should be split into number of activities to monitor the same accordingly. d. Construction activities of the schedule should be logically linked with preceding and succeeding activities and showed in submitted construction schedule. e. Critical Activities and Critical Path of the project should be highlighted with red colour in bar chart and precedence diagram. Total Float for non-critical activities should also be shown in the schedule. f. Appropriate quantity of direct resources (material, labour, equipment and non-consumable material) should be allocated to all activities and showed in submitted construction schedule. Labour resource should be divided according to related trades (e.g. Mason, Operator, helper etc.) Contractor should make sure that no resource is being over allocated. Indirect resources should be allocated to supervision / summary activity. g. BOQ amount should be loaded to reach construction activity. Accrual basis should be indicated to construction activity. h. Construction Schedule should show Activity ID, Activity Description, BOQ Quantity, Duration, Start Date, Finish Date, Total Float, Predecessors, Resource names with quantity, BOO Amount and timescale where the bars show start and finish dates. **Progress Curve / Projected Cash Flow:** a. Progress Curve / Projected Cash Flow should be developed and presented on Project Management Software - Primavera Project Planner. b. S-Curve should be plotted between time (in weeks) and progress of work done (in % of work). The progress should be shown in cumulative percent of work done. Percent of work done should be calculated with the BOQ amount and payment terms. **Critical Resources Usage Chart:** a. Critical Usage Chart should be developed. b. List of Critical Resources included Labourers, equipments, consumable/non-consumable materials and/or identified by the Engineer. c. Resource usage chart should show Resource Name and weekly

| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | utilization (numbers) of measures and and the |
|---------------------------------------|---|
| | utilization (numbers) of resources on each activity. |
| | Detailed Method Statement: |
| | a. Detailed method statement should be presented in descriptive format explaining the method of carrying out works, logistics, site layout, flow of work, quality and safety measures for each activity and any other details as required by the Engineer. |
| | Material Procurement Plan: a. Material Procurement Plan for major items of purchase should be presented in a Tabular Format to be submitted to the Engineer for pre-approval. The Plan must as a minimum show the list of local & imported materials to be used, their specification reference, and planned dates for submittal to Consultant, approval process, placing of order, vendor contact, required delivery on site, status of Line of Credit (LOC) if applicable, and usage of material. |
| | Schedule of Shop Drawings and Submittals: Schedule of Shop Drawings and other Submittals should be presented in a Tabular Format to be submitted to the Engineer for pre-approval. Plan must as a minimum show the list of shop drawings required and their specification reference, planned dates for submittal to consultant, approval process, and usage of shop drawing. |
| | Cash Flow Estimates: The Contractor shall, within 28 days from the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, provide to the Engineer for his information a detailed cash flow estimate in quarterly periods, of all payments to which the Contractor will be entitled under the Contract and the Contractor shall subsequently supply revised cash flow estimates at quarterly intervals, if required to do so by the Engineer. |
| | Revised Programme: If at any time it should appear to the Engineer that the actual progress of the Works does not conform to the programme to which consent has been given under Sub-Clause 8.3, the Contractor shall produce, at the request of the Engineer, a revised programme showing the modifications to such programme necessary to ensure completion of the Works within the Time for |
| | Completion. |
| Sub-Clause 8.7 Delay Damages | Insert following additional paragraphs at the end of Sub-Clause 8.7 Notwithstanding the provision of above stated conditions following shall prevail: The rate of Delay Damages shall be 0.1% per day of the Contract Price for every day of delay in which whole or part of the work(s) remained unfurnished subject to a maximum of 10% of the Final |
| | Contract Price. In addition to the Delay Damages, the Contractor shall borne all the cost/expenses related to the supervision of the works by the Engineer and his staff covering salaries of the Engineer and all of his Site Supervision staff including all the benefits, providing, running and maintenance of all the Engineer's Facilities up to the |

.

î

| | issuance of the Taking Over Certificate by the Employer. All the above cost/expanses will not be reimbursed / paid to the Contractor beyond the approved completion period of the works. |
|--|--|
| | If, before the Time for Completion of the whole of the Works or, if applicable, any Section, a Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for any part of the Works or of a Section, the delay damages for delay in completion of the remainder of the Works or of that Section shall, for any period of delay after the date stated in such Taking-Over Certificate, and in the absence of alternative provisions in the Contract, be reduced in the proportion which the value of the part so certified bears to the value of the whole of the Works or Section, as applicable. The provisions of this Sub-Clause shall only apply to the rate of delay damages and shall not affect the limit thereof. |
| | Interim Delay Damages |
| | Contractor's works programme submitted under Sub-Clause 8.3 of the Conditions of Contract shall be considered part of the Contract Agreement. If the Contractor's progress is not as per approved programme of works, the Contractor shall be liable for Interim Delay Damages at the rate of 0.05% of the Contract Price for each day of delay, which shall be refunded if the progress again matches the approved programme of works during the currency of works. |
| | The amount of interim delay damages deducted by the Employer from the payment of the Contractor and refunded shall be taken into consideration while determining the delay damages for the whole of the Works. |
| | If the progress of works is observed to be behind approved programme of works against three consecutive months then the Employer may invoke Sub-Clause 15.2 of the Conditions of Contract. |
| Sub-Clause 8.11 Prolonged Suspension | Replace 84 days by 120 days. |
| Sub-Clause 10.1 | Insert following as 3rd paragraph after 2nd paragraph |
| Taking Over of the Works and Sections | Within 14 days of the date of receipt of Contractor's notice for issuance of Taking Over Certificate the Employer shall on the written request of the Engineer constitute a committee comprising of Engineer/Engineer's Representative, Employer's and Contractor's Representatives. The Committee shall conduct a detailed inspection of the works completed by the Contractor to ascertain the completion or the extent of completion to decide about the issuance of Taking Over Certificate. |
| | The Engineer shall take further action on the Contractor's application in pursuance to the recommendations of the committee. |
| Sub-Clause 11.9 | Insert following as 2rd paragraph after 1st paragraph |
| Performance Certificate | At the completion of the Defects Notification Period the Employer shall constitute a committee comprising of Engineer / Engineer's Representative, Employer's and Contractor's Representatives. The Committee shall conduct a detailed inspection of the works to ascertain the issuance of Performance Certificate or otherwise. |
| · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | (93) |

î

| In the last line of Para, after the word "Variation", the word "in writing" is added. |
|--|
| In the tenth line, after the words "as soon as practicable" following is added: "and within a period not exceeding one-eighth of the completion time" |
| The following provision is added: |
| The amounts payable to the Contractor, pursuant to Sub-Clause 14.6, shall be adjusted in respect of the rise or fall in the cost of materials only, and will be paid to the contractor on those items mentioned in the Appendix $-C$ (B). Similarly reduction in the cost of these materials will also be recovered from the contractor accordingly. |
| Renumber subparagraphs (c) and (d) as (f) and (g) and delete subparagraph (e). |
| Insert following paragraphs (c), (d) and (e): |
| (c) The Contract Price shall include all taxes, duties and other charges imposed outside the Country on the production, manufacture, sale and transport of the Contractor's Equipment. Plant, Materials and supplies to be used on or furnished under the Contract, and on the services to be performed under the Contract. |
| (d) The Contractor's staff and labour will be liable to pay personal income taxes in the Country in respect of such of their salaries and wages as are chargeable under the Laws for the time being in force, and the Contractor shall perform such duties in regard to such deductions thereof as may be imposed on him by such laws. |
| (e) Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (b), Contractor's Equipment, including essential spare parts therefore, imported by the Contractor for the sole purpose of executing the Contract shall be temporarily exempt from the payment of import duties and taxes upon initial importation, provided the Contractor shall post with the customs authorities at the port of entry an approved export bond or bank guarantee, valid until the Time for Completion plus six months, in an amount equal to the full import duties and taxes which would be payable on the assessed imported value of such Contractor's Equipment and spare parts, and callable in the event the Contractor's Equipment is not exported from the Country on completion of the Contract. A copy of the bond or bank guarantee endorsed by the customs authorities shall be provided by the Contractor to the Employer upon the importation of individual items of Contractor's Equipment or spare parts, or upon the completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall prepare, for approval by the customs authorities, an assessment of the residual value of the Contractor's Equipment and spare part to be exported, based on the depreciation scale(s and other criteria used by the customs authorities for such purposes under the provisions of the applicable Laws. Import duties and taxes shall be due and |
| |

÷

ŝ

| | difference between the initial imported value and the residual value of the Contractor's Equipment and spare parts to exported; and (b) on the initial imported value that Contractor's Equipment and spare parts remaining in the Country after completion of the Contract. Upon payment of such dues within 28 days of being invoiced, the bond or bank guarantee shall be reduced or released accordingly; otherwise the security shall be called in the full amount remaining. |
|------------------|---|
| Sub-Clause 14.2 | Delete the Clause in entirety and replace with following |
| Adv:ince Payment | The Employer if requested by the Contractor shall make an advance payment for mobilisation and cash flow support, when the Contractor submits a guarantee in accordance with this Sub-Clause. The total advance payment, the number and timing of instalments (if more than one) shall be as stated in the Appendix A. |
| | The Advance Payment (if required) shall be paid in two equal instalments after the following conditions have been fulfilled. |
| | Installment-1: 50% of the total amount of the Advance Payment |
| | • That the Contract Agreement has been signed by the Parties. |
| | • The Contractor has submitted bank guarantee for the full amount of the advance payment in the form of irrevocable without recourse bank guarantee. |
| | • The Contractor has submitted the Performance Security in the form as prescribed in Sub-Clause 4.2. |
| | • The Contractor has submitted the Programme of Works in the form detailed in Sub-Clause 8.3 and the Engineer has given his concurrence. |
| | Installmentt-2: Remaining 50% of the total amount of the Advance Payment shall be paid on mobilization of Plant, Equipment and other resources at site by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Engineer |
| | Unless and until the Employer receives this guarantee, or if the total advance payment is not stated in the Appendix A, this Sub-Clause shall not apply. |
| | The Contractor shall pay interest on the mobilization advance at the rate of 10% per annum on the advance. |
| | The Engineer shall deliver to the Employer and to the Contractor an Interim Payment Certificate for the advance payment or its first instalment after receiving a Statement (under Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates]) and after the Employer receives (i) the Performance Security in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.2 [Performance Security] and (ii) a guarantee in amount equal to the advance payment. This guarantee shall be issued by an entity and from within a country (or other jurisdiction) approved by the Employer, and shall be in the form annexed to the Particular Conditions or in another form approved by the Employer. |
| | The Contractor shall ensure that the guarantee is valid and enforceable until the advance payment has been repaid, but its amount shall be progressively reduced by the amount repaid by the Contractor as indicated in the Payment Certificates. If the terms of the guarantee specify its expiry date, and the advance payment has |

ĩ

| | not been repaid by the date 28 days prior to the expiry date, the Contractor shall extend the validity of the guarantee until the advance payment has been repaid. |
|--|---|
| | At any time, the bank guarantee shall be valid for an amount not less than the amount of the original Advance Payment less any partial repayment of that Advance Payment which may have been affected. The Contractor shall inform the guaranteeing bank, by letter, counter signed by the Employer, of the required amount of the guarantee from time to time. Reduction of the amount shall not be made without such authorizing letter. |
| | Unless stated otherwise in the Appendix A, the advance payment including interest shall be recovered in 5 equal instalments starting from third running bills (IPCs) and in case the number of bills is less than 5 then 1/5 of the advance inclusive of the interest thereon shall be recovered from each bill and the balance together with interest be recovered from the final bill. It may be insured that there is sufficient amount in the final bill to enable recovery of the Mobilization Advance. |
| · · | If the advance payment has not been repaid prior to the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works or prior to termination under Clause 15 [Termination by Employer], Clause 16 [Suspension and Termination by Contractor] or Clause 19 [Force Majeure] (as the case may be), the whole of the balance then outstanding shall immediately become due and in case of termination under Clause 15 [Termination by Employer] and Sub-Clause 19.6 [Optional Termination, Payment and Release], payable by the Contractor to the Employer. |
| | In the event that the amount of money certified and due to the Contractor under the contract at any time is less than the total of due repayments of Advance Payment, the balance of the due repayments shall be paid to the Employer by the Contractor within seven days of demand by the Employer. If the balance is not so paid, the Employer shall be empowered to call in sufficient of the Advance payment bank guarantee to cover the said balance. |
| | The Employer shall be empowered to call in the guarantee in whole or in part(s) if the Contractor defaults in the repayment(s) for any reason(s). |
| Sub-Clause 14.5 Plant and Materials intended for the Works | Add the following paragraph as sub-clause 14.5 (d) for Secured Advance on non – perishable materials and sub-clauses (a), (b) and (c) will be applicable for plants only :- |
| | I. The Contractor shall be entitled to receive from the procuring agency Secured Advance against an INDENTURE BOND in Public Works Account Form No.31 (Fin. R. Form No. 2) acceptable to the procuring agency of such sum as the Engineer may consider proper in respect of non-perishable materials brought at the site but not yet incorporated in the Permanent Works provided that: |
| | The materials are in accordance with the specifications for the permanent works; |
| | ii. Such materials have been delivered to the site and are properly stored and protected against loss or damage or deterioration to the satisfaction and verification of the Engineer/Assistant Engineer but at the risk and cost of the |

ŝ

ã

| | Contractor; |
|---|--|
| | iii. The Contractor's records of the requirements, orders, |
| | the Engineer, and such records shall be available for inspection by the Engineer; |
| | iv. The Contractor shall submit with his monthly statement the estimated value of the materials on site together with such documents as may be required by the Engineer for the purpose of valuation of materials and providing evidence of ownership and payment therefore; |
| | v. Ownership of such materials shall be deemed to vest in the procuring agency and these materials shall not be removed from the site or otherwise disposed of without written permission of the procuring agency; |
| | vi. The sum payable for such materials on site shall not exceed 75 % of the (i) landed cost of imported materials, or (ii) ex- factory /ex-warehouse price of locally manufactured or produced materials, or (iii) market price of stands other materials; |
| | vii. Secured Advance shall not be allowed unless and until the previous advance, if any, is fully recovered; |
| | viii. Detailed account of advances must be kept in part II of running account bill or a separate statement; and |
| | ix. Secured Advance may be permitted only against materials/quantities anticipated to be consumed / utilized on the work within a period of 3 months from the date of issue of secured advance and in no case for full quantities of materials for the entire work/contract. |
| | II. Recovery of Secured Advance: |
| | Secured Advance paid on non-perishable materials to the Contractor under the above provisions shall be effected from the monthly payments on actual consumption basis, but not later than period specified in the rules not more than three months (even if unutilized); |
| Sub-Clause 14.6 Issue of Interim Payment | Add following in second line after the words "Performance Security." |
| Certificates | No amount shall be certified or paid until the Engineer has recived and approved the Programme of Works. |
| Sub-Clause 14.8 | Second Para is replaced with following text: |
| Delayed Payment | In the event of the failure of the Procuring Agency to make the payment within the time stated, the procuring agency shall pay to the contractor in case of ICB contracts only , the compensation at rate of KIBOR+2% per annum in local currency and Libor+1% for foreign currency, upon all sums to be paid from the date of which the same would have been paid (i.e. for NCB, no compensation is admissible). |

ã

.

| Sub-Cause 14.15 | Currency of Payment is Pakistan Rupee (PKR). |
|--|--|
| Currencies of Payment | |
| Sub-Clause 15.2 Termination by | Insert following as paragraph (g) after paragraph (f) |
| Employer | (g) If the progress of works with respect to the Programme of Works is observed to be behind the approved program of works pursuant to Sub Clause 8.7 for three consecutive months. |
| | The following Para is added at the end of the sub-clause: |
| · | Provided further, that in addition to the action taken by the procuring agency against the Contractor under this Clause, the procuring agency may also refer the case of default of the Contractor to Pakistan Engineering Council for punitive action under the Construction and Operation of Engineering Works Bye-Laws 1987, as amended from time to time. |
| Sub-Clause 15.6 | The following text is to be added as 3rd paragraph: |
| Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices | Successful Contractor has to provide Integrity Pact (for contracts worth Rs.10.0 million and above). If the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants is found to have violated or involved in violation of the Integrity Pact signed by the Contractor as Appendix-L to his Bid, then the procuring agency shall be entitled to: |
| | a. recover from the Contractor an amount equivalent to ten times the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants; |
| | b. terminate the Contract; and |
| | c. recover from the Contractor any loss or damage to the procuring agency as a result of such termination or of any other corrupt business practices of the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants. |
| | The termination under sub-para (b) of this Sub-Clause shall proceed in the manner prescribed under sub-clauses 15.2 & 15.5 and the payment under Sub-Clause 15.4 shall be made after having deducted the amounts due to the procuring agency under Sub-Para (a) and (c) of this Sub-Clause. |
| Sub-Clause 16.1 Contractor's Entitlement to | Delete words " Sub-Clause 2.4 [Employer's Financial Arrangements] or " from first paragraph |
| Suspend Work | Delete paragraph 2 <i>in entirety</i> (i.e. from words "Notwithstanding" to "notification from the bank". |
| Sub-Clause 16.2 Termination by Contractor | Delete paragraph (a) in entirety. |
| Sub-Clause 17.3 Employer's Risks | Delete paragraph (a) in entirety. |
| Sub-Clause 18.1 | Add following text |
| General Requirements for Insurance | The contractor shall be obliged to place all insurances relating to the contract (including, but not limited to, the insurances referred to |
| | |

á

| | in Clauses 18.1,18.2,18.3,18.4) with Insurance Company having a least AA rating from PACRA/JCR in favour of the Employer valid for a period 28 days after the expiry of Defects Liability Period. |
|--|---|
| | Costs of such insurances shall be borne by the contractor. |
| Sub-Clause 19.6 Optional Termination, Payment and release by the Employer | Delete paragraph (c), (d) and (e) in entirety. |
| Sub-Clause 20.1 Contractor's Claims | Insert following at the end of Sub-Clause 20.1 The Contractor shall not be entitled for any extension of Time fo Completion and/or additional payment in respect of the claim(s) i the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements or any of the requirement of Sub-Clause 20.1 within the time period stipulated there in the Clause above mentioned and or fails in keeping and producing necessary records whenever demanded by the Engineer. |
| Sub-Clause 20.6 | Delete the Clause in entirety and replace with following |
| Arbitration | Any dispute in respect of which: |
| | a. the decision, of the Dispute Board has not become final ar binding pursuant to sub-clause 20.2, and |
| | amicable settlement has not been reached within the period stated in sub-clause 20.5, shall be finally settled, under the provisions of the Arbitration Act, 1940 as amended or an statutory modification/Rules of Conciliation And Arbitration PEC Islamabad or re-enactment thereof for the time being force. |
| | The place of arbitration shall be Karachi, in Sindh Province. |
| | The arbitrators shall have full power to open up, review and revise any certificate, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, and any decision of the DB, relevant to the dispute Nothing shall disqualify representatives of the Parties and the Engineer from being called as a witness and giving evidence before the arbitrators on any matter whatsoever relevant to the dispute. |
| | Neither Party shall be limited in the proceedings before the arbitrators to the evidence or arguments previously put before the DB to obtain its decision, or to the reasons for dissatisfaction give in its notice of dissatisfaction. Any decision of the DB shall be admissible in evidence in the arbitration. |
| | Arbitration shall be commenced after completion of the Works. The obligations of the Parties, the Engineer and the DB shall not be altered by reason of any arbitration. |

ĩ

APPENDIX: DISPUTE BOARD

General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement

1. Definitions

Each "Dispute Board Agreement" is a tripartite agreement by and between:

- (a) the "Employer";
- (b) the "Contractor"; and
- (c) the "Member" who is defined in the Dispute Board Agreement as being:
 - (i) the sole member of the "DB" and, where this is the case, all references to the "Other Members" do not apply, or
 - (ii) one of the three persons who are jointly called the "DB" (or "Dispute Board") and, where this is the case, the other two persons are called the "Other Members."

The Employer and the Contractor have entered (or intend to enter) into a contract, which is called the "Contract" and is defined in the Dispute Board Agreement, which incorporates this Appendix. In the Dispute Board Agreement, words and expressions which are not otherwise defined shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Contract.

Unless otherwise stated in the Dispute Board Agreement, it shall take effect on the latest of the following dates:

- (a) the Commencement Date defined in the Contract,
- (b) when the Employer, the Contractor and the Member have each signed the Dispute Board Agreement, or
- (c) when the Employer, the Contractor and each of the Other Members (if any) have respectively each signed a dispute board agreement.

This employment of the Member is a personal appointment. At any time, the Member may give not less than 70 days' notice of resignation to the Employer and to the Contractor, and the Dispute Agreement shall terminate upon the expiry of this period.

3. Warranties The Member warrants and agrees that he/she is and shall be impartial and independent of the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer. The Member shall promptly disclose, to each of them and to the Other Members (if any), any fact or circumstance which might appear inconsistent with his/her warranty and agreement of impartiality and independence.

2. General Provisions When appointing the Member, the Employer and the Contractor relied upon the Member's representations that he/she is:

- (a) experienced in the work which the Contractor is to carry out under the Contract,
- (b) experienced in the interpretation of contract documentation, and
- (c) fluent in the language for communications defined in the Contract.

The Member shall:

- (a) have no interest financial or otherwise in the Employer, the Contractor or Engineer, nor any financial interest in the Contract except for payment under the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (b) not previously have been employed as a consultant or otherwise by the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, except in such circumstances as were disclosed in writing to the Employer and the Contractor before they signed the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (c) have disclosed in writing to the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any), before entering into the Dispute Board Agreement and to his/her best knowledge and recollection, any professional or personal relationships with any director, officer or employee of the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, and any previous involvement in the overall project of which the Contract forms part;
- (d) not, for the duration of the Dispute Board Agreement, be employed as a consultant or otherwise by the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, except as may be agreed in writing by the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any);
- (e) comply with the annexed procedural rules and with Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract;
- (f) not give advice to the Employer, the Contractor, the Employer's Personnel or the Contractor's Personnel concerning the conduct of the Contract, other than in accordance with the annexed procedural rules;
- (g) not while a Member enter into discussions or make any agreement with the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer regarding employment by any of them, whether as a consultant or otherwise, after ceasing to act under the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (h) ensure his/her availability for all site visits and hearings as are necessary;

4. General Obligations of the Member

(101)

- become conversant with the Contract and with the progress of the Works (and of any other parts of the project of which the Contract forms part) by studying all documents received which shall be maintained in a current working file;
- (j) treat the details of the Contract and all the DB's activities and hearings as private and confidential, and not publish or disclose them without the prior written consent of the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any); and
- (k) be available to give advice and opinions, on any matter relevant to the Contract when requested by both the Employer and the Contractor, subject to the agreement of the Other Members (if any).
- 5. General Obligations of the Employer and the Contractor

The Employer, the Contractor, the Employer's Personnel and the Contractor's Personnel shall not request advice from or consultation with the Member regarding the Contract, otherwise than in the normal course of the DB's activities under the Contract and the Dispute Board Agreement. The Employer and the Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with this provision, by the Employer's Personnel and the Contractor's Personnel respectively.

The Employer and the Contractor undertake to each other and to the Member that the Member shall not, except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Employer, the Contractor, the Member and the Other Members (if any):

- (a) be appointed as an arbitrator in any arbitration under the Contract;
- (b) be called as a witness to give evidence concerning any dispute before arbitrator(s) appointed for any arbitration under the Contract; or
- (c) be liable for any claims for anything done or omitted in the discharge or purported discharge of the Member's functions, unless the act or omission is shown to have been in bad faith.

The Employer and the Contractor hereby jointly and severally indemnify and hold the Member harmless against and from claims from which he is relieved from liability under the preceding paragraph.

Whenever the Employer or the Contractor refers a dispute to the DB under Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract, which will require the Member to make a site visit and attend a hearing, the Employer or the Contractor shall provide appropriate security for a sum equivalent to the reasonable expenses to be incurred by the Member. No account shall be taken of any other payments due or paid to the Member.

6. Payment

The Member shall be paid as follows, in the currency named in the Dispute Board Agreement:

- (a) a retainer fee per calendar month, which shall be considered as payment in full for:
 - (i) being available on 28 days' notice for all site visits and hearings;
 - (ii) becoming and remaining conversant with all project developments and maintaining relevant files;
 - (iii) all office and overhead expenses including secretarial services, photocopying and office supplies incurred in connection with his duties; and
 - (iv) all services performed hereunder except those referred to in sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Clause.

The retainer fee shall be paid with effect from the last day of the calendar month in which the Dispute Board Agreement becomes effective; until the last day of the calendar month in which the Taking-Over Certificate is issued for the whole of the Works.

With effect from the first day of the calendar month following the month in which the Taking-Over Certificate is issued for the whole of the Works, the retainer fee shall be reduced by one third. This reduced fee shall be paid until the first day of the calendar month in which the Member resigns or the Dispute Board Agreement is otherwise terminated.

- (b) a daily fee which shall be considered as payment in full for:
 - (i) each day or part of a day up to a maximum of two days' travel time in each direction for the journey between the Member's home and the site, or another location of a meeting with the Other Members (if any);
 - (ii) each working day on Site visits, hearings or preparing decisions; and
 - (iii) each day spent reading submissions in preparation for a hearing.
- (c) all reasonable expenses including necessary travel expenses

 (air fare in less than first class, hotel and subsistence and other
 direct travel expenses) incurred in connection with the
 Member's duties, as well as the cost of telephone calls, courier
 charges, faxes and telexes: a receipt shall be required for each
 item in excess of five percent of the daily fee referred to in
 sub-paragraph (b) of this Clause;
- (d) any taxes properly levied in the Country on payments made to the Member (unless a national or permanent resident of the Country) under this Clause 6.

The retainer and daily fees shall be as specified in the Dispute Board Agreement. Unless it specifies otherwise, these fees shall remain fixed for the first 24 calendar months, and shall thereafter be adjusted by agreement between the Employer, the Contractor and the Member, at each anniversary of the date on which the Dispute Board Agreement became effective.

If the parties fail to agree on the retainer fee or the daily fee, the appointing entity or official named in the Contract Data shall determine the amount of the fees to be used.

The Member shall submit invoices for payment of the monthly retainer and air fares quarterly in advance. Invoices for other expenses and for daily fees shall be submitted following the conclusion of a site visit or hearing. All invoices shall be accompanied by a brief description of activities performed during the relevant period and shall be addressed to the Contractor.

The Contractor shall pay each of the Member's invoices in full within 56 calendar days after receiving each invoice and shall apply to the Employer (in the Statements under the Contract) for reimbursement of one-half of the amounts of these invoices. The Employer shall then pay the Contractor in accordance with the Contract.

If the Contractor fails to pay to the Member the amount to which he/she is entitled under the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer shall pay the amount due to the Member and any other amount which may be required to maintain the operation of the DB; and without prejudice to the Employer's rights or remedies. In addition to all other rights arising from this default, the Employer shall be entitled to reimbursement of all sums paid in excess of onehalf of these payments, plus all costs of recovering these sums and financing charges calculated at the rate specified in Sub-Clause 14.8 of the Conditions of Contract.

If the Member does not receive payment of the amount due within 70 days after submitting a valid invoice, the Member may (i) suspend his/her services (without notice) until the payment is received, and/or (ii) resign his/her appointment by giving notice under Clause 7.

7. Termination At any time: (i) the Employer and the Contractor may jointly terminate the Dispute Board Agreement by giving 42 days' notice to the Member; or (ii) the Member may resign as provided for in Clause 2.

If the Member fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer and the Contractor may, without prejudice to their other rights, terminate it by notice to the Member. The notice shall take effect when received by the Member.

If the Employer or the Contractor fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Member may, without prejudice to his other rights, terminate it by notice to the Employer and the Contractor. The notice shall take effect when received by them both.

Any such notice, resignation and termination shall be final and binding on the Employer, the Contractor and the Member. However, a notice by the Employer or the Contractor, but not by both, shall be of no effect.

8. Default of the Member fails to comply with any of his obligations under Clause 4 (a) - (d) above, he shall not be entitled to any fees or expenses hereunder and shall, without prejudice to their other rights, reimburse each of the Employer and the Contractor for any fees and expenses received by the Member and the Other Members (if any), for proceedings or decisions (if any) of the DB which are rendered void or ineffective by the said failure to comply.

If the Member fails to comply with any of his obligations under Clause 4 (e) - (k) above, he shall not be entitled to any fees or expenses hereunder from the date and to the extent of the noncompliance and shall, without prejudice to their other rights, reimburse each of the Employer and the Contractor for any fees and expenses already received by the Member, for proceedings or decisions (if any) of the DB which are rendered void or ineffective by the said failure to comply.

9. Disputes Any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with this Dispute Board Agreement, or the breach, termination or invalidity thereof, shall be finally settled by institutional arbitration. If no other arbitration institute is agreed, the arbitration shall be conducted under the Rules of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce by one arbitrator appointed in accordance with these Rules of Arbitration.

Annex: Procedural Rules

Unless otherwise agreed by the Employer and the Contractor, the DB shall visit the site at intervals of not more than 140 days, including times of critical construction events, at the request of either the Employer or the Contractor. Unless otherwise agreed by the Employer, the Contractor and the DB, the period between consecutive visits shall not be less than 70 days, except as required to convene a hearing as described below.

The timing of and agenda for each site visit shall be as agreed jointly by the DB, the Employer and the Contractor, or in the absence of agreement, shall be decided by the DB. The purpose of site visits is to enable the DB to become and remain acquainted with the progress of the Works and of any actual or potential problems or claims, and, as far as reasonable, to endeavour to prevent potential problems or claims from becoming disputes.

Site visits shall be attended by the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer and shall be co-ordinated by the Employer in co-operation with the Contractor. The Employer shall ensure the provision of appropriate conference facilities and secretarial and copying services. At the conclusion of each site visit and before leaving the site, the DB shall prepare a report on its activ ties during the visit and shall send copies to the Employer and the Contractor.

The Employer and the Contractor shall furnish to the DB one copy of all documents which the DB may request, including Contract documents, progress reports, variation instructions, certificates and other documents pertinent to the performance of the Contract. All communications between the DB and the Employer or the Contractor shall be copied to the other Party. If the DB comprises three persons, the Employer and the Contractor shall send copies of these requested documents and these communications to each of these persons.

If any dispute is referred to the DB in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Cont act, the DB shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 and these Rules. Subject to the time allowed to give notice of a decision and other relevant factors, the DB shall:

- (a) act fairly and impartially as between the Employer and the Contractor, giving each of them a reasonable opportunity of putting his case and responding to the other's case, and
- (b) adopt procedures suitable to the dispute, avoiding unnecessary delay or expense.

The DB may conduct a hearing on the dispute, in which event it will decide on the date and place for the hearing and may request that written documentation and arguments from the Employer and the Contractor be presented to it prior to or at the hearing.

Except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Employer and the Contractor, the DB shall have power to adopt an inquisitorial procedure, to refuse admission to hearings or audience at hearings to any persons other than representatives of the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer, and to proceed in the absence of any party who the DB is satisfied received notice of the hearing; but shall have discretion to decide whether and to what extent this power may be exercised.

The Employer and the Contractor empower the DB, among other things, to:

(a) establish the procedure to be applied in deciding a dispute,

(b) decide upon the DB's own jurisdiction, and as to the scope of any dispute referred to it,

- (c) conduct any hearing as it thinks fit, not being bound by any rules or procedures other than those contained in the Contract and these Rules,
- (d) take the initiative in ascertaining the facts and matters required for a decision,
- (e) make use of its own specialist knowledge, if any,

ß

- (f) decide upon the payment of financing charges in accordance with the Contract,
- (g) decide upon any provisional relief such as interim or conservatory measures, and
- (h) open up, review and revise any certificate, decision, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, relevant to the dispute.

The DB shall not express any opinions during any hearing concerning the merits of any arguments advanced by the Parties. Thereafter, the DB shall make and give its decision in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4, or as otherwise agreed by the Employer and the Contractor in writing. If the DB comprises three persons:

- (a) it shall convene in private after a hearing, in order to have discussions and prepare its decision;
- (b) it shall endeavour to reach a unanimous decision: if this proves impossible the applicable decision shall be made by a majority of the Members, who may require the minority Member to prepare a written report for submission to the Employer and the Contractor; and
- (c) if a Member fails to attend a meeting or hearing, or to fulfil any required function, the other two Members may nevertheless proceed to make a decision, unless:
 - (i) either the Employer or the Contractor does not agree that they do so, or
 - (ii) the absent Member is the chairman and he/she instructs the other Members not to make a decision.

Issued to Mr. / M/S_____

Vide DR. No: _____ Dated ___ / ___ /2015

EXECUTIVE ENGINEER MACHINERY MAINTENANCE DIVISION KHAIRPUR @ SHIKARPUR

BID DOCUMENTS

FOR

IMPROVEMENT OF ROAD FROM MADEJI TO DAKHAN MILE 0/0-2/4 (4.02 KMS).

BID DOCUMENTS ARE PLACED IN THE FOLLOWING FOLDERS

VOLUME IA: TECHNICAL BID

- 1) INVITATION FOR BID
- 2) INSTRUCTION TO BIDDERS
- 3) **BIDDING DATA**
- 4) FORM OF BID AND APPENDICES TO BID
- 5) CONTRACT FORMS
- 6) GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT
- 7) SPECIAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

VOLUME II: DRAWINGS

VOLUME III: TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS

- P WD Specifications
- National Highway Authority (NHA) General Specifications (Dec 1998)
- Bidders are instructed to purchase the Specifications from the source of origin

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| CONTENTS | | Page No. |
|-------------------------|---|-------------|
| IN | VITATION FOR BIDS | 4 |
| INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS | | 6 |
| A. | General | |
| | IB.1 Scope of Bid | 7 |
| | IB.2 Source of Funds | 7 |
| | IB.3 Eligible Bidders | 7 |
| | IB.4 One Bid Per Bidder | 8 |
| | IB.5 Cost of Bidding IB.6 Site Visit | 8 |
| | IB.6 Site visit | 8 |
| B | Bidding Documents | |
| | IB.7 Contents of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| | IB.8 Clarification of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| | IB.9 Amendment of Bidding Documents | 9 |
| C. | Preparation of Bids | |
| | IB.10. Language of Bid | 10 |
| | IB.11 Documents Accompanying the Bid | 10 |
| | IB.12 Bid Prices | 11 |
| | IB.13 Currencies of Bid and Payment | 12 |
| | IB.14 Bid Validity | 12 |
| | IB.15 Bid Security IB.16 Alternate Proposals by Bidder | 13 |
| | IB.17 Pre-Bid Meeting | 13 13 |
| | IB.18 Format and Signing of Bid | 13 |
| D | Submission of Bids | |
| | IB.19 Sealing and Marking of Bids | 15 |
| | IB.20 Deadline for Submission of Bids | 15 |
| | IB.21 Late Bids | 15 |
| | IB.22 Modification, Substitution and Withdrawal of Bids | 16 |

E Bid Opening and Evaluation

| IB.23 Bid Opening | 16 |
|---|----|
| IB.24 Process to be Confidential | 10 |
| IB.25 Clarification of Bids | 17 |
| IB.26 Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness | 17 |
| IB.27 Correction of Errors | 18 |
| IB.28 Evaluation and Comparison of Bids | 10 |
| | 17 |

F Award of Contract

| IB.29 Award | 20 |
|--|----|
| IB.30 Procuring Agency's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids | 20 |
| IB.31 Notification of Award | 21 |
| IB.32 Performance Security | 21 |
| IB.33 Signing of Contract Agreement | 22 |
| IB.34 General Performance of the Bidders | 22 |
| IB.35 Integrity Pact | 22 |
| IB.36 Instructions Not Part of Contract | 23 |
| IB.37 Arbitration | 23 |
| | |

24

29

BIDDING DATA FORM OF BID AND APPENDICES TO BID

FORM OF BID

| Appendix-A to Bid | : | Special Stipulations | 32 |
|-------------------|---|--|----|
| Appendix-B to Bid | ; | Foreign Currency Requirements | 35 |
| Appendix-C to Bid | : | Price Adjustment (Under Clause 70) | 36 |
| Appendix-D to Bid | : | Bill of Quantities | 38 |
| Appendix-E to Bid | : | Proposed Construction Schedule | 51 |
| Appendix-F to Bid | : | Method of Performing the Work | 52 |
| Appendix-G to Bid | : | List of Major Equipment – Related Items | 53 |
| Appendix-H to Bid | : | Construction Camp and Housing Facilities | 55 |
| Appendix-I to Bid | : | List of Subcontractors | 56 |
| Appendix-J to Bid | : | Estimated Progress Payments | 57 |
| Appendix-K to Bid | : | Organization Chart of the Supervisory Staff and Labour | 58 |
| Appendix-L to Bid | : | Integrity Pact | 60 |

| FORMS | BID SECURITY | 61 |
|--------|------------------------------------|----|
| | PERFORMANCE SECURITY | 62 |
| | CONTRACT AGREEMENT | 66 |
| | MOBOLIZATION ADVANCE GURANTEE | 68 |
| | INDENTURE BOND FOR SECURED ADVANCE | 70 |
| PART-I | GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT | 74 |

INVITATION FOR BIDS
NOTICE INVITING TENDERS

Date: 13/03/2015

Provincial Government Funds: ADP No. 2417 (2014-15)

Bid Reference No:TC/G-55/272

Refer Invitation for Tenders issued by Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS

A. GENERAL

IB.1 Scope of Bid

- 1.1 Procuring agency as defined in the bidding data hereinafter called "the procuring agency" wishes to receive bids for the construction and completion of works as described in these bidding documents, and summarized in the bidding data hereinafter referred to as the "Works".
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the works within the time specified in Appendix-A to Bid.

IB.2 Source of Funds

2.1 Procuring agency has received/allocated/] applied for loan/grant/ Federal/ Provincial/Local Government funds from the source(s) indicated in the bidding data in various currencies towards the cost of the project /scheme specified in the bidding data, and it is intended that part of the proceeds of this loan/grant/funds will be applied to eligible payments under the contract for which these bidding documents are issued.

IB.3 Eligible Bidders

3.1 This Invitation for Bids is open to all interested bidders who are eligible under provisions of Sindh Public Procurement Rules as mentioned below and the criteria given in the Notice Inviting Tender (NIT)/ Bidding Document.

Firms and individuals, national are allowed to bid, for the project. Any conditions for participation shall be limited to those that are essential to ensure the bidder's capability to fulfill the contract in question.

- (a) Bidders may be excluded if;
 - (i) a firm is blacklisted/ debarred by the procuring agency and the matter has been reported to the Authority, subject to Rule 30 of Sindh Public Procurement Rules 2010.
- (b) Government-owned enterprises or institutions may participate only if they can establish that they are;
 - (i) legally and financially autonomous, and
 - (ii) operate under commercial law.

Provided that where government-owned universities or research centers in the country are of a unique and exceptional nature, and their participation is critical to project implementation, they may be allowed to participate; and

Bidders shall include all those contractors who are registered or incorporated in Pakistan, irrespective of the nationality of their owners and professional staff, or

- (c) Bidders are:-
 - (i) registered with Pakistan Engineering Council in particular category and discipline,
 - (ii) registered with relevant tax authorities (income/sales tax, wherever applicable)

IB.4 One Bid per Bidder

4.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid either by himself, or as a partner in a joint venture. A bidder who submits or participates in more than one bid (other than alternatives pursuant to Clause IB.16) will be disqualified.

IB.5 Cost of Bidding

5.1 The bidders shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of their respective bids, and the procuring agency will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

IB.6 Site Visit

- 6.1 The bidders are advised to visit and examine the site of works and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the bid and entering into a contract for construction of the works. All cost in this respect shall be at the bidder's own expense.
- 6.2 The bidders and any of their personnel or agents will be granted permission by the procuring agency to enter upon his premises and lands for the purpose of such inspection, but only upon the express condition that the bidders, their personnel and agents, will release and indemnify the procuring agency, his personnel and agents from and against all liability in respect thereof and will be responsible for death or personal injury, loss of or damage to property and any other loss, damage, costs and expenses incurred as a result of such inspection.

B. BIDDING DOCUMENTS

IB.7 Contents of Bidding Documents (SSP RULE 21)

- 7.1 The bidding documents, in addition to invitation for bids, are those stated below and should be read in conjunction with any addenda issued in accordance with Clause IB.9.
 - a. Instructions to Bidders.
 - b. Bidding Data.
 - c. General Conditions of Contract, Part-I (GCC).
 - d. Special Conditions of Contract, Part-II (SCC)
 - e. Specifications.
 - f. Form of Bid and Appendices to Bid.
 - g. Bill of Quantities (Appendix-D to Bid).
 - h. Form of Bid Security.
 - i. Form of Contract Agreement.
 - j. Forms of Performance Security, Mobilization Advance Guarantee, Integrity Pact and Indenture bond for secured advance.
 - k. Drawings.

7.2

2 The bidders are expected to examine carefully the contents of all the above documents. Failure to comply with the requirements of bid submission will be at the bidder's own risk. Pursuant to Clause IB.26, bids which are not substantially responsive to the requirements of the BD will be rejected.

IB.8 Clarification of Bidding Documents (SSP RULE 23(1)):

Any interested bidder requiring any clarification(s) in respect of the bidding documents may notify the procuring agency in writing at the procuring agency's address indicated in the Invitation for Bids/NIT. Procuring agency will respond to any request for clarification provided they are received at least five calendar days prior to the date of opening of bid.

Provided that any clarification in response to query by any bidder; shall be communicated to all parties who have obtained bidding documents.

IB.9 Addendum/Modification of Bidding Documents:

- 9.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the procuring agency may, for any reason, whether at his own initiative or in response to a clarification requested by a interested bidder, modify the bidding documents by issuing addendum.
- 9.2 Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the bidding documents pursuant to subclause IB 7.1 hereof and shall be communicated in writing to all bidders. Interested bidders shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in writing to the procuring agency.
- 9.3 To afford bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the procuring agency may extend the deadline for submission of bids in accordance with IB.20

C. PREPARATION OF BIDS

IB.10 Language of Bid

10.1 The bid and all correspondence and documents related to the bid exchanged by a bidder and the procuring agency shall be in the language stipulated in the bidding data and Special Conditions of the Contract. Supporting documents and printed literature furnished by the bidders may be in any other language provided the same are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant parts in the bid language, in which case, for purposes of evaluation of the bid, the translation in bid language shall prevail.

IB.11 Documents Accompanying the Bid

- 11.1 Each bidder shall:
 - (a) submit a written authorization on the letterhead of the bidding firm, authorizing the signatory of the bid to act for and on behalf of the bidder;
 - (b) update the information indicated and listed in the bidding data and previously submitted with the application for prequalification, and continue to meet the minimum criteria set out in the prequalification documents, which as a minimum, would include the following:
 - (i) Evidence of access to financial resources along with average annual construction turnover;
 - (ii) Financial predictions for the current year and the following two years, including the effect of known commitments;
 - (iii) Work commitments since prequalification;
 - (iv) Current litigation information; and
 - (v) Availability of critical equipment.

And

(c) furnish a technical proposal taking into account the various Appendices to Bid specially the following:

Appendix-E to Bid Proposed Construction Schedule Appendix-F to Bid Method of Performing the Work Appendix-G to Bid List of Major Equipment Appendix-K to Bid Organization Chart for Supervisory Staff and other pertinent information such as mobilization programme etc;

11.2 Bids submitted by a joint venture of two (2) or more firms shall comply with the following requirements:

- (a) one of the joint venture partners shall be nominated as being in charge; and this authorization shall be evidenced by submitting a power of attorney signed by legally authorized signatories of all the joint venture partners;
- (b) the bid, and in case of a successful bid, the Form of Contract Agreement shall be signed by the authorized partner so as to be legally binding on all partners;
- (c) the partner-in-charge shall always be duly authorized to deal with the procuring agency regarding all matters related with and/or incidental to the execution of works as per the terms and Conditions of Contract and in this regard to incur any and all liabilities, receive instructions, give binding undertakings and receive payments on behalf of the joint venture;
- (d) all partners of the joint venture shall at all times and under all circumstances be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the contract in accordance with the contract terms and a statement to this effect shall be included in the authorization mentioned under Sub-Para (a) above as well as in the Form of Bid and in the Form of Contract Agreement (in case of a successful bid);
- (e) a copy of the agreement entered into by the joint venture partners shall be submitted with the bid stating the conditions under which it will function, its period of duration, the persons authorized to represent and obligate it and which persons will be directly responsible for due performance of the contract and can give valid receipts on behalf of the joint venture, the proportionate participation of the several firms forming the joint venture, and any other information necessary to permit a full appraisal of its functioning. No amendments / modifications whatsoever in the joint venture agreement shall be agreed to between the joint venture partners without prior written consent of the procuring agency;
- (f) submission of an alternative Letter of Intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement shall be mandatory.
- 11.2 Bidders shall also submit proposals of work methods and schedule, in sufficient detail to demonstrate the adequacy of the bidders" proposals to meet the technical specifications and the completion time referred to sub- clause IB 1.2 hereof.

IB.12 Bid Prices

- 12.1 Unless stated otherwise in the bidding documents, the contract shall be for the whole of the works as described in IB 1.1 hereof, based on the unit rates or prices submitted by the bidder or percentage quoted above or below on the rates of Composite Schedule of Rates (CSR), as the case may be.
- 12.2 The bidders shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the works described in the Bill of Quantities. Items against which no rate or price is entered by a bidder will not be paid for by the procuring agency when executed and shall be deemed to be covered by rates and prices for other items in the Bill of Quantities. In case of Composite Schedule of Rates, if the bidder fails to mention the percentage above or below, it shall be deemed to be at par with the rates of Composite Schedule of Rates.

12.3 The bid price submitted by the contractor shall include all rates and prices including the taxes. All duties, taxes and other levies payable by the contractor under the contract, or for any other cause during the currency of the execution of the work or otherwise specified in the contract as on the date seven days prior to the deadline for submission of bids.

Additional / reduced duties, taxes and levies due to subsequent additions or changes in legislation shall be reimbursed / deducted as per Sub-Clause 13.7 of the General Conditions of Contract Part-I.

12.4 The rates and prices quoted by the bidders are subject to adjustment during the performance of the contract in accordance with the provisions of Clause 13.7of GCC. The bidders shall furnish the prescribed information for the price adjustment formulae in Appendix-C to Bid, and shall submit with their bids such other supporting information as required under the said Clause. Adjustment in prices quoted by bidders shall be allowed as per Sub-Para 4(ii) of Section C of Instructions to bidders and bidding data.

IB.13 Currencies of Bid and Payment

- 13.1 The unit rates and the prices shall be quoted by the bidder entirely in Pak rupees. A bidder expecting to incur expenditures in other currencies for inputs to the works supplied from outside the procuring agency's country (referred to as the "Foreign Currency Requirements") shall indicate the same in Appendix-B to Bid. The proportion of the bid price (excluding Provisional Sums) needed by him for the payment of such Foreign Currency Requirements either (i) entirely in the currency of the bidder's home country or, (ii) at the bidder's option, entirely in Pak rupees provided always that a bidder expecting to incur expenditures in a currency or currencies other than those stated in (i) and (ii) above for a portion of the foreign currency requirements, and wishing to be paid accordingly, shall indicate the respective portions in the bid.
- 13.2 The rates of exchange to be used by the bidder for currency conversion shall be the selling rates published and authorized by the State Bank of Pakistan prevailing on the date, 07 (seven) days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. For the purpose of payments, the exchange rates used in bid preparation shall apply for the duration of the contract.

IB.14 Bid Validity

- 14.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period stipulated in the bidding data from the date of opening of bid specified in clause IB.23.
- 14.2 In exceptional circumstances, prior to expiry of the original, the procuring agency may request the bidders to extend the period of validity for a specified additional period, which shall not be for more than one third of the original period of bid validity. The request and the responses thereto, shall be made in writing. A bidder may refuse the request without the forfeiture of the bid security. In case, a bidder agreed to the request, shall not be required or permitted to modify the bid, but will be required to extend the validity of the bid security for the period of the extension, and in compliance with Clause IB.15 in all respects.

IB.15 Bid Security

- 15.1 Each bidder shall furnish, as part of the bid, a bid security in the amount stipulated in the bidding data in Pak Rupees or an equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.
- 15.2 The bid security shall be at the option of the bidder, in the form of deposit at call, Pay order or a bank guarantee issued by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or from a foreign bank duly counter guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan in favour of the procuring agency, which should commensurate with the bid validity period. The bank guarantee for bid security shall be acceptable in the manner as provided at Annexure BS-1
- 15.3 Any bid not accompanied by an acceptable bid security shall be rejected by the procuring agency as non-responsive.
- 15.4 Bid security shall be released to the unsuccessful bidders once the contract has been signed with the successful bidder or the validity period has expired.
- 15.5 The bid security of the successful bidder shall be returned when the bidder has furnished the required Performance Security and signed the Contract Agreement.
- 15.6 The bid security may be forfeited:
 - (a) if the bidder withdraws his bid except as provided in sub- clause IB 22.1;
 - (b) if the bidder does not accept the correction of his bid price pursuant to subclause IB 27.2 hereof; or
 - (c) In the case of successful bidder, if he fails within the specified time limit to:
 - (i) furnish the required Performance Security; or
 - (ii) sign the Contract Agreement.

IB.16 Alternate Proposals/Bids

- 16.1 Each bidder shall submit only one bid either by himself, or as a member of a joint venture, until and unless they have been requested or permitted for alternative bid, then he has to purchase separate bidding documents and alternate bid shall be treated as separate bid.
- 16.2 Alternate proposals are allowed only for procurement of works where technical complexity is involved and more than one designs or technical solutions are being offered. Two stage two envelope bidding procedure will be appropriate when alternate proposal is required.
- 16.3 Alternate bid(s) shall contain (a) relevant design calculations; (b) technical specifications; (c) proposed construction methodology; and (d) any other relevant details / conditions, provided that the total sum entered on the Form of Bid shall be that which represents complete compliance with the bidding documents.

IB.17 Pre-Bid Meeting

17.1 Procuring agency may, on his own motion or at the request of any bidder, hold a prebid meeting to clarify issues and to answer any questions on matters related to the bidding documents. The date, time and venue of pre-bid meeting, if convened, shall be communicated to all bidders. All bidders or their authorized representatives shall be invited to attend such a pre-bid meeting at their own expense.

- 17.2 The bidders are requested to submit questions, if any, in writing so as to reach the Procuring agency not later than seven (7) days before the proposed pre-bid meeting.
- 17.3 Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions raised and the replies given, will be transmitted without delay to all bidders. Any modification of the bidding documents listed in sub- clause IB 7.1 hereof, which may become necessary as a result of the pre-bid meeting shall be made by the procuring agency exclusively through the issue of an Addendum pursuant to Clause IB.9 and not through the minutes of the pre-bid meeting.
- 17.4 Absence at the pre-bid meeting will not be a cause for disqualification of a bidder.

IB.18 Format and Signing of Bid

- 18.1 Bidders are particularly directed that the amount entered on the Form of Bid shall be for performing the contract strictly in accordance with the bidding documents.
- 18.2 All appendices to bid are to be properly completed and signed.
- 18.3 Alteration is not to be made neither in the form of bid nor in the Appendices thereto except in filling up the blanks as directed. If any such alterations be made or if these instructions be not fully complied with, the bid may be rejected.
- 18.4 Each bidder shall prepare by filling out the forms without alterations and shall provide an original copy along with photocopies as per the requirement of the procuring agency specified in the bidding data. The original as well as copies of the document shall be clearly marked as "ORIGINAL" and "COPY", as the case may be. If there is any discrepancy between original and copy(ies) then the original shall prevail.
- 18.5 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink (in the case of copies, Photostats are also acceptable) and shall be signed by a person(s) duly authorized to sign on behalf of the bidder pursuant to sub- clause IB 11.1(a) hereof. All pages of the bid shall be initialled and stamped by the person(s) signing the bid.
- 18.6 The bid shall contain no alterations, omissions or additions, except to comply with instructions issued by the procuring agency, or as are necessary to correct errors made by the bidder. Such corrections shall be initialled by the person(s) signing the bid.
- 18.7 Bidders shall indicate in the space provided in the Form of Bid their full and proper postal addresses at which notices may be legally served on them and to which all correspondence in connection with their bids and the contract is to be sent.
- 18.8 Bidders should retain a copy of the bidding documents as their file copy.

D. SUBMISSION OF BIDS

IB.19 Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 19.1 Each bidder shall submit his bid as under:
 - (a) ORIGINAL and _____COPIES of the bid shall be separately sealed and put in separate envelopes and marked as such.
 - (b) The envelopes containing the ORIGINAL and COPIES shall be put in one sealed envelope and addressed as given in sub clause IB 19.2 hereof.
- 19.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) be addressed to the procuring agency at the address provided in the bidding data;
 - (b) bear the name and identification number of the contract as defined in the bidding data; and
 - (c) provide a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening, as specified in the bidding data.
- 19.3 In addition to the identification required in sub- clause IB 19.2 hereof, the inner envelope shall indicate the name and postal address of the bidder to enable the bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared "late" pursuant to Clause IB.21
- 19.4 If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, the procuring agency will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.

IB.20 Deadline for Submission of Bids

- 20.1 (a) Bids must be received by the procuring agency at the address specified not later than the time and date stipulated in the bidding data,
 - (b) Bids with charges payable will not be accepted, nor will arrangements be undertaken to collect the bids from any delivery point other than that specified above. Bidders shall bear all expenses incurred in the preparation and delivery of bids. No claims shall be entertained for refund of such expenses,
 - (c) Where delivery of a bid is by mail and the bidder wishes to receive an acknowledgment of receipt of such bid, he shall make a request for such acknowledgment in a separate letter attached to but not included in the sealed bid package,
 - (d) Upon request, acknowledgment of receipt of bids will be provided to those making delivery in person or by messenger.
- 20.2 The Procuring Agency may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for submission of bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with IB 09. In such case, all rights and obligations of the procuring agency and the bidders shall remain the same as mentioned in the original deadline.

IB.21 Late Bids

- (a) any bid received by the procuring agency after the deadline for submission of bids prescribed in to clause IB 20 shall be returned unopened to such bidder.
- (b) delays in the mail, person in transit, or delivery of a bid to the wrong office shall not be accepted as an excuse for failure to deliver a bid at the proper place and time. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to submit the bid in time.

IB.22 Modification, Substitution and Withdrawal of Bids

- 22.1 Any bidder may modify, substitute or withdraw his bid after bid submission provided that the modification, substitution or written notice of withdrawal is received by the procuring agency prior to the deadline for submission of bids.
- 22.2 The modification, substitution, or notice for withdrawal of any bid shall be prepared, sealed, marked and delivered in accordance with the provisions of Clause IB.19 with the outer and inner envelopes additionally marked "MODIFICATION", "SUBSTITUTION" or "WITHDRAWAL" as appropriate.
- 22.3 No bid may be modified by a bidder after the deadline for submission of bids except in accordance with to sub clauses IB 22.1 and IB 27.2.
- 22.4 Withdrawal of a bid during the interval between the deadlines for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified in the Form of Bid may result in forfeiture of the bid security in pursuance to clause IB 15.

E. BID OPENING AND EVALUATION.

IB.23 Bid Opening

- 23.1 Procuring agency will open the bids, including withdrawals, substitution and modifications made pursuant to Clause IB.22, in the presence of bidders" representatives who choose to attend, at the time, date and location stipulated in the bidding data. The bidders or their representatives who are in attendance shall sign an attendance sheet.
- 23.2 Envelopes marked "MODIFICATION", "SUBSTITUTION" or "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out first. Bids for which an acceptable notice of withdrawal has been submitted pursuant to clause IB.22 shall not be opened.
- 23.3 Procuring agency shall read aloud the name of the bidder, total bid price and price of any Alternate Proposal(s), if any, discounts, bid modifications, substitution and withdrawals, the presence or absence of bid security, and such other details as the procuring agency may consider appropriate, and total amount of each bid, and of any alternative bids if they have been requested or permitted, shall be read aloud and recorded when opened.
- 23.4 Procuring Agency shall prepare minutes of the bid opening, including the information disclosed to those present in accordance with the sub-clause IB.23.3.

IB.24 Process to be Confidential. (SPP Rule 53)

24.1 Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation and comparison of bid and recommendations for the award of a contract shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other person not officially concerned with such process before the announcement of bid evaluation report in accordance with the requirements of Rule 45, which states that Procuring agencies shall announce the results of bid evaluation in the form of a report giving reasons for acceptance or rejection of bids. The report shall be hoisted on website of authority and that of procuring agency if it website exists and intimated to all bidders at least seven (7) days prior to the award of contract The announcement to all bidders will include table(s) comprising read out prices, discounted prices, price adjustments made, final evaluated prices and recommendations against all the bids evaluated. Any effort by a bidder to influence the procuring agency's processing of bids or award decisions may result in the rejection of such bidder's bid. Whereas, any bidder feeling aggrieved, may lodge a written complaint as per Rule 31; however mere fact of lodging a complaint shall not warrant suspension of the procurement process.

IB.25 Clarification of Bid (SPP Rule 43)

25.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation and comparison of bids, the procuring agency may, at its discretion, ask any bidder for clarification of the bid, including breakdowns of unit rates. The request for clarification and the response shall be in writing but no change in the price or substance of the bid shall be sought, offered or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the procuring agency in the evaluation of the bids in accordance with clause IB 28.

IB.26 Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness

- 26.1 Prior to the detailed evaluation of bids, the procuring agency will determine whether the bidder fulfils all codal requirements of eligibility criteria given in the tender notice such as registration with tax authorities, registration with PEC (where applicable), turnover statement, experience statement, and any other condition mentioned in the NIT and bidding document. If the bidder does not fulfill any of these conditions, it shall not be evaluated further.
- 26.2 Once found to be fulfilling the eligibility criteria, as mentioned in sub- clause 26.1, the bids of eligible bidders will be evaluated for technical responsiveness as per specification and criteria given in the bidding documents. Technical and financial evaluations may be carried out in accordance with single stage-single one envelope, single stage-two envelopes, two stage or two stage-two envelopes bidding procedures, depending on the selection procedure adopted by the procuring agency.
- 26.3 A bid will be considered technically responsive if it (i) has been properly signed; (ii) is accompanied by the required bid security; and (iii) conforms to all the terms, conditions and specifications of the bidding documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (i) which affect in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the works; (ii) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding documents, the procuring agency's rights or the bidder's obligations under the contract; or (iii) adoption/rectification whereof would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.

26.4 If a bid has major deviations to the commercial requirements and technical specifications will be considered technically non responsive. As a general rule, major deviations are those that if accepted, would not fulfil the purposes for which the bid is requested, or would prevent a fair comparison or affect the ranking of the bids that are compliant with the bidding documents.

(A). Major (material) Deviations include:-

- (i) has been not properly signed;
- (ii) is not accompanied by the bid security of required amount and manner;
- (iii) stipulating price adjustment when fixed price bids were called for;
- (iv) failing to respond to specifications;
- (v) failing to comply with Mile-stones/Critical dates provided in Bidding Documents;
- sub-contracting contrary to the Conditions of Contract specified in Bidding Documents;
- (vii) refusing to bear important responsibilities and liabilities allocated in the Bidding Documents, such as performance guarantees and insurance coverage;
- (viii) taking exception to critical provisions such as applicable law, taxes and duties and dispute resolution procedures;
- (ix) a material deviation or reservation is one :
 - (a) which affect in any substantial way the scope, quality or performance of the works;
 - (b) adoption/rectification whereof would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.

(B) Minor Deviations

Bids that offer deviations acceptable to the Procuring Agency and which can be assigned a monetary value may be considered substantially responsive at least as to the issue of fairness. This value would however be added as an adjustment for evaluation purposes only during the detailed evaluation process.

26.5 If a bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the procuring agency, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the non-conforming deviation or reservation.

IB.27 Correction of Errors before Financial Evaluation

- 27.1 Bids determined to be substantially responsive will be checked by the procuring agency for any arithmetic errors. Errors will be corrected by the procuring agency as follows:
 - (a) where there is a discrepancy between the amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will govern; and
 - (b) where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will govern, unless in the opinion of the procuring agency there is an obviously gross misplacement of the decimal point in the unit rate, in which case the line item total as quoted will govern and the unit rate will be corrected.

27.2 The amount stated in the Form of Bid will be adjusted by the procuring agency in accordance with the above procedure for the correction of errors and with the concurrence of the bidders. The amount thus corrected shall be considered as binding upon the bidder. If the bidder does not accept the corrected bid price, his bid will be rejected, and the bid security shall be forfeited in accordance with sub-clause IB 15.6(b) hereof.

IB.28 Financial Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

- 28.1 The procuring agency will evaluate and compare only the Bids determined to be substantially responsive in accordance with clause IB 26.
- 28.2 In evaluating the Bids, the procuring agency will determine for each bid the evaluated bid price by adjusting the bid price as follows:
 - (a) making any correction for errors pursuant to clause IB 27;
 - (b) excluding provisional sums (if any), for contingencies in the Summary Bill of Quantities, but including competitively priced Day work; and
 - (c) making an appropriate adjustment for any other acceptable variation or deviation.
- 28.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the conditions of contract, applied over the period of execution of the contract, shall not be taken into account in bid evaluation.
- 28.4 If the bid of the successful bidder is seriously unbalanced in relation to the procuring agency's estimate of the cost of work to be performed under the contract, the procuring agency may require the bidder to produce detailed price analyses for any or all items of the Bill of Quantities to demonstrate the internal consistency of those prices with the construction methods and schedule proposed. After evaluation of the price analyses, the procuring agency may require that the amount of the Performance Security set forth in clause IB.32 be increased at the expense of the successful bidder to a level sufficient to protect the procuring agency against financial loss in the event of default of the successful bidder under the contract.
- 28.5 Bidders may be excluded if involved in "**Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices**" means either one or any combination of the practices given below SPP Rule2(q);
 - (i) "Coercive Practice" means any impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence the actions of a party to achieve a wrongful gain or to cause a wrongful loss to another party;
 - (ii) "Collusive Practice" means any arrangement between two or more parties to the procurement process or contract execution, designed to achieve with or without the knowledge of the procuring agency to establish prices at artificial, non competitive levels for any wrongful gain;
 - (iii) "Corrupt Practice" means the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence the acts of another party for wrongful gain;

- (iv) "Fraudulent Practice" means any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;
- (v) "Obstructive Practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly, persons or their property to influence their participation in a procurement process, or affect the execution of a contract or deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements before investigators in order to materially impede an investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or acts intended to materially impede the exercise of inspection and audit rights provided for under the Rules.

28.6 Evaluation Report (SPP Rule 45)

After the completion of evaluation process, as described in clauses IB 27 and IB 28, the procuring agency shall announce the results of bid evaluation in the form of report (available on the website of the authority) giving reasons for acceptance and rejection of bid. The report shall be hoisted on website of the authority and that of procuring agencies if its website exists and intimated to all bidders at least seven (7) days prior to the award of contract.

F. AWARD OF CONTRACT

IB.29 Award (SPP Rule 49)

- 29.1 Subject to clauses IB 30 and IB 34 and provision of the rule: The procuring agency shall award the contract to the bidder whose bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding documents, and who has offered the lowest evaluated bid, but not necessarily the lowest submitted price, within the original or extended period of bid validity. Provided that such bidder has been determined to be eligible in accordance with the provisions of clause IB 03 and qualify pursuant to subclause IB 29.2.
- 29.2 Procuring agency, at any stage of the bid evaluation, having credible reasons for or having prima facie evidence of any deficiency(ies) in contractor's capacities, may require the contractor to provide information concerning their professional, technical, financial, legal or managerial competence whether already pre-qualified or not for the said project.

Provided, that such qualification shall only be laid down after recording reasons thereof, in writing. They shall form part of the records of that bid evaluation report.

IB.30 Procuring Agency's Right to reject all Bids or Annul/Cancellation the Bidding Process (SPP Rule 25)

Notwithstanding clause IB 29 and provision of the rule: (1) A procuring agency reserves may cancel the bidding process at any time prior to the acceptance of a bid or proposal; (2) The procuring agency shall incur no liability towards bidders solely by

virtue of its invoking sub-rule (1); (3) Intimation of the cancellation of bidding process shall be given promptly to all bidders and bid security shall be returned along with such intimation; (4) The procuring agency shall, upon request by any of the bidders, communicate to such bidder, grounds for cancellation of the bidding process, but is not required to justify such grounds.

IB.31 Notification/Publication of the Award of Contract (SPP Rule 25).

- 31.1 Prior to expiry of the period of bid validity, including extension, prescribed by the procuring agency, the procuring agency shall notify the successful bidder in writing ("Letter of Acceptance") that his bid has been accepted. This letter shall mention the sum which the procuring agency will pay to the contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the works by the contractor as prescribed by the contract (hereinafter and in the conditions of contract called the "Contract Price").
- 31.2 No negotiation with the bidder having evaluated as lowest responsive or any other bidder shall be permitted, however, procuring agency may hold meetings to clarify any item in the bid evaluation report.
- 31.3 The notification of award and its acceptance by the bidder will constitute the formation of the contract, binding the procuring agency and the bidder till signing of the formal Contract Agreement.
- 31.4 Upon furnishing by the successful bidder of a Performance Security and signing of the contract, the procuring agency will promptly notify the name of the successful bidder to all bidders and return their bid securities accordingly.
- 31.5 Within seven days of the award of contract, procuring agency shall publish on the website of the Authority and on its own website, if such a website exists, the results of the bidding process, identify the bid through procurement identifying numbers, and the following information:
 - (1) Evaluation Report;
 - (2) Form of Contract and letter of Award;
 - (3) Bill of Quantities or Schedule of Requirement.

31.6 Debriefing (SPP Rule 51).

- (a) A bidder may ask the procuring agency for reasons for non acceptance of his bid and may request for a debriefing meeting and procuring agency shall give him the reasons for such non acceptance, either in writing or by holding a debriefing meeting with such a bidder.
- (b) The requesting bidder shall bear all the costs of attending such a debriefing.

IB.3? Performance Security (SPP Rule 39)

32.1 The successful bidder shall furnish to the procuring agency a Performance Security in the form of pay order or demand draft or bank guarantee, and the amount stipulated in

the bidding data and the Conditions of Contract within a period of 28 days after the receipt of Letter of Acceptance.

- 32.2 Failure of the successful bidder to comply with the requirements of Sub-clause IB.32.1 or clauses IB 33 or IB 35 shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the bid security.
- 32.3 Validity of performance security shall extend at least ninety days beyond the date of completion of contract, or as mentioned in the bidding data to cover defects liability period or maintenance period subject to final acceptance by the procuring agency.

IB.33 Signing of Contract Agreement (SPP Rule 39)

- 33.1 Within 14 days from the date of furnishing of acceptable Performance Security under the Conditions of Contract, the procuring agency will send the successful bidder the Contract Agreement in the form provided in the bidding documents, incorporating all agreements between the parties.
- 33.2 The formal Agreement between the procuring agency and the successful bidder shall be executed within 14 days of the receipt of the Contract Agreement by the successful bidder from the procuring agency.
- 33.3 A procurement contract shall come into force when the procuring agency requires signs contract, the date on which the signatures of both the procuring agency and the successful bidder are affixed to the written contract. Such affixing of signatures shall take place within the time prescribed in the bidding documents.

Provided that the procuring agency may reduce the maximum time limit for signing of contract, as and when required, and shall be mentioned in the bidding documents.

33.4 Stamp Duty.

The formal Agreement between the Procuring Agency and the successful bidder shall be duly stamped at rate of ----% of bid price (updated from time to time) stated in Letter of Acceptance

2IB.34 General Performance of the Bidders

Procuring agency may in case of consistent poor performance of the contractor and his failure to remedy the underperforming contract may take such action as may be deemed appropriate under the circumstances of the case including the rescinding the contract and/or black listing of such contractor and debarring him from participation in future bidding process.

IB.35 Integrity Pact (SPP Rule 89)

The bidder shall sign and stamp the Integrity Pact provided at Appendix-L to the bidding documents for all Provincial/Local Government procurement contracts exceeding Rupees ten million. Failure to provide such Integrity Pact shall make the bidder non-responsive.

IB.36 Instructions not Part of Contract

Bids shall be prepared and submitted in accordance with these Instructions which are provided to assist bidders in preparing their bids, and do not constitute part of the bid or the Contract Documents.

IB.37 Arbitration (SPP Rule 34)

Any dispute that is not amicably resolved shall be finally settled, unless otherwise specified in the Contract, under the Arbitration Act 1940 updated from time to time and would be held anywhere in the Province of Sindh at the discretion of procuring agency.

BIDDING DATA

,

Contact/Bidding Data

Instructions to Bidders

Clause Reference

-

- 1.1 Name and address of the procuring agency: Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726 -920181, Fax No. : 0726 -920181.
- 1.2 Name of the Project and Summary of the works:

<u>Name of Project:</u> Block provision for Improvement of roads in Sindh

Name of Work:

Improvement of road from Madeji to Dakhan Mile 0/0-2/4 (4.02 Kms).

The Works will involve following major activities:

- Formation of Embankment from roadway and borrow excavation
- Base Course, Asphaltic Wearing Course.
- Brick Masonry R.C.C. Slab Culverts.
- 1.2 The successful bidder will be expected to complete the works within the time specified in Special Stipulations (Appendix-A).
- 2.1 Name of the Funding Source; Funds provided by the Government of Sindh

Allocation for 2014-15 Pak Rs. 440.00 million (Block Allocation).

- 3. Eligibility conditions for intending participants are as under :
 - i. Registration with Pakistan Engineering Council in the relevant field of specialization of work and to the extent of tender amount of work.
 - ii. Bio data of Engineers, technical staff and other management personals working with the firm.
 - iii. Documentary evidence of works executed/works in progress and certificate of satisfactory completion of works by the employees for the last three years in progress indicating cost of each work and copy of letter.
 - iv. List of machinery and equipment available with firm with documentary evidence.
 - v. Undertaking regarding litigations pending / finalized.
 - vi. Certificates of Bank showing credit worthiness along with Bank statement for last three years.
 - vii. Registration with Income Tax Department (NTN Certificate) and copy of CNIC.
 - viii. Affidavit to the effect that the firm / contractor have not been black listed previously by any executing agency.

- ix. Affidavit with effect that all documents / particulars / information furnished all true and correct.
- x. In case of firm, list of partners / partnership deed, giving full particulars of directors / proprietors or others connected alongwith power of attorney. In case of being sole proprietors such undertaking on affidavit be furnished.

8.1 Time limit for clarification: The written clarification should reach the addressee of the NIT on any working day but not later than 7 working days prior to last date of bid submission.

10.1 Bid language: Bid language is English

- 11.1(a) The bidder along with letter of authorization shall submit the (i) Registration Certificate with Sindh Revenue Board, Government of Sindh (ii) PEC Registration Certificate for 2014 in category C1 CE01 & CE-02 (iii) NTN Certifiacte (iv) Professional Tax payment. The failure to submit above mentioned documents shall lead to rejection of bid.
- 11.1(b) Deleted
- 11.1(c) Add following The bidder shall submit the detailed CVs of proposed staff as per the requiremnet laid down in Appendix K. It is manadotry for the successful bidder to mobilize the same staff proposed in Appendix K after approval from the Engineer
- 13.1 Bidders to quote entirely in Pak. Rupee The currency of Bid is Pakistan Rupee (PKR). All payment will be made in PKR only
- 13.2 IB Clause 13.2 is Not applicable
- 14.1 Period of Bid Validity: Period of Bid Validity shall be 90 days
- 15.1 Amount of Bid Security: The amount of the Bid Security shall be PKR 1.00 million
- 16.1 Alternate Proposals/Bid

Alternative bids is not permitted, Alternative times for completion is not permitted, Alternative technical solutions is not permitted for any part of the Works

17.1 Venue, time, and date of the pre-Bid meeting:

At the office of the Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Date: As per Invitation for Bid

- 18.4 Number of copies of the bid to be completed and returned: Original + One Copy
- 19.2 (a) Procuring Agency's address for the purpose of bid submission: Executive Engineer, Machiner Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur Behind D.C.Office, Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726-920181 Fax No. : 0726-920181
 - (b) Name and Identification Number of the Contract:

Improvement of road from Madeji to Dakhan Mile 0/0-2/4 (4.02 Kms).

20.1 (a) Deadline for submission of bids:

Date: As per Invitation for Bid (13-04-2015). Time: As per Invitation for Bid (01:00 PM)

(b) Venue, time, and date of bid opening:

Venue: Office of the Executive Engineer, Machinery Miaintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarpur behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Date: As per Opening of Bid (14-04-2015). Time As per Opening of Bid (02:00 P.M).

- 28.4 If the successful bidder failed to submit Performance Security of increased amount within fourteen (14) days of demand by the PA, his bid shall be cancelled and his bid security shall be forfeited.
- 32.1 Standard form and amount of Performance Security acceptable to the procuring agency:

The performance security will be in the form of a "unconditional, irrevocable and acceptable bank guarantee" in the amount of 5% (Five percent) of the Accepted Contract Amount acceptable to the Procuring Agency in the attached format

32.3 Validity of performance security

The Performance Security shall be valid for a period 90 days after the date of issue of defects liability certificate

33.4 Stamp duty

The Contract will be executed on a non-judicial stamp paper of the value @ 0.30% of the contract value. The cost of the stamp duty shall be borne by the successful bidder. [0.30% may vary depending upon the rules applicable at the time of signing the Contract]

33.4 Stamp duty

The Contract will be executed on a non-judicial stamp paper of the value @ 0.30% of the contract value. The cost of the stamp duty shall be borne by the successful bidder. [0.30% may vary depending upon the rules applicable at the time of signing the Contract]

FORM OF BID AND APPENDICES TO BID

FORM OF BID

| Bid | Reference No |
|-----|--|
| To: | |
| | |
| 1. | Having examined the bidding documents including Instructions to Bidders, Bidding Data, and Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings and Bill of Quantities and Addenda Nos for the execution of the above-named work, we/I, the undersigned, offer to execute and complete the work and remedy any defects therein in conformity with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications, Drawings, Bill of Quantities and Addenda for the sum of Rs |
| | other sum as may be ascertained in accordance with the said conditions. |
| 2. | We/I understand that all the Appendices attached hereto form part of this bid. |
| 3. | As security for due performance of the undertakings and obligations of this bid, we/I submit herewith a bid security in the amount of Rupees |
| 4. | We/I undertake, if our bid is accepted, to commence the works and to complete the whole of the works comprised in the contract within the time stated in Appendix-A to Bid. |
| 5. | We/I agree to abide by this bid for the period of days from the date fixed for opening the same and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period. |
| 6. | Unless and until a formal Agreement is prepared and executed, this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof, shall constitute a binding contract between us. |
| 7. | We do hereby declare that the bid is made without any collusion, comparison of figures or arrangement with any other bidder for the works. |
| 8. | We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any bid you may receive. |
| 9. | We undertake, if our/my bid is accepted, to execute the Performance Security referred to in Clause 10 of Conditions of Contract for the due performance of the Contract. |
| 10. | We confirm, if our bid is accepted, that all partners of the joint venture shall be liable jointly and severally for the execution of the Contract and the composition or the |

constitution of the joint venture shall not be altered without the prior consent of the procuring agency. (Please delete this in case of Bid form a single bidder)

| in the capacity | | duly Dated | authorized this | to sig da | n Bids ay of | for | and | on | behalf _20 | of |
|-----------------------|---|---------------|-----------------------|--------------|-----------------|-----|-----|----|---------------|--------|
| | S | Signature: | | | | | | | | |
| . | | (Name of | Bidder in B (Seal) | lock Ca | pitals) | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | | - | |
| Witness: | | | | | | | | | | |
| Signature: Narr e: | | | | | | | | | | |
| Addiress: | | | | | | | | | | |
| Occupation: | | | | - · · · - | | | | | - | |

(31)

Appendix-A to Bid

| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
|----|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|--|
| 1 | Employer's name and address | 1.1.2.2 & 1.3 | Works & Service Department Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division Khairpur @ Shikarp, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. Telephone No: 0726-920181 Fax No: 0726-920181 Employer's Representative, Executive Engineer, |
| 2 | Sections | 1.1.5.6 | Not Applicable |
| 3 | Electronic transmission systems | 1.3 | Scanned copy via e-mail and facsimile are acceptable, if the original is received within three days. |
| 4 | Governing Law | 1.4 | The Laws of Islamic Republic of Pakistan. |
| 5 | Ruling language | 1.4 | English |
| 6 | Language for communications | 1.4 | English |
| 7 | Time for access to the Site | 2.1 | Within seven (07) days after Commencement Date |
| 8 | Time for access to the Site | 2.1 | Within seven (07) days after Commencement Date |
| 8 | Amount of Performance Security | 4.2 | The performance security will be in the form of a "unconditional, irrevocable and acceptable bank guarantee" in the amount of 5% (Five percent) of the contract price stated in the Letter of Acceptance. |
| 9 | Subcontract | 4.4 | The aggregate amount of the Works subcontracted shall not exceed 30% of the Contract Price. |
| 10 | Normal working hours | 6.5 | 8 hrs a day and 6 days a week. |
| | Time for Commencement | 8.1 | Within 07 days from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence, this shall be issued within fourteen (14) days after signing of Contract Agreement. |

SPECIAL STIPULATIONS Particular Conditions of Contract- Part A

| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
|----|---------------------------------|----------------------------------|---|
| 12 | Time for Completion) | 8.2 | 545 days from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence. |
| 13 | Time for Furnishing Programme | 8.3 | Within 28 days from the date of receipt of Letter of Acceptance. |
| 14 | Revised Programme | 8.3 | Revised Programme to be submitted within 14 days of the Engineer's notice. |
| 15 | Delay damages for the Works | 8.7 & 14.15(b) | 0.1% of the Contract Price per day, and |
| | | | For Interim Delay damages 0.05% of the Contract price per day |
| | | | Also, other charges mentioned in Special/Particular Conditions of Contract |
| 16 | Maximum amount of delay damages | 8.7& | 10% of the final Contract Price & |
| | | 14.15(b) | For Interim Delay damages 5% of the Contract price per day |
| | | | Also, other charges mentioned in Part B, Particular Conditions of Contract |
| 17 | Defects Liability Period | 11.1 | 365 days from the effective date of Taking Over Certificate. |
| 18 | Adjustments for Changes in Cost | 13.8 | As per Appendix C (B) to bid "Price Adjustment". |
| 19 | Advance payment | 14.2 | 10% Percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount payable in PKR: as Mobilization Advance against Bank guarantee. |

| | Description | General Conditions Clauses | Stipulations |
|----|--|----------------------------------|--|
| 20 | Repayment amortization rate of advance payment | 14.2(b) | First Instalment: 50% of total Advance Payment shall be made after fulfilling all the requirements provided in Conditions of the Contract. Second Instalment: Remaining 50%, on mobilization of Plant, equipment and other resources at site by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Engineer. From five consequtive Running payment starting from third |
| 21 | Percentage of Retention | 14.3 | R.A/Bill in equal instalments including 10% per annum interest 5% of the amount of Interim (Dunning Department) |
| 22 | Limit of Retention Money | 14.3 | Interim/Running Payment Certificate. 5% of Contract Price stated in the |
| | | | Letter of Acceptance. |
| 23 | Plant and Materials | 14.5 | Not Applicable |
| 24 | Minimum Amount of Interim Payment Certificates | 14.6 | 3% of the Accepted Contract Amount. |
| 25 | Maximum total liability of the Contractor to the Employer | 17.6 | The product of two (02) times the Accepted Contract Amount |
| 26 | Date by which the Dispute Board (DB) shall be appointed | 20.2 | 28 days after the Commencement date |
| 27 | The DB shall be comprised of | 20.2 | Three Members |
| 28 | List of potential DB sole members | 20.2 | None |
| 29 | Appointment (if not agreed) to be made by | 20.3 | Pakistan Engineering Council |

FOREIGN CURRENCY REQUIREMENTS

- 1. The bidder may indicate herein below his requirements of foreign currency (if any), with reference to various inputs to the works.
- Foreign Currency Requirement as percentage of the bid price excluding Provisional Sums _____%.

| Table of Exchange Rates | | | | |
|-------------------------|---------------------------|--|--|--|
| Unit of Currency | Equivalent in Pak. Rupees | | | |
| Australian Dollot | | | | |
| Japanese Yen | | | | |
| U.K. Pound | | | | |
| U.S. Dollars | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |

PRICE ADJUSTMENT UNDER CLAUSE 13.8 OF CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

A. Weight ages or coefficients are used for price adjustment.

The source of indices and the weightages or coefficients for use in the adjustment formula under Clause 13.8 shall be as follows:

| Cost | Description | Weight ages | Applicable index |
|---------|--------------------------|-------------|-------------------------------------|
| Element | | | |
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| (i) | Fixed Portion | 0.350 | LIC |
| (ii) | Local Labour | olic | Monthly Statistical Bulletin, (GoP) |
| (iii) | High Speed Dies (HSD) | PP. | -do- |
| (iv) | Clinical Loags | | -do- |
| (v) | Reinforcing Steel | | -do- |
| (vi) | Pre-Stressing Strands | | -do- |
| (vii) | Bitumen | | -do- |
| (viii) | | | |
| | Total | 1.000 | |

Notes:

- 1) Indices for "(ii)" to "(vii)" are taken from the Government of Pakistan Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Statistical Bulletin. The base cost indices or prices shall be those applying 15 days prior to the latest day for submission of bids. Current indices or prices shall be those applying 28 days prior to the last day of the billing period.
- 2) Any fluctuation in the indices or prices of materials other than those given above shall not be subject to adjustment of the Contract Price.
- 3) Fixed portion shown here is for typical road project, procuring agency to determine the weightage of Fixed Portion considering only those cost elements having cost impact of seven (7) percent or more on his specific project.

When Escalation is allowed on the materials only.

Price adjustment on following items shall be allowed:

| Cost Element | Description | Base price | Applicable index |
|--------------|---|------------|--|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 |
| (i) | Cement – in bags (50kg bag) | | GoP, Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Bulletin |
| (ii) | Bitumen 60/70 in Bulk 80/100 in drums | | National Refinery |
| (iii) | Bricks | | GoP, Federal Bureau of Statistics, Monthly Bulletin |
| | Total Three items. | | |

Notes:

- 1. The base prices shall be those applying 7 days prior to the latest day for submission of bids. Current indices or prices shall be those applying last 28 days prior to the last day of the billing period.
- 2. Any fluctuation in the prices of materials other than those given above shall not be subject to adjustment of the Contract Price.

В

BILL OF QUANTITIES

A Preamble

- 1. The Bill of Quantities shall be read in conjunction with the Conditions of Contract, Specifications and Drawings.
- 2. The quantities given in the Bill of Quantities are estimated and provisional, and are given to provide a common basis for bidding. The basis of payment will be the actual quantities of work executed and measured by the Contractor and verified by the Engineer and valued at the rates and prices entered in the priced Bill of Quantities, where applicable, and otherwise at such rates and prices as the Engineer may fix as per the Contract (in case of item not mentioned in Bill of Quantities).
- 3. The rates and prices entered in the priced Bill of Quantities shall, except insofar as it is otherwise provided under the contract include all costs of contractor's plant, labour, supervision, materials, execution, insurance, profit, taxes and duties, together with all general risks, liabilities and obligations set out or implied in the contract. Furthermore all duties, taxes and other levies payable by the contractor under the contract, or for any other cause, as on the date 14 days prior to deadline for submission of Bids shall be included in the rates and prices and the total bid price submitted by the bidder.
- 4. A rate or price shall be entered against each item in the priced Bill of Quantities, whether quantities are stated or not. The cost of items against which the contractor will have failed to enter a rate or price shall be deemed to be covered by other rates and prices entered in the Bill of Quantities and shall not be paid separately.
- 5. The whole cost of complying with the provisions of the Contract shall be included in the items provided in the priced Bill of Quantities, and where no items are provided, the cost shall be deemed to be distributed among the rates and prices entered for the related items of the works.
- 6. General directions and description of work and materials are not necessarily repeated nor summarised in the Bill of Quantities. References to the relevant sections of the bidding documents shall be made before entering prices against each item in the priced Bill of Quantities.
- 7. Provisional sums included and so designated in the Bill of Quantities shall be expended in whole or in part at the direction and discretion of the Engineer in accordance with sub-clause 13.5 of Part I, General Conditions of Contract.
- 8. The following abbreviations for the units or units of measurement have been used in the bidding documents including BOQ.

Unit

Abbreviations

- Linear Meter LM or lm or M or m
- Square Meter Sq.m. or SM or sm •
- Cubic Meter Cu.m. or CM or cm or Cum or cum

Ton

Job

- Ton
 - Kilogram
- Kg or kg No or Each Per Number .
- Job

•

(39)
SCHEDULE OF PRICES

Name of Work:-

Improvement of road from Madeji to Dakhan Mile 0/0-2/4 (4.02 Kms)

| Sr.No: | Description | Schedul "B" Amount | Contractor Qouted Rates | Total Schedule "B" Amount |
|-------------------------------------|---|--------------------------------------|----------------------------|------------------------------|
| Part -A Road Work (Improvement) | 51,621,490.00 | | | |
| | | | Total Part "A" | |
| | Part-B Masonry Structure | 565,410.000 | | |
| | | | Total Part "B" | |
| | | | G.Total A+B | |
| 1 | Total (to be carried to summary of Add/Deduct the percentag quoted of rates. | Bid Price) above/below on the pri | ces of items based | on composite schedu |

.

المسيل المسج

Г

Improvement of road from Madeji to Dakhan Mile 0/0-2/4 (4.02 Kms) BIDDING DOCUMENT FOR WORKS

BILLS OF QUANTITY

(A)

Description and rate of Item bases on composite schedule of Rate

| | <u>PART-A (R</u> | Description and rate of Item bases on a | composite sche | edule of Ra | te |
|-------------------|------------------|--|----------------|-------------|---------------|
| i tesiji Jinay | | ະວາຍຮັກສາກການແຮງເຮົາແຮງໃຫ້ ອີກຕາຊາເອົາ ສາກຮັກສາກການແຮງເຮົາ | | 20.00 2 | Titterfit |
| 1 | 27,192 | Laying bricks on end edging i/c supplying 9x4½x3" size Ist class bricks excavation for laying edging with small side parallel to the road. (Rate i/c all cost of materials T&P and carriage upto to site of work). | | P.% Rft | 745,164.00 |
| 2 | 121,684 | Preparing Base course i/c supplying and spreading stone metal of approved quality from approved quary properly graded to maximum size of 1½" in required thickness to proper camber and grade i/c supplying and spreading 15 Cft of screening and non-plastic quary fines filling depressions with stone metal after initia rolling i/c watering and compacting the same so as to achieve 100% density as per modified AASHO specification (This i/cs providing and using templates, camber plates, screen forms as directed) Rate i/cs all cost of material T&P and carriage upto site of work. | | .%Cft | 10,251,706.00 |
| 3 | 271,920 | Providing Two coat of surface dressing on new or existing surface with 30+25=55 lbs: bitumen of 80/100 penetration and 4.0+2.75=6.75 Cft Crush Bajri of 3/8" to 3/4" guage including cleaning the road surface rolling etc complete. Rate includes all costs of materials T&P labour and carriage upto site of work. | | .%Cft | 7,985,991.00 |
| 4 | | Laying mechanically to proper line and grade plant mixed asphalt concrete prepared to specification formula according to job mix formula approved by engineer incharge i/c rolling and finsihing to proper line grade level and camber etc complete. Rate i/cs. all costs of material T&P & carriage upto site of work etc complete (2" thick consolidated i/c Prime coat). | 8975.31 | .%Cft | 24,405,663.00 |
| 5 | | Earthwork for road embankment by buildozers i/c ploughing mixing clod breaking dressing and compacting with optimum moisture content lead upto 100' and lift upto 5.0' (in ordinary soil) (compacting upto 95-100% modified AASHO density). | 7,723.95 | .%Cft | 8,232,966.00 |
| 1 | | | | | |

| deelled | Machinery N | utive Engineer Aaintenance Di ur @ Shikarpu | |
|---|-------------|---|--------------|
| | ≠ | 8 | |
| G.Total (A+B) Total Amount in words (A+B) | | Rs. | |
| Diff: cost of Bitumen (B) | (-) | Rs | 3,184,902.00 |
| Total (A) | | Rs. | |
| Above / Below in Schedule "B" | | Rs. | |

Total :

51,621,490.00

-Construction of Retaining Wall (2200 Rft:), Repair/Re-decking of Rcc slab 4' span (6 NOS.) & 3'span Culvert (3 Nos.) along Improvement of Kandhkot Saifal road mile 0/0-10/2 (16.50 Kms.) <u>BIDDING DOCUMENT FOR WORKS</u>

BILLS OF QUANTITY

(A) Description and rate of Item bases on composite schedule of Rate <u>PART-B (MASONRY STRUCTURE)</u>

| ltem No: | Qty's | Description of Item to be executed at site | Rate | Unit | Amount |
|-------------|----------|---|-----------|---------|------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 |
| 1 | 442 | Dismentalling of Rcc Work | 5,445.00 | P.% Cft | 24,067.00 |
| 2 | 264 | Cement concrete bricks or stone ballast 11/2"x2"ir cement sand mortar ratio 1:4:8. | 9,416.28 | P.% Cft | 24,859.00 |
| 3 | 155 | Pucca brick work in foundation of plinth ir cement sand mortar ratio 1:4. | 12,501.41 | P.% Cft | 19,377.00 |
| 4 | | Cement concrete plain i/c placing compacting curing finishing etc complete i/c screening and washing of stone aggregate without shuttering ratio 1:2:4. | | P.% Cft | 22,798.00 |
| 5 | | Errection and removal of centering for R.C.C. or plain work with partal wood. | | P.% Sft | 9,320.00 |
| 6 | 33.95 | Fabrication of mild steel reinforcement cement concrete i/c cutting binding laying in position making joints and fastening of i/c costs of binding wire also removal of rust from bars. (S.I.No:7/aP-18)(Tor Bar) | | P. Cwt | 163,646.00 |
| 7 | | Reinforced cement concrete work i/c all labour and material except the cost of steel RCC work and its labour for bending and binding which will be paid separately. This rate also i/cs all kinds of forms moulds: lifting shuttering curring rendering and finishing the exposed surface (including screening and washing of shingle. (a) R.C.C. work in roof slab, beams columns rafts, lintels and other structural member laid in situ or precast laid in position complete in all respects ratio 1:2:4 90 lbs: cement 2 Cft sand 4 Cft: shingle 1/8 to ¼ guage. | | P.Cft | 265,893.00 |
| 1512 | <u> </u> | Dement plaster 1:3 up to 20' height ½" thick. | 2344.59 | P.% Sft | 35,450.00 |
| | | | Total : | | 565,410.00 |

._____ Above / Below in Schedule "B"

Rs.

Rs

Total Amount in words (A+B) ____

checked.

Executive Engineer Machinery Maintenance Division

Khairpur @ Shikarpur

Rs.

BILL OF QUANTITIES

C. **Day work Schedule**

General

Reference is made to Sub-Clause 13.6 of the General Conditions of Contract. Work 1. shall not be executed on a day work basis except by written order of the Engineer. Bidders shall enter basic rates for day work items in the Schedules, which rates shall apply to any quantity of day work ordered by the Engineer. Nominal quantities have been indicated against each item of day work, and the extended total for day work shall be carried forward to the bid price.

Day work Labour



- The contractor shall be entitled to payment in respect of the total time that labour is 3. employed on day work, calculated at the basic rates entered by him in the Schedule of day work Rates for labour together with an additional percentage, payment on basic rates representing the contractor's profit, overheads, etc., as described below:
 - the basic rates for labour shall cover all direct costs to the contractor, a) including (but not limited to) the amount of wages paid to such labour, transportation time, overtime, subsistence allowances and any sums paid to or on behalf of such labour for social benefits in accordance with Pakistan law. The basic rates will be payable in local currency only; and
 - the additional percentage payment to be quoted by the bidder and applied b) to costs incurred under (a) above shall be deemed to cover the contractor's profit, overheads, superintendence, liabilities and insurances and allowances to labour timekeeping and clerical and office work; the use of consumable stores, water, lighting and power; the use and repair of staging, scaffolding, workshops and stores, portable power tools, manual plant and tools; supervision by the contractor's staff, foremen and other supervisory personnel; and charges incidental to the foregoing.

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

I. Labour

2

ï

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs) in Figure | Rate (Rs) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) | |
|-------------|---|------|---------------------|---------------------------------------|-----------------------------|-----------------------------|--|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | | | 7 | |
| | | | -1iC ² | D | | | |
| D101 | 2 Labour Foremen | AP | 10 | | | - | |
| D102 | Foremen | Hr | 10 | | | | |
| D103 | LTV Driver | Hr | 10 | | | | |
| D104 | HTV Operator | Hr | 10 | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · | | | |
| | Sub Total Allow percent of subtotal for Contractor's overhead, profit, etc, in accordance with Paragraph 3(b) of Day work Schedule Total for Day work: Labour : (Carried forward to Day work Summary) | | | | | | |

Note Input of other staff shall be included in overhead of Contractor.

Day work Material

- The contractor shall be entitled to payment in respect of materials used for day work (except for materials for which the cost is included in the percentage addition to labour costs as detailed heretofore), at the basic rates entered by him in the Schedule of Day work Rates for materials together with an additional percentage payment on the basic rates to cover overhead charges and profit, as follows:
 - a) the basic rates for materials shall be calculated on the basis of the invoiced price, freight, insurance, handling expenses, dimensional provide for delivery to store for stocknilling the site. The basic rates shall be stated in local currency but negative will be made in the currency or currencies expended up a reference of supporting documentation;
 - b) the additional percentage payment shall be quoted by the bidder and applied to the equivalent local currency payments made under Sub-Para(a) above; and
 - c) the cost of hauling materials used on work ordered to be carried out as Day work from the store or stockpile on the site to the place where it is to be use d will be paid in accordance with the terms for Labour and Constructional Plant in this Schedule.

Appendix-D to Bid

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs) in Figure | Rate (Rs) in Words) | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|-------------|---|------------|-------------------------------|------------------------------|----------------------------|---------------------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 |
| D201 | Fill (earth) of suitable quality | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D202 | Sand for filling | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D203 | Sub-Base | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D204 | Aggregate Base Course | Cum | 5 | -1e | | |
| D205 | Asphalt Base Course | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D206 | Asphalt Wearing Course | Cum | | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| D207 | Bitumen grade 60/70 | AP | 5 | | | |
| D208 | Bitumen grade 80/100 | Ton | 5 | | | |
| D209 | Cement (SR) in bag | M:Ton | 2 | | | |
| D210 | Cement, ordinary Portland or equivalent in bags | M:Ton | 2 | | | |
| D211 | Fine aggregate for concrete | Cum | 10 | • | | |
| D212 | Coarse aggregates for concrete | Cum | 10 | | | |
| D213 | Lean Concrete | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D214 | Concrete Class B | Cum | 5 | | | |
| D213 | Grade 60 reinforcing bar | M:Ton | 5 | | | |
| D214 | Traffic Signs, Barricade etc | Each | 5 | | | |
| | Allow percer accordance with Paragraph 4(b) Total for Day work: Materials (Carried forward to Day work S |) of Day w | otal for Cont ork Schedule | | verhead, pro | ofit, etc., in |

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

Day Work Constructional Plant

- 5. The contractor shall be entitled to payments in respect of constructional plant already on site and employed on Day work at the basic rental rates entered by him in the Schedule of Day work Rates for constructional plant. The said rates shall be deemed to include complete allowance for depreciation, interest, indemnity and insurance, repairs, maintenance, supplies, fuel, lubricants, and other consumables, and all overhead, profit and administrative costs related to the use of such equipment. The cost of drivers, operators and assistants will be paid for separately as described under the section on Day work Labour.
- 6. In calculating the payment due to the Contractor for constructional plant employed on Day work, only the actual number of working hours will the actual of the payment, except that where applicable and agreed with the frame of, the travelling time from the part of the site where the constructional of the was located when ordered by the Engineer to be employed on Dar work in the time for return journey thereto shall be included for payment
- 7. The basic rental rates for constructional plant employed on Day work shall be stated in Pakistani Rupees.

SCHEDULE OF DAYWORK RATES

III. Constructional Plant

•

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs.) in Figure | Rate Rs.) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|-------------|--|-----------|---------------------|-------------------------|-----------------------|---------------------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | | 5 | 6 |
| D301 | Bulldozer, 200 HP | Hr. | 1 | | | - |
| D302 | Motor Grader, 140HP | Hr. | 1 | hle | | |
| D303 | Vibratory Roller, 10-12 Ton | Hr. | lici | a - | | |
| D304 | Pneumatic Roller, 18-21 Ton | NP | 1 | able | | |
| D305 | Tandem Roller, 🔐 💦 | Hr. | 1 | - | | |
| D306 | Wheel Loader, 2.5 Cum | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D307 | Plate Compactor, 11 HP (230 KG) | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D308 | Dump Truck, 18 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D309 | Dump Truck, 10 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D310 | Excavator, 105 HP | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D311 | Water Tanker, 10,000 Ltr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D312 | Aggregate Crushing & Screening Plant, 45 Ton/hr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D313 | Asphalt Plant, 120 Ton/hr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D314 | Asphalt Distributor, 3,000 Ltr | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D315 | Asphalt Paver, 145 HP(3-6 m wide) | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D316 | Concrete Batching Plant (30 cum/hr0 | Hr. | l | | | |
| D317 | Wheel Tractor, 80 HP | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D318 | Concrete Transit Mixer, 6 Cum | Hr. | 1 | | | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| D319 | Concrete Vibrator, 5 HP | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D320 | Road Marking Machine, Heavy Duty | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D321 | Concrete Mixer | Hr. | 1 | | | |

| Item No. | Description | Unit | Nominal Quantity | Rate (Rs.) in Figure | Rate Rs.) in Words | Extended Amount (Rs.) |
|-------------|---|------|---------------------|-------------------------|---|-----------------------------|
| D322 | Air Compressor, 300 CFM | Hr. | I | | | |
| D323 | Pneumatic Jack Hammer | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D324 | Crane 25 Ton | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D325 | Water Pump, 4" delivery | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D326 | Concrete Pump | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| D327 | Tractor Trolly | Hr. | 1 | able | 8 | |
| D328 | 1000 – 1300 cc Car | Hr. | PIIC | able | | |
| D329 | Single Cabin | Hir. | 1 | | | |
| D330 | Double Cabin | Hr. | 1 | | | |
| | Total for day work: Constructional (Carried forward to day work sumr | | | | <u>ar , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,</u> | |

.

DAYWORK

Summary (Day work)

•

•

| | Amount (Rs.) |
|-------|--|
| (I) | Total for day work: Labour |
| (II) | Total for day work: Materials |
| (III) | Total for day work: Constructional Plant |
| | Total for day work (Carried forward to summary page of Bill of Sumas) |
| | "Not APP" |

PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

Pursuant to Sub-Clause 8.2 of the General Conditions of Contract, the works shall be completed on or before the date stated in Appendix-A to Bid. The bidder shall provide as Appendix-E to Bid, the Construction Schedule in the bar chart (CPM, PERT or any other to be specified herein) showing the sequence of work items and the period of time during which he proposes to complete each work item in such a manner that his proposed programme for completion of the whole of the works may meet procuring agency's completion targets in days noted below and counted from the date of receipt of Engineer's Notice to Commence (Attach sheets as required for the specified form of Construction Schedule):

METHOD OF PERFORMING THE WORK

[The bidder is required to submit a narrative outlining the method of performing the work. The narrative should indicate in detail and include but not be limited to:

- 1. Organization Chart indicating head office and field office personnel involved in management and supervision, engineering, equipment maintenance and purchasing.
- 2. Mobilization at site, the type of facilities including personnel accommodation, office accommodation, provision for maintenance and for storage, communications, security and other services to be used.
- 3. The method of executing the works, the procedures for installation of equipment and machinery and transportation of equipment and materials to the site.

Safety Plan

The Bidder is required to submit an outline Construction Safety and Health Plan for this particular Project. The outline Safety and Health Plan shall be in accordance with the requirements of relevant decrees and/or bye laws governing Occupational Safety and Health Programme in the construction industry being implemented in the Islamic Republic of Pakistan, and shall cover the following topics:

- 1. Organizational structure for handling all Safety and Health Matters
- 2. Composition of the Contractor's Construction Safety and Health Committee
- 3. Specific Safety Policies which the Contractor will undertake to observe and maintain
- 4. Provision of Protective Equipment
- 5. Safety Personnel
- 6. Emergency Occupational Health Personnel and Facilities
- 7. Worker's Welfare Facilities
- 8. Emergency Procedures

Award of the Contract to the Bidder shall not be deemed to mean that the outline Construction Safety and Health Plan is considered acceptable, and the Engineer shall be at liberty to instruct the Contractor to implement such safety and health procedures as he may deem necessary.

LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT - RELATED ITEMS

[The bidder will provide on Sheet 2 of this Appendix a list of all major equipment and related items, under separate heading for items owned, to be purchased or to be arranged on lease by him to mobilize at site to carry out the works. The information shall include make, type, capacity, and anticipated period of utilization for all equipment which shall be in sufficient detail to demonstrate fully that the equipment will meet all requirements of the Specifications.]

| Eq | uipment Type and Characteristics | Мілітит Number required | Proposed by the Bidder |
|----|--|----------------------------|---------------------------|
| 1 | Bulldozer (D6 and D8) | 2 | |
| 2 | Motor Grader (140 hp) | 4 | |
| 3 | Vibratory Roller (10 – 12 Ton) | 4 | |
| 4 | Pneumatic Tyre Roller (18-21 Ton) | 3 | |
| 5 | Tandem Roller (8 -12 Ton) | 2 | |
| 6 | Wheel Loader (2.5 Cum) | 4 | |
| 7 | Plate Compactor | 2 | |
| 8 | Dump Truck (10 to 18 Ton) | 18 | |
| 9 | Excavator | 4 | |
| 10 | Water Bowzer (10,000 ltr) | 4 | |
| 11 | Asphalt Plant (120 ton/hr) | 1 | |
| 12 | Asphalt Distributor (3000 ltr) | 1 | |
| 14 | Asphalt Paver (145 hp, 3-6m wide) | 2 | |
| 16 | Concrete Batching Plant (30 cum/hr) | 1 | |
| 17 | Concrete Transit Mixer (6 cum) | 2 | |
| 18 | Concrete Mixer (3 cum) | 2 | |
| 19 | Road Marking Machine | 1 | |
| 20 | Concrete Pump | 2 | |
| 21 | Crane (25 Ton) | 2 | |

Appendix-G to Bid

LIST OF MAJOR EQUIPMENT (SAMPLE)

| Owned Purchased or Leased | Description of Unit (Make, Model, Year) | Capacity HP Rating | Condition | Present Location or Source | Date of Delivery at Site | Period of Work on Project |
|----------------------------------|--|--------------------------|-----------|----------------------------------|--------------------------------|---------------------------------|
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 |
| a. Owned | | | | | | |
| b. To be | | | | | | |
| Purchased | | | | | | |
| | - | | | | | |
| c. To be arranged on Lease | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | |

CONSTRUCTION CAMP AND HOUSING FACILITIES

The Contractor in accordance with Clause 6 of the Conditions of Contract shall provide description of his construction camp's facilities and staff housing requirements.

The contractor shall be responsible for pumps, electrical power, water and electrical distribution systems, and sewerage system including all fittings, pipes and other items necessary for servicing the contractor's construction camp.

The bidder shall list or explain his plans for providing these facilities for the service of the contract as follows:

- 1. Site Preparation (clearing, land preparation, etc.).
- 2. Provision of Services.
 - a) Power (expected power load, etc.).
 - b) Water (required amount and system proposed).
 - c) Sanitation (sewage disposal system, etc.).
- 3. Construction of Facilities
 - a) Contractor's Office. Workshop and Work Areas (areas required and proposed layout, type of construction of buildings, etc.).
 - b) Warehouses and Storage Areas (area required, type of construction and layout).
 - c) Housing and Staff Facilities (Plans for housing for proposed staff, layout, type of construction, etc.).
- 4. Construction Equipment Assembly and Preparation (detailed plans for carrying out this activity).
- 5. Other Items Proposed (Security services, etc.).

LIST OF SUBCONTRACTORS

I/We intend to subcontract the following parts of the work to subcontractors. In my/our opinion, the subcontractors named hereunder are reliable and competent to perform that part of the work for which each is listed.

Enclosed are documentation outlining experience of subcontractors, the curriculum vitae and experience of their key personnel who will be assigned to the contract, equipment to be supplied by them, size, location and type of contracts carried out in the past.

| Part of Works (Give Details) | Subcontractor (With Complete Address) |
|---------------------------------|--|
| 1 | 2 |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| | |

Appendix-J to Bid

ESTIMATED PROGRESS PAYMENTS (SAMPLE)

Bidder's estimate of the value of work which would be executed by him during each of the periods stated below, based on his Programme of the works and the Rates in the Bill of Quantities, expressed in Pakistani Rupees:

| Quarter/ Year/ Period | Amounts (in million) |
|-----------------------|-------------------------|
| 1 | 2 |
| Ist Quarter | |
| 2nd Quarter | |
| 3rd Quarter | |
| | |
| | |
| | |
| ,, | |
| | |
| | |
| Bid Price | |

Appendix-K to Bid

ORGANIZATION CHART FOR THE SUPERVISORY STAFF AND LABOUR

ā

.

.

(To be filled in by the bidder)

(58)

Appendix-K to Bid

PROPOSED STAFF

(Detailed CVs of following Key staff shall be provided, it is mandatory. PEC registration Certifiacte and qualification certificates/degrees etc shall also be provided. It will be mandtory for succesful bidder to mobilize same staff as proposed below after the approval of the Engineer. The proposed staff must be employee of the bidder)

| | Qualification & Expereince | Proposed Staff | | | | | | |
|------------|-------------------------------|----------------|---------------|---------------|------------------|--|--|--|
| Position | | Name | Qualification | Total Exp. | Relevant. Rxp | | | |
| Project | Qualification Msc (Civil) | | | | | | | |
| Manager | with 7 years experience (3 | | | | | | | |
| | years relevant experience) | | | | | | | |
| | or BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | | |
| | experience (8 years | | | | | | | |
| | relevant experience) | | | | | | | |
| Plaining | BE (Civil) with 10 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineer | experience | | | | | | | |
| Contracts | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineer | experience | | | | | | | |
| Structures | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience with 10 years | | | | | | | |
| | relevant experience of | | | | | | | |
| | bridges | | | | | | | |
| Highway | BE (Civil) with 15 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineer | experience with 10 years | | | | | | | |
| | relevant experience of | | | | | | | |
| | roads | | | | | | | |
| Material | Msc (Geology) with 15 | | | | | | | |
| Engineer | years experience | | | | | | | |
| Site | BE (Civil), with 8 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience, Experience 3 | | | ļ | | | | |
| | bridges assignments, | | | | | | | |
| Site | BE (Civil), with 8 years | | | | | | | |
| Engineers | experience, Experience 3 | | | | | | | |
| · · · | highway assignments, | | | | | | | |
| Sr. | Diploma in Civil, Number | | | | | | | |
| Surveyors | (01), 10 years experience, | | | | • | | | |
| | Experience 5 years | | | | | | | |
| | highway project | | | Í | | | | |
| Quantity | Diploma in Civil, Number | | | | | | | |
| Surveyor | (01), 10 years experience, | | | | | | | |
| | Experience 5 years | | | | | | | |
| | highway projects | | | | | | | |

Appendix-L to Bid

(INTEGRITY PACT) DECLARATION OF FEES, COMMISSION AND BROKERAGE ETC; PAYABLE BY CONTRACTORS.

(FOR CONTRACTS WORTH RS. 10.00 MILLION OR MORE)

| Contract No. | Dated | |
|-----------------|-------|--|
| Contract Value: | | |
| Contract Title: | | |

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, [name of Contractor] represents and warrants that it has fully declared the brokerage, commission, fees etc. paid or payable to anyone and not given or agreed to give and shall not give or agree to give to anyone within or outside Pakistan either directly or indirectly through any natural or juridical person, including its a filiate, agent, associate, broker, consultant, director, promoter, shareholder, sponsor or subsidiary, any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback, whether described as consultation fee or otherwise, with the object of obtaining or inducing the procurement of a contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from, from Procuring Agency (PA) except that which has been expressly declared pursuant hereto.

[name of Contractor] accepts full responsibility and strict liability that it has made and will make full disclosure of all agreements and arrangements with all persons in respect of or related to the transaction with PA and has not taken any action or will not take any action to circumvent the above declaration, representation or warranty.

[name of Contractor] accepts full responsibility and strict liability for making any false declaration, not making full disclosure, misrepresenting facts or taking any action likely to defeat the purpose of this declaration, representation and warranty. It agrees that any contract, right interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit obtained or procured as aforesaid shall, without prejudice to any other rights and remedies available to PA under any law, contract or other instrument, be voidable at the option of PA.

Notwithstanding any rights and remedies exercised by PA in this regard, [name of Supplier/Contractor/Consultant] agrees to indemnify PA for any loss or damage incurred by it on account of its corrupt business practices and further pay compensation to PA in an amount equivalent to ten time the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by [name of Contractor] as aforesaid for the purpose of obtaining or inducing the procurement of any contract, right, interest, privilege or other obligation or benefit in whatsoever form from PA.

[Procuring Agency]

[Contractor]

FORMS

BID SECURITY PERFORMANCE SECURITY CONTRACT AGREEMENT MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE INDENTURE BOND FOR SECURED ADVANCE

BID SECURITY (Bank Guarantee)

| | (Date) | |
|--|----------------------------------|---|
| Name of Surety (Bank) with Address: | | |
| Name of Principal (Bidder) with Addr | (Scheduled Bank in Pakistan) ess | |
| Pena Sum of Security Rupees Bid Reference No. | (Rs |) |

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that in pursuance of the terms of the bid and at the request of the said Principal (Bidder) we, the Surety above named, are held and firmly bound unto ______

(hereinafter called the 'Procuring Agency') in the sum stated above for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that whereas the Bidder has submitted the accompanying bid dated ______ for Bid No. ______ for _____ (Particulars of Bid) to the said Procuring Agency; and

WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has required as a condition for considering said bid that the bidder furnishes a bid security in the above said sum from a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan or from a foreign bank duly counter-guaranteed by a Scheduled Bank in Pakistan, to the procuring agency, conditioned as under:

- (1) that the bid security shall remain in force up to and including the date 28 days after the deadline for validity of bids as stated in the Instructions to bidders or as it may be extended by the procuring agency, notice of which extension(s) to the Surety is hereby waived;
- (2) that the bid security of unsuccessful bidders will be returned by the procuring agency after expiry of its validity or upon signing of the Contract Agreement; and
- (3) that in the event of failure of the successful bidder to execute the proposed Contract Agreement for such work and furnish the required Performance Security, the entire said sum be paid immediately to the said procuring agency pursuant to Clause 15.6 of the Instruction to bidders for the successful bidder's failure to perform.

NOW THEREFORE, if the successful bidder shall, within the period specified therefore, on the prescribed form presented to him for signature enter into a formal Contract with the said procuring agency in accordance with his bid as accepted and furnish within twenty eight (28) days of his being requested to do so, a Performance Security with good and sufficient surety, as may be required, upon the form prescribed by the said procuring agency for the faithful performance and proper fulfilment of the said Contract or in the event of non-withdrawal of the said bid within the time specified for its validity then this obligation shall be void and of no effect, but otherwise to remain in full force and effect. PROVIDED THAT the Surety shall forthwith pay the procuring agency, the said sum upon first written demand of the procuring agency (without cavil or argument) and without requiring the procuring agency to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand, notice of which shall be sent by the procuring agency by registered post duly addressed to the Surety at its address given above.

PROVIDED ALSO THAT the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal (Bidder) has duly performed his obligations to sign the Contract Agreement and to furnish the requisite Performance Security within the time stated above, or has defaulted in fulfilling said requirements and the Surety shall pay without objection the said sum upon demand from the procuring agency forthwith and without any reference to the Principal (Bidder) or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above bounden Surety has executed the instrument under its seal on the date indicated above, the name and seal of the Surety being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative pursuant to authority of its governing body.

SURETY (Bank)

WITNESS:

1. _____

Corporate Secretary (Seal)

Signature _____

Name _____

Title _____

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

2. _____

Name, Title & Address

FORM OF PERFORMANCE SECURITY (Bank Guarantee)

| | Guarantee No. |
|--|---------------------------------------|
| | Executed on |
| | Expiry date |
| [Letter by the Guarantor to the Procuring Agency] | |
| | |
| Name of Guarantor (Bank) with address: | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| | (Scheduled Bank in Pakistan) |
| Name of Principal (Contractor) with address: | · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · |
| Penal Sum of Security (express in words and figure | |
| renar sum of security (express in words and figure | |
| Letter of Acceptance No. | Dated |
| KNOW ALL MEN DV THEEP DDPOENTS die | |

KNCW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that in pursuance of the terms of the bidding documents and above said Letter of Acceptance (hereinafter called the Documents) and at the request of the said Principal we, the Guarantor above named, are held and firmly bound unto the _______ (hereinafter called the procuring agency) in the penal sum of the amount stated above for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made to the said procuring agency, we bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

NOW THEREFORE, if the Principal (Contractor) shall well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms and conditions of the said Documents during the original terms of the said Documents and any extensions thereof that may be granted by the procuring agency, with or without notice to the Guarantor, which notice is, hereby, waived and shall also well and truly perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants terms and conditions of the Contract and of any and all modifications of said Documents that may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the Guarantor being hereby waived, then, this obligation to be void; otherwise to remain in full force and virtue till all requirements of Clause 11, Defects Liability, of Conditions of Contract are fulfilled.

Our total liability under this Guarantee is limited to the sum stated above and it is a condition of any liability attaching to us under this Guarantee that the claim for payment in writing shall be received by us within the validity period of this Guarantee, failing which we shall be discharged of our liability, if any, under this Guarantee.

We, _______ (the Guarantor), waiving all objections and defer ces under the Contract, do hereby irrevocably and independently guarantee to pay to the procuring agency without delay upon the procuring agency's first written demand without cavil or arguments and without requiring the procuring agency to prove or to show grounds or reasons for such demand any sum or sums up to the amount stated above, against the procuring agency's written declaration that the Principal has refused or failed to perform the

obligations under the Contract which payment will be effected by the Guarantor to Procuring Agency's designated Bank & Account Number.

PROVIDED ALSO THAT the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge for deciding whether the Principal (Contractor) has duly performed his obligations under the Contract or has defaulted in fulfilling said obligations and the Guarantor shall pay without objection any sum or sums up to the amount stated above upon first written demand from the procuring agency forthwith and without any reference to the Principal or any other person.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above-bounden Guarantor has executed this Instrument under its seal on the date indicated above, the name and corporate seal of the Guarantor being hereto affixed and these presents duly signed by its undersigned representative, pursuant to authority of its governing body.

Witness:

1._____

Guarantor (Bank)

Signature _____

Name _____

Title

2. _____

Corporate Secretary (Seal)

Name, Title & Address

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

FORM OF CONTRACT AGREEMENT

| THIS CONTRACT AGREEMENT | (hereinafter | called | the | "Agreement") | made | on | the |
|--------------------------------------|--------------|--------|-----|------------------|---------|------|-----|
| day of | | | | (month), 20_ | t | betw | een |
| ······ | | | (h | nereafter called | the "Pr | ocur | ing |
| Agency") of the one part and | | | | | ereafte | | ~ |
| the "Contractor") of the other part. | | | | | | | |

NOW this Agreement witnesseth-- as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to.
- 2. The following documents after incorporating addenda, if any, except those parts relating to Instructions to bidders shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement, viz:
 - (a) The Contract Agreement;
 - (b) The Letter of Acceptance;
 - (c) The completed Form of Bid;
 - (d) Special Stipulations (Appendix-A to Bid);
 - (e) The Special Conditions of Contract Part II;
 - (f) The General Conditions Part I;
 - (g) The completed Appendices to Bid (B, C, E to L);
 - (h) The Drawings;
 - (i) Special provisions
 - (j) Addenda to NHA General Specifications 1998
 - (i) The NHA General Specifications
 - (j) The Ppriced Bill of Quantities (Appendix-D to Bid);
 - (k) _____(any other)
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the procuring agency to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the procuring agency to execute and complete the works and remedy defects therein in conformity and in all respects with the provisions of the contract.
- 4. Procuring agency hereby covenants to pay the contractor, in consideration of the execution and completion of the works as per provisions of the contract, the contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the contract.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the day, month and year first before written in accordance with their respective laws.

Signature of the Contactor

Signature of Procuring Agency

(Seal)

(Seal)

Signed, Sealed and Delivered in the presence of:

Witness:

Witness:

(Name, Title and Address)

(Name, Title and Address)

MOBILIZATION ADVANCE GUARANTEE

Bank Guarantee No._____ Date

WHEREAS ______ (hereinafter called the 'Procuring Agency') has entered into a Contract for ______ (Particulars of Contract)

with ______ (hereinafter called the "Contractor").

AND WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has agreed to advance to the Contractor, at the Contractor's request, an amount of Rupees ______ (Rs _____) which amount shall be advanced to the Contractor as per provisions of the Contract.

AND WHEREAS, the Procuring Agency has asked the Contractor to furnish Guarantee to secure the mobilization advance for the performance of his obligations under the said Contract.

AND WHEREAS, _____

(Scheduled Bank in Pakistan)

(hereinafter called the "Guarantor") at the request of the Contractor and in consideration of the **procuring agency** agreeing to make the above advance to the Contractor, has agreed to furnish the said Guarantee.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Guarantor hereby guarantees that the Contractor shall use the advance for the purpose of above mentioned Contract and if he fails and commits default in fulfilment of any of his obligations for which the advance payment is made, the Guarantor shall be liable to the procuring agency for payment not exceeding the aforementioned amount.

Notice in writing of any default, of which the procuring agency shall be the sole and final judge, on the part of the Contractor, shall be given by the procuring agency to the Guarantor, and on such first written demand, payment shall be made by the Guarantor of all sums then due under this Guarantee without any reference to the Contractor and without any objection.

This Guarantee shall remain in force until the advance is fully adjusted against payments from the Interim Payment Certificates of the Contractor or until whichever is earlier.

(Date)

The Guarantor's liability under this Guarantee shall not in any case exceed the sum of Rupees (Rs).

This Guarantee shall remain valid up to the aforesaid date and shall be null and void after the aforesaid date or earlier if the advance made to the Contractor is fully adjusted against payments from Interim Payment Certificates of the Contractor provided that the Guarantor agrees that the aforesaid period of validity shall be deemed to be extended if on the above mentioned date the advance payment is not fully adjusted.

GUARANTOR

1. Signature _____

2. Name _____

3. Title _____

WITNESS

1.____

Corporate Secretary (Seal)

2. ______(Name Title & Address)

Corporate Guarantor (Seal)

INDENTURE FOR SECURED ADVANCES

(For use in cases in which is contract is for finished work and the contractor has entered into an agreement for the execution of a certain specified quantity of work in a given time).

This INDENTURE made the day of

WHEREAS by an agreement, dated (hereinafter called the said agreement, the contractor has agreed to perform the under-mentioned works (hereinafter referred to as the said work):-

(Here enter (the description of the works).

Fin R.Form.l7.A

On and on such covenants and conditions as are hereinafter contained and the Government has reserved to itself the option of marking any further advance or advances on the security of other materials brought by the Contractor to the site of the said works.

And doth hereby covenant and agree with the Government and declare ay follow :-

- (2) That the materials detailed in the said Running Account Bill (B) which have been offered to and accepted by (he Government as security for the said amount are absolutely by the Contractors own property free from encumbrances of any kind and the Contractor will not make any application for or receive a further advance on the security of materials which are not absolutely his own property and free from encumbrances of any kind and the contractor hereby agrees, at all times, to indemnify and save harmless the Government against all claims whatsoever to any materials in respect of which an advance has been made to him as aforesaid.
- (3) That the said materials detailed in the said Running Account Bill (B) and all other materials on the security of which any further advance or advances may hereafter be made as aforesaid (hereinafter called the said materials) shall be used by the Contractor solely in the execution of the said works in accordance with the directions of the Divisional Officer (hereinafter called the Divisional Officer) and in the terms of the said agreement.
- (4) That the Contractor shall make at his own cost all necessary and adequate arrangement for the proper watch, safe custody and protection against all risks of the said material and that until used in construction as aforesaid the said materials shall remain at the site of the said works in the Contractor's custody and at his own risk and on his own responsibility and shall at all times be open to inspection by (he Divisional Officer or any officer authorized by him. In the event of the said materials of any part (hereof being stolen, destroyed or damaged or becoming deteriorated in a greater degree than is due to reasonable use and wear thereof Contractor will forthwith replace the same with other materials of like qualify or repair and make good the same as required by the Divisional Officer and the materials so brought to replace the said materials so repaired and made good shall also be considered as security for the said amount.
- (5) 'Hurt the said materials shall not on any account be removed from the site of the said works except with the written permission of the Divisional Officer or an officer authorized by him in that behalf
- (6) That the said amount shall be payable in full when or before the Contractor receives payment, from the Government of the price payable to him for the said works under the terms and provisions of the said agreement PROVIDED THAT if any intermediate payments are made to the contractor on account of work done then on the occasion of each such payment the Government will be at liberty to make a recovery from the Contractors Bill for such payment by deducting there from in the value of the said materials (hen actually used in the construction and in respect of which recovery has not been made previously the value for this purpose being determined in respect of each description of material at (he rates at which the amount of the advances made under these presents were calculated.

- (7)if the at Contractor shall at any time make any default in the performance or observation in any respect of any of the terms and provisions of the said agreement or of these presents the total amount of the advance or advances that may still be owing to the Government shall immediately on the happening of such default be repayable by the Contractor to the Government together with interest thereon at twelve percent per annum from the date or respective dates of such advance or advances to the date or repayment and with all costs, charges, damages and expenses incurred by the Government in or for the recovery thereof or the enforcement of this security or otherwise by reason of (he default of the Contractor and any moneys so becoming due and payable shall constitute a debt due from the Contractor to the Government and the Contractor hereby covenants and agrees with the Government to repay and the same respectively to it accordingly.

Once there with the Government may at any time thereafter adopt all or any of following courses as it may deem best ;-

- (a) Seize and utilize the said materials or any part thereof in the completion of the said works on behalf of the Contractor in accordance with the provisions in that behalf contained in the said agreement debiting the Contractor with the actual cost of effecting such completion the amount due in respect of advances under these presents and crediting the Contractor with the value of work done as he had carried it out in accordance with the said agreement and at the rates thereby provided. If the balance is against the Contractor he is to pay the same to the Government on demand.
- (b) Remove and sell by public auction the seized materials or any part thereof and out of the moneys arising from the sale retain all the sums aforesaid repayable to the Government under these presents and pay over the surplus (if any) to the Contractor.
- (c) Deduct all or any part of the moneys owing out of the security deposit or any sum due to the Contractor under the said agreement.
- (9) That except as is expressly provided by the presents interest on the said advance shall not be payable.

(10) That in the event of any conflict between the provisions of these presents and the said agreement the provisions of these presents shall prevail and in the event of any dispute or difference arising over the construction or effect of these presents the settlement of which has not been hereinbefore expressly provided for the same shall be referred to the Superintending Engineer/Executive District Officer/Officer one grade higher to officer signed the agreement Circle whose...... decision shall be final and the provisions of the Arbitration Act 1940 for the time being in force so far as they are applicable shall apply to any such reference.

Singed, sealed and delivered by* In the presence of

SEAL 1st witness SEAL 1st witness

2nd witness

2nd witness

Condition of Contract

Federation International des Ingenieurs-Conseils, or FIDIC)

| (a) – | Part I | - | General Conditions of Contract |
|-------|-----------|---|--------------------------------|
| /b) – | Do not II | | Second I Complete the second |

(b) Part II - Special Conditions of Contract

The Conditions of Contract comprise two parts:

(a) Part I - General Conditions of Contract(b) Part II - Special Conditions of Contract

Over the years, a number of "model" General Conditions of Contract have evolved. The one used in these Standard Bidding Documents was prepared by the International Federation of Consulting Engineers (Federation International des Ingenieurs-Conseils, or FIDIC), and is commonly known as the FIDIC Conditions of Contract. (The used version is the harmonized Edit on March 2006).

The FIDIC Conditions of Contract have been prepared for an ad measurement (unit price or unit rate) type of contract, and cannot be used without major modifications for other types of contract, such as lump sum, turnkey, or target cost contracts.

The standard text of the General Conditions of Contract chosen must be retained intact to facilitate its reading and interpretation by bidders and its review by the procuring agency. Any amendments and additions to the General Conditions, specific to the contract in hand, should be introduced in the Particular Conditions of Contract.

The use of standard conditions of contract for all civil works will ensure comprehensiveness of ccverage, better balance of rights or obligations between procuring agency and Contractor, general acceptability of its provisions, and savings in time and cost for bid preparation and review, leading to more economic prices.

The FIDIC Conditions of Contract are copyrighted and may not be copied, faxed, or reproduced. Without taking any responsibility of its being accurate, Pakistan Engineering Council with prior consent of FIDIC Secretariat, has reproduced herein the FIDIC General Conditions of Contract for reference purpose only which cannot be used by the users for preparing their bidding documents. The bidding document may include a purchased copy, the cost of which can be retrieved as part of the selling price of the bidding document. Alternatively, the FIDIC Conditions of Contract can be referred to in the bidding documents, and the bidders are advised to obtain copies directly from FIDIC

Copies of the FIDIC Conditions of Contract can be obtained from:

FIDIC CASE POSTALE, CH-1215 Switzerland;

Tel. --41 22 799 49 00; Fax; +41 22 799 49 01 E-mail: fidic@fidic.org.
TABLE OF CONTENTS

PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT - PART B

| Clause | Title |
|--------|-------|
| Clause | 11116 |

| 1.1 | Definitions |
|-----------|--|
| 3.1 | Engineer's Duties and Authority |
| 4.3 | Contractor's Representative |
| 6.10 | Records of Contractor's Personnel and equipment |
| 7.9 | Use of Pakistani Materials and Services |
| 8.1 | Commencement of Works |
| 8.11 | Prolonged Suspension |
| 8.3 | Programme |
| 13.1 | Right to vary |
| 13.3 | Variation procedure |
| 13.8 | Adjustment for changes in cost |
| 14.1 | Contract Price |
| 14.2 | Advance Payment |
| 14.5 | Plants and Materials intended for Works |
| 14.8 | Delayed Payments |
| 15.2 | Termination by Employer/Procuring Agency |
| 15.6 | Corrupt and fraudulent Practices (Integrity Pact). |
| 16.4 | Payment on Termination |
| 17.3 | Employer's/Procuring Agency's Risks |
| 18.1 | General Requirements for Insurance |
| 19.6 | Optional Termination, Payment and release by the Employer |
| 20.1 | Contractor's Claims |
| 20.2 | Appointment of the Dispute Board / Notification of the Committee |
| 20.3 | Failure to agree on the composition of the Dispute Board. |
| 20.4 | Obtaining Dispute Board's Decision |
| 20.5 | Amicable Settlement. |
| 20.6 | Arbitration |
| 20.7 | Failure to comply with Dispute Board's Decision |
| 20.8 | Expiry of Dispute Board's Appointment |
| APPENDIX. | General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement |
| Annex | PROCEDURAL RULES |
| | |

(76)

| 1.1 | Definitions |
|---|--|
| 1.1.1.4 | "Form of Bid" is synonymous with "Letter of Tender". |
| 1.1.1.5 | "Bid" is synonymous with "Tender". |
| 1.1.1.8 | "The word 'Tender' is synonymous with 'Bid', and the words 'Bidding' with 'Tendering' and the words 'Appendix to Tender' with 'Appendix to Bid' and words 'Tender Documents' with 'Bid Documents'". |
| 1.1.1.11 | Insert this Sub Clause |
| | "Programme" means the programme to be submitted by the contractor in accordance with Sub-Clause 8.3 and any approved revisions thereto. |
| I.1. 2. 2 | "Employer" is synonymous with "Procuring Agency" |
| | Executive Engineer, Machinery Maintenance Division, Khairpur @ Shikarpur, behind D.C.Office Shikarpur. |
| 1.1.2.9 | "DB" is synonymous with "Committee" |
| 1.1.3.1 | "Replace 28 days with 7 days" |
| 1.1.3.7 | "Defects Notification Period is synonymous with Defects Liability Period" |
| Sub-Clause 1.5 | Replace sequence of priority of documents with the following: |
| Priority of Documents | (a) the Contract Agreement (if completed), (b) the Letter of Acceptance, (c) the Tender including Letter of Bid, Appendix to Bid, Annexure, and tables excluding Appendix D Bill of Quantities"., (d) the Particular Conditions – Part A, (Special Stipulations Appendix A) (e) the Particular Conditions – Part B (f) the General Conditions (g) the Drawings, (h) the Addenda to Specification (i) Special Provisions (j) Specification, (k) the Appendix D, Bill of Quantities and (l) the Schedules and any other documents forming part of the Contract. |
| Sub-Clause 1.6 Contract Agreement | Replace the word "Employer" with "Contractor" in last line |
| Sub-Clause 1.15 Inspections and Audit by the Bank | This Sub-Clause is deleted entirely. |

PART B - SPECIAL /PARTICULAR CONDITIONS OF CONTRACT

÷

| Sub-Clause 2.4 | This Sub-Clause is deleted entirely. |
|------------------------------------|---|
| Employer's Financial | |
| Arrangements | |
| Sub-Clause 3.1 | The following paragraph is added after duties: |
| Engineer's Duties and Authority | Procuring agency shall ensure that the Engineer's Representative/Staff is a professional engineer as defined in the Pakistan Engineering Council Act 1975 (V of 1976) |
| | Replace part of Clause after the sentence "The following provisions shall apply" with following: |
| | The Engineer shall obtain the specific approval of the Employer before taking action under the following Sub Clauses of these conditions: |
| | a) Sub-Clauses 1.9, 2.1, 4.7, 4.12, 4.24, 7.4, 8.4, 8.5, 8.9, 10.3, 13.7, and 19.4: Agreeing or determining an extension of time and / or additional cost. |
| | b) Approving subletting of any part of the Works under Clause 4.4. |
| | c) Sub-Clause 8.8: Instructing suspension of Works; |
| | d) Sub-Clause 10.1: Issuing Taking Over Certificate |
| | e) Sub-Clause 10.2: Issuing Taking Over Certificates |
| | f) Sub-Clause 11.9: Issuing Performance Certificate(s) |
| | g) Sub Clause 13.1: Instructing a Variation, except; |
| | i) in an emergency situation as determined by the Engineer, or |
| | ii) if such Variation would increase the Accepted Contract Amount not more than 1% cumulatively of such Amount. |
| | h) Sub-Clause 13.3: Approving a proposal for Variation submitted by the Contractor in accordance with Sub Clause 13.1 or 13.2. |
| | i) Sub Clause 13.4: Specifying the amount payable in each of the applicable currencies |
| | j) Sub-Clause 13.7: Before Adjustment for Changes in Legislation |
| | k) Sub-Clause 13.8: Before Adjustment for Changes in Cost |
| | Sub-Clause 20.1: Approving Claims of the Contractor (Time / Financial) under Clause 20.1 and accepting principles of the Claims |
| | Notwithstanding the obligation, as set out above, to obtain approval, if, in the opinion of the Engineer, an emergency occurs affecting the safety of life or of Works or adjoining property, he may, without relieving the Contractor of any of his duties and responsibility under the Contract, instruct the Contractor to execute all such work or to do all such things as may, in the opinion of the Engineer, be necessary to abate or reduce the risk. The Contractor shall forthwith comply, despite the absence of approval of the Employer, with any such instruction of the Engineer. The Engineer shall determine an addition to the Contract Price, in respect of such instruction, in accordance with Clause 13 and shall notify the Contractor accordingly, with a copy to the Employer. |

| Suo-Clause 3.6 | Insert this Sub Clause at the end of Clause 3 |
|------------------------------------|---|
| Management Meetings | "The Engineer or the Contractor's Representative may require the other to attend a management meeting in order to review the progress with reference to the agreed program and arrangements for future works. The Engineer shall record the business of management meetings and supply copies of the record to those attending the meeting and to the Employer. In the record, responsibilities for any actions to be taken shall be in accordance with the Contract". |
| Sub-Clause 4.1. | Add following at the end of Sub-Clause 4.1: |
| Contractor's General Obligation | The Contractor shall prepare and submit one complete set of "As- Built" Documents on one master CD and two complete sets of print copies of "As-Built" Documents together with the back-up of the quantity calculation to the Engineer within 28 days after the date of taking over by Employer. These "As-Built" Documents shall indicate all approved changes made during construction, superimposed on the original plans / "As-Staked Documents". |
| | The final measured quantities for all pay items shall be included on all "As-Built" Documents. These "As-Built" Documents shall be prepared continuously as execution of the Works progresses and shall be submitted to the Engineer for review as sections or parts of the Project are completed. No Taking-Over Certificate for a Sector or the whole of Works shall be issued to the Contractor by the Engineer without the approved "As-Built" Documents. The preparation of the "As-Built" Documents shall be at the expense of the Contractor, payment for which is subsidiary to the pay items of the Contract. |
| | The review and approval by the Engineer or by the Employer of the "As-Built" Documents does not relieved the Contractor of any responsibility for and/or liabilities arising out of inaccurate, false or otherwise incorrect "As-Built" Documents prepared and submitted by the Contractor. The approved "As-Built Documents" shall be reproduced by the Contractor in four (4) hard copies and one (1) soft copies and return the same to the Employer. |
| | Shop Drawings . The Contractor shall furnish to the Engineer all Contractor's, and Subcontractor's Shop Drawings. Shop Drawings shall be deemed to include design drawings, fabrication drawings, catalogue cuts, brochures, illustrations, material lists, design calculations, reference standards and performance data which may be required by the specification necessary for the proper execution of the Work, or as otherwise required by the Engineer for assurance that there is intent to meet the requirements of the specifications. All Shop Drawings shall be in English. |
| | The Contractor shall submit all Shop Drawings to the Engineer in the manner hereinafter described, in sufficient time to prevent delays in the delivery of materials or in the progress or completion of the work. Regardless of the source of Shop Drawings, all submissions shall be deemed to be submissions by the Contractor under the Contract. |

All Subcontractors' Shop Drawings shall first be sent directly to the Contractor. The Contractor shall thoroughly check all such Shop Drawings for measurements, sizes of members, materials and all other details, to assure him that the Shop Drawings conform to the intent of the Drawings and Specifications.

The Contractor shall return to the Subcontractors for correction, such Shop Drawings that are found inaccurate or otherwise in error. After the Contractor has checked and approved such Shop Drawings he shall place thereon the date of such approval and the legible signature of the checker, and shall then submit them to the Engineer for review. The Engineer may refuse to check or review any Shop Drawings that are not submitted in compliance with the foregoing requirements.

The Contractor shall submit five (5) copies of Shop Drawings plus the number that the Contractor wishes to return for his own and his Subcontractor's use.

For all Equipment, Shop Drawings shall be completed in all respects and shall show clear compliance with the Specifications. Where applicable, performance figures of equipment, finishes and reference to other relevant drawings must be noted on the Shop Drawings. Details of ancillary items being supplied with the particular equipment must be submitted. Piecemeal submissions will not be considered.

Descriptive brochures that are applicable shall be included for information. Any notation on the Shop Drawings which is on the prints and not on the original from which the prints were made shall be in GREEN INK.

The Engineer will review submitted Shop Drawings within a reasonable time and will return them stamped with "NO COMMENT", "SEE COMMENTS" or "RESUBMIT".

The Engineer may, at his discretion, require an immediate resubmission of Shop Drawings noted "SEE COMMENTS" so that he can make a further review or amendments. Drawings requiring re-submission shall be either amended and re-submitted or shall be superseded by another Shop Drawings. Comments on Shop Drawings are not orders for Extra Work.

Shop Drawings re-submitted for further review will be reviewed for response to previous notations only and the Contractor, by such re-submission shall be held to have represented that such Shop Drawings contain no other alterations, additions or deletions, unless the Contractor (in writing) directs the Engineer specific attention to the same.

Should the Contractor question, or dissent, from such notations or comments, he shall direct the Engineer's attention to the same for further clarification before re-submitting.

By reviewing Shop Drawings, the Engineer does not assume responsibility for errors or omissions and non-compliance with the Contract requirements. Such errors and omissions must be made good by the Contractor, irrespective, of the receipt, checking, or review of the Shop Drawings by the Engineer and even though the Work is done in accordance with such Shop Drawings.

As-Staked Drawings. "As-Staked" Drawings shall be prepared for the entire project. These drawing shall be submitted to the Employer for review and approval regardless of the nature of the changes in the original design, if there is increase/decrease of more than five percent (5%) in quantities of major items of work and more than ten percent (10%) for minor items of work. Variation Order shall be prepared in accordance with Sub-Clause 13.1.

The preparation of the "As-Staked" drawings and the corresponding back-up calculations must be completed within a reasonable period from the commencement of the project. The plans shall indicate major modifications (i.e. change in road alignment, change in type or main components of structures, introduction of new work items), superimposed on the original plans.

The approved "As-Staked" drawings shall be reproduced (white print) by the Contractor in five (5) copies. The preparation of the "As-Staked" drawings and reproduction cost shall be at the expense of the Contractor, payment for which is subsidiary to the pay items of the contract.

All data pertaining to As-Staked survey shall be jointly signed by the Contractor's and Engineer's representatives.

Quality of Plans ("As-Built", "As Staked" and other Drawings for Variation). All sheets of the "As-Built", "As-Staked" and other drawings for Variations should be of uniform size and one (1) standard size (A1) using Mylar or other quality tracing paper. The sheets must be neat and clean and without any crossed-out or voided portion. The title block should be made an integral part of the sheet plans and not merely patched-up.

Supplementary Drawings and Instructions. The Engineer shall have the authority to issue to the Contractor from time to time such supplementary drawings and instructions to the proper and adequate execution of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein. The Contractor shall carry out and be bound by the same.

The Contractor shall designate an additional set of drawings as "Record Drawings" and keep them to the site.

The Contractor shall clearly and neatly mark the Record Drawing in ink to indicate all authorized changes in the work, and also as actually constructed. These additional plans will not change the work of the Contract but will elucidate or explain it.

The Contractor's authorized representative and his other professional engineers working at site shall register themselves with

Insert additional paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 4.3

| Sub-Clause 4.3 Contractor's Representative |
|---|
| |

the Pakistan Engineering Council.

| Sub-Clause 4.4 | Replace first line with the following |
|----------------------------------|--|
| Subcontractors | The Contractor may subcontract the Works for the maximum value equal to 30% of the Accepted Contract Amount. |
| Sub-Clause 4.8 | Insert additional paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 4.8 |
| Safety Procedures | In the event of work being carried out at night, the Contractor shall at his own cost, provide and maintain such good and sufficient light as will enable the work to proceed satisfactorily and without danger. The approaches to the Site and the Works where the night- work is being carried out shall be sufficiently lighted. All arrangement adopted for such lighting shall be to the satisfaction of the Engineer. |
| Sub-Clause 4.18 | Final paragraph to be added to after second paragraph |
| Protection of the Environment | The Contractor shall exercise care to protect the natural landscape and shall conduct his construction operation so as to prevent any unnecessary destruction, scarring or defacing of the natural surroundings in the vicinity of the Works, except where clearing is required for permanent works, approved temporary works and for excavation operations. All trees and native vegetation shall be preserved and shall be protected from damage, which may be caused, by the Contractor's construction operations and equipment. On completion of the Works, all work areas shall be smoothed and graded in a manner to scarring damage or defacing may occur as a result of the Contractor's operations, it shall be repaired, replanted or otherwise corrected as directed by the Engineer at Contractor's expense. |
| | Borrow areas shall be located and operated so as not to detract from the future usefulness or value of the sites. Upon completion of operations, borrow areas shall be left in a safe and sightly conditions. No borrow areas shall be located within 500 meter from the right of way. |
| | During the performance of the work required under the Contract, the Contractor shall carryout proper and efficient measures as often as necessary to reduce the dust nuisance, and to prevent dust originating from his operations. For waste water disposal, the provision of septic tank alone for worker's camp etc. will not be sufficient and may have to be supplemented with secondary treatment in form of gravel drains / constructed wetland depending on the laboratory results of effluent from the septic tank. |
| | The Contractor shall take all necessary measures to prevent water from the Site causing a nuisance on or, in any neighbouring land or property either by causing flooding or by depositing sediment on the surface of the ground or in drains or watercourses. Wherever necessary to prevent this, the Contractor shall construct temporary drainage channels, layer sumps and traps (in addition to those shown on the Contract) discharging into existing drain, ditches or watercourses. The Contractor snail removes over all sediment, which may accumulate on any land or in any drains, ditches or watercourses or in any other property as a result of his operations. |

| | All works including those below sub-soil standing water level shall be carried out in the dry unless specified otherwise. The Contractor's arrangements for controlling the inflow of water into the parts of the excavation being worked and during the placing of |
|------------------|--|
| | concrete and other works therein and for the collection and disposal of water shall be to the Engineer's Approval. Such arrangements may include interalia temporary cofferdams, well-point systems, pumps; drains trenches, flumes and other recognized means. All Costs and charges in dealing with water in any way whatsoever and the effects thereof will be deemed to be included in the Contract Price and in the unit rates or prices of the Contractor for excavations. |
| | Water flowing into excavations shall be carried by trenches, drainage layers or open jointed drains to sumps from which it shall be pumped. Such trenches drains or sands shall generally be clear of the Permanent Works unless approved otherwise by the Engineer. If, with the said Approval of the Engineer trenches drains or sumps are excavated under or immediately adjacent the Permanent Works, these shall comprise open-jointed pipes with gravel mounds. When no longer required and when approved by the Engineer they shall be filled with a cement /sand grout injected under pressure so as to fill the pipe and all voids completely. |
| | The Contractor shall keep all surfaces upon or against which concrete is to be deposited free from running water and no concrete shall be placed until such surfaces are properly drained. Suitable precautions shall be taken to prevent running water from washing out cement or concrete while it is setting or from injuring the Works in any other way. |
| | Notwithstanding the Approval by the Engineer of the Contractor's methods of dealing with water, the Contractor shall be responsible for and accept all the risks and liabilities of dealing with water from whatever source and of all effects thereof. |
| | The Contractor shall throughout the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of any defects therein, comply with all applicable Environment Protection Laws and Regulations of the Country. |
| Sub-Clause 4.21 | Add following paragraphs after paragraph (h) |
| Progress Reports | (i) An updated construction schedule indicating the progress in percentage; and (j) Description of all works carried out since the last report; and |
| | (k) An updated Progress Curve/Projected Cash flow indicating the planned and actual progress; and |
| | (l) An updated Critical Resource Usage Chart showing comparison of planned and actual values; and |
| | (m) An updated material procurement plan showing comparison of planned and actual values; and |
| | (n) An updated schedule of shop drawings comparison of planned and actual values; and |

| | (o) Description of the Works planned for the next 28 days sufficiently detailed to enable the Engineer to determine his programme of inspection and testing; and (p) Summary of all submission; and |
|--|---|
| | |
| | (q) Information about problems and areas of concern and proposal to overcome the same. |
| Sub-Clause 6.5 | Add the following paragraph at the end of Sub-Clause 6.5: |
| Working Hours | The Contractor shall pay overtime payment to the Engineer's Support Staff/Personnel who were required by the Contractor to perform their respective work assignment beyond the normal working hours stated in Part A – Particular Conditions (Appendix A). |
| Sub-Clause 6.10 | The following paragraphs added: |
| Records of Contractor's Personnel and Equipment | The Contractor shall, upon request by the Engineer at any time in relation to any time of hired Contractor's Equipment, forthwith notify the Engineer in writing the name and address of the Owner of the equipment and shall certify that the agreement for the hire thereof contains a provision in accordance with the requirements set forth above. |
| Sub-Clause 6.23 Epidemics | Insert sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.22: In the event of any outbreak of illness of an epidemic nature, the Contractor shall comply with and carry out such regulations, orders and requirements as may be made by the Government or the local medical or sanitary authorities, for the purpose of dealing with and overcoming the same. |
| Sub-Clause 6.24 Workers' Organizations | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.23 In countries where national law recognizes workers' rights to form and to join workers' organizations of their choosing without interference and to bargain collectively, the Contractor shall comply with national law. The Contractor shall not discriminate or retaliate against Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in such organizations. Where national law restricts workers' organizations, the Contractor shall ensure that Contractor's Personnel have alternative means to express their grievances and defend their rights regarding working conditions and terms of employment, such as worker committees or forums to facilitate dialogue between workers' representatives and the employer. Where national is silent on this issue, the Contractor shall not discriminate or retaliate against Contractor's Personnel who participate, or seek to participate, in organizations and forums designed to promote good working conditions and favourable terms of employment, consistent with the Contract. |
| Sub-Clause 6.25 Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 6.24 The Contractor shall not make employment decisions on the basis of personal characteristics unrelated to inherent job requirements. The Contractor shall base the employment relationship on the principle of equal opportunity and fair treatment, and will not |

| | discriminate with respect to aspects of the employment relationship, including recruitment and hiring, compensation (including wages and benefits), working conditions and terms of employment, access to training, promotion, termination of employment or retirement, and discipline. In countries where national law provides for non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall comply with national law. When national laws are silent on non-discrimination in employment, the Contractor shall meet this Sub-Clause's requirements. Special measures of protection or assistance to remedy past discrimination or selection for a particular job based on inherent requirements of the job will not be deemed discrimination. |
|--|---|
| Sub-Clause 7.9 Use of Pakistani Materials and Services | Insert additional sub-clauses after Sub-Clause 7.8 The contractor shall, so far as may be consistent with the contract, make the maximum use of materials, supplies, plant and equipment indigenous to or produced or fabricated in Pakistan and services, available in Pakistan provided such materials, supplies, plant, equipment and services shall be of required standard. |
| Sub-Clause 8.1 Commencement of Works | Delete paragraph (b) entirely and substituted with the following. The contractor shall commence the works on site within the period named in Appendix-A to Bid from the date of receipt by him from the Engineer of a written Notice to Commence. Thereafter, the contractor shall proceed with the works with due expedition and without delay |
| Sub-Clause 8.3 Programme | Insert following additional paragraphs at the end of Sub Clause $\delta.3$; The program shall be submitted in the form of CPM charts. The Contractor will also have a licensed copy of the software from a reputed firm which shall be accessible to the Engineer as well as his assistants. Contractor shall organize a training program for his and Engineer's staff so that the program can be updated regularly as required. |
| | The revised programme, in accordance with the Contract, shall be submitted within fourteen (14) days of the request received from the Engineer. The Contractor shall pay a penalty of Rs.100,000/- (Rupees Hundred Thousands only) for each day of delay in the submission of said revised programme. The Employer shall recover such amount from any payment due to the Contractor under the Contract, on the Engineer's recommendations. |
| | Notwithstanding General Conditions of the Contract Sub Clause 8.3, the program to be submitted for the execution of the works shall, in addition to the program of pure construction activities, include an alleviation program for site staff and labour and their families (if allowed to stay at camp) in respect of Sexually Transmitted Infections (STI), Sexually Transmitted Diseases (STD) including HIV/AIDS. The STID and HIV/AIDS alleviation program shall indicate when, how and at what cost the Contractor plans to satisfy the requirements of Sub Clause 6.7 herein and the related Specifications. |
| | The Contractor shall submit the Programme of Works on Primavera (85) |

·· 1

Project Planner P-5 or the latest (both hard and soft copy) for the consent of the Engineer. All items of works and activities including mobilization should be included in the Programme of Works. The programme shall identify and highlight those activities, which are on the Critical Path. The programme shall be revised monthly and should include a chart of principal activities of the work forecast for monthly execution and an updated schedule of the payment to be made by the Employer to the Contractor. This programme of works as scheduled shall form basis of Delay Damages pursuant to Sub-Clauses 8.7.

In addition, cash flow estimates shall be supported with inputs of over drafts organized with financial institutions at various stages of the projects to meet the funding requirements of the project. The Contractor shall supply and maintain at his site office for his and Engineer's use a licensed copy of the project management computer software package namely Primavera for programming and to monitor the progress. It shall be supplied complete with manuals and technical training and support for the duration of the Contract as per requirements assessed by the Engineer.

In order to assist the Engineer's Project Management Team, the Contractor shall be required to submit at 2 weeks intervals data to the Engineer on the cost and quantities and other data relevant to the monitoring of progress according to a particular format suitable for computer processing.

The programme should be computerized and drawn up on the CPM with all details as illustrated in this Clause, identifying all items of work including temporary work. Progress reporting by the Contractor should be supported on a monthly basis with an up-todate analysis of the progress including a statement on items, which are or are about to become critical to the progress of the work along with the proposals on how the Contractor intends to alleviate the situation.

General Requirements:

- a. Programme should be submitted (both hard and soft copy) strictly following the guidelines and format specified in this Clause.
- b. The Engineer at any time during the execution of the Works; direct the Contractor to change/modify the Programme / Schedule based on the Priority of Works.
- c. No payment shall be released to the Contractor prior to approval of the Base Line Programme by the Engineer.
- d. Submittal of Programme consists of:
 - 1. Construction Schedule (CPM);
 - 2. Progress Curve/Project Cash Flow;
 - 3. Critical Resources Usage Chart;
 - 4. Detailed Method Statement;
 - 5. Material Procurement Plan;
 - 6. Schedule of Submittals and Shop-Drawings;

7. Any other details as required by the Engineer; Construction Schedule:F a. Construction Schedule shall be developed on the basis of Work Breakdown Structure provided or approved by the Engineer. b. Construction Schedule shall be detailed up to level 4 or as required by the Engineer. c. Durations of construction activity should be calculated practically in relation to quantity of work done and allocated resources. Any activity that demands duration greater than seven (07) calendar days should be split into number of activities to monitor the same accordingly. d. Construction activities of the schedule should be logically linked with preceding and succeeding activities and showed in submitted construction schedule. e. Critical Activities and Critical Path of the project should be highlighted with red colour in bar chart and precedence diagram. Total Float for non-critical activities should also be shown in the schedule. f. Appropriate quantity of direct resources (material, labour, equipment and non-consumable material) should be allocated to all activities and showed in submitted construction schedule. Labour resource should be divided according to related trades (e.g. Mason, Operator, helper etc.) Contractor should make sure that no resource is being over allocated. Indirect resources should be allocated to supervision / summary activity. g. BOQ amount should be loaded to reach construction activity. Accrual basis should be indicated to construction activity. h. Construction Schedule should show Activity ID, Activity Description, BOQ Quantity, Duration, Start Date, Finish Date, Total Float, Predecessors, Resource names with quantity, BOQ Amount and timescale where the bars show start and finish dates. **Progress Curve / Projected Cash Flow:** a. Progress Curve / Projected Cash Flow should be developed and presented on Project Management Software - Primavera Project Planner. b. S-Curve should be plotted between time (in weeks) and progress of work done (in % of work). The progress should be shown in cumulative percent of work done. Percent of work done should be calculated with the BOQ amount and payment terms. **Critical Resources Usage Chart:** a. Critical Usage Chart should be developed. b. List of Critical Resources included Labourers, equipments, consumable/non-consumable materials and/or identified by the Engineer. c. Resource usage chart should show Resource Name and weekly

| | utilization (numbers) of resources on each activity. |
|---------------------------------|---|
| | Detailed Method Statement: |
| | a. Detailed method statement should be presented in descriptive format explaining the method of carrying out works, logistics, site layout, flow of work, quality and safety measures for each activity and any other details as required by the Engineer. |
| | Material Procurement Plan: a. Material Procurement Plan for major items of purchase should be presented in a Tabular Format to be submitted to the Engineer for pre-approval. The Plan must as a minimum show the list of local & imported materials to be used, their specification reference, and planned dates for submittal to Consultant, approval process, placing of order, vendor contact, required delivery on site, status of Line of Credit (LOC) if applicable, and usage of material. |
| | Schedule of Shop Drawings and Submittals: Schedule of Shop Drawings and other Submittals should be presented in a Tabular Format to be submitted to the Engineer for pre-approval. Plan must as a minimum show the list of shop drawings required and their specification reference, planned dates for submittal to consultant, approval process, and usage of shop drawing. |
| | Cash Flow Estimates: The Contractor shall, within 28 days from the receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, provide to the Engineer for his information a detailed cash flow estimate in quarterly periods, of all payments to which the Contractor will be entitled under the Contract and the Contractor shall subsequently supply revised cash flow estimates at quarterly intervals, if required to do so by the Engineer. |
| | Revised Programme: If at any time it should appear to the Engineer that the actual progress of the Works does not conform to the programme to which consent has been given under Sub-Clause 8.3, the Contractor shall produce, at the request of the Engineer, a revised programme showing the modifications to such programme necessary to ensure completion of the Works within the Time for Completion. |
| Sub-Clause 8.7 Delay Damages | Insert following additional paragraphs at the end of Sub-Clause 8.7 Notwithstanding the provision of above stated conditions following shall prevail: The rate of Delay Damages shall be 0.1% per day of the Contract Price for every day of delay in which whole or part of the work(s) remained unfurnished subject to a maximum of 10% of the Final Contract Price. |
| | In addition to the Delay Damages, the Contractor shall borne all the cost/expenses related to the supervision of the works by the Engineer and his staff covering salaries of the Engineer and all of his Site Supervision staff including all the benefits, providing, running and maintenance of all the Engineer's Facilities up to the |

Ā

÷

.

| ······································ | |
|--|--|
| | issuance of the Taking Over Certificate by the Employer. All the above cost/expanses will not be reimbursed / paid to the Contractor beyond the approved completion period of the works. |
| | If, before the Time for Completion of the whole of the Works or, if applicable, any Section, a Taking-Over Certificate has been issued for any part of the Works or of a Section, the delay damages for delay in completion of the remainder of the Works or of that Section shall, for any period of delay after the date stated in such Taking-Over Certificate, and in the absence of alternative provisions in the Contract, be reduced in the proportion which the value of the part so certified bears to the value of the whole of the Works or Section, as applicable. The provisions of this Sub-Clause shall only apply to the rate of delay damages and shall not affect the limit thereof. |
| | Interim Delay Damages |
| | Contractor's works programme submitted under Sub-Clause 8.3 of the Conditions of Contract shall be considered part of the Contract Agreement. If the Contractor's progress is not as per approved programme of works, the Contractor shall be liable for Interim Delay Damages at the rate of 0.05% of the Contract Price for each day of delay, which shall be refunded if the progress again matches the approved programme of works during the currency of works. |
| | The amount of interim delay damages deducted by the Employer from the payment of the Contractor and refunded shall be taken into consideration while determining the delay damages for the whole of the Works. |
| | If the progress of works is observed to be behind approved programme of works against three consecutive months then the Employer may invoke Sub-Clause 15.2 of the Conditions of Contract. |
| Sub-Clause 8.11 | Replace 84 days by 120 days. |
| Prolonged Suspension | |
| Sub-Clause 10.1 | Insert following as 3rd paragraph after 2nd paragraph |
| Taking Over of the Works and Sections | Within 14 days of the date of receipt of Contractor's notice for issuance of Taking Over Certificate the Employer shall on the written request of the Engineer constitute a committee comprising of Engineer/Engineer's Representative, Employer's and Contractor's Representatives. The Committee shall conduct a detailed inspection of the works completed by the Contractor to ascertain the completion or the extent of completion to decide about the issuance of Taking Over Certificate. |
| | The Engineer shall take further action on the Contractor's application in pursuance to the recommendations of the committee. |
| Sub-Clause 11.9 | Insert following as 2rd paragraph after 1st paragraph |
| Performance Certificate | At the completion of the Defects Notification Period the Employer shall constitute a committee comprising of Engineer / Engineer's Representative, Employer's and Contractor's Representatives. The Committee shall conduct a detailed inspection of the works to ascertain the issuance of Performance Certificate or otherwise. |
| | |

| Sub-Clause 13.1 Right to Vary | In the last line of Para, after the word "Variation", the word "in writing" is added. |
|--|---|
| Sub-Clause 13.3 Variation Procedure | In the tenth line, after the words "as soon as practicable" following is added: "and within a period not exceeding one-eighth of the completion time" |
| Sut-Clause 13.8 | The following provision is added: |
| Adjustment for Changes in cost | The amounts payable to the Contractor, pursuant to Sub-Clause 14.6, shall be adjusted in respect of the rise or fall in the cost of materials only, and will be paid to the contractor on those items mentioned in the Appendix $-C$ (B). Similarly reduction in the cost of these materials will also be recovered from the contractor accordingly. |
| Sub-Clause 14.1 The Contract Price | Renumber subparagraphs (c) and (d) as (f) and (g) and delete subparagraph (e). |
| | Insert following paragraphs (c), (d) and (e): |
| | (c) The Contract Price shall include all taxes, duties and other charges imposed outside the Country on the production, manufacture, sale and transport of the Contractor's Equipment. Plant, Materials and supplies to be used on or furnished under the Contract, and on the services to be performed under the Contract. |
| | (d) The Contractor's staff and labour will be liable to pay personal income taxes in the Country in respect of such of their salaries and wages as are chargeable under the Laws for the time being in force, and the Contractor shall perform such duties in regard to such deductions thereof as may be imposed on him by such laws. |
| | (e) Notwithstanding the provisions of subparagraph (b), Contractor's Equipment, including essential spare parts therefore, imported by the Contractor for the sole purpose of executing the Contract shall be temporarily exempt from the payment of import duties and taxes upon initial importation, provided the Contractor shall post with the customs authorities at the port of entry an approved export bond or bank guarantee, valid until the Time for Completion plus six months, in an amount equal to the full import duties and taxes which would be payable on the assessed imported value of such Contractor's Equipment and spare parts, and callable in the event the Contractor's Equipment is not exported from the Country on completion of the Contract. A copy of the bond or bank guarantee endorsed by the customs authorities shall be provided by the Contractor to the Employer upon the importation of individual items of Contractor's Equipment and spare parts. Upon export of individual items of Contractor's Equipment or spare parts, or upon the completion of the Contract, the Contractor shall prepare, for approval by the customs authorities, an assessment of the residual value of the Contractor's Equipment and spare part to be exported, based on the depreciation scale(s and other criteria used by the customs authorities for such purposes under the provisions of the applicable Laws. Import duties and taxes shall be due and payable to the customs authorities by the Contractor on (a) the |

| | difference between the initial imported value and the residual value of the Contractor's Equipment and spare parts to exported; and (b) on the initial imported value that Contractor's Equipment and spare parts remaining in the Country after completion of the Contract. Upon payment of such dues within 28 days of being invoiced, the bond or bank guarantee shall be reduced or released accordingly; otherwise the security shall be called in the full amount remaining. |
|-----------------|---|
| Sub-Clause 14.2 | Delete the Clause in entirety and replace with following |
| Advance Payment | The Employer if requested by the Contractor shall make an advance payment for mobilisation and cash flow support, when the Contractor submits a guarantee in accordance with this Sub-Clause. The total advance payment, the number and timing of instalments (if more than one) shall be as stated in the Appendix A. |
| | The Advance Payment (if required) shall be paid in two equal instalments after the following conditions have been fulfilled. |
| | Installment-1: 50% of the total amount of the Advance Payment |
| | • That the Contract Agreement has been signed by the Parties. |
| | • The Contractor has submitted bank guarantee for the full amount of the advance payment in the form of irrevocable without recourse bank guarantee. |
| | • The Contractor has submitted the Performance Security in the form as prescribed in Sub-Clause 4.2. |
| | • The Contractor has submitted the Programme of Works in the form detailed in Sub-Clause 8.3 and the Engineer has given his concurrence. |
| | Installmentt-2: Remaining 50% of the total amount of the Advance Payment shall be paid on mobilization of Plant, Equipment and other resources at site by the Contractor to the satisfaction of the Engineer |
| | Unless and until the Employer receives this guarantee, or if the total advance payment is not stated in the Appendix A, this Sub-Clause shall not apply. |
| | The Contractor shall pay interest on the mobilization advance at the rate of 10% per annum on the advance. |
| | The Engineer shall deliver to the Employer and to the Contractor an Interim Payment Certificate for the advance payment or its first instalment after receiving a Statement (under Sub-Clause 14.3 [Application for Interim Payment Certificates]) and after the Employer receives (i) the Performance Security in accordance with Sub-Clause 4.2 [Performance Security] and (ii) a guarantee in amount equal to the advance payment. This guarantee shall be issued by an entity and from within a country (or other jurisdiction) approved by the Employer, and shall be in the form annexed to the Particular Conditions or in another form approved by the Employer. |
| | The Contractor shall ensure that the guarantee is valid and enforceable until the advance payment has been repaid, but its amount shall be progressively reduced by the amount repaid by the Contractor as indicated in the Payment Certificates. If the terms of the guarantee specify its expiry date, and the advance payment has |

| i. The materials are in accordance with the specifications for the permanent works; |
|--|
| Advance on non - perishable materials and sub-clauses (a), (b) and (c) will be applicable for plants only :- I. The Contractor shall be entitled to receive from the procuring agency Secured Advance against an INDENTURE BOND in Public Works Account Form No.31 (Fin. R. Form No. 2) acceptable to the procuring agency of such sum as the Engineer may consider proper in respect of non-perishable materials brought at the site but not yet incorporated in the Permanent Works provided that: |
| The Employer shall be empowered to call in the guarantee in whole or in part(s) if the Contractor defaults in the repayment(s) for any reason(s). Add the following paragraph as sub-clause 14.5 (d) for Secured |
| In the event that the amount of money certified and due to the Contractor under the contract at any time is less than the total of due repayments of Advance Payment, the balance of the due repayments shall be paid to the Employer by the Contractor within seven days of demand by the Employer. If the balance is not so paid, the Employer shall be empowered to call in sufficient of the Advance payment bank guarantee to cover the said balance. |
| If the advance payment has not been repaid prior to the issue of the Taking-Over Certificate for the Works or prior to termination under Clause 15 [Termination by Employer], Clause 16 [Suspension and Termination by Contractor] or Clause 19 [Force Majeure] (as the case may be), the whole of the balance then outstanding shall immediately become due and in case of termination under Clause 15 [Termination by Employer] and Sub- Clause 19.6 [Optional Termination, Payment and Release], payable by the Contractor to the Employer. |
| Unless stated otherwise in the Appendix A, the advance payment including interest shall be recovered in 5 equal instalments starting from third running bills (IPCs) and in case the number of bills is less than 5 then 1/5 of the advance inclusive of the interest thereon shall be recovered from each bill and the balance together with interest be recovered from the final bill. It may be insured that there is sufficient amount in the final bill to enable recovery of the Mobilization Advance. |
| Contractor shall extend the validity of the guarantee until the advance payment has been repaid. At any time, the bank guarantee shall be valid for an amount not less than the amount of the original Advance Payment less any partial repayment of that Advance Payment which may have been affected. The Contractor shall inform the guaranteeing bank, by letter, counter signed by the Employer, of the required amount of the guarantee from time to time. Reduction of the amount shall not be made without such authorizing letter. |
| |

1

| | Contractor; |
|---|--|
| | |
| | iii. The Contractor's records of the requirements, orders receipts and use of materials are kept in a form approved by the Engineer, and such records shall be available for inspection by the Engineer; |
| | iv. The Contractor shall submit with his monthly statement the estimated value of the materials on site together with such documents as may be required by the Engineer for the purpose of valuation of materials and providing evidence of ownership and payment therefore; |
| | V. Ownership of such materials shall be deemed to vest in the procuring agency and these materials shall not be removed from the site or otherwise disposed of without written permission of the procuring agency; |
| | vi. The sum payable for such materials on site shall not exceed 75 % of the (i) landed cost of imported materials, or (ii) ex- factory /ex-warehouse price of locally manufactured or produced materials, or (iii) market price of stands other materials; |
| | vii. Secured Advance shall not be allowed unless and until the previous advance, if any, is fully recovered; |
| | viii. Detailed account of advances must be kept in part II of running account bill or a separate statement; and |
| | ix. Secured Advance may be permitted only against materials/quantities anticipated to be consumed / utilized on the work within a period of 3 months from the date of issue of secured advance and in no case for full quantities of materials for the entire work/contract. |
| | II. Recovery of Secured Advance: |
| | Secured Advance paid on non-perishable materials to the Contractor under the above provisions shall be effected from the monthly payments on actual consumption basis, but not later than period specified in the rules not more than three months (even if unutilized); |
| Sub-Clause 14.6 Issue of Interim Payment | Add following in second line after the words "Performance Security." |
| Certificates | No amount shall be certified or paid until the Engineer has recived and approved the Programme of Works. |
| Sub-Clause 14.8 | Second Para is replaced with following text: |
| Delayed Payment | In the event of the failure of the Procuring Agency to make the payment within the time stated, the procuring agency shall pay to the contractor in case of ICB contracts only , the compensation at rate of KIBOR+2% per annum in local currency and Libor+1% for foreign currency, upon all sums to be paid from the date of which the same would have been paid (i.e. for NCB, no compensation is |
| Certificates Sub-Clause 14.8 | Security." No amount shall be certified or paid until the Engineer has recive and approved the Programme of Works. Second Para is replaced with following text: In the event of the failure of the Procuring Agency to make the payment within the time stated, the procuring agency shall pay to the contractor in case of ICB contracts only , the compensation a rate of KIBOR+2% per annum in local currency and Libor+1% for foreign currency, upon all sums to be paid from the date of whice |

| Sub-Cause 14.15 | Currency of Payment is Pakistan Rupee (PKR). |
|--|---|
| Currencies of Payment | Currency of Payment is Pakistan Rupee (PKR). |
| Sub-Clause 15.2 | Insert following as paragraph (g) after paragraph (f) |
| Termination by Employer | (g) If the progress of works with respect to the Programme of Works is observed to be behind the approved program of works pursuant to Sub Clause 8.7 for three consecutive months. |
| | The following Para is added at the end of the sub-clause: |
| | Provided further, that in addition to the action taken by the procuring agency against the Contractor under this Clause, the procuring agency may also refer the case of default of the Contractor to Pakistan Engineering Council for punitive action under the Construction and Operation of Engineering Works Bye- Laws 1987, as amended from time to time. |
| Sub-Clause 15.6 | The following text is to be added as 3rd paragraph: |
| Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices | Successful Contractor has to provide Integrity Pact (for contracts worth Rs.10.0 million and above). If the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants is found to have violated or involved in violation of the Integrity Pact signed by the Contractor as Appendix-L to his Bid, then the procuring agency shall be entitled to: |
| | a. recover from the Contractor an amount equivalent to ten times the sum of any commission, gratification, bribe, finder's fee or kickback given by the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants; |
| | b. terminate the Contract; and |
| | c. recover from the Contractor any loss or damage to the procuring agency as a result of such termination or of any other corrupt business practices of the Contractor or any of his Subcontractors, agents or servants. |
| | The termination under sub-para (b) of this Sub-Clause shall proceed in the manner prescribed under sub-clauses 15.2 & 15.5 and the payment under Sub-Clause 15.4 shall be made after having deducted the amounts due to the procuring agency under Sub-Para (a) and (c) of this Sub-Clause. |
| Sub-Clause 16.1 Contractor's Entitlement to Suspend Work | Delete words " Sub-Clause 2.4 [Employer's Financial Arrangements] or " from first paragraph |
| | Delete paragraph 2 <i>in entirety</i> (i.e. from words "Notwithstanding" to "notification from the bank". |
| Sub-Clause 16.2 Termination by Contractor | Delete paragraph (a) in entirety. |
| Sub-Clause 17.3 Employer's Risks | Delete paragraph (a) in entirety. |
| Sub-Clause 18.1 | Add following text |
| General Requirements for Insurance | The contractor shall be obliged to place all insurances relating to the contract (including, but not limited to, the insurances referred to |

÷

••

| Sub-Clause 19,6 | in Clauses 18.1,18.2,18.3,18.4) with Insurance Company having at least AA rating from PACRA/JCR in favour of the Employer valid for a period 28 days after the expiry of Defects Liability Period. Costs of such insurances shall be borne by the contractor. |
|---|---|
| Optional Termination, Payment and release by the Employer | Delete paragraph (c), (d) and (e) in entirety. |
| Sub-Clause 20.1 Contractor's Claims | Insert following at the end of Sub-Clause 20.1 The Contractor shall not be entitled for any extension of Time for Completion and/or additional payment in respect of the claim(s) if the Contractor fails to comply with the requirements or any of the requirement of Sub-Clause 20.1 within the time period stipulated there in the Clause above mentioned and or fails in keeping and producing necessary records whenever demanded by the Engineer. |
| Sub-Clause 20.6 Arbitration | Delete the Clause in entirety and replace with following Any dispute in respect of which: a. the decision, of the Dispute Board has not become final and binding pursuant to sub-clause 20.2, and b. amicable settlement has not been reached within the period stated in sub-clause 20.5, shall be finally settled, under the provisions of the Arbitration Act, 1940 as amended or any statutory modification/Rules of Conciliation And Arbitration PEC Islamabad or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force. The place of arbitration shall be Karachi, in Sindh Province. The arbitrators shall have full power to open up, review and revise any certificate, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, and any decision of the DB, relevant to the dispute. Nothing shall disqualify representatives of the Parties and the Engineer from being called as a witness and giving evidence before the arbitrators to the evidence or arguments previously put before the DB to obtain its decision, or to the reasons for dissatisfaction given in its notice of dissatisfaction. Any decision of the DB shall be admissible in evidence in the arbitration. |

APPENDIX: DISPUTE BOARD

General Conditions of Dispute Board Agreement

1. Definitions Each "Dispute Board Agreement" is a tripartite agreement by and between:

- (a) the "Employer";
- (b) the "Contractor"; and
- (c) the "Member" who is defined in the Dispute Board Agreement as being:
 - (i) the sole member of the "DB" and, where this is the case, all references to the "Other Members" do not apply, or
 - (ii) one of the three persons who are jointly called the "DB" (or "Dispute Board") and, where this is the case, the other two persons are called the "Other Members."

The Employer and the Contractor have entered (or intend to enter) into a contract, which is called the "Contract" and is defined in the Dispute Board Agreement, which incorporates this Appendix. In the Dispute Board Agreement, words and expressions which are not otherwise defined shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Contract.

Unless otherwise stated in the Dispute Board Agreement, it shall take effect on the latest of the following dates:

- (a) the Commencement Date defined in the Contract,
- (b) when the Employer, the Contractor and the Member have each signed the Dispute Board Agreement, or
- (c) when the Employer, the Contractor and each of the Other Members (if any) have respectively each signed a dispute board agreement.

This employment of the Member is a personal appointment. At any time, the Member may give not less than 70 days' notice of resignation to the Employer and to the Contractor, and the Dispute Agreement shall terminate upon the expiry of this period.

3. Warranties The Member warrants and agrees that he/she is and shall be impartial and independent of the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer. The Member shall promptly disclose, to each of them and to the Other Members (if any), any fact or circumstance which might appear inconsistent with his/her warranty and agreement of impartiality and independence.

2. General Provisions When appointing the Member, the Employer and the Contractor relied upon the Member's representations that he/she is:

- (a) experienced in the work which the Contractor is to carry out under the Contract,
- (b) experienced in the interpretation of contract documentation, and
- (c) fluent in the language for communications defined in the Contract.

The Member shall:

Obligations of the Member

4. General

- (a) have no interest financial or otherwise in the Employer, the Contractor or Engineer, nor any financial interest in the Contract except for payment under the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (b) not previously have been employed as a consultant or otherwise by the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, except in such circumstances as were disclosed in writing to the Employer and the Contractor before they signed the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (c) have disclosed in writing to the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any), before entering into the Dispute Board Agreement and to his/her best knowledge and recollection, any professional or personal relationships with any director, officer or employee of the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, and any previous involvement in the overall project of which the Contract forms part;
- (d) not, for the duration of the Dispute Board Agreement, be employed as a consultant or otherwise by the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer, except as may be agreed in writing by the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any);
- (e) comply with the annexed procedural rules and with Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract;
- (f) not give advice to the Employer, the Contractor, the Employer's Personnel or the Contractor's Personnel concerning the conduct of the Contract, other than in accordance with the annexed procedural rules;
- (g) not while a Member enter into discussions or make any agreement with the Employer, the Contractor or the Engineer regarding employment by any of them, whether as a consultant or otherwise, after ceasing to act under the Dispute Board Agreement;
- (h) ensure his/her availability for all site visits and hearings as are necessary;

- become conversant with the Contract and with the progress of the Works (and of any other parts of the project of which the Contract forms part) by studying all documents received which shall be maintained in a current working file;
- (j) treat the details of the Contract and all the DB's activities and hearings as private and confidential, and not publish or disclose them without the prior written consent of the Employer, the Contractor and the Other Members (if any); and
- (k) be available to give advice and opinions, on any matter relevant to the Contract when requested by both the Employer and the Contractor, subject to the agreement of the Other Members (if any).
- 5. General Obligations of the Employer and the Contractor

The Employer, the Contractor, the Employer's Personnel and the Contractor's Personnel shall not request advice from or consultation with the Member regarding the Contract, otherwise than in the normal course of the DB's activities under the Contract and the Dispute Board Agreement. The Employer and the Contractor shall be responsible for compliance with this provision, by the Employer's Personnel and the Contractor's Personnel respectively.

The Employer and the Contractor undertake to each other and to the Member that the Member shall not, except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Employer, the Contractor, the Member and the Other Members (if any):

- (a) be appointed as an arbitrator in any arbitration under the Contract;
- (b) be called as a witness to give evidence concerning any dispute before arbitrator(s) appointed for any arbitration under the Contract; or
- (c) be liable for any claims for anything done or omitted in the discharge or purported discharge of the Member's functions, unless the act or omission is shown to have been in bad faith.

The Employer and the Contractor hereby jointly and severally indemnify and hold the Member harmless against and from claims from which he is relieved from liability under the preceding paragraph.

Whenever the Employer or the Contractor refers a dispute to the DB under Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract, which will require the Member to make a site visit and attend a hearing, the Employer or the Contractor shall provide appropriate security for a sum equivalent to the reasonable expenses to be incurred by the Member. No account shall be taken of any other payments due or paid to the Member.

The Member shall be paid as follows, in the currency named in the Dispute Board Agreement:

- (a) a retainer fee per calendar month, which shall be considered as payment in full for:
 - (i) being available on 28 days' notice for all site visits and hearings;
 - (ii) becoming and remaining conversant with all project developments and maintaining relevant files;
 - (iii) all office and overhead expenses including secretarial services, photocopying and office supplies incurred in connection with his duties; and
 - (iv) all services performed hereunder except those referred to in sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) of this Clause.

The retainer fee shall be paid with effect from the last day of the calendar month in which the Dispute Board Agreement becomes effective; until the last day of the calendar month in which the Taking-Over Certificate is issued for the whole of the Works.

With effect from the first day of the calendar month following the month in which the Taking-Over Certificate is issued for the whole of the Works, the retainer fee shall be reduced by one third. This reduced fee shall be paid until the first day of the calendar month in which the Member resigns or the Dispute Board Agreement is otherwise terminated.

- (b) a daily fee which shall be considered as payment in full for:
 - (i) each day or part of a day up to a maximum of two days' travel time in each direction for the journey between the Member's home and the site, or another location of a meeting with the Other Members (if any);
 - (ii) each working day on Site visits, hearings or preparing decisions; and
 - (iii) each day spent reading submissions in preparation for a hearing.
- (c) all reasonable expenses including necessary travel expenses (air fare in less than first class, hotel and subsistence and other direct travel expenses) incurred in connection with the Member's duties, as well as the cost of telephone calls, courier charges, faxes and telexes: a receipt shall be required for each item in excess of five percent of the daily fee referred to in sub-paragraph (b) of this Clause;
- (d) any taxes properly levied in the Country on payments made to the Member (unless a national or permanent resident of the Country) under this Clause 6.

The retainer and daily fees shall be as specified in the Dispute Board Agreement. Unless it specifies otherwise, these fees shall remain fixed for the first 24 calendar months, and shall thereafter be adjusted by agreement between the Employer, the Contractor and the Member, at each anniversary of the date on which the Dispute Board Agreement became effective.

If the parties fail to agree on the retainer fee or the daily fee, the appointing entity or official named in the Contract Data shall determine the amount of the fees to be used.

The Member shall submit invoices for payment of the monthly retainer and air fares quarterly in advance. Invoices for other expenses and for daily fees shall be submitted following the conclusion of a site visit or hearing. All invoices shall be accompanied by a brief description of activities performed during the relevant period and shall be addressed to the Contractor.

The Contractor shall pay each of the Member's invoices in full within 56 calendar days after receiving each invoice and shall apply to the Employer (in the Statements under the Contract) for reimbursement of one-half of the amounts of these invoices. The Employer shall then pay the Contractor in accordance with the Contract.

If the Contractor fails to pay to the Member the amount to which he/she is entitled under the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer shall pay the amount due to the Member and any other amount which may be required to maintain the operation of the DB; and without prejudice to the Employer's rights or remedies. In addition to all other rights arising from this default, the Employer shall be entitled to reimbursement of all sums paid in excess of onehalf of these payments, plus all costs of recovering these sums and financing charges calculated at the rate specified in Sub-Clause 14.8 of the Conditions of Contract.

If the Member does not receive payment of the amount due within 70 days after submitting a valid invoice, the Member may (i) suspend his/her services (without notice) until the payment is received, and/or (ii) resign his/her appointment by giving notice under Clause 7.

At any time: (i) the Employer and the Contractor may jointly terminate the Dispute Board Agreement by giving 42 days' notice to the Member; or (ii) the Member may resign as provided for in Clause 2.

> If the Member fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer and the Contractor may, without prejudice to their other rights, terminate it by notice to the Member. The notice shall take effect when received by the Member.

> If the Employer or the Contractor fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Member may, without prejudice to his other

7. Termination

The retainer and daily fees shall be as specified in the Dispute Board Agreement. Unless it specifies otherwise, these fees shall remain fixed for the first 24 calendar months, and shall thereafter be adjusted by agreement between the Employer, the Contractor and the Member, at each anniversary of the date on which the Dispute Board Agreement became effective.

If the parties fail to agree on the retainer fee or the daily fee, the appointing entity or official named in the Contract Data shall determine the amount of the fees to be used.

The Member shall submit invoices for payment of the monthly retainer and air fares quarterly in advance. Invoices for other expenses and for daily fees shall be submitted following the conclusion of a site visit or hearing. All invoices shall be accompanied by a brief description of activities performed during the relevant period and shall be addressed to the Contractor.

The Contractor shall pay each of the Member's invoices in full within 56 calendar days after receiving each invoice and shall apply to the Employer (in the Statements under the Contract) for reimbursement of one-half of the amounts of these invoices. The Employer shall then pay the Contractor in accordance with the Contract.

If the Contractor fails to pay to the Member the amount to which he/she is entitled under the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer shall pay the amount due to the Member and any other amount which may be required to maintain the operation of the DB; and without prejudice to the Employer's rights or remedies. In addition to all other rights arising from this default, the Employer shall be entitled to reimbursement of all sums paid in excess of onehalf of these payments, plus all costs of recovering these sums and financing charges calculated at the rate specified in Sub-Clause 14.8 of the Conditions of Contract.

If the Member does not receive payment of the amount due within 70 days after submitting a valid invoice, the Member may (i) suspend his/her services (without notice) until the payment is received, and/or (ii) resign his/her appointment by giving notice under Clause 7.

7. Termination

At any time: (i) the Employer and the Contractor may jointly terminate the Dispute Board Agreement by giving 42 days' notice to the Member; or (ii) the Member may resign as provided for in Clause 2.

If the Member fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Employer and the Contractor may, without prejudice to their other rights, terminate it by notice to the Member. The notice shall take effect when received by the Member.

If the Employer or the Contractor fails to comply with the Dispute Board Agreement, the Member may, without prejudice to his other rights, terminate it by notice to the Employer and the Contractor. The notice shall take effect when received by them both.

Any such notice, resignation and termination shall be final and binding on the Employer, the Contractor and the Member. However, a notice by the Employer or the Contractor, but not by both, shall be of no effect.

8. Default of the Member
 If the Member fails to comply with any of his obligations under Clause 4 (a) - (d) above, he shall not be entitled to any fees or expenses hereunder and shall, without prejudice to their other rights, reimburse each of the Employer and the Contractor for any fees and expenses received by the Member and the Other Members (if any), for proceedings or decisions (if any) of the DB which are rendered void or ineffective by the said failure to comply.

If the Member fails to comply with any of his obligations under Clause 4 (e) - (k) above, he shall not be entitled to any fees or expenses hereunder from the date and to the extent of the noncompliance and shall, without prejudice to their other rights, reimburse each of the Employer and the Contractor for any fees and expenses already received by the Member, for proceedings or decisions (if any) of the DB which are rendered void or ineffective by the said failure to comply.

9. Disputes Any dispute or claim arising out of or in connection with this Dispute Board Agreement, or the breach, termination or invalidity thereof, shall be finally settled by institutional arbitration. If no other arbitration institute is agreed, the arbitration shall be conducted under the Rules of Arbitration of the International Chamber of Commerce by one arbitrator appointed in accordance with these Rules of Arbitration.

Annex: Procedural Rules

Unless otherwise agreed by the Employer and the Contractor, the DB shall visit the site at intervals of not more than 140 days, including times of critical construction events, at the request of either the Employer or the Contractor. Unless otherwise agreed by the Employer, the Contractor and the DB, the period between consecutive visits shall not be less than 70 days, except as required to convene a hearing as described below.

The timing of and agenda for each site visit shall be as agreed jointly by the DB, the Employer and the Contractor, or in the absence of agreement, shall be decided by the DB. The purpose of site visits is to enable the DB to become and remain acquainted with the progress of the Works and of any actual or potential problems or claims, and, as far as reasonable, to endeavour to prevent potential problems or claims from becoming disputes.

Site visits shall be attended by the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer and shall be co-ordinated by the Employer in co-operation with the Contractor. The Employer shall ensure the provision of appropriate conference facilities and secretarial and copying services. At the conclusion of each site visit and before leaving the site, the DB shall prepare a report on its activities during the visit and shall send copies to the Employer and the Contractor.

The Employer and the Contractor shall furnish to the DB one copy of all documents which the DB may request, including Contract documents, progress reports, variation instructions, certificates and other documents pertinent to the performance of the Contract. All communications between the DB and the Employer or the Contractor shall be copied to the other Party. If the DB comprises three persons, the Employer and the Contractor shall send copies of these requested documents and these communications to each of these persons.

If any dispute is referred to the DB in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 of the Conditions of Contract, the DB shall proceed in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4 and these Rules. Subject to the time allowed to give notice of a decision and other relevant factors, the DB shall:

- (a) act fairly and impartially as between the Employer and the Contractor, giving each of them a reasonable opportunity of putting his case and responding to the other's case, and
- (b) adopt procedures suitable to the dispute, avoiding unnecessary delay or expense.

The DB may conduct a hearing on the dispute, in which event it will decide on the date and place for the hearing and may request that written documentation and arguments from the Employer and the Contractor be presented to it prior to or at the hearing.

Except as otherwise agreed in writing by the Employer and the Contractor, the DB shall have power to adopt an inquisitorial procedure, to refuse admission to hearings or audience at hearings to any persons other than representatives of the Employer, the Contractor and the Engineer, and to proceed in the absence of any party who the DB is satisfied received notice of the hearing; but shall have discretion to decide whether and to what extent this power may be exercised.

The Employer and the Contractor empower the DB, among other things, to:

- (a) establish the procedure to be applied in deciding a dispute,
- (b) decide upon the DB's own jurisdiction, and as to the scope of any dispute referred to it,

- (c) conduct any hearing as it thinks fit, not being bound by any rules or procedures other than those contained in the Contract and these Rules,
- (d) take the initiative in ascertaining the facts and matters required for a decision,
- (e) make use of its own specialist knowledge, if any,
- (f) decide upon the payment of financing charges in accordance with the Contract,
- (g) decide upon any provisional relief such as interim or conservatory measures, and
- (h) open up, review and revise any certificate, decision, determination, instruction, opinion or valuation of the Engineer, relevant to the dispute.

The DB shall not express any opinions during any hearing concerning the merits of any arguments advanced by the Parties. Thereafter, the DB shall make and give its decision in accordance with Sub-Clause 20.4, or as otherwise agreed by the Employer and the Contractor in writing. If the DB comprises three persons:

- it shall convene in private after a hearing, in order to have discussions and prepare its (a)
- it shall endeavour to reach a unanimous decision: if this proves impossible the (b) applicable decision shall be made by a majority of the Members, who may require the minority Member to prepare a written report for submission to the Employer and the
- if a Member fails to attend a meeting or hearing, or to fulfil any required function, the (c) other two Members may nevertheless proceed to make a decision, unless:
 - either the Employer or the Contractor does not agree that they do so, or (i)
 - the absent Member is the chairman and he/she instructs the other Members not to (ii)